
Transportation Commission 
January 15 & 16, 2014 

Meeting Schedule & Agenda 
4201 East Arkansas Avenue 

Denver, Colorado 80222 
 

Douglas E. Aden, Chairman 
Grand Junction, District 7 

 
Shannon Gifford 

Denver, District 1 
Ed Peterson, Vice Chairman 

Lakewood, District 2 
Gary M. Reiff 

Englewood, District 3 
Heather Barry 

Westminster, District 4 
Kathleen Gilliland 

Livermore, District 5 
 
 

Kathy Connell 
Steamboat Springs, District 6 

Sidny Zink 
Durango, District 8 

Les Gruen 
Colorado Springs, District 9 

William Thiebaut 
Pueblo, District 10 
Steven Hofmeister 

Haxtun, District 11 
 

        THE CHAIRMAN MAY ALTER THE ITEM SEQUENCE OR TIMES 
 
The times indicated for each topic on the Commission agenda are an estimate and 
subject to change.  Generally, upon the completion of each agenda item, the 
Commission will immediately move to the next item.  However, the order of agenda 
items is tentative and, when necessary to accommodate the public or the 
Commission's schedules, the order of the agenda items is also subject to change. 
 
Documents are posted at http://www.coloradodot.info/about/transportation-
commission/meeting-agenda.html no less than 24 hours prior to the meeting.  The 
documents are considered to be in draft form and for information only until final 
action is taken by the Commission. 
 
Unless otherwise noted, all meetings are in CDOT HQ Auditorium. 
 
Tuesday, January 14, 2014 
8:30 a.m. Regional Transportation Committee [DRCOG] 
 
Wednesday, January 15, 2014 
12:00 p.m.  HPTE Lunch Meeting [Room 225]  
1:00 p.m. HPTE Board Meeting 
2:00 p.m.  I-70 Viaduct Workshop (Scott Richrath, Ben Stein, Anthony DeVito) 

• HPTE Board is invited to participate.  ..................... Tab 01 
3:15 p.m. Statewide Plan Committee (Deb Perkins-Smith) ........... Tab 02 
3:45 p.m. Statewide Plan Video (Deb Perkins-Smith) 
4:00 p.m. FASTER Safety Workshop (Deb Perkins-Smith) ............ Tab 03 
4:45 p.m. Adjournment 
 
Thursday, January 16, 2014 
7:30 a.m. Breakfast Meeting 
9:00 a.m. Asset Management Committee (Deb Perkins-Smith) ..... Tab 04 

http://www.coloradodot.info/about/transportation-commission/meeting-agenda.html
http://www.coloradodot.info/about/transportation-commission/meeting-agenda.html


9:30 a.m. T&I Committee (Mark Imhoff) ...................................... Tab 05 
10:00 a.m. Program Distribution Workshop (Deb Perkins-Smith) .. Tab 06 
10:30 a.m. Audit Review Committee [Room 225] (Barb Gold) ......... Tab 07 
10:30 a.m.  Safety Committee [Auditorium] (Darrell Lingk) ............. Tab 08 
11:00 a.m. RAMP List of Commitments Update (Scott McDaniel) ... Tab 09 
11:15 a.m. Twin Tunnels Workshop (Anthony DeVito) ................... Tab 10 
11:45 a.m.  Lunch 
 
***************************************************** 
TRANSPORATION COMMISSION MEETING .................................... Tab 11 
 
12:15 p.m. 1. Call to Order, Roll Call 
   
12:15 p.m. 2. Audience Participation; Subject Limit: 
         10 minutes; Time Limit: 3 minutes 
 
12:15 p.m. 3. Comments of Individual Commissioners 
 
12:20 p.m. 4. Executive Director’s Report (Don Hunt)  
 
12:25 p.m.  5. HPTE Director’s Report (Michael Cheroutes) 
 
12:30 p.m.  6. FHWA Division Administrator Report (John Cater) 
 
12:35 p.m.  7. STAC Report (Vince Rogalski) 
 
12:40 p.m.  8. Act on Consent Agenda ........................................... Tab 12 
 

a) Resolution to approve the Regular Meeting Minutes of December 19, 
2013 (Herman Stockinger) ............................. Consent Agenda p1 
 

b) Resolution to Approve Policy Directive 600.0 on Equal Employment 
Opportunity and Affirmative Action  

   (Heidi Humphreys) ......................................... Consent Agenda p20 
 

c) Resolution to Approve Policy Directive 603.0 on Prohibiting Sexual 
Harassment (Heidi Humphreys) ..................... Consent Agenda p28 

 
d) Resolution to Approve Policy Directive 604.0 on Non-Discrimination 

and Repeal Policy Directive 611.0  
   (Herman Stockinger) ...................................... Consent Agenda p37 

 
e) Declaration of Excess Property, Parcel 33-EX, created under Project 

F006-1(2) (Myron Hora) ................................. Consent Agenda p53 
 

f) Resolution to Approve Compliance Agreement for U.S. 36 Concession 
Project (Mike Cheroutes) ................................ Consent Agenda p56 

 
12:45 p.m.  9. Discuss and Act on 8th Supplement to the FY’2014 Budget (Scott 

Richrath) ..................................................................... Tab 13 



 
12:50 p.m. 10. Discuss and Act on a Resolution for the COP for the Relocation of 

Region 4 HQ (Scott Richrath) ....................................... Tab 14 
 
1:05 p.m. 11. Discuss and Act on a Resolution for Promulgation of Permanent 

Tunnel Rules (Anthony DeVito) .................................... Tab 15 
 
1:15 p.m. 12. Discuss and Act on the Adoption of Temporary Tunnel Rules 

(Anthony DeVito) ......................................................... Tab 16 
 
1:25 p.m. 13. Discuss and Act on the Approval of the Interregional Express Bus 

Plan and Implementation (Mark Imhoff) ....................... Tab 17 
 
1:35 p.m.    14.Other Matters: 
 
1:35 p.m.    15.Acknowledgements: 
  
1:40 p.m. 16. Adjournment 
 
***************************************************** 
BRIDGE ENTERPRISE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  ............................ Tab 18 
 
1:45 p.m. Call to Order and Roll Call 
 
1:45 p.m. Audience Participation 
  Subject Limit: 10 minutes; Time Limit: 3 minutes 
 
  Act on Consent Agenda ...................................... Bridge Enterprise 1 

a) Resolution to Approve Regular Minutes from 
December 19, 2013 (Herman Stockinger) 

 
1:45 p.m.  Discuss and Act on 6th Budget Supplement for FY2014 
  (Scott Richrath) .................................................. Bridge Enterprise 5 
 
1:50 p.m. FASTER Lawsuit Appeal Update 
  (Kathy Young) …………………………………..………Bridge Enterprise 8 
 
1:55 p.m. Monthly Progress Report 
  (Scott McDaniel) ................................................. Bridge Enterprise 9 
 
2:00 p.m. Bridge Enterprise 2013 Year in Review 
  (Scott McDaniel) ................................................. Bridge Enterprise 14 
 
2:05 p.m. Adjournment 
 



1 
 

 
Safety        People       Integrity       Customer Service        Excellence        Respect 

 MEMORANDUM 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

 
Colorado Department of Transportation     
4201 East Arkansas Ave 
Denver, CO 80222 
(303) 757-9012 
Fax: (303) 757-9656 

 
Date:  January 15, 2014   
 
To:  Transportation Commission, High Performance Transportation Enterprise (HPTE) Board 

of Directors, and Colorado Bridge Enterprise (CBE) Board of Directors   
 
From: Scott Richrath, Chief Financial Officer 

Tony DeVito, Region 1 Transportation Director 
Mike Cheroutes, Director of the HPTE 
Ben Stein, Office of Major Project Development  

 
CC:  Don Hunt, CDOT Executive Director and Director of the CBE  
 
Subject: Next Steps for the I-70 East / Viaduct Project    
 

Purpose 
 

During the workshop for the I-70 East / Viaduct project on December 18, 2013, a model for 
funding this project was presented to the Transportation Commission. Several members 
requested additional information and alternatives to consider possible alternative funding 
sources and mixes. This memorandum is designed to fulfill that request.  
 

Background 
 

The I-70 East / Viaduct replacement project has had a long gestation within the department. The 
Environmental Impact Statement for this project has gone on for more than a decade. Given the 
magnitude of this project, the Commission and CBE have over the years received periodic 
updates on its progress. These updates have been provided via: the annual bridge asset 
condition presentation; budget workshops; the 2012 Bridge Enterprise Annual Report, which 
noted that the cost of this project would strain the resources of the Bridge Enterprise; the 
workshop to discuss the engagement of Macquarie to serve as the project’s financial advisor; 
and the various budget actions by the Commission and CBE to fund the EIS and early action on 
right of way and design. The most recent budget action by the Commission occurred in May 
2013 that budgeted an additional $39.5 million for project design, environmental, and ROW 
acquisition, and financial advisory services. 
 
As noted in the most recent workshop the present staff recommendation is to identify sufficient 
funds to reconstruct I-70 from its intersection with I-25 to its intersection with I-270. This section 
of the interstate notably includes the I-70 viaduct which is the centerpiece of the current decade 
long EIS process. The viaduct’s physical condition remains an issue of concern within the 
department, as at the time the CBE was created this was by far the largest and most notable 
bridge on the “poor” list. One reaction to its deteriorating condition was the decision in 2008 to 
expend $32 million to repair or remove expansion joints along the 1.8 mile long structure with 
the goal of adding 10-15 years of structure life.  
 

 

  

01 I-70E Viaduct Workshop: Page 1 of 37



2 
 

 
Safety        People       Integrity       Customer Service        Excellence        Respect 

 

Action 
 

Part I – You are asked today to provide guidance to staff on the following: 

 Reaffirmation of the commitment to this project; 

 Preferred mix of funding sources should you favor continuing to forward with viaduct 

replacement; 

Part II – Staff will also introduce for February discussion CDOT policies, either statewide or 
specific to this corridor, related to  

 tolling through use of managed lanes; 

 concessionaire agreements as a means of operating such tolled facilities; 

 Public-Private Partnerships as a means of investing in the viaduct. 

This memorandum will focus on a Design-Build alternative for the portion of I-70 highlighted in 
red in Figure 1 to allow you to consider the policy issues above this month and to discuss 
financing alternatives in a future discussion if you decide to proceed with this project. 
 

Figure 1 – Map of corridor with focus this month highlighted in red 
 

 
   

01 I-70E Viaduct Workshop: Page 2 of 37



3 
 

 
Safety        People       Integrity       Customer Service        Excellence        Respect 

PART I: I-70 East / Viaduct 
 
Replace the Viaduct: Why is Preventative Maintenance Not an Analyzed Option? 
 

Though CBE considers repair vs. replace on all eligible bridges, this option does not meet the 
purpose and need of the Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) for the I-70 viaduct.  It does not 
address safety and capacity improvements. 
 
The last repair of the structure occurred in September 2008, when CDOT performed an 
expansion joint repair project on the I-70 viaduct from Brighton Boulevard to Colorado 
Boulevard. The project repaired or replaced 64 bridge expansion joints on the 45-year old 
structure, improved drainage, performed some pier cap repairs and replaced the bridge rail. 
Total cost of the project was $32 million.  The project was a repair project designed to extend 
the life of the bridge and it was not connected with the I-70 Environmental Impact Statement 
(EIS). It was completed in the spring of 2011. Staff Bridge estimated at the time of the repair 
that the structure life (not Structurally Deficient and above 50 in sufficiency rating) was 
increased by 15 years. 
 
This bridge represents the deck size of more than 50 average CDOT bridges. Maintaining the 
existing viaduct does offer investment benefits. If CDOT were to maintain the viaduct in its 
current condition the statewide bridge condition in 20 years would be about 10% structurally 
deficient. If CDOT were to replace the viaduct in-kind (EIS No-action alternative), the state-wide 
bridge condition in 20 years would be about 11.5% not structurally deficient. The MAP-21 target 
threshold is 10% and for context, CDOT’s national rank for structurally deficient bridges is 
currently 26th with 6% deficient.  
 

Figure 2 – Bridge Network Deterioration Curves for Maintain vs. Replace 

 
 
Maintaining the existing structure would ensure safety and structural capacity which are two of 
the four purpose and need statements in the EIS, but could not address the traffic congestion 
and traffic safety purpose and need. The maintenance operations would also require night work 
and would impact the community via noise, lights, dust, etc. This option was therefore excluded 
from the option analysis below.   

01 I-70E Viaduct Workshop: Page 3 of 37



4 
 

 
Safety        People       Integrity       Customer Service        Excellence        Respect 

EIS and Cost Estimates: History and a Look Forward 
 

In 2003, CDOT began an Environmental Impact Statement for I-70 East. The purpose and need 
of this study is to improve safety, access, and mobility along I-70 from Brighton Boulevard to 
Tower Road. Over the last 10 years, the project team has evaluated dozens of options to 
reconstruct I-70 and has conducted a level of public outreach exceeding any EIS effort in CDOT 
history. Most of the alternatives analyzed have centered on the future of the viaduct, which is a 
focus for residents and local political leadership. In 2012, a new alternative was presented to the 
public. The Partial Cover Lowered (PCL) alternative is the first concept to receive broad 
community and political support since the start of study. One sign of this support is the City of 
Denver's inclusion of I-70 reconstruction as one of six redevelopment projects in north Denver 
designed to rebuild a connected community and energize the gateway to downtown Denver. 
The PCL will be identified as the Preferred Alternative in the Supplemental DEIS, due to be 
released this spring. An overview of the EIS study and the larger context surrounding this work 
is included in Appendix A. 
 
Current Cost Estimates 
 

The actual cost of addressing the mapped portion of I-70 varies somewhat depending upon the 
segments addressed, the delivery method selected, as well as some technical issues. Cost 
estimates range from about $1.05 billion to $1.25 billion and do not include the amounts spent 
to date for the environmental clearance and some other transactional costs. Since costs 
estimates are in current dollars and the delivery method will not be addressed this month, for 
the purposes of this memorandum the figure $1.1 billion will be used. The actual cost may be 
somewhat higher or lower.  
 
In addition to the costs to reconstruct this section of the interstate, an additional consideration is 
the cost to operate, maintain, and rehabilitate (OM&R) it once rebuilt. The current estimate for 
the first 25 years is $7.4 million per year including operation and maintenance of the tolled 
facilities. These are important considerations, as some delivery methods “cover” these costs, 
and some do not.  
 
A Look Forward 
 

Critical future dates include: 

 Late 2014 revenue estimates from Governor’s Office of State Planning Budget with 

improved certainty over FY2016 Senate Bill 09-228 revenues 

 Late 2014 appellate court decision on appeal of district court decision in favor of CBE 

 Mid-2015 scheduled Record of Decision (ROD) 

 
 
 
  

01 I-70E Viaduct Workshop: Page 4 of 37



5 
 

 
Safety        People       Integrity       Customer Service        Excellence        Respect 

 

Potential Funding Sources for Replacement – Design-Build Only 
 

Bridge Enterprise is not the only funding source for Bridges on the state’s system. Other state 
and federal sources are allocated to the Bridge Asset management program federal and state 
fuel tax and FASTER Safety. Senate Bill 228 funds could also represent a funding source for 
the I-70 corridor.  

 
Other sources exist and may be critical in helping to close the funding gap for this project, but 
are excluded from this month’s analysis to allow for further policy discussion. Managed Lane 
Toll Revenues (TR) can be analyzed in a future discussion, but are projected at a level 
insufficient to cover even annual operating and maintenance of the new facility. Denver Region 
Council of Governments (DRCOG) would represent a vital contribution to this project and could 
help close a funding gap.  
 
Bridge Safety Surcharges 
 

The I-70 Viaduct is a “poor” bridge within the definition used in the “FASTER” legislation and is 
therefore eligible for replacement or rehabilitation with funds derived from this source. The 
Bridge Enterprise’s annual revenues in FY2013 were $92.8 million and are projected over the 
next 30-35 years to grow at approximately 1% per year. In addition, by Transportation 
Commission resolution resulting from its financing activities, the Bridge Enterprise receives an 
annual transfer of $15 million of federal apportionments to support its program and about $6 
million from the US Treasury as a subsidy to support the annual payments on the 2010 Build 
America Bonds. So, its total annual revenues including Commission transfers total about $113 
million per year. 
 
Against these annual revenues the Bridge Enterprise has a commitment to annual payments for 
the 2010 Build America Bonds (BABs). Currently these payments are about $18 million per year 
through 2025 and about $30 million per year in 2026 through 2040. The Commission’s annual 
allocation of $15 million in federal apportionments to the Bridge Enterprise is used primarily for 
repayment of the bonds. It should be noted that the US Treasury subsidy is 32% of the annual 
payment so when the annual payments on the bonds increases so will the annual subsidy.  
 
Table 1 – Summary of Bridge Revenues and “Fixed” Costs  
 

Funds Available to Bridge Program 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

       CBE Funding (with $15M TC and $6M US-T subsidy) $112.3 $115.2 $117.3 $119.6 $121.9 $124.3 

CBE Existing Debt Service (BABs) (18.2) (18.2) (18.2) (18.2) (18.2) (18.2) 

Net Funds Available to CBE 94.1 97.0 99.1 101.4 103.7 106.1 

Other Bridge Asset Mgmt (FY2015 budget) 55.9 55.9 55.9 55.9 55.9 55.9 

Mandated bridge inspection program (11.6) (11.7) (11.8) (12.0) (12.1) (12.2) 

       Total Funds Available for Bridge Network $138.4 $141.1 $143.1 $145.3 $147.5 $149.8 
  

01 I-70E Viaduct Workshop: Page 5 of 37



6 
 

 
Safety        People       Integrity       Customer Service        Excellence        Respect 

Federal and State Fuel Taxes, FASTER Safety, and Other Sources 
 

These are the funds the department receives in the course of its normal ongoing budget cycles 
and they are used to fund the department’s range of activities. This analysis assumes that 
funding for Bridges remains at $55.9 million in addition to previously discussed CBE funding. 
Beginning in 2018, retirement of Transportation Anticipation Revenue Notes (TRANS) will help 
maintain this level by providing portions of $167 million annually to Bridge Asset Management 
and leaving $138 million for other assets. 
 
FASTER Safety generates more than an additional $100 million annually and affords the 
department more than $60 million after accounting for $40 million of funding for safety projects 
within Asset Management. 
 
Within the federal funds category another possibility is to seek augmentation from the Denver 
Council of Regional Governments (DRCOG). DRCOG is responsible for allocating funds from 
the Surface Transportation Program (Metro) and Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) 
programs. Although fund available from this source could not pay for the entire project, they 
could conceivably provide a material contribution to its funding package. DRCOG is projected to 
receive well more than $50 million in FY2014 from these federal funding sources. 
 
State of Colorado General Fund Revenues (SB 09-228) 
 

Under SB09-228 the department may receive General Fund transfers for a five year period 
which commences in the year after personal income in the state grows by 5% or more. This is 
currently expected to occur in calendar year 2014 so that the mechanism will take effect for in 
FY2016. Once this mechanism takes effect the department will receive annual transfers equal to 
2% of general fund revenues. Over the five years, according to the Governor’s Office of State 
Planning & Budget (OSPB), this could result in annual transfers in the $200-225 million range 
potentially totaling about $1 billion in SB09-228 transfers. However, note that revenue forecasts 
that you adopted last April project less than this amount. Note that 10% of these funds are 
statutorily directed to transit and the balance to the department’s strategic investment program. 
The I-70 project is located on a corridor that is currently within that program.  
 
There is some uncertainty as to whether the department will actually receive the full amount 
noted above because the statute also states that if there are TABOR refunds during this period, 
the amount of the transfers may be reduced (or possibly eliminated). If the TABOR refund is 
greater than 1% of General Fund revenues in that year the SB09-228 transfer is cut in half. If 
the TABOR refund exceeds 3% of General Fund revenues the transfer for that year is 
cancelled.  
 
Advice from the OSPB is to be conservative and budget no more than a total of $270 
million into critical projects. Where SB 228 funds are utilized, this analysis assumes full use 
of $177 million (net of transit) in FY2016 and the balance of $270 million used in FY2017.  The 
remainder of SB09-228 funds should be treated as potential funding only.   
 

01 I-70E Viaduct Workshop: Page 6 of 37



7 
 

 
Safety        People       Integrity       Customer Service        Excellence        Respect 

Table 2 – Source and Use of Funds through Construction, without Issuing Debt I-70 East / Viaduct 
 

Potential Source of Funds - Design-Build (Cash Only; No Debt) 
       millions; per Revenue Forecast adopted 04/2013 unless otherwise noted 
       

        
 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Total 

Net Funds Available to CBE $94.1 $97.0 $99.1 $101.4 $103.7 $106.1 $601.4 

Other Bridge Asset Management (per FY2015 budget) 55.9 55.9 55.9 55.9 55.9 55.9 335.3 

TRNS Retirement (not already allocated to Bridge AM above) - - 39.0 138.3 138.3 138.3 453.9 

FASTER Safety (net of Asset Management included above) 65.5 68.6 70.9 73.2 75.5 78.0 431.7 

Senate Bill 09-228 (net of Transit; per OSPB projection for FY2016)   177.2 92.8        270.0 

        Total Potential Source of Funds $215.5 $398.7 $357.7 $368.8 $373.4 $378.3 $2,092.3 

        Use of Funds - Design-Build 
       millions; per Macquerie Value for Money report 
       

 
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Total 

Construction Costs 0 147.8 285.4 245.5 253.9 198.5 1131.1 

Construction Insurance Costs 0 10.1 10.4 0 0 0 20.5 

Total Operating, Maintenance, and Rehab Excluded 
      Tolling Costs Excluded             

        Total Use of Funds $0.0 $157.9 $295.8 $245.5 $253.9 $198.5 $1,151.6 

        I-70 Project % Use of Potential Source 0% 40% 83% 67% 68% 52% 55% 
 
 
 

01 I-70E Viaduct Workshop: Page 7 of 37



8 
 

 
Safety        People       Integrity       Customer Service        Excellence        Respect 

Summary of November 2012 Bridge Enterprise 10-Year Plan Workshop 

 
At the request of Bridge Enterprise Director Don Hunt, staff in concert with the Bridge Enterprise 
Program Manager and CBE financial consultants completed a preliminary 10-year bridge 
program plan for the Board’s consideration and comments. 
 
This 10-year program plan was completed in 2012 and was based upon a cash flow model that 
recognizes incoming revenues (defined as FASTER pay-go funding, bond proceeds, BABs 
subsidy, and Federal BR debt service pledge) as compared to outgoing expenditures (defined 
as payment on debt-service, bridge replacement costs, maintenance and planned preventative 
maintenance costs) on a quarterly basis summarized by fiscal year from 2013 through 2023. 
 
The amount of cash remaining in the Treasury at the end of the 10 year period is represented 
by the Un-Committed Cash Balance. A base of $25 million per year is recommended as a 
minimum cash balance to address program management costs, asset maintenance, and 
unexpected contingencies. 

 
CBE does not have sufficient funding to address all of the poor bridges within Colorado in the 
next 10 years, and the funding gap becomes worse with time. CDOT Staff Bridge uses a model 
to predict the amount of deck area projected to be rated “poor” in future years based upon the 
year a structure was initially built. This model indicates that “poor” rated deck area will increase 
1.7 times by 2020; 3 times by 2025; and over 4.5 times by 2030. The model does not however 
have the ability to predict (or determine) when a specific bridge may become poor. 
 
Staff asked the CBE Board to provide guidance on its priorities on when and how to use the 
available funding in a 10 year plan, so that plan can be implemented and completed. The CBE 
management team (which includes the program manager and CDOT financial consultants) 
developed two funding and timing scenarios to aid in the decision making. The Board provided 
no specific guidance related to preferences for funding. See Appendix B for the complete 
November 2012 report. 
 
Macquarie Synopsis of Design-Build (CDOT Finance) Scenario  

 
The financing structure for the Design-Build (DB) scenario combines: 

 Upfront construction milestone payments of $450 million sourced from SB09-228 funds 

and CBE "PAYGo" funds (as described in Macquarie Value for Money report); 

 A CBE municipal bond issue based on the assumptions provided by JP Morgan; 

 A TIFIA loan borrowed directly by CBE; and 

 CDOT direct funding of operation, maintenance and rehabilitation costs of the Project. 

For consistency, the assumed timing of payments to the construction contractor is the same 
under all scenarios as described by Macquarie. It is important to note that under the DB 
scenario all sources of financing have recourse to CBE rather than to the Project itself. Under 
the Design-Build-Finance and Design-Build-Finance-Operate-Maintain scenarios, the senior 
lenders and TIFIA take direct risk on the performance of the construction contractor. At this 
stage in the analysis, Macquarie calculates the amount of construction cost which can be 
supported. In respect of the optimized DB scenario, the project can afford a construction cost of 
$1,131 million. Actual construction costs under the DB scenario may be higher than this. 
 
See Appendix C for the updated Macquarie DB analysis. 

01 I-70E Viaduct Workshop: Page 8 of 37



9 
 

 
Safety        People       Integrity       Customer Service        Excellence        Respect 

Funding Sources – Staff Alternatives 
 

Funds Available to the Bridge Program 
 

As discussed above, CDOT’s bridge program (Enterprise and non-Enterprise collectively) 
currently obtains its funding from Bridge Safety Surcharges, Transportation Commission 
transfers, and Asset Management from a combination of sources. In addition to repairing and 
replacing bridges, it has annual obligations for debt service and a national inspection program. 
The bridge program also manages culverts and tunnels, but those funds have been excluded 
from this analysis.  
 
Staff Design-Build Funding Alternatives with Resulting Impact to CBE 
 

As exhibited in Table 2, funding the I-70 East / Viaduct project without financing is not a viable 
alternative. It consumes nearly 50% of all available funds during the five years of construction. 
And because toll revenues are projected to generate even less than the annual operating 
expense for the corridor, tolling is not discussed here as a revenue solution but rather offered 
only as a policy discussion in the following section. Therefore, the following alternatives build 
upon the “baseline” Design-Build-Finance alternative by incrementally adding additional funding 
sources to CBE revenues. The result is calculated as a reduced impact to CBE. 
 
Option #1 – Viaduct-Only Alternative: Funded Exclusively by CBE 
 
Using only CBE funds to pay for the I-70 East / Viaduct project poses several problems. Besides 
significantly depleting funds for completing other bridge work, it would under FASTER Bridge 
Enterprise statute preclude the department from repairing any portion of the corridor other than 
the viaduct. As with any of the following options, it could also violate additional bonds test 
requirements and prevent CDOT from meeting debt coverage ratios. Nevertheless, that 
alternative is presented here as the baseline, with an assumption that debt would be financed 
comparably to the financing structure and rates as in the Macquarie analysis. 
 
Note that this assumes (1) an estimated $895 million for the viaduct, though actual costs could 
be less; (2) that CBE utilizes $180 million of cash reserves and near term Pay-Go funds, some 
of which have already been used to purchase I-70 Right of Way; and (3) blended private 
(~5.0%) and TIFIA (~3.75%) rates apply to all debt service calculations.   
 
The data below shows totals for all annual projections from 2015 through 2046.  See Appendix 
D for all full tables.  

 

Viaduct-Only Alternative - All CBE '15-'46 Avg. Min Max 

Net Funds Available to CBE $4,177.0 $130.5 
  Less: Construction Insurance & Transaction Costs (32.8) (1.0) 
    Senior Debt and TIFIA Debt Payments (1,136.1) (35.5) 
  Remainder to CBE $3,008.1 $94.0 $45.9 $172.3 

 
 
As discussed above, this and any other option could also draw upon Bridge Asset Management 
funding to augment funding sources.  
  

01 I-70E Viaduct Workshop: Page 9 of 37



10 
 

 
Safety        People       Integrity       Customer Service        Excellence        Respect 

Option #2 – Macquarie Alternative: Add $270 million of SB 09-228 and extend to I-270 
 

Using the analysis provided by Macquarie, Option #2 assumes a $1.157 billion cost to I-270. 
Further assuming $270 million of Senate Bill 09-228 funds are used in the first two years of that 
program reduces required financing, coincidentally resulting in a nearly equal amount available 
to CBE. See Figure 4 below. 

 

Macquarie Alternative - CBE + SB 09-228 '15-'46 Avg. Min Max 

Net Funds Available to CBE $4,177.0 $130.5 
  Less: Construction Insurance & Transaction Costs (33.3) (1.0) 
    Senior Debt and TIFIA Debt Payments (1,155.2) (36.1) 
  Remainder to CBE $2,988.5 $93.4 $45.1 $172.1 

 
 
Option #3A – FASTER Safety Alternative: Add $50 million total to Option #2 
 

Building on the prior alternative, each additional $50 million reduces annual debt service by 
approximately $1.5 million. 

 

FASTER Safety Alternative - CBE + 228 + FS '15-'46 Avg. Min Max 

Net Funds Available to CBE $4,177.0 $130.5 
  Less: Construction Insurance & Transaction Costs (31.0) (1.0) 
    Senior Debt and TIFIA Debt Payments (1,075.8) (33.6) 
  Remainder to CBE $3,070.2 $95.9 $48.6 $172.9 

 
 
Option #3B – MPO Alternative: Add $50 million total to Option #3 
 

Again building on the prior alternative, an influx of funding from DRCOG makes additional 
annual funding available to CBE. 

 

MPO Alternative - CBE + 228 + FS + DRCOG '15-'46 Avg. Min Max 

Net Funds Available to CBE $4,177.0 $130.5 
  Less: Construction Insurance & Transaction Costs (28.7) (0.9) 
    Senior Debt and TIFIA Debt Payments (996.3) (31.1) 
  Remainder to CBE $3,151.9 $98.5 $52.2 $173.8 

 
 
See Appendix D for year-by-year analysis of all options.

01 I-70E Viaduct Workshop: Page 10 of 37



11 
 

 
Safety        People       Integrity       Customer Service        Excellence        Respect 

 
 
Figure 4 – CBE Spending over 20 Years under Macquarie Alternative 
 

   

0.0

20.0

40.0

60.0

80.0

100.0

120.0

140.0

160.0

180.0

200.0

M
ill

io
n

 2
0

1
5

 $
 

Remainder to CBE

I-70 Senior & TIFIA Debt

I-70 Insurance & Transaction Costs

Existing BABS Debt

01 I-70E Viaduct Workshop: Page 11 of 37



  12 

 
Safety        People       Integrity       Customer Service        Excellence        Respect 

PART II: Public-Private Partnerships  
 
Policy Discussion 
 

Staff would now like to introduce for in-depth February discussion CDOT policies, either 
statewide or specific to this corridor, related to  

 tolling through use of managed lanes; 

 concessionaire agreements as a means of operating such tolled facilities; 

 Public-Private Partnerships as a means of investing in the viaduct. 

The FASTER transportation measure passed by Colorado lawmakers in 2009 authorized state 
officials to look for innovative ways to finance and construct major highway projects, since 
traditional sources of roads funding, including federal and state fuel taxes, are insufficient for the 
task. Passage of the law followed the release in January 2008 of a special report on Colorado’s 
transportation crisis, commissioned by then Gov. Bill Ritter, that highlighted the need to invest 
billions of dollars in highway and bridge modernization in a period of diminishing resources. 
The $500 million project to expand and rebuild U.S. 36 between Denver and Boulder is the first 
highway venture in Colorado that will rely on the expertise of a private consortium to finance, 
build, operate and maintain a major roadway under a long-term contract.  
 
The four-lane highway between Denver and Boulder first opened as a toll road in 1951 and the 
bonds that financed construction were paid off early. Since 1968, the road has been a toll-free 
facility. Given the age and constrained lane capacity of U.S. 36, the deal forged between 
Colorado and the private consortium represents an opportunity to dramatically accelerate 
construction of a state-of-the-art multimodal transportation corridor. It offers several benefits. 
  
Transfer of Risk 
 

In April 2013, Colorado’s High Performance Transportation Enterprise (HPTE) selected Plenary 
Roads Denver LLC (Plenary) to collaborate with the state in a public-private partnership, or P3, 
that calls for Plenary’s team to expand the highway and operate and maintain it for 50 years, in 
exchange for the right to collect toll revenues from the project over the life of the concession 
agreement. Under terms of the pact, Plenary also will retain tolls collected from the 7.7-mile 
express-toll operation on Interstate 25 between downtown Denver and the Pecos Street 
interchange on U.S. 36. The I-25 High Occupancy Toll, or “HOT lane”, facility opened in 2006 
and generates about $2.6 million in annual toll revenues. 
 
The transaction HPTE reached with Plenary calls for the concessionaire to assume nearly all 
the risk, while retaining for the state the right to share in excess revenues generated by the 
highway if toll income exceeds pre-determined targets over the life of the agreement. Plenary is 
making an equity investment of about $20 million in the U.S. 36 project and taking on more than 
$140 million in debt. The concessionaire can request toll increases to secure its investment and 
guarantee that enough revenue is generated to meet loan obligations and operate and maintain 
the roadway over the decades. Approval from HPTE’s board of directors is required before any 
toll increase can go into effect. 
 
Shared Responsibility 
 

The concession agreement is a shared enterprise. The state of Colorado, local governments 
along the corridor, the Regional Transportation District (RTD), the Denver Regional Council of 
Governments (DRCOG) and the federal government are making significant financial 
contributions to the U.S. 36 effort, totaling more than $335 million. Plenary is contributing more 
than $160 in equity and loans (about 30%), including more than $114 in Transportation 

01 I-70E Viaduct Workshop: Page 12 of 37



  13 

 
Safety        People       Integrity       Customer Service        Excellence        Respect 

Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (TIFIA) loans from the federal government. Plenary is 
responsible for paying all the loans. 
 
 
Long-Term Partnerships 
 

HPTE and Plenary each commissioned studies to estimate traffic counts and toll revenues on 
the U.S. 36 and I-25 express lanes over the life of the concession agreement. HPTE’s 
consultant examined these and other data to determine the project’s value under the two 
scenarios – one under the concession model in which the P3 consortium builds, operates and 
maintains the highway, and the other under the public model that would have HPTE and CDOT 
operating and maintaining the highway after construction. 
 
Highway projects using the express lanes model have limited experience in the United States. 
This adds to the uncertainty about how the U.S. 36 project will fare financially over the long 
term. Lower-than-expected toll revenues are among the risks being borne by the P3 
concessionaire. Shortfalls could mean a decline in toll income totaling tens of millions of dollars, 
yet Plenary still will have the responsibility for paying off loans, and operating and maintaining 
the highway over the 50-year period. 
 
Potential for Revenue Sharing 
 

HPTE’s consultant also looked at scenarios in which toll revenues might exceed predictions, 
including one where income would be 10 percent higher. Such a case would reward Plenary for 
the risks it took on the project by accelerating the concessionaire’s return on its investment, 
including the payment of interest. To attract involvement from the private sector in the U.S. 36 
venture, it was necessary to provide an adequate return on the equity investment a consortium 
would be making in the project. 
 
HPTE’s contract with Plenary calls for the state to share in revenues generated by the U.S. 36 
project after minimum rate-of-return targets are met. The revenue-sharing formula is designed 
to maintain an incentive for the concessionaire to maximize revenue, but also increases the 
state’s revenue share as the return to Plenary increases. In this way, HPTE has a stake in the 
financial upside of the project while leaving in place the primary incentive for securing 
participation of a private investor.  
 
The U.S. 36 concession agreement could be a model for other major highway ventures in 
Colorado, including I-70 in both the mountain corridor and central Denver.  The possibility for 
revenue sharing in this corridor is limited, but that does not apply in all project and managed 
lane scenarios. 
 
 
 

 
 
  

01 I-70E Viaduct Workshop: Page 13 of 37



  14 

 
Safety        People       Integrity       Customer Service        Excellence        Respect 

Next Steps 
 

The I-70E project is complex and extremely expensive. There are a number of potential revenue 
sources available to complete it: the Bridge Safety Surcharge, State of Colorado General Fund 
SB09-228 appropriations, and the Highway Users Tax Fund. Unfortunately all three of these 
funding sources have other significant demands for their use across the state. Initial thoughts 
were that toll revenues from a managed lane on the project would significantly contribute to its 
financing but after analysis it is clear that toll revenues can only help alleviate operating, 
maintenance, and rehabilitation costs and will not contribute to the project’s capital costs. 
Absent a decision to pursue a funding option not available in current law, the Commission and 
respective boards will have to make some difficult prioritization decisions.  
 
Table 3 – Summary Table 
 

Millions Available to CBE '15-'46 Avg. Min Max 

1 - Viaduct-Only Alternative - All CBE $3,008.1  $94.0  $45.9  $172.3 

2 - Macquarie Alternative - CBE + SB 09-228 $2,988.5  $93.4  $45.1  $172.1 

3a - FASTER Safety Alternative - CBE + 228 + FS $3,070.2  $95.9  $48.6  $172.9 

3b - MPO Alternative - CBE + 228 + FS + DRCOG $3,151.9  $98.5  $52.2  $173.8 
 
 
Next month staff would like to discuss financing and policy considerations in greater detail, 
including the rationale for a Design-Build-Finance-Operate-Maintain alternative that transfers 
several construction and operating risks from CDOT to the contractor. This will allow you to 
revisit policy discussions related to tolling, concessionaire agreements, and other elements of 
Public-Private Partnerships. 
 
In February, staff will respectfully seek general approval to proceed with initial procurement to 
engage private sector expertise and competition. The fallback is to delay further project 
development until a future milestone is reached, such as a future NEPA milestone or Bridge 
Enterprise lawsuit milestone, resulting in a push to a potential 2016 construction start.  

01 I-70E Viaduct Workshop: Page 14 of 37



ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT 
Began EIS in 2003 with study area including I-70 from Brighton Blvd to 
Tower Road.  CDOT leadership directed study to include mobility and 
congestion relief while replacing the aging viaduct.  Initial EIS also 
partnered with RTD to study transit and future East corridor. 
  
Purpose and Need:  implement a transportation solution that  
improves safety, access, and mobility and addresses congestion along I-
70.  
 
Community involvement and outreach exceeds any project in CDOT 
history, including years of input from the diverse stakeholders in the 
region.  Dozens of alternatives have been evaluated, including 
concepts that would move the location of a portion of the interstate. 
  
Three  alternatives will be presented in the 2014 Supplemental DEIS: 
 
1. NO BUILD:  Would reconstruct the viaduct to meet FHWA 

standards for lane and shoulder width without new lanes ($540-
5550m) 
 

2. VIADUCT REBUILD:  Rebuilds viaduct  and adds two new tolled 
express lanes in each direction either shifting the structure north, 
requiring relocation of Swansea Elementary School, or south, 
requiring relocation of Purina Plant ($1.64-$1.66B) 
 

3. PARTIAL COVER LOWERED (PCL):  Removes viaduct and places 
highway below ground with two new tolled express lanes, 
reconnecting neighborhoods and improving community facilities 
with a cover over the highway ($1.8B) 

  
PCL Alternative is first concept to receive broad community and 
political support since start of study.   
 
COMMUNITY/RESIDENTS 
Original decision to locate I-70 in Denver along 46th Ave. was 
controversial and debated for many years in the late 1950s, including 
several City Council votes. 
  
By 1960, I-70 location was a well-established industrial area and home 
to freight rail lines, Purina Plant, and several smelters.  Also was the 
location of several historic neighborhoods, largely housing workers 
from adjacent companies. 
  
Interstate location divided Swansea, Elyria and Globeville 
neighborhoods. Today, Swansea and Elyria are designated 
environmental justice communities.  CDOT has focused EIS outreach on 
these neighborhoods. 

I-70 EAST BACKGROUND AND CONTEXT 



POLITICAL CONTEXT 
I-70 East has generated a significant amount of discussion.  
CDOT originally developed a realignment option that  would 
have relocated I-70 along I-270 and 52nd Avenue.  It was strongly 
opposed by Commerce City.   
  
CDOT formed the Preferred Alternative Collaboration Team 
(PACT) in 2011 after reaching an impasse following the 
publication of the 2008 DEIS. PCL alternative broke the impasse  
between keeping Purina and moving the highway closer to 
Swansea Elementary.   
 
PCL has the support of the City of Denver, Adams County and 
City of Commerce City—along with the Denver Chamber of 
Commerce, the Downtown Denver Partnership and the National 
Western Stock Show. 
 
Mayor Hancock has brought a renewed focus to this part of 
Denver and recently formed the North Denver Cornerstone 
Collaborative (NDCC).  I-70 reconstruction is one of six projects 
under the NDCC umbrella and has been  termed the Corridor of 
Opportunity by the Mayor.  
 
 
  
ECONOMIC CONTEXT 
Denver has developed along I-70.  The interstate serves as an 
economic thread connecting DIA to Downtown, and Denver to 
the rest of the Rocky Mountain region. 
  
Today, 684 businesses, employing approx. 11,000 people, are 
located along I-70 between I-25 and I-270.  These numbers 
about double when the stretch between I-270 and Tower Road 
is included. 
  
Nearby businesses are heavily reliant on the I-70 corridor, 
including major distribution and trucking centers (e.g. UPS and 
Safeway). 
  
Close to 200,000 cars travel I-70 every day, and that number is 
expected to increase to 350,000 by 2035. 
 
At full completion, the project will generate significant economic 
benefits: 
• Benefit the regional economy by $1.513 billion annually 
• Generate  23,950 new jobs in the region (9,790 recurring) 
• Generate $21.8 million from construction sales and use 

taxes; $26.4 million from productivity improvements and 
time savings 

• Reduce the average time spent by a vehicle traversing any 
part of the I-70 East Corridor by approximately 12 minutes 

 

NDCC Projects 
1. I-70  Recons.           4.  NWSS 
2.  RTD Station            5.  Brighton Blvd Redev 
3. RiNo (River North) 6.  Neighborhood plans 



  17 

 
Safety        People       Integrity       Customer Service        Excellence        Respect 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix B – November 2012 10-Year Bridge Enterprise Plan 
 

01 I-70E Viaduct Workshop: Page 17 of 37



  18 

 
Safety        People       Integrity       Customer Service        Excellence        Respect 

01 I-70E Viaduct Workshop: Page 18 of 37



  19 

 
Safety        People       Integrity       Customer Service        Excellence        Respect 

  

01 I-70E Viaduct Workshop: Page 19 of 37



  20 

 
Safety        People       Integrity       Customer Service        Excellence        Respect 

 
  

01 I-70E Viaduct Workshop: Page 20 of 37



  21 

 
Safety        People       Integrity       Customer Service        Excellence        Respect 

 
 

  

01 I-70E Viaduct Workshop: Page 21 of 37



  22 

 
Safety        People       Integrity       Customer Service        Excellence        Respect 

 
  

01 I-70E Viaduct Workshop: Page 22 of 37



  23 

 
Safety        People       Integrity       Customer Service        Excellence        Respect 

 
  

01 I-70E Viaduct Workshop: Page 23 of 37



  24 

 
Safety        People       Integrity       Customer Service        Excellence        Respect 

 
 

01 I-70E Viaduct Workshop: Page 24 of 37



  25 

 
Safety        People       Integrity       Customer Service        Excellence        Respect 

01 I-70E Viaduct Workshop: Page 25 of 37



  26 

 
Safety        People       Integrity       Customer Service        Excellence        Respect 

 

01 I-70E Viaduct Workshop: Page 26 of 37



  27 

 
Safety        People       Integrity       Customer Service        Excellence        Respect 

 

01 I-70E Viaduct Workshop: Page 27 of 37



  28 

 
Safety        People       Integrity       Customer Service        Excellence        Respect 

  

01 I-70E Viaduct Workshop: Page 28 of 37



  29 

 
Safety        People       Integrity       Customer Service        Excellence        Respect 

 

 
  

01 I-70E Viaduct Workshop: Page 29 of 37



  30 

 
Safety        People       Integrity       Customer Service        Excellence        Respect 

01 I-70E Viaduct Workshop: Page 30 of 37



  31 

 
Safety        People       Integrity       Customer Service        Excellence        Respect 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix C – Macquarie Synopsis of Design-Build Financial Scenario 
 

01 I-70E Viaduct Workshop: Page 31 of 37



  32 

 
Safety        People       Integrity       Customer Service        Excellence        Respect 

 
 

 
  

01 I-70E Viaduct Workshop: Page 32 of 37



  33 

 
Safety        People       Integrity       Customer Service        Excellence        Respect 

 

 
 

01 I-70E Viaduct Workshop: Page 33 of 37



  34 

 
Safety        People       Integrity       Customer Service        Excellence        Respect 

 
 
 

 
  

01 I-70E Viaduct Workshop: Page 34 of 37



  35 

 
Safety        People       Integrity       Customer Service        Excellence        Respect 

 
 

01 I-70E Viaduct Workshop: Page 35 of 37



  36 

 
Safety        People       Integrity       Customer Service        Excellence        Respect 

 
 

01 I-70E Viaduct Workshop: Page 36 of 37



  37 

 
Safety        People       Integrity       Customer Service        Excellence        Respect 

  
Appendix D – Year-by-Year Analysis of all Options 

 
 
 
Viaduct-Only Alternative - All CBE 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038 2039 2040 2041 2042 2043 2044 2045 2046

Net Funds Available to CBE $94.1 $97.0 $99.1 $101.4 $103.7 $106.1 $114.5 $117.2 $119.9 $122.6 $125.2 $127.6 $110.8 $113.0 $115.4 $117.9 $120.3 $122.8 $125.2 $127.6 $130.0 $132.5 $134.9 $137.3 $139.7 $142.2 $175.3 $177.1 $178.9 $180.6 $182.5 $184.3

Less: Construction Insurance & Transaction Costs (11.6) (10.1) (10.4) (0.2) (0.2) (0.2) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

  Senior Debt and TIFIA Debt Payments 0.0 (40.9) (42.2) (42.2) (48.1) (50.1) (42.2) (42.2) (42.2) (42.2) (35.6) (28.9) (28.9) (29.0) (29.0) (29.0) (29.1) (29.2) (29.1) (29.2) (29.2) (29.2) (29.3) (29.3) (29.3) (29.4) (41.9) (54.3) (54.3) (54.3) (54.3) (12.0)

Remainder to CBE 82.5 45.9 46.5 59.0 55.4 55.9 72.3 75.0 77.7 80.4 89.6 98.7 81.9 84.0 86.4 88.9 91.2 93.6 96.1 98.4 100.8 103.3 105.6 108.0 110.4 112.8 133.4 122.8 124.6 126.4 128.2 172.3

Macquarie Alternative - CBE + SB 09-228 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038 2039 2040 2041 2042 2043 2044 2045 2046

Net Funds Available to CBE $94.1 $97.0 $99.1 $101.4 $103.7 $106.1 $114.5 $117.2 $119.9 $122.6 $125.2 $127.6 $110.8 $113.0 $115.4 $117.9 $120.3 $122.8 $125.2 $127.6 $130.0 $132.5 $134.9 $137.3 $139.7 $142.2 $175.3 $177.1 $178.9 $180.6 $182.5 $184.3

Less: Construction Insurance & Transaction Costs (11.8) (10.3) (10.6) (0.2) (0.2) (0.2) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

  Senior Debt and TIFIA Debt Payments 0.0 (41.6) (42.9) (42.9) (48.9) (50.9) (42.9) (42.9) (42.9) (42.9) (36.2) (29.4) (29.4) (29.5) (29.5) (29.5) (29.6) (29.7) (29.6) (29.7) (29.7) (29.7) (29.8) (29.8) (29.8) (29.9) (42.6) (55.2) (55.2) (55.2) (55.2) (12.2)

Remainder to CBE 82.3 45.1 45.6 58.3 54.6 55.0 71.6 74.3 77.0 79.7 89.0 98.2 81.4 83.5 85.9 88.4 90.7 93.1 95.6 97.9 100.3 102.8 105.1 107.5 109.9 112.3 132.7 121.9 123.7 125.4 127.3 172.1

FASTER Safety Alternative - CBE + 228 + FS 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038 2039 2040 2041 2042 2043 2044 2045 2046

Net Funds Available to CBE $94.1 $97.0 $99.1 $101.4 $103.7 $106.1 $114.5 $117.2 $119.9 $122.6 $125.2 $127.6 $110.8 $113.0 $115.4 $117.9 $120.3 $122.8 $125.2 $127.6 $130.0 $132.5 $134.9 $137.3 $139.7 $142.2 $175.3 $177.1 $178.9 $180.6 $182.5 $184.3

Less: Construction Insurance & Transaction Costs (11.0) (9.6) (9.9) (0.2) (0.2) (0.2) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

  Senior Debt and TIFIA Debt Payments 0.0 (38.7) (39.9) (39.9) (45.5) (47.4) (39.9) (39.9) (39.9) (39.9) (33.7) (27.4) (27.4) (27.5) (27.5) (27.5) (27.6) (27.7) (27.6) (27.7) (27.7) (27.7) (27.8) (27.8) (27.8) (27.8) (39.7) (51.4) (51.4) (51.4) (51.4) (11.4)

Remainder to CBE 83.1 48.6 49.3 61.2 58.0 58.6 74.6 77.2 79.9 82.7 91.5 100.3 83.4 85.6 88.0 90.4 92.8 95.1 97.7 100.0 102.4 104.8 107.2 109.6 112.0 114.4 135.7 125.7 127.5 129.2 131.0 172.9

MPO Alternative - CBE + 228 + FS + DRCOG 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038 2039 2040 2041 2042 2043 2044 2045 2046

Net Funds Available to CBE $94.1 $97.0 $99.1 $101.4 $103.7 $106.1 $114.5 $117.2 $119.9 $122.6 $125.2 $127.6 $110.8 $113.0 $115.4 $117.9 $120.3 $122.8 $125.2 $127.6 $130.0 $132.5 $134.9 $137.3 $139.7 $142.2 $175.3 $177.1 $178.9 $180.6 $182.5 $184.3

Less: Construction Insurance & Transaction Costs (10.2) (8.9) (9.1) (0.2) (0.2) (0.2) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

  Senior Debt and TIFIA Debt Payments 0.0 (35.9) (37.0) (37.0) (42.2) (43.9) (37.0) (37.0) (37.0) (37.0) (31.2) (25.4) (25.4) (25.4) (25.4) (25.4) (25.5) (25.6) (25.5) (25.6) (25.6) (25.6) (25.7) (25.7) (25.7) (25.8) (36.7) (47.6) (47.6) (47.6) (47.6) (10.5)

Remainder to CBE 83.9 52.2 53.0 64.2 61.4 62.1 77.5 80.2 82.9 85.6 94.0 102.3 85.4 87.6 90.0 92.4 94.8 97.2 99.7 102.0 104.4 106.8 109.2 111.6 114.0 116.4 138.6 129.5 131.3 133.0 134.8 173.8

01 I-70E Viaduct Workshop: Page 37 of 37



Transportation Commission of Colorado 
Statewide Plan Committee Meeting 

 
Meeting Agenda 

Wednesday, January 15, 2014 – 2:00 P.M. – 2:30P.M. 
4201 East Arkansas Avenue 

Denver, Colorado 
 
 

Debra Perkins-Smith, Director 
Division of Transportation Development 

 
 Ed Peterson, Chair Shannon Gifford 
 District 2, Lakewood District 1, Denver 
 

 Kathy Gilliland Steven Hoffmeister 
District 5, Livermore  District 11, Haxtun 
 
Gary Reiff 
District 3, Englewood 
 
 

• Introductions - Ed Peterson - 3 minutes  
 

• PD14 - Debra Perkins-Smith - 5 minutes 
 

• CMAQ formula – Debra Perkins-Smith – 10 minutes 
 

• Statewide Plan Schedule and Public Outreach - Debra Perkins-Smith 
and Michelle Scheuerman - 5 minutes 

 
• Survey Results - Debra Perkins-Smith and Michelle Scheuerman  -  

5 minutes 
 

• Telephone Town Hall meetings - Debra Perkins-Smith, Michelle 
Scheuerman, Amy Ford - 10 minutes 

 
• Adjourn 

 
 
 
 
 

THE AGENDA MAY BE ALTERED AT THE CHAIR’S DISCRETION. 

02 Statewide Plan Committee: Page 1 of 22



MEMORANDUM 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION                                                                    
4201 East Arkansas Avenue 
Denver, Colorado  80222 
(303) 757-9011 
 
DATE: January 3, 2014 
 
TO:  SW Plan Committee of the Transportation Commission 
 
FROM: Debra Perkins-Smith, Director, Division of Transportation Development  
 
SUBJECT: Policy Directive 14  
 
Purpose 
Attached is the version of Policy Directive (PD) 14 that was presented at the Dec. 18 joint meeting of the 
Statewide Plan and Asset Management committees. The purpose of this discussion is to obtain SW Plan 
committee input on purpose and policy sections of the PD. 
  
Action Requested  
Review and comment on or revise PD 14 purpose and policy sections in response to December Transportation 
Commission comments.  
 
Background: 
At the workshop in December, a comment was made that the word “direct” in PD 14 may be too limiting with 
regard to distribution of financial resources and that the Commission should “direct” allocation of funds, not the 
policy. The matter was referred to the SW Plan committee for discussion and recommendation.  
 
The sections titled “Purpose” and “Policy” contain the relevant sentences, which  are highlighted in the attached 
copy of the PD.  This policy directive was developed to address performance based planning and programming 
and to support the allocation of funds to achieve stated objectives, particularly in the area of asset management.  
Program Distribution scenarios are developed to align with these policy objectives.  
 
PURPOSE 
Policy Directive 14.0 will direct guide distribution of resources for the Statewide Transportation Plan, the 
Statewide Transportation Improvement Plan, and the annual budget. 
 
POLICY 
It shall be the policy of CDOT that the Statewide Transportation Plan and statewide performance objectives stated 
herein will direct  guide the distribution of financial resources to meet or make progress toward objectives in four 
areas: safety, infrastructure condition, system performance, and maintenance. Financial resources will should be 
directed toward achieving the objectives within the first 10 years (2016-2025) of the planning horizon that 
extends to 2040.. Projects will should be selected to support the goals and objectives and will be included in the 
Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (STIP). Annual budget decisions will be guided by these 
performance objectives as well as CDOT’s Risk Based Asset Management Plan. Prior to funding new initiatives, 
funds should be directed to achieving the objectives in each area while recognizing constraints on some funding 
sources. Aspirational objectives will guide the use of funds received that are above baseline revenue projections. 
 
Key Benefits: Policy direction for the Statewide Plan and STIP related to allocation of funds.  
 
Next Step 
Provide comments on any revisions needed to PD 14 Purpose and Policy sections. Revised draft will be 
distributed to Commission with February packet.  

 

02 Statewide Plan Committee: Page 2 of 22



 

Page 1 of 8 
 

 

 
I. PURPOSE 
 
This Policy Directive provides an overall framework for the transportation planning process 
through which a multimodal, comprehensive Statewide Transportation Plan will be developed 
that optimizes the transportation system by balancing preservation and maintenance, efficient 
operations and management practices, and capacity improvements. Policy Directive 14.0 
performance objectives will direct distribution of resources for the Statewide Transportation 
Plan, the Statewide Transportation Improvement Program, and the annual budget. This Policy 
Directive is in alignment with the national goals in the 2012 federal transportation authorization 
law, MAP-21 (Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century Act). This Policy Directive 
reflects CDOT’s risk based asset management program and plan that  incorporates  a business 
approach intended to optimize investment for maintenance and preservation of CDOT assets 
based on  both risk and performance assessment.  
 
II. AUTHORITY  
 
23 United States Code (U.S.C.) 134, 135 and 450, PL 112-141 (“Moving Ahead for Progress in 
the 21st Century” or “MAP-21), and its implementing regulations. 
 
§ 43-1-106(8)(a), Colorado Revised Statutes (C.R.S.)  Transportation Commission  
 
§ 43-1-1103, C.R.S. Transportation planning 
 
Transportation Commission Rules Governing the Statewide Transportation Planning Process and 
Transportation Planning Regions (2 CCR 601-22) 
 
III. APPLICABILITY 
 
This Policy Directive applies to all CDOT Divisions and Regions involved in implementing the 
Statewide Transportation Plan in cooperation with CDOT’s planning partners: the 10 rural 
Transportation Planning Regions and the five Metropolitan Planning Organizations.  
 
IV. DEFINITIONS 

“Aspirational Objectives” are those objectives, or targets, toward which CDOT may strive 
should CDOT receive revenues beyond those projected. 

COLORADO DEPARTMENT OF  
TRANSPORTATION 

 POLICY DIRECTIVE 
� PROCEDURAL DIRECTIVE 

Subject 

Policy Guiding Statewide Plan Development 
 
14.0 

Effective 
TBD 

Supersedes 
 03/20/08 

Originating Office 
Division of Transportation Development &  
Office of Financial Management and Budget 

02 Statewide Plan Committee: Page 3 of 22



Subject 
Policy Guiding Statewide Plan Development 

Number 

14.0 
 

Page 2 of 8 
 

“Drivability Life” is an indication in years of how long a highway will have acceptable driving 
conditions based on an assessment of smoothness, pavement distress, and safety. Drivability 
Life implements traffic based highway categories, and associated category drivability 
condition standards and allowed pavement treatments. Unacceptable driving condition is 
specific to each traffic based highway category and means drivers must reduce speeds to 
compensate for unsafe factors, navigate around damaged pavement, or endure intolerably 
rough rides. 

“National Highway System” (NHS) is a federally designated system of roadways important to 
the nation's economy, defense, and mobility. The NHS includes Interstate highways as well as 
other roadways. Not all NHS roadways are part of the state highway system.  
 
“Maintenance Level of Service” (MLOS) is a qualitative measure describing operational 
conditions on the roadway. Overall maintenance level of service is a combined grade for nine 
maintenance program areas. For snow and ice control, the LOS B level includes maintaining 
high levels of mobility as much as possible, and proactive avalanche control. 
 
“Performance Measures” are the ways that direction toward a goal is measured.  
 
“Performance Objectives” are the specific targets an organization intends to meet. 
 
“Planning Time Index” is a comparison of the congested travel time at the 95th percentile to the 
free-flow time on Interstates and non-Interstate NHS congested corridors. 
  
“Revenue Service Miles” are the miles transit vehicles are available to the general public. 
  
“Serious Injuries” means evident injuries.  
 
“Vehicle Miles Traveled” (VMT) is obtained by multiplying the Annual Average Daily Traffic 
(AADT) count by the length of the roadway segment.  

 
V. POLICY 
  
1.  Policy. It shall be the policy of CDOT that the Statewide Transportation Plan and statewide 
performance objectives stated herein will direct distribution of financial resources to meet or 
make progress toward objectives in four goal areas: safety, infrastructure condition, system 
performance, and maintenance. Financial resources will be directed toward achieving the 
objectives within the first 10 years (2016-2025) of the planning horizon that extends to 2040. 
Projects will be selected to support the goals and objectives and will be included in the Statewide 
Transportation Improvement Program (STIP). Annual budget decisions will be guided by these 
performance objectives as well as CDOT’s Risk Based Asset Management Plan. Prior to funding 
new initiatives, funds should be directed to achieving the objectives in each area while 
  

02 Statewide Plan Committee: Page 4 of 22



Subject 
Policy Guiding Statewide Plan Development 

Number 

14.0 
 

Page 3 of 8 
 

 
recognizing constraints on some funding sources.  Aspirational objectives will guide the use of 
funds received that are above baseline revenue projections. 
  
2.  Goals.  CDOT transportation goals guide development of the multimodal Statewide 
Transportation Plan and of performance objectives. The goals are: 
 

• SAFETY – Reduce traffic fatalities and serious injuries and work toward zero deaths for all 
users.   

 
• INFRASTRUCTURE CONDITION – Preserve the transportation infrastructure condition to 

ensure safety and mobility at a least life cycle cost.  
 

• SYSTEM PERFORMANCE – Improve system reliability and reduce congestion, primarily 
through operational improvements and secondarily through the addition of capacity. 
Support opportunities for mode choice. 

 
• MAINTENANCE – Annually maintain CDOT’s roadways and facilities to minimize the 

need for replacement or rehabilitation. 
 
3.  Performance Measures and Objectives.  Performance measures describe how statewide 
success will be evaluated and performance objectives establish statewide achievement levels 
which are used to direct investment decisions primarily focused on the first 10 years (2016-2025) 
of the planning horizon that extends to 2040. Explanations of how the objectives will be 
measured and budget categories that fund the four goal areas - Maintain, Maximize, Expand, and 
Pass-Through Funds/Multi-Modal Grants - are listed below with the appropriate goals. 

 
a)  SAFETY:  
Safety objectives are mostly stated in a five-year average so that the trend can be evaluated 
(current five-year averages are based on data from 2008-2012). The budget categories that 
fund Safety are Maintain, Maximize, and Expand. 

 
MEASURES: 

• Number of fatalities 
• Fatalities per vehicle miles traveled (VMT) 
• Number of serious injuries 
• Serious injuries per VMT 
• Economic impact of crashes 

 
OBJECTIVES:  

• Achieve a five-year annual average reduction of 12 in the number of fatalities 
beginning with 2012 baseline. 

• Achieve a five-year annual average fatality rate of 1.00 per 100 million VMT 
beginning with 2012 baseline. 

02 Statewide Plan Committee: Page 5 of 22



Subject 
Policy Guiding Statewide Plan Development 

Number 

14.0 
 

Page 4 of 8 
 

• Achieve a five-year annual average reduction of 100 in the number of serious 
injuries beginning with 2012 baseline. 

• Achieve a five-year annual average serious injury rate of 25 per 100 million 
VMT beginning with 2012 baseline. 

• Reduce the economic impact of crashes annually by 1% over the previous 
calendar year. 

 
ASPIRATIONAL OBJECTIVE: 

• Achieve a five-year annual average fatality rate of 0.98 per 100 million VMT. 
 
 

b) INFRASTRUCTURE CONDITION:   
The infrastructure condition objectives for highways and bridges are intended to be achieved 
or maintained over the first 10 years (2016-2025) of the planning horizon that extends to 
2040. The budget category that funds Infrastructure Condition is Maintain. 

 
(1)   Bridges 
 

MEASURES: 
• Condition of National Highway System (NHS) bridges  
• Condition of state highway bridges 
• Risk-Based Asset Management Plan Goals for bridges 
 

OBJECTIVES: 
• Maintain the percent of NHS bridge total deck area that is not structurally 

deficient at or above 90%. 
• Maintain the percent of state highway total bridge deck area that is not 

structurally deficient at or above 90%. 
• Meet bridge goals in the Risk-Based Asset Management Plan. 

 
ASPIRATIONAL OBJECTIVES: 

• Achieve the percent of NHS bridge total deck area that is not structurally 
deficient at or above 95%. 
 

 (2)  Highways 
 

MEASURES: 
• Pavement condition of the Interstate System 
• Pavement condition of the NHS, excluding Interstates 
• Pavement condition of the state highway system 
• Risk-Based Asset Management Plan Goals for pavement condition 

 
OBJECTIVES: 

• Achieve 80% High/Moderate Drivability Life for Interstates based on 
condition standards and treatments set for traffic volume categories by 2025. 

02 Statewide Plan Committee: Page 6 of 22



Subject 
Policy Guiding Statewide Plan Development 

Number 

14.0 
 

Page 5 of 8 
 

• Achieve 80% High/ Moderate Drivability Life for NHS, excluding Interstates, 
based on condition standards and treatments set for traffic volume categories 
by 2025. 

• Achieve 80% High/Moderate Drivability Life for the state highway system 
based on condition standards and treatments set for traffic volume categories 
by 2025. 

• Meet pavement condition goals in the Risk-Based Asset Management Plan. 
 

ASPIRATIONAL OBJECTIVES: 
• Achieve pavement condition level of 90% High/Moderate Drivability Life for 

Interstates based on condition standards and treatments set for traffic volume 
categories. 

• Achieve pavement condition level of 90% High/Moderate Drivability Life for 
NHS, excluding Interstates, based on condition standards and treatments set 
for traffic volume categories. 
 

 (3) Other Roadway Assets 
 

MEASURE: 
• Risk-Based Asset Management Plan Goals (for culverts, tunnels, walls, and 

rock fall mitigation)  
 

 OBJECTIVE: 
• Meet Risk-Based Asset Management Plan Goals 

 
(4)  Transit 

 
MEASURE:  

• Transit Asset Condition 
 

OBJECTIVES: 
• Maintain the percentage of vehicles in the rural Colorado transit fleet to no 

less than 65% operating in fair, good, or excellent condition, per Federal 
Transit Administration definitions, beginning with the baseline established in 
September 2014.   

• Ensure that all CDOT transit grantees have Asset Management Plans in place 
for state or federally funded vehicles, buildings and equipment by 2017. 

 
ASPIRATIONAL OBJECTIVE: 

• Increase the percentage of vehicles in the rural Colorado transit fleet to no less 
than 70% operating in fair, good, or excellent condition, per Federal Transit 
Administration definitions, beginning with the baseline established in 
September 2014. 

 
c)  SYSTEM PERFORMANCE: 

02 Statewide Plan Committee: Page 7 of 22



Subject 
Policy Guiding Statewide Plan Development 

Number 

14.0 
 

Page 6 of 8 
 

The system performance objectives for Interstates, NHS and State Highway system are 
intended to be achieved within the first 10 years (2016-2025) of the planning horizon. The 
system performance objectives for transit begin in 2012 either for a five-year annual average 
or as the baseline year.  The budget categories that fund System Performance are Maximize, 
Expand, and Pass-Through Funds/Multi-Modal Grants. 

 
 (1) Interstates, NHS and State Highway system 

 
MEASURES: 

• Interstate Performance – Planning Time Index (PTI) for the Interstates 
• NHS Performance – PTI for the NHS system, excluding Interstates 
• Traffic Congestion – Minutes of delay on congested segments of the state 

highway system 
 

OBJECTIVES: 
• Maintain a statewide PTI of 1.25 or less for congested segments on Interstates.  
• Maintain a statewide PTI 1.25 or less for congested segments on NHS 

roadways, excluding Interstates. 
• Maintain daily travel time delay on congested segments of state highway 

corridors at or below 22 minutes of delay per traveler per day. 
 

ASPIRATIONAL OBJECTIVES: 
• Achieve a statewide Planning Time Index (PTI) of 1.2 or less for the 

Interstates. 
• Achieve a statewide PTI of 1.2 or less for the NHS roadways, excluding 

Interstates. 
• Achieve a daily travel time delay on congested segments of state highway 

corridors below 17 minutes of delay per traveler per day. 
 

 (2) Transit 
 

                  MEASURES:  
• Transit Utilization – Ridership statewide and by subcategory: small urban and 

rural 
• Transit Connectivity – Revenue service miles provided 
 

OBJECTIVES: 
• Increase ridership of small urban and rural transit grantees by at least an 

average of 1.5% statewide over a five-year period beginning with 2012.  
• Maintain or increase the total number of revenue service miles of regional, 

inter-regional, and inter-city passenger service over that recorded for 2012. 
 

ASPIRATIONAL OBJECTIVES: 
• Increase ridership of small urban and rural transit grantees by at least an 

average of 1.7% statewide over a five-year period beginning with 2012. 

02 Statewide Plan Committee: Page 8 of 22



Subject 
Policy Guiding Statewide Plan Development 

Number 

14.0 
 

Page 7 of 8 
 

• Increase the statewide total number of revenue service miles of regional, inter-
regional, and inter-city passenger service by at least an average 1.7% over a  
five-year period beginning with 2012. 

 
 
 

d)  MAINTENANCE: 
Maintenance objectives are established based on annual funding levels and measured 
annually. The budget category that funds Maintenance is Maintain. 
 

MEASURES: 
• Level of Service (LOS) for snow and ice removal 
• Overall Maintenance Level of Service (MLOS) for the state highway system 

 
OBJECTIVES: 

• Maintain an LOS B grade for snow and ice removal. 
• Maintain an overall MLOS B- grade for the state highway system. 

 
ASPIRATIONAL OBJECTIVES: 

• Achieve a LOS B+ grade for snow and ice removal. 
• Achieve an overall Maintenance LOS B grade for the state highway system. 

 
4.  Planning Principles.  The planning principles describe how CDOT conducts business in 
carrying out the statewide transportation planning process. 
 

a)  Customer Focus. Improve customer service and satisfaction by focusing on the 
priorities identified by the public. Strengthen transparency and accountability by ensuring 
the public has multiple ways of learning about and participating in multimodal 
transportation planning and regional and statewide transportation decision making.  
 
b)  Partnerships.  Collaborate with CDOT planning partners to build consensus for the 
integration of local, regional and statewide transportation priorities in the multimodal 
Statewide Transportation Plan and to reach data-based multimodal transportation 
planning solutions. Partner with other agencies and the private sector to leverage 
resources and to augment public funds. 
 
c)  Performance-Based Planning and Programming.  Use a performance-based planning 
and programming approach in developing a multimodal Statewide Transportation Plan 
that aligns with MAP-21 national performance goals. Program projects in support of 
those goals and CDOT objectives and in alignment with the risk based asset management 
plan. Address both the 10-year and long range planning horizons.  
 
d)  Financial Planning.  In cooperation with CDOT planning partners, and in recognition 
of declining revenues and increasing costs, develop reasonable Revenue Projections and a 
Program Distribution method that optimize the use of funds in addressing critical 
transportation needs. Utilize financial scenarios in the Plan in order to be prepared for 

02 Statewide Plan Committee: Page 9 of 22



Subject 
Policy Guiding Statewide Plan Development 

Number 

14.0 
 

Page 8 of 8 
 

different levels of future funding.  
 
 
e) Freight Movement and Economic Vitality.  Recognizing that Colorado’s transportation 
system constitutes a valuable resource and a major public and private investment that 
directly affects the economic vitality of the state, enhance Colorado’s economic 
 competitiveness by supporting measures that facilitate freight movement and promote 
state, regional and local economic goals.  
 
f) Environmental Sustainability.  Incorporate social, economic, and environmental 
concerns into the planning, design, construction, maintenance, and operation of a state 
multimodal transportation system. Support coordinated decision making that balances 
transportation, land and resource use, and quality of life needs. Promote a transportation 
system that minimizes impacts to and encourages preservation of the environment, and 
follows the CDOT Environmental Stewardship Guide. Provide a sustainable 
transportation system that meets existing needs without compromising the ability to 
provide for the future. 
 

 
VI.   IMPLEMENTATION PLAN  
 
This Policy Directive will be implemented by the Division of Transportation Development, with 
the Office of Financial Management and Budget, and in collaboration with CDOT Divisions and 
Regions. Funds will be directed to budget categories to support accomplishment of the 
objectives. The Transportation Performance Branch will report annually on performance of the 
transportation system to track progress toward objectives. The Division of Transportation 
Development will review and update this Policy Directive with each Plan update cycle  
 
VII. REVIEW DATE 
 
This directive shall be reviewed on or before December 2018. 
 
 
 
 
________________________________  ___________________________ 
Secretary, Transportation Commission  Date of Approval 

02 Statewide Plan Committee: Page 10 of 22



  

 MEMORANDUM 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
Division of Transportation Development 
4201 East Arkansas Avenue 
Denver, Colorado  80222 
(303) 757-9011 
 
 
DATE: January 3, 2014 
 
TO: Statewide Plan Committee of the Commission 
 
FROM: Debra Perkins-Smith, Director, Division of Transportation Development  
  
SUBJECT: Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) formula for Program 

Distribution  
 

 
Purpose: This presentation is a follow up to information presented in October and November to 
the SWP Committee regarding the formula for distribution of CMAQ funds to eligible recipients 
including MPO’s, TPRs and PM-10 areas.  
 
Action Requested: SWP committee recommendation for a CMAQ distribution formula to be 
used for Program Distribution and for the STIP.  
 
Background: In October and November progress on potential formulas for funds that are 
distributed was reviewed with the SWP committee. In November, STAC made recommendations 
on several formula distribution programs but requested further discussion on the CMAQ 
program. CMAQ funds have been distributed in the past to eligible recipients (those in non-
attainment or maintenance areas for AQ) which include PPACG, NFRMPO, DRCOG, Upper 
Front Range TPR, and 5 PM-10 only areas. The STAC Sub-Committee recommended a 
distribution formula based on population only. However, the full STAC did not support that 
recommendation, but they did pass a compromise motion for a 75%population/25%VMT on 
NHS formula.  
 
Attached is a table showing the previous 50% population/50% VMT(on NHS) formula, the 
STAC Subcommittee 100% population formula, and the STAC recommended 75% 
population/25% VMT(on NHS) formula. Also attached is the map showing the AQ non-
attainment/maintenance boundaries.  
 
Details: In the past the CMAQ formula used a 50% population/50% VMT on NHS roadways to 
determine distribution. The reasons for considering population only for future calculations 
include 1) the funds come to Colorado based on population and 2) a desire to keep the formula 
simple and transparent, 3) there is some correlation between population and overall VMT, and 4) 
the recognition that emissions are not limited to volumes on NHS roadways alone and that we do 
not have adequate data for volumes on all roadways(state and local).  
 

 

02 Statewide Plan Committee: Page 11 of 22



All distribution formulas maintain the pollutant weighting of 80% to ozone, 15% to CO, and 5% 
(with a floor of $200,000) for PM-10 areas. Ozone areas are in non-attainment; CO and PM-10 
are in maintenance status. Therefore Ozone is weighted more heavily than the other pollutants. 
STAC members support this continued pollutant weighting.  
 
During STAC discussions in December, the Weld County representative (member of UFR TPR) 
observed that the amount coming to UFR TPR would decrease from 2% to 1.5% if based solely 
on population and felt that VMT should be included, even if only on NHS roadways, to better 
reflect emissions that occur in areas with low population but high traffic volumes. Some other 
members felt that population favored urban areas and agreed that population alone did not 
account for volumes, and emissions, that occur in sparsely populated areas within the non-
attainment/maintenance boundary. One member offered a compromise motion to use 75% 
population and 25% VMT for the calculation. A request was made to see the results of that 
calculation prior to voting but many members felt that they could estimate the outcome well 
enough. That motion passed at STAC.  
 
Key Benefits: CMAQ funds are used for projects that contribute to reduced emissions and 
improved AQ. CDOT has a practice of distributing CMAQ funds to MPOs and TPRs for project 
selection. A distribution formula is needed to project funds available for the Plan and STIP so 
that projects can be programmed. These projects contribute to meeting AQ conformity as 
required by Federal regulation.  
 
Next Steps:  SWP Committee recommendation to Commission on the CMAQ formula to use in 
Program Distribution calculations.   

02 Statewide Plan Committee: Page 12 of 22



Pollutant Weighting

Ozone and CO Allocation
Area % $ % $ % $
DRCOG 83.8% 30,207,037$                  81.6% 29,429,257$                  82.7% 29,818,147$                  
NFRMPO 9.0% 3,235,307$                    11.6% 4,170,361$                    10.3% 3,702,834$                    
PPACG 2.5% 909,524$                        2.5% 917,834$                        2.5% 913,679$                        
UFR TPR 2.0% 707,651$                        1.5% 542,067$                        1.7% 624,859$                        
Cañon City 0.6% 200,000$                        0.6% 200,000$                        0.6% 200,000$                        
Aspen/Pitkin County 0.6% 200,000$                        0.6% 200,000$                        0.6% 200,000$                        
Steamboat Springs/Routt County 0.6% 200,000$                        0.6% 200,000$                        0.6% 200,000$                        
Pagosa Springs 0.6% 200,000$                        0.6% 200,000$                        0.6% 200,000$                        
Telluride/Mountain Village 0.6% 200,000$                        0.6% 200,000$                        0.6% 200,000$                        
TOTAL 100.0% 36,059,518$                  100.0% 36,059,518$                  100.0% 36,059,518$                  

- Population based on 2010 US Census
- 2013 NHS VMT includes additional NHS lane miles added through Enhanced NHS.

STAC Sub-committee Recommendation

Comparison of CMAQ Formula Options for Program Distribution
12/31/2013

Illustrative Allocations Based on FY 14 Budget Amounts.  Assumes 20% statewide program.

80% Ozone / 15% CO / 5% PM -10

Previous Formula STAC Recommendation

75% Population / 25% NHS VMT

80% Ozone / 15% CO / 5% PM -10

100% Population50% Population / 50% NHS VMT

80% Ozone / 15% CO / 5% PM -10

02 Statewide Plan Committee: Page 13 of 22



WELD

PARK

LARIMER

EL PASO

ELBERT

ADAMS

MORGAN

LINCOLN

GRAND

FREMONT

DOUGLAS

BOULDER

TELLER

ARAPAHOE

JE
FF

ER
SO

N

PUEBLO

CLEAR CREEK

GILPIN

WA
SH

IN
GT

ON

CROWLEY

SU
MM

IT

LO
GA

N
JACKSON

Legend
Denver-North Front Range (Ozone)
CO Springs (CO)
Denver (CO)
Ft. Collins (CO)
Greeley (CO)
Longmont (CO)

DRCOG

Colorado Air Quality Non-Attainment and Maintenance Areas*

11/26/2012

NFRMPO

PPACG

*Does not include PM-10 Maintenance areas, which include Denver, Pagosa 
Springs, Canon City, Aspen/Pitkin County, Steamboat Springs/Routt County,
and Telluride/Mountain Village. Colorado has no PM-2.5 areas.02 Statewide Plan Committee: Page 14 of 22



MEMORANDUM 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION                                                                    
4201 East Arkansas Avenue 
Denver, Colorado  80222 
(303) 757-9011 
 
 
DATE: January 3, 2014 
 
TO:  Statewide Plan Committee 
 
FROM:  Debra Perkins-Smith, Director, Division of Transportation Development  
 
SUBJECT: Plan Development and Public Outreach 
 
Purpose:  This memorandum provides a high-level overview the Regional Transportation Plan(RTP) development, 
including a schedule for the Statewide Transportation Plan. 
 
Action Requested:  None.  Information only. 
 
Background:   
The Transportation Planning Regions (TPRs) in Colorado are in the process of updating their plans. These regional 
plans feed into the Statewide Transportation Plan.  Ten of the 15 TPRs are rural and CDOT assists them in 
development of their plans.  The remaining five urban TPRs, called Metropolitan Planning Organizations(MPOS), 
develop their own plans, and CDOT coordinates closely with them in order to incorporate major components of 
MPO Plans into the Statewide Transportation Plan.   
 
Staff last provided an RTP development update to the Statewide Plan Committee in September 2013.  Since then, 
one additional meeting (#4) has occurred with the rural TPRs.  At these meetings staff obtained concurrence on the 
RTP template, introduced regional priority corridor and revenue scenario planning concepts, and discussed public 
outreach activities.   
 
Details:   
RTP Development  
The rural RTPs will be concise graphical and reader-friendly summary documents.  The first chapters to be 
developed are chapters 1 and 3.  Chapter 1 - the Regional Transportation Story – includes TPR: vision, goals and 
priorities; unique characteristics; current and anticipated conditions; and recent and ongoing/programmed projects 
and changes; and Chapter 3 - The Plan Purpose and Planning Process - includes: the RTP’s purpose; and how RTPs 
will be used.  Remaining tasks include working with the TPRs to finalize corridor visions, goals and strategies; 
revenue scenario planning; refine regional priority corridors; and identify RTP implementation strategies.  Draft 
RTPs are anticipated for public review in late spring 2014, and adoption in summer 2014. 
 
Public Outreach 
Telephone town halls are planned for each TPR in spring 2014.  Public outreach will also continue via website, 
statewide mini-surveys, explanatory videos, crowd sourcing, social media, email blasts, and other techniques. 

 
Key Benefits:  RTPs will serve as a concise, clearly articulated and convenient source of reference for the 
Transportation Commission and CDOT customers.  RTPs will reflect regional priorities that will inform and guide 
future CDOT decision making.  Implementation actions outlined in the RTPs will assist with monitoring progress. 
 
Next Steps:  Staff will continue to work with TPRs in the development of their RTPs and to implement public 
outreach activities. 
 
Attachment:  Attachment A – Statewide Plan Schedule 

 

02 Statewide Plan Committee: Page 15 of 22



 
Attachment A 

  Statewide Transportation Plan Schedule 
12-31-2013 

 
 
 

Note:  After initial adoption, the Statewide Transportation Plan will be amended to incorporate MPO Regional Transportation Plans. 

 

 

Early  

Plan 
Dataset 

System Mapping 

Needs Analysis 

Program Distribution 

Regional  Transportation Plans – Development & Adoption 

Statewide Plan – Development, Review &Adoption 

Public Involvement 

2013 2015 2014 2016 

Plan Policies 

Other Statewide & Modal Plan Development 

Revenue Planning 

Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) Plans Development & Adoption 

MPO and Rural TPR TIP/STIP Development & Adoption Environmental Agency  Consultation  

Tribal Consultation & Coordination 

02 Statewide Plan Committee: Page 16 of 22



MEMORANDUM 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION                                                                    
4201 East Arkansas Avenue 
Denver, Colorado  80222 
(303) 757-9011 
 
 
DATE: January 3, 2014 
 
TO:  Statewide Plan Committee of the Transportation Commission 
 
FROM:  Debra Perkins-Smith, Director, Division of Transportation Development 
 
SUBJECT: Regional Public Surveys 
 
Purpose:   
This memorandum and the attachments provide a high-level overview of the regional public surveys recorded and 
high-level preliminary results. 
 
Action Requested:   
None. Information only. 
 
Background: CDOT offered the opportunity for the public to respond to regional level surveys for the 15 
Transportation Planning Regions (TPRs) to gather input on key transportation issues, needs, priorities and potential 
solutions. This information will be used in the development of the Regional Transportation Plans (RTPS) and the 
Statewide Plan (SWP).  This information will be considered in developing the TPRs’ visions, goals and priorities; 
expressing the unique characteristics of the TPR, and in identifying regional plan implementation strategies.  
Details: 
In developing the SWP and RTPs, public outreach is pivotal.  In an effort to gain input from a broad array of the 
public, 15 TPR surveys were posted on November 15 at www.ColoradoTransportationMatters.com, the SWP web 
site.  It should be noted that these surveys are not, and were not intended to be statistically valid, but provide an 
overall sense of public sentiment around key topics.  Hard copy surveys were also provided to the TPRs in English 
and Spanish. Please see Attachment A – Example Survey.   A press release was issued on November 15 announcing 
the survey, urging Coloradans to participate.  Local media outreach, email blasts, and social media efforts were also 
used to solicit survey participation. 
 
The public could respond directly on the website, by downloading an on-line PDF copy of survey and mailing it 
postage paid, or by completing a hard copy survey and mailing it postage paid. A total of 2,296 survey responses 
were recorded as of December 23.  Please see Attachment B – TPR Survey Participation Rates. Preliminary analyses 
of the surveys has been done for the multiple-choice questions. Questions requiring a typed or written response 
have yet to be analyzed.   Please see Attachment C – Preliminary High-level Survey Results.  Preliminary survey 
results will be presented to the TPRs in January.  
 
Key Benefits 
CDOT and TPRs now have planning level information on the top transportation concerns, issues, and priorities from 
the public at large to inform development of the SWP and RTPs. 
 
Next Steps:   
Statewide mini-surveys (1-3 questions) covering other transportation planning topics are anticipated to follow. 
 
Attachments: Attachment A-Example Survey, Attachment B – Survey Participation Rates, and Attachment C – 
Preliminary High-level Survey Results.  

 

02 Statewide Plan Committee: Page 17 of 22

http://www.coloradotransportationmatters.com/


  
 

 

Please select your county: □Alamosa □Chaffee  □Conejos □Costilla  □ Mineral □ Rio Grande  □ Saguache  

The Colorado Department of Transportation wants to know what’s important to you.   

Please complete this survey before December 15, 2013, fold, and mail it back to the address printed at the 
bottom of the survey or you can take the survey at www.coloradotransportationmatters.com.   
Watch for results on that website. 

Your input is important – it will help shape the Statewide Transportation Plan.  

 
 

1. Why is transportation important to you?  
Place an X in the box beside your top two: 
 Moves people and goods safely 
 Supports existing businesses 
 Helps economic development 
 Gets me to work and/or vital services 
 Helps me live my life the way I want 

 
2.  What issues matter most to you in the San Luis Valley 
TPR? 
 Select your top two: 
 Reducing truck traffic 
 Improving roadway pavement condition 
 Reducing congestion 
 Increasing bike/pedestrian options 
 Increasing transit options 
 Improving economic development 
 Increasing bridge safety 
 Other (please specify)_____________________ 

 
3. What do you feel makes the San Luis Valley TPR 
unique?  
 Select your top three: 
 Urban amenities 
 Rural living with nearby city amenities 
 Innovation and creativity 
 Agriculture  
 Freight/shipping industry   
 Sense of community 
 Tourism  
 Ski industry   
 Energy industry  
 Economic base 
 Water access/supply  
 Other(s) (please specify)____________ _______ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Fold two 

  

 
 

San Luis Valley Transportation Planning Region  
What’s Important to YOU? 

 
  

Fold one 

PLEASE TURN OVER -  See San Luis Valley region map on the back 

Attachment A 

02 Statewide Plan Committee: Page 18 of 22

http://www.coloradotransportationmatters.com/


Thank you for taking time to complete this survey! 

1  2  3  4  5 

 Strongly Somewhat   Neutral Somewhat  Strongly 
Disagree  Disagree      Agree     Agree 

Prioritizing Potential Investments 
Initial planning efforts by local county and municipal leaders in coordination 
with CDOT staff in the San Luis Valley Transportation Planning Region (TPR) 
have identified the following possible investment priorities if limited 
additional funds are made available. 

 US 160 – Alamosa (US 160 & 4th St to SH 17), expand to 4 lanes, 
improve Rio Grande Bridge, realign road, bike/pedestrian facilities  

 US 160 - Alamosa,  expand to 4 lanes and add bike facilities  
 US 160 - SH 17  intersection in Alamosa, add signal and reconfigure 

lanes  
 US 24 - Trout Creek Pass, add shoulders and bike facilities 
 US 24 - Buena Vista, improve congestion; reconstruction and 

multimodal options  
 US 50 - East of Salida, add passing opportunities and vehicle turnouts    
 SH 17 - Alamosa to US 285, widen and add shoulders  
 US 160 - Wolf Creek Pass at Park Creek,  widen and add shoulders    
 US 285 - Between Buena Vista & Poncha Springs,  add turn lanes   

 
 

 

4.  In your opinion, do these represent your priorities within the San Luis Valley TPR? Please circle one.  

 
 

 
 
 

4a. If you disagree, why? (Please explain) ________________________________________________________ 
 
 _______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
5.  Are there additional regional priorities on state highways that should be included?  If so, which ones? 

 _______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
6. Are there regional priorities above that should be removed?  If so, which ones? 

 _______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
7.  Are there other regional priorities, transportation concerns or issues you would like to share as we move forward 

in the transportation planning process (e.g., transit, bike & pedestrian improvements, safety or other)? 

 _______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

8.  In light of today’s limited funds for transportation, what should be the focus of CDOT’s efforts? (choose 2) 

 Maintain the existing transportation system 
 Offer more choices for travel (transit, bike/pedestrians) 
 Expand highways by adding lanes 

 

 Make safety improvements 
  Add shoulders 
  Manage congestion through managed lanes 

  
 

US-24/US 285 
Shoulders and 
bike facilities  

 

US-160 
Widening and 

Shoulders 

US-50 
Vehicle 

turnouts 
 

US-160 
Roadway realignment, 

bike/pedestrian, expansion, 
shoulders and signals 

Pavement Improvements 

US-24 
Improve 

congestion 
reconstruction 

multimodal 
  

SH 17 
Widening and 

shoulders 
 

02 Statewide Plan Committee: Page 19 of 22



Attachment B - Survey Participation Rates 

 
 

 

 

TPR/MPO Name Surveys Received % of Responses  
Central Front Range 235 16% 
Eastern 40 3% 
Gunnison Valley 59 4% 
Intermountain 248 17% 
Northwest 38 3% 
San Luis Valley 193 13% 
South Central 60 4% 
Southeast 142 10% 
Southwest 435 29% 
Upper Front Range 36 2% 

All Rural TPRs 1,486 
Denver Metro 510 63% 
Grand Valley Metro 84 10% 
North Front Range  48 6% 
Pikes Peak 86 11% 
Pueblo 82 10% 

All MPOs 810 
 

Statewide Total 2,296 

*Survey results are not intended to be statistically valid 

02 Statewide Plan Committee: Page 20 of 22



Attachment C 
Transportation Planning Region (TPR) Surveys  

Preliminary High-Level Results (as of December 23, 2013) 
January 8, 2014 

 

Page 1 

 
Note: Response percentages may not total 100% as some questions allowed two or more options to be selected. 
 
In your opinion do the listed projects represent your priorities (1-5)? (A&B List Projects): 
 

• Between 60% and 80% of respondents in each of the rural TPRs chose either “Somewhat Agree” or 
“Strongly Agree” when asked about project priorities in their area.  

• Upper Front Range TPR refrained from using this question in their survey; transportation priority 
responses collected from the Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) areas are being analyzed and 
are not included in these preliminary results 

 
Why is transportation important to you (select top two)? 
 

• In the ten rural TPRs, 57% of respondents chose “Moves People & Goods”, while approximately 38% 
chose either “Helps Economic Development” or “Gets Me To Work and/or Vital Services”  

• In the five MPOs, 55% of respondents chose “Moves People & Goods”, while 42% chose “Gets Me To 
Work and/or Vital Services” 
 

What issue matters most to you (select top two)? 
 

• In the ten rural TPRs, 41% of respondents chose “Improving Roadway Pavement Condition”, while 32% 
chose either “Increasing Bike/Pedestrian Options” or “Improving Economic Development” 

• In the five MPOs, 54% of respondents chose “Increasing Bike/Pedestrian Options, while approximately 
33% chose either “Increasing Transit Options” or “Reducing Congestion” 

• Approximately 10% of respondents in both the rural TPRs and MPOs chose “Other”, and these text 
responses are in the process of being analyzed in detail 
 

In light of today’s limited funds for transportation, what should be the focus of CDOT’s efforts (select two)? 
 

• In the ten rural TPRs, 44% of respondents chose “Maintain the Existing Transportation System”, while 
42% chose “Make Safety Improvements” 

• In the five MPOs, 66% of respondents chose “Offer More Choices for Travel (Transit, Bike/Ped)”, while 
40% chose “Maintain the Existing Transportation System”  

What do you feel makes your region unique (select top three)? 
 

• In the ten rural TPRs, 63% of respondents chose “Rural Living with Nearby City Amenities”, while 50% 
chose “Sense of Community” and 38% chose “Tourism” 

• In the five MPOs, 51% of respondents chose “Sense of Community”, while 43% chose “Urban Amenities” 
and 39% chose “Rural Living with Nearby City Amenities” 

02 Statewide Plan Committee: Page 21 of 22



Attachment C 
Transportation Planning Region (TPR) Surveys  

Preliminary High-Level Results (as of December 23, 2013) 
January 8, 2014 

 

Page 2 

• 9% of rural TPR respondents and 18% of MPO respondents chose “Other”, and these text responses are 
in the process of being analyzed in detail 

 
General Observations/Key Themes 
 
From the responses reported above, the following can be inferred: 
 

1. There is general support for the A&B Project List within each TPR area. 
2. Survey participants see the importance of transportation for moving people and goods and supporting 

economic vitality. 
3. The most important issue to rural TPR respondents is maintaining good pavement condition, while the 

MPO respondents are most concerned with having more modal options. 
4. In light of limited funds, both rural and MPO respondents support maintaining the existing 

transportation system, but TPR residents support safety improvements and MPO respondents want 
more travel choice. 

5. Rural living with access to nearby city amenities is important to Coloradoans, as is a sense of community 
– both of which are supported by the transportation system. 

02 Statewide Plan Committee: Page 22 of 22



STATE OF COLORADO 
 
 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
Division of Transportation Development 
4201 East Arkansas Avenue 
Denver, Colorado 80222 
(303) 757-9525 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:    Transportation Commission  
 
FROM:   Debra Perkins-Smith, Director, Division of Transportation Development 
 
DATE:  January 7, 2014 
 
RE:  FASTER Safety Program Development 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Purpose:  This memo presents the initial information to develop a new FASTER Safety Program. 
 
Action Requested: Transportation Commission input. 
 
Background: FASTER Safety is currently allocated to the Regions for a total of $87M. FASTER 
Safety funds are for construction, reconstruction or maintenance needed to enhance safety of a state 
highway. The FASTER Safety Program was recently examined by the CDOT Audit Division. The 
audit report found that CDOT is in compliance with requirements established by the legislature for 
the program, but that there were areas for improvement including: timely reports to management on 
funds and expenditures; better link of expenditures to safety improvement metrics; and a consistent 
project selection process. One recommendation from the FASTER Audit states, “The Director of the 
Division of Transportation Development and the Chief Engineer should present to the Transportation 
Commission alternatives to the current allocation method of FASTER safety funds in order to ensure 
the most critical safety projects are addressed.”  
 
The FASTER Safety Program was reassessed by a core staff team to better define program goals, 
consistent project selection criteria, measurable metrics for evaluating projects, and initial discussion 
on options for program structure. 
 
Potential Program Structure:  It is recommended that the FASTER Safety Program be split into two 
complimentary programs: FASTER Safety Asset Management and FASTER Safety Mitigation 
programs. 
 
I. FASTER Safety Asset Management Program 

At the September 2013 Statewide Plan Committee meeting, Commissioners discussed the possible 
use of FASTER Safety funds for asset management programs that have clear safety benefits. To 
increase accountability and transparency, staff proposal is to direct $40M of FASTER safety funds to 
asset management including bridge, tunnels, culverts, rockfall, and specific maintenance  where 
projects can be prioritized using the Risk Based Asset Management Plan and for which safety 
benefits can be demonstrated and reported.  

03 FASTER Safety: Page 1 of 29



Program Recommendation 
 
The staff recommendation is that the FASTER Safety Asset Management Program for FY 15 could 
include: 
1. Structures – Program focus: signs, signals, high-mast lighting, walls, and bridge/traffic rail. 
2. Tunnels – Program focus: tunnel lighting, fire suppression, traffic control, and snowmelt. 
3. Culverts – Program focus: critical culverts, culvert rail, and culverts <36”. 
4. Rockfall – Program focus: rockfall mitigation/prevention, landslides, sink-holes, and 

embankment stability. 

Project selection will be done according to the Risk-based Asset Management Plan and Asset 
Investment Management System. 
 
 
II. FASTER Safety Mitigation Program 

The remaining $47M for FASTER Safety would remain in the FASTER Safety budget line item. 
FASTER Safety funds can be used to address both remedial measures at specific high accident 
locations and known safety needs, as well as proactive safety measures that help avoid or reduce the 
potential for future accident occurrence.  Staff will present crash statistics and examples to provide 
context of safety in Colorado, and therefore how the following proposed project selection criteria 
were developed. 
 
Project Selection Process 
 
Alternative approaches for managing the project selection process are being developed. While the 
specific details of what business units direct certain steps, all options follow a generalized process 
detailed below: 

• Use metrics to develop crash mitigation list (CML), metrics include: 
o AADT 
o Number of Crashes 

 Property Damage Only 
 Injury 
 Injury + Fatality 

o Crash Rates 
 Property Damage Only 
 Injury 
 Injury + Fatality 

• Identify treatments for proposed safety projects 
• Implement project selection criteria 
• Select projects 

  
 

 

 

Use CML to 
develop 

candidate 
locations 

Identify 
treatments 

and 
develop 
projects 

Implement 
selection 
criteria 

Select and 
prioritize 
projects 

Generalized Process 

03 FASTER Safety: Page 2 of 29



Project Selection Criteria 

Regardless of how program allocation is done, the core staff team developed criteria to enforce 
consistent project selection methodology to identify the most critical needs and most effective safety 
improvement investments. The criteria were developed by reviewing past selection criteria for 
FASTER Safety and adopting best practices, as well as consultation of the technical team. All 
candidate projects will meet a minimum of TWO of the following criteria: 

A. Reduce existing crashes 

B. Reduce existing crash severity 

C. Address existing system for safety weakness 

D. Encourage cooperative safety effort with local agency 

E. Enhance other highway safety features and/or functions 

F. Provide proven safety measures for a systematic/preventative location 

G. Improve pedestrian/bicycle safety 

H. Existing project (leveraging funding opportunities with proposed safety project) 

I. Behavior Based (all users – drivers, passengers, pedestrian, bikes, motorcycle, etc.) 

 
These criteria would then be used for evaluation and reporting metrics. 
 

III. Next Steps 

In February 2014, members of the Oversight and Core Teams will present options for project 
selection and methodology for allocation of funds to the Transportation Commission. It is anticipated 
that several options will be presented for project selection and allocation that include an analysis of 
Region, Statewide, and hybrid (Region/Statewide) approaches.  
 
Commission Input Requested:  
Commission input on selection criteria and general process. 
 
 

03 FASTER Safety: Page 3 of 29



1 / 1 5 / 1 4

T R A N S P O R T A T I O N  P E R F O R M A N C E  B R A N C H

T R A F F I C  E N G I N E E R I N G  B R A N C H

FASTER Safety 
and Colorado Safety Programs

Agenda

 Background

 Statewide Safety Programs
 HSIP – Highway Safety Improvement Program

 SHSP – Strategic Highway Safety Plan

 Office of Transportation Safety (HSO – Highway Safety Office)

 FASTER Safety

 Future FASTER Safety Program
 Proposed Program

 Recommendations

2

03 FASTER Safety: Page 4 of 29



Safety – Save Lives, Reduce Crashes

 National Legislation and Programs
 UN – United Nations: Decade of Action 

 AASHTO – Toward Zero Death

 MAP-21 – Funded and Legislated Safety 

 FHWA – Federal Highway Administration

 NHTSA – National Highway Transportation Safety 
Administration

3

Safety – Save Lives, Reduce Crashes

 State
 Office of Transportation Safety (Highway Safety Office)

 Traffic and Safety Engineering

 Plans
 Strategic Highway Safety Plan

 Integrated Safety Plan

 Statewide Plan - PD 14

 Programs
 Highway Safety Improvement Program

 FASTER – Safety

4

03 FASTER Safety: Page 5 of 29



FASTER Safety Accomplishments – Audit Report

 Recent Audit report found that:
 CDOT is in compliance with legislative requirements

 Audit Recommendations:
 Need metrics to measure/report safety improvements

 Need consistency in project selection process

 Need timely reports on funds and expenditures

5

CDOT Safety Program Snapshot

Office of Transportation Safety 
(Highway Safety Office)
• Behavioral Programs

FASTER Safety Mitigation
• Addresses Crash Patterns
• Not required to Meet Benefit 

Cost

HSIP (Highway Safety 
Improvement Program)
• Addresses Crash Patterns
• Required to Meet Benefit Cost

FASTER Safety Asset Management
• Systematic
• Programmatic
• Proactive

6

03 FASTER Safety: Page 6 of 29



Fatal Crashes vs. Vehicle Miles Travelled

215

466

709

579 544
645

681
606

450472

1980 1985 1990 1995 2000 2005 2010

Fatalities Vehicle Miles Travelled (100 Million)

7

8

03 FASTER Safety: Page 7 of 29



1,621
1,411 1,394 1,320 1,354 1,378

156

129 107 104 117 121

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
Serious Injuries Fatalities

Intersection-related Crashes - 9% decrease 
(2010-12 vs. 2007-09)

Percent of Serious 
Injuries

Percent of Fatalities

21%

Intersection-related
Not intersection-related

35%

Intersection-related
Not intersection-related

Percent of Serious 
Injuries

Percent of Fatalities

25

13
8 11

28
24

12

6

6
7

7
8

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
Serious Injuries Fatalities

1.3%

Rockfall Crash
Other Crash

0.5%

Rockfall Crash
Other Crash

Rockfall Crashes - 21% increase
(2010-12 vs. 2007-09)

03 FASTER Safety: Page 8 of 29



Measuring Safety Example

 A comparison of  4 lane, divided Interstates, ranked 
by various safety measures and tools
 I-25 through Pueblo in Yellow

 I-25 through Colorado Springs in Green

 US 36 Baseline to Sheridan in Blue

 Remaining statewide segments of similar Interstate geometry 
and traffic volumes in grey.

11

4 Lane Divided Freeways Sections I-25 through Pueblo

Rank I-25 CO Springs Area
Created June 4, 2013 US 36 Baseline to Sheridan

Highway
sectio

n
from 
mp

to    
mp

from   
date

to        
date

AADT Length PDO INJ FAT INJ+FAT TOTAL PDO INJ
FAT 

(x100
)

INJ+FAT TOTAL
LOSS 

INJ
LOSS 
Total

INJ+FAT 
crashes 

INJ+FAT 
Rate

Total 
Crash 
Rate

Total 
LOSS

INJ+FAT 
LOSS

25 A 94.77 95.89 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 35803 1.12 52 7 1 8 60 0.71 0.1 1.37 0.11 0.82 2 3 56 16 29 6 12
25 A 95.9 96.66 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 40996 0.74 38 4 0 4 42 0.51 0.05 0 0.05 0.56 2 2 81 64 60 27 13
25 A 96.67 97.44 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 45974 0.77 111 14 0 14 125 1.32 0.17 0 0.17 1.49 4 4 38 4 1 1 1
25 A 97.69 98.54 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 59467 0.81 140 14 1 15 155 1.29 0.13 0.92 0.14 1.43 4 4 35 11 3 2 2
25 A 98.55 99.32 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 72084 0.73 91 9 0 9 100 0.69 0.07 0 0.07 0.76 3 3 53 45 37 7 3
25 A 99.33 99.94 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 72810 0.61 94 9 2 11 105 0.71 0.07 1.5 0.08 0.79 3 3 47 33 31 8 4
25 A 99.95 100.7 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 70098 0.8 64 7 0 7 71 0.5 0.05 0 0.05 0.55 2 2 62 65 61 28 14
25 A 100.7 101.4 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 43042 0.65 43 6 1 7 50 0.55 0.08 1.27 0.09 0.64 3 3 63 27 48 9 5
25 A 101.4 102.2 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 36000 0.76 17 0 0 0 17 0.26 0 0 0 0.26 1 1 99 99 91 71 58
25 A 102.2 103.9 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 33765 1.71 48 4 2 6 54 0.46 0.04 1.9 0.05 0.51 2 2 70 72 62 29 15
25 A 127.9 131.6 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 38000 3.83 138 31 2 33 171 0.52 0.12 0.75 0.12 0.64 2 2 3 14 49 30 16
25 A 131.7 135.3 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 44992 3.59 176 22 5 27 203 0.6 0.07 1.7 0.09 0.69 2 2 15 28 47 31 17
25 A 135.3 137.7 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 73952 2.44 115 12 3 15 130 0.35 0.04 0.91 0.04 0.39 2 1 36 81 76 31 18
25 A 150.3 151.7 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 91007 1.34 144 13 0 13 157 0.65 0.06 0 0.06 0.71 2 2 41 59 44 32 19
25 A 151.7 153.2 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 82000 1.53 221 18 0 18 239 0.97 0.08 0 0.07 1.04 2 3 22 46 15 32 20
25 A 153.2 155.9 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 79000 2.64 372 30 0 30 402 0.97 0.08 0 0.08 1.05 2 3 8 34 13 11 21
25 A 155.9 158.2 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 67000 2.3 270 17 0 17 287 0.96 0.06 0 0.06 1.02 2 3 25 53 18 12 22
25 A 158.2 160.8 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 71000 2.53 232 29 0 29 261 0.71 0.09 0 0.08 0.79 2 2 12 35 32 33 23
25 A 160.8 163.3 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 48027 2.59 306 31 1 32 338 1.35 0.14 0.44 0.14 1.49 3 4 4 12 2 3 6
36 B 37.6 39.19 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 47998 1.7 140 13 1 14 154 0.94 0.09 0.67 0.09 1.03 2 3 39 24 16 18 31
36 B 39.2 43.19 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 70891 4.02 414 34 1 35 449 0.8 0.07 0.19 0.06 0.86 2 2 1 61 27 40 32
36 B 43.2 45.82 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 82018 2.59 254 34 1 35 289 0.66 0.09 0.26 0.09 0.75 2 2 2 30 39 41 33
36 B 45.83 48.03 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 77077 2.19 375 27 0 27 402 1.21 0.09 0 0.09 1.3 2 3 16 25 6 19 34
36 B 48.04 50.37 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 80000 2.33 276 30 0 30 306 0.81 0.09 0 0.09 0.9 2 2 10 31 24 42 35
36 B 50.38 52.56 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 81705 2.08 253 28 1 29 282 0.82 0.09 0.32 0.09 0.91 2 2 13 26 22 43 36

Number of Crashes Crash Rates (MVMT) Rank

Highway Listings by MP
12

03 FASTER Safety: Page 9 of 29

mailet
Typewritten Text

mailet
Typewritten Text

mailet
Typewritten Text

mailet
Typewritten Text
Slide Enlarged on Following Page



4 Lane Divided Freeways Sections I-25 through Pueblo
Rank I-25 CO Springs Area
Created June 4, 2013 US 36 Baseline to Sheridan

Highway sectio
n

from 
mp

to    
mp

from   
date

to        
date

AADT Length PDO INJ FAT INJ+FAT TOTAL PDO INJ
FAT 

(x100
)

INJ+FAT TOTAL LOSS 
INJ

LOSS 
Total

INJ+FAT 
crashes 

INJ+FAT 
Rate

Total 
Crash 
Rate

Total 
LOSS

INJ+FAT 
LOSS

25 A 94.77 95.89 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 35803 1.12 52 7 1 8 60 0.71 0.1 1.37 0.11 0.82 2 3 56 16 29 6 12
25 A 95.9 96.66 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 40996 0.74 38 4 0 4 42 0.51 0.05 0 0.05 0.56 2 2 81 64 60 27 13
25 A 96.67 97.44 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 45974 0.77 111 14 0 14 125 1.32 0.17 0 0.17 1.49 4 4 38 4 1 1 1
25 A 97.69 98.54 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 59467 0.81 140 14 1 15 155 1.29 0.13 0.92 0.14 1.43 4 4 35 11 3 2 2
25 A 98.55 99.32 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 72084 0.73 91 9 0 9 100 0.69 0.07 0 0.07 0.76 3 3 53 45 37 7 3
25 A 99.33 99.94 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 72810 0.61 94 9 2 11 105 0.71 0.07 1.5 0.08 0.79 3 3 47 33 31 8 4
25 A 99.95 100.7 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 70098 0.8 64 7 0 7 71 0.5 0.05 0 0.05 0.55 2 2 62 65 61 28 14
25 A 100.7 101.4 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 43042 0.65 43 6 1 7 50 0.55 0.08 1.27 0.09 0.64 3 3 63 27 48 9 5
25 A 101.4 102.2 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 36000 0.76 17 0 0 0 17 0.26 0 0 0 0.26 1 1 99 99 91 71 58
25 A 102.2 103.9 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 33765 1.71 48 4 2 6 54 0.46 0.04 1.9 0.05 0.51 2 2 70 72 62 29 15
25 A 127.9 131.6 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 38000 3.83 138 31 2 33 171 0.52 0.12 0.75 0.12 0.64 2 2 3 14 49 30 16
25 A 131.7 135.3 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 44992 3.59 176 22 5 27 203 0.6 0.07 1.7 0.09 0.69 2 2 15 28 47 31 17
25 A 135.3 137.7 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 73952 2.44 115 12 3 15 130 0.35 0.04 0.91 0.04 0.39 2 1 36 81 76 31 18
25 A 150.3 151.7 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 91007 1.34 144 13 0 13 157 0.65 0.06 0 0.06 0.71 2 2 41 59 44 32 19
25 A 151.7 153.2 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 82000 1.53 221 18 0 18 239 0.97 0.08 0 0.07 1.04 2 3 22 46 15 32 20
25 A 153.2 155.9 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 79000 2.64 372 30 0 30 402 0.97 0.08 0 0.08 1.05 2 3 8 34 13 11 21
25 A 155.9 158.2 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 67000 2.3 270 17 0 17 287 0.96 0.06 0 0.06 1.02 2 3 25 53 18 12 22
25 A 158.2 160.8 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 71000 2.53 232 29 0 29 261 0.71 0.09 0 0.08 0.79 2 2 12 35 32 33 23
25 A 160.8 163.3 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 48027 2.59 306 31 1 32 338 1.35 0.14 0.44 0.14 1.49 3 4 4 12 2 3 6
36 B 37.6 39.19 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 47998 1.7 140 13 1 14 154 0.94 0.09 0.67 0.09 1.03 2 3 39 24 16 18 31
36 B 39.2 43.19 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 70891 4.02 414 34 1 35 449 0.8 0.07 0.19 0.06 0.86 2 2 1 61 27 40 32
36 B 43.2 45.82 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 82018 2.59 254 34 1 35 289 0.66 0.09 0.26 0.09 0.75 2 2 2 30 39 41 33
36 B 45.83 48.03 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 77077 2.19 375 27 0 27 402 1.21 0.09 0 0.09 1.3 2 3 16 25 6 19 34
36 B 48.04 50.37 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 80000 2.33 276 30 0 30 306 0.81 0.09 0 0.09 0.9 2 2 10 31 24 42 35
36 B 50.38 52.56 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 81705 2.08 253 28 1 29 282 0.82 0.09 0.32 0.09 0.91 2 2 13 26 22 43 36

Number of Crashes Crash Rates (MVMT) Rank

Highway Listings by MP 

03 FASTER Safety: Page 10 of 29



Total Crashes 

4 Lane Divided Freeways Sections I-25 through Pueblo
5 YEAR sorted by Total Crashes I-25 CO Springs Area
Created June 4, 2013 US 36 Baseline to Sheridan

Highway
sectio

n
from 
mp

to    
mp

from   
date

to        
date AADT Length PDO INJ FAT INJ+FAT TOTAL PDO INJ

FAT 
(x100) INJ+FAT TOTAL

LOSS 
INJ+FAT

LOSS 
TOTAL

1 36 B 39.2 43.19 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 70891 4.02 414 34 1 35 449 0.8 0.07 0.19 0.06 0.86 2 2
2 25 A 153.2 155.92 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 79000 2.64 372 30 0 30 402 0.97 0.08 0 0.08 1.05 2 3
3 36 B 45.83 48.03 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 77077 2.19 375 27 0 27 402 1.21 0.09 0 0.09 1.3 2 3
4 25 A 160.76 163.31 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 48027 2.59 306 31 1 32 338 1.35 0.14 0.44 0.14 1.49 3 4
5 470 A 21.07 24.13 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 99000 3.08 287 29 2 31 318 0.52 0.05 0.36 0.05 0.57 1 2
6 36 B 48.04 50.37 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 80000 2.33 276 30 0 30 306 0.81 0.09 0 0.09 0.9 2 2
7 25 A 255.27 257.3 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 63998 2 272 30 2 32 304 1.17 0.13 0.86 0.13 1.3 3 3
8 25 A 265.31 268.47 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 52018 3.03 259 27 3 30 289 0.9 0.09 1.04 0.1 1 2 3
9 36 B 43.2 45.82 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 82018 2.59 254 34 1 35 289 0.66 0.09 0.26 0.09 0.75 2 2
10 25 A 155.93 158.19 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 67000 2.3 270 17 0 17 287 0.96 0.06 0 0.06 1.02 2 3
11 270 A 2.36 4.56 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 85000 2.18 266 19 1 20 286 0.78 0.06 0.29 0.06 0.84 2 2
12 25 A 257.31 259.3 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 60420 1.98 267 17 0 17 284 1.22 0.08 0 0.08 1.3 2 3
13 36 B 50.38 52.56 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 81705 2.08 253 28 1 29 282 0.82 0.09 0.32 0.09 0.91 2 2
14 25 A 250.24 252.25 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 60999 2.01 250 15 0 15 265 1.11 0.07 0 0.07 1.18 2 3
15 25 A 158.2 160.75 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 71000 2.53 232 29 0 29 261 0.71 0.09 0 0.08 0.79 2 2
16 270 A 0.39 2.35 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 93000 1.93 240 21 0 21 261 0.73 0.06 0 0.06 0.79 1 2
17 225 A 5.37 6.88 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 105008 1.5 219 29 2 31 250 0.76 0.1 0.7 0.11 0.87 2 2
18 25 A 262.3 265.3 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 60000 3 213 28 0 28 241 0.65 0.09 0 0.08 0.73 2 2
19 25 A 151.66 153.19 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 82000 1.53 221 18 0 18 239 0.97 0.08 0 0.07 1.04 2 3
20 225 A 6.89 7.91 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 118000 1.01 201 30 0 30 231 0.92 0.14 0 0.14 1.06 2 2
21 225 A 7.92 8.94 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 117001 0.99 207 17 0 17 224 0.97 0.08 0 0.08 1.05 2 2
22 76 A 6.8 8.04 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 74011 1.32 204 17 1 18 222 1.15 0.1 0.56 0.1 1.25 3 4
23 25 A 259.31 262.29 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 65000 2.99 190 20 0 20 210 0.54 0.06 0 0.05 0.59 2 2
24 25 A 131.65 135.25 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 44992 3.59 176 22 5 27 203 0.6 0.07 1.7 0.09 0.69 2 2
25 470 A 17.05 18.45 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 77000 1.4 181 16 1 17 198 0.92 0.08 0.51 0.09 1.01 2 3

Number of Crashes Crash Rates (MVMT)

03 FASTER Safety: Page 11 of 29



Total Crash Rate 

4 Lane Divided Freeways Sections I-25 through Pueblo
5 YEAR sorted by Total Crash Rate I-25 CO Springs Area
Created June 4, 2013 US 36 Baseline to Sheridan

Highway sectio
n

from 
mp

to    
mp

from   
date

to        
date

AADT Length PDO INJ FAT INJ+FAT TOTAL PDO INJ FAT 
(x100)

INJ+FAT TOTAL LOSS 
INJ+FAT

LOSS 
TOTA

L
1 25 A 96.67 97.44 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 45974 0.77 111 14 0 14 125 1.32 0.17 0 0.17 1.49 4 4
2 25 A 160.76 163.3 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 48027 2.59 306 31 1 32 338 1.35 0.14 0.44 0.14 1.49 3 4
3 25 A 97.69 98.54 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 59467 0.81 140 14 1 15 155 1.29 0.13 0.92 0.14 1.43 4 4
4 25 A 255.27 257.3 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 63998 2 272 30 2 32 304 1.17 0.13 0.86 0.13 1.3 3 3
5 25 A 257.31 259.3 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 60420 1.98 267 17 0 17 284 1.22 0.08 0 0.08 1.3 2 3
6 36 B 45.83 48.03 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 77077 2.19 375 27 0 27 402 1.21 0.09 0 0.09 1.3 2 3
7 76 A 6.8 8.04 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 74011 1.32 204 17 1 18 222 1.15 0.1 0.56 0.1 1.25 3 4
8 25 A 250.24 252.3 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 60999 2.01 250 15 0 15 265 1.11 0.07 0 0.07 1.18 2 3
9 76 A 20.91 22.4 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 29870 1.52 85 12 1 13 98 1.02 0.14 1.2 0.16 1.18 2 4
10 76 A 19.72 20.9 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 25009 1.15 54 3 0 3 57 1.03 0.06 0 0.05 1.08 1 3
11 25 A 268.48 269.4 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 39000 0.99 66 10 0 10 76 0.93 0.14 0 0.14 1.07 3 3
12 225 A 6.89 7.91 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 118000 1.01 201 30 0 30 231 0.92 0.14 0 0.14 1.06 2 2
13 25 A 153.2 155.9 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 79000 2.64 372 30 0 30 402 0.97 0.08 0 0.08 1.05 2 3
14 225 A 7.92 8.94 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 117001 0.99 207 17 0 17 224 0.97 0.08 0 0.08 1.05 2 2
15 25 A 151.66 153.2 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 82000 1.53 221 18 0 18 239 0.97 0.08 0 0.07 1.04 2 3
16 36 B 37.6 39.19 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 47998 1.7 140 13 1 14 154 0.94 0.09 0.67 0.09 1.03 2 3
17 470 B 7 8.89 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 30000 1.74 81 16 1 17 98 0.85 0.17 1.05 0.18 1.03 3 3
18 25 A 155.93 158.2 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 67000 2.3 270 17 0 17 287 0.96 0.06 0 0.06 1.02 2 3
19 470 A 17.05 18.45 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 77000 1.4 181 16 1 17 198 0.92 0.08 0.51 0.09 1.01 2 3
20 25 A 265.31 268.5 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 52018 3.03 259 27 3 30 289 0.9 0.09 1.04 0.1 1 2 3
21 76 A 8.05 9.47 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 56038 1.41 122 11 1 12 134 0.85 0.08 0.69 0.08 0.93 3 3
22 36 B 50.38 52.56 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 81705 2.08 253 28 1 29 282 0.82 0.09 0.32 0.09 0.91 2 2
23 25 A 252.26 254.2 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 55003 1.98 161 16 2 18 179 0.81 0.08 1.01 0.09 0.9 2 2
24 36 B 48.04 50.37 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 80000 2.33 276 30 0 30 306 0.81 0.09 0 0.09 0.9 2 2
25 225 A 5.37 6.88 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 105008 1.5 219 29 2 31 250 0.76 0.1 0.7 0.11 0.87 2 2

Number of Crashes Crash Rates (MVMT)

03 FASTER Safety: Page 12 of 29



Injury + Fatal Crashes 

4 Lane Divided Freeways Sections I-25 through Pueblo
5 YEAR sorted by Inj+ Fat Crashes I-25 CO Springs Area
Created June 4, 2013 US 36 Baseline to Sheridan

Highway sectio
n

from 
mp

to    
mp

from   
date

to        
date

AADT Length PDO INJ FAT
INJ+FA

T TOTAL PDO INJ FAT 
(x100)

INJ+FAT TOTAL LOSS 
INJ+FAT

LOSS 
Total

1 36 B 39.2 43.19 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 70891 4.02 414 34 1 35 449 0.8 0.07 0.19 0.06 0.86 2 2
2 36 B 43.2 45.82 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 82018 2.59 254 34 1 35 289 0.66 0.09 0.26 0.09 0.75 2 2
3 25 A 127.86 131.64 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 38000 3.83 138 31 2 33 171 0.52 0.12 0.75 0.12 0.64 2 2
4 25 A 160.76 163.31 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 48027 2.59 306 31 1 32 338 1.35 0.14 0.44 0.14 1.49 3 4
5 25 A 255.27 257.3 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 63998 2 272 30 2 32 304 1.17 0.13 0.86 0.13 1.3 3 3
6 225 A 5.37 6.88 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 105008 1.5 219 29 2 31 250 0.76 0.1 0.7 0.11 0.87 2 2
7 470 A 21.07 24.13 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 99000 3.08 287 29 2 31 318 0.52 0.05 0.36 0.05 0.57 1 2
8 25 A 153.2 155.92 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 79000 2.64 372 30 0 30 402 0.97 0.08 0 0.08 1.05 2 3
9 25 A 265.31 268.47 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 52018 3.03 259 27 3 30 289 0.9 0.09 1.04 0.1 1 2 3
10 36 B 48.04 50.37 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 80000 2.33 276 30 0 30 306 0.81 0.09 0 0.09 0.9 2 2
11 225 A 6.89 7.91 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 118000 1.01 201 30 0 30 231 0.92 0.14 0 0.14 1.06 2 2
12 25 A 158.2 160.75 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 71000 2.53 232 29 0 29 261 0.71 0.09 0 0.08 0.79 2 2
13 36 B 50.38 52.56 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 81705 2.08 253 28 1 29 282 0.82 0.09 0.32 0.09 0.91 2 2
14 25 A 262.3 265.3 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 60000 3 213 28 0 28 241 0.65 0.09 0 0.08 0.73 2 2
15 25 A 131.65 135.25 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 44992 3.59 176 22 5 27 203 0.6 0.07 1.7 0.09 0.69 2 2
16 36 B 45.83 48.03 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 77077 2.19 375 27 0 27 402 1.21 0.09 0 0.09 1.3 2 3
17 70 A 27.57 31.34 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 18000 3.79 71 19 3 22 93 0.57 0.15 2.4 0.18 0.75 2 2
18 270 A 0.39 2.35 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 93000 1.93 240 21 0 21 261 0.73 0.06 0 0.06 0.79 1 2
19 25 A 259.31 262.29 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 65000 2.99 190 20 0 20 210 0.54 0.06 0 0.05 0.59 2 2
20 270 A 2.36 4.56 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 85000 2.18 266 19 1 20 286 0.78 0.06 0.29 0.06 0.84 2 2
21 76 A 18.08 19.71 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 30000 1.62 50 18 1 19 69 0.56 0.2 1.13 0.22 0.78 2 3
22 25 A 151.66 153.19 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 82000 1.53 221 18 0 18 239 0.97 0.08 0 0.07 1.04 2 3
23 25 A 252.26 254.22 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 55003 1.98 161 16 2 18 179 0.81 0.08 1.01 0.09 0.9 2 2
24 76 A 6.8 8.04 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 74011 1.32 204 17 1 18 222 1.15 0.1 0.56 0.1 1.25 3 4
25 25 A 155.93 158.19 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 67000 2.3 270 17 0 17 287 0.96 0.06 0 0.06 1.02 2 3

Number of Crashes Crash Rates (MVMT)

03 FASTER Safety: Page 13 of 29



Injury + Fatal Rate 

4 Lane Divided Freeways Sections I-25 through Pueblo
5 YEAR sorted by Inj+ Fat Rate I-25 CO Springs Area
Created June 4, 2013 US 36 Baseline to Sheridan

Highway sectio
n

from 
mp

to    
mp

from   
date

to        
date

AADT Length PDO INJ FAT INJ+FAT TOTAL PDO INJ FAT 
(x100)

INJ+FAT TOTAL LOSS 
INJ+FAT

LOSS 
Total

1 76 A 18.08 19.71 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 30000 1.62 50 18 1 19 69 0.56 0.2 1.13 0.22 0.78 2 3
2 70 A 27.57 31.34 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 18000 3.79 71 19 3 22 93 0.57 0.15 2.4 0.18 0.75 2 2
3 470 B 7 8.89 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 30000 1.74 81 16 1 17 98 0.85 0.17 1.05 0.18 1.03 3 3
4 25 A 96.67 97.44 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 45974 0.77 111 14 0 14 125 1.32 0.17 0 0.17 1.49 4 4
5 58 A 3.82 5.39 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 26000 1.68 47 12 1 13 60 0.59 0.15 1.26 0.16 0.75 2 2
6 76 A 20.91 22.4 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 29870 1.52 85 12 1 13 98 1.02 0.14 1.2 0.16 1.18 2 4
7 25 A 268.48 269.36 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 39000 0.99 66 10 0 10 76 0.93 0.14 0 0.14 1.07 3 3
8 70 A 31.35 33.99 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 23998 2.65 28 16 0 16 44 0.24 0.14 0 0.14 0.38 2 2
9 225 A 6.89 7.91 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 118000 1.01 201 30 0 30 231 0.92 0.14 0 0.14 1.06 2 2
10 70 A 288.22 289.15 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 38601 0.9 24 10 0 10 34 0.34 0.14 0 0.14 0.48 2 2
11 25 A 97.69 98.54 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 59467 0.81 140 14 1 15 155 1.29 0.13 0.92 0.14 1.43 4 4
12 25 A 160.76 163.31 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 48027 2.59 306 31 1 32 338 1.35 0.14 0.44 0.14 1.49 3 4
13 25 A 255.27 257.3 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 63998 2 272 30 2 32 304 1.17 0.13 0.86 0.13 1.3 3 3
14 25 A 127.86 131.64 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 38000 3.83 138 31 2 33 171 0.52 0.12 0.75 0.12 0.64 2 2
15 70 A 285.73 288.21 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 29000 2.45 49 15 1 16 65 0.38 0.12 0.77 0.12 0.5 1 1
16 25 A 94.77 95.89 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 35803 1.12 52 7 1 8 60 0.71 0.1 1.37 0.11 0.82 2 3
17 70 A 25.56 27.56 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 16000 1.95 11 5 1 6 17 0.19 0.09 1.75 0.11 0.3 1 1
18 225 A 5.37 6.88 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 105008 1.5 219 29 2 31 250 0.76 0.1 0.7 0.11 0.87 2 2
19 285 D 248.44 250.07 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 28002 1.69 51 9 0 9 60 0.59 0.1 0 0.11 0.7 2 2
20 76 A 6.8 8.04 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 74011 1.32 204 17 1 18 222 1.15 0.1 0.56 0.1 1.25 3 4
21 25 A 265.31 268.47 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 52018 3.03 259 27 3 30 289 0.9 0.09 1.04 0.1 1 2 3
22 76 A 22.41 25.14 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 18943 2.74 26 8 1 9 35 0.27 0.08 1.06 0.1 0.37 1 1
23 470 B 25.52 27.84 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 16000 2.36 14 7 0 7 21 0.2 0.1 0 0.1 0.3 2 1
24 36 B 37.6 39.19 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 47998 1.7 140 13 1 14 154 0.94 0.09 0.67 0.09 1.03 2 3
25 36 B 45.83 48.03 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 77077 2.19 375 27 0 27 402 1.21 0.09 0 0.09 1.3 2 3

Number of Crashes Crash Rates (MVMT)

03 FASTER Safety: Page 14 of 29



Level of Service of Safety - Total Crashes 

4 Lane Divided Freeways Sections I-25 through Pueblo
5 YEAR sorted by TOTAL Level of Service Safety (LOSS) I-25 CO Springs Area
Created June 4, 2013 US 36 Baseline to Sheridan

Highwa
y

sectio
n

from 
mp

to    
mp

from   
date

to        
date AADT Length PDO INJ FAT INJ+FAT TOTAL PDO INJ

FAT 
(x100) INJ+FAT TOTAL

LOSS 
INJ+FAT

LOSS 
TOTAL

1 25 A 96.67 97.44 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 45974 0.77 111 14 0 14 125 1.32 0.17 0 0.17 1.49 4 4
2 25 A 97.69 98.54 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 59467 0.81 140 14 1 15 155 1.29 0.13 0.92 0.14 1.43 4 4
3 25 A 160.8 163.3 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 48027 2.59 306 31 1 32 338 1.35 0.14 0.44 0.14 1.49 3 4
4 76 A 6.8 8.04 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 74011 1.32 204 17 1 18 222 1.15 0.1 0.56 0.1 1.25 3 4
5 76 A 20.91 22.4 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 29870 1.52 85 12 1 13 98 1.02 0.14 1.2 0.16 1.18 2 4
6 25 A 94.77 95.89 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 35803 1.12 52 7 1 8 60 0.71 0.1 1.37 0.11 0.82 2 3
7 25 A 98.55 99.32 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 72084 0.73 91 9 0 9 100 0.69 0.07 0 0.07 0.76 3 3
8 25 A 99.33 99.94 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 72810 0.61 94 9 2 11 105 0.71 0.07 1.5 0.08 0.79 3 3
9 25 A 100.7 101.4 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 43042 0.65 43 6 1 7 50 0.55 0.08 1.27 0.09 0.64 3 3
10 25 A 151.7 153.2 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 82000 1.53 221 18 0 18 239 0.97 0.08 0 0.07 1.04 2 3
11 25 A 153.2 155.9 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 79000 2.64 372 30 0 30 402 0.97 0.08 0 0.08 1.05 2 3
12 25 A 155.9 158.2 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 67000 2.3 270 17 0 17 287 0.96 0.06 0 0.06 1.02 2 3
13 25 A 250.2 252.3 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 60999 2.01 250 15 0 15 265 1.11 0.07 0 0.07 1.18 2 3
14 25 A 255.3 257.3 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 63998 2 272 30 2 32 304 1.17 0.13 0.86 0.13 1.3 3 3
15 25 A 257.3 259.3 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 60420 1.98 267 17 0 17 284 1.22 0.08 0 0.08 1.3 2 3
16 25 A 265.3 268.5 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 52018 3.03 259 27 3 30 289 0.9 0.09 1.04 0.1 1 2 3
17 25 A 268.5 269.4 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 39000 0.99 66 10 0 10 76 0.93 0.14 0 0.14 1.07 3 3
18 36 B 37.6 39.19 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 47998 1.7 140 13 1 14 154 0.94 0.09 0.67 0.09 1.03 2 3
19 36 B 45.83 48.03 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 77077 2.19 375 27 0 27 402 1.21 0.09 0 0.09 1.3 2 3
20 58 A 0.72 3.81 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 19329 2.92 78 3 0 3 81 0.76 0.03 0 0.02 0.78 2 3
21 76 A 8.05 9.47 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 56038 1.41 122 11 1 12 134 0.85 0.08 0.69 0.08 0.93 3 3
22 76 A 16.48 18.07 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 25000 1.57 52 6 0 6 58 0.73 0.08 0 0.08 0.81 2 3
23 76 A 18.08 19.71 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 30000 1.62 50 18 1 19 69 0.56 0.2 1.13 0.22 0.78 2 3
24 76 A 19.72 20.9 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 25009 1.15 54 3 0 3 57 1.03 0.06 0 0.05 1.08 1 3
25 470 A 17.05 18.45 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 77000 1.4 181 16 1 17 198 0.92 0.08 0.51 0.09 1.01 2 3

Number of Crashes Crash Rates (MVMT)

03 FASTER Safety: Page 15 of 29



Level of Service of Safety -  
Injury+ Fatal Crashes 

4 Lane Divided Freeways Sections I-25 through Pueblo
5 YEAR sorted by INJ+FAT Level of Service Safety (LOSS) I-25 CO Springs Area
Created June 4, 2013 US 36 Baseline to Sheridan

Highway
sectio

n
from 
mp

to    
mp

from   
date

to        
date AADT Length PDO INJ FAT INJ+FAT TOTAL PDO INJ

FAT 
(x100

)
INJ+FAT TOTAL

LOSS 
INJ+FA

T

LOSS 
TOTAL

1 25 A 96.67 97.44 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 45974 0.77 111 14 0 14 125 1.32 0.17 0 0.17 1.49 4 4
2 25 A 97.69 98.54 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 59467 0.81 140 14 1 15 155 1.29 0.13 0.92 0.14 1.43 4 4
3 25 A 98.55 99.32 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 72084 0.73 91 9 0 9 100 0.69 0.07 0 0.07 0.76 3 3
4 25 A 99.33 99.94 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 72810 0.61 94 9 2 11 105 0.71 0.07 1.5 0.08 0.79 3 3
5 25 A 100.68 101.38 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 43042 0.65 43 6 1 7 50 0.55 0.08 1.27 0.09 0.64 3 3
6 25 A 160.76 163.31 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 48027 2.59 306 31 1 32 338 1.35 0.14 0.44 0.14 1.49 3 4
7 25 A 255.27 257.3 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 63998 2 272 30 2 32 304 1.17 0.13 0.86 0.13 1.3 3 3
8 25 A 268.48 269.36 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 39000 0.99 66 10 0 10 76 0.93 0.14 0 0.14 1.07 3 3
9 76 A 6.8 8.04 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 74011 1.32 204 17 1 18 222 1.15 0.1 0.56 0.1 1.25 3 4
10 76 A 8.05 9.47 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 56038 1.41 122 11 1 12 134 0.85 0.08 0.69 0.08 0.93 3 3
11 470 B 7 8.89 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 30000 1.74 81 16 1 17 98 0.85 0.17 1.05 0.18 1.03 3 3
12 25 A 94.77 95.89 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 35803 1.12 52 7 1 8 60 0.71 0.1 1.37 0.11 0.82 2 3
13 25 A 95.9 96.66 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 40996 0.74 38 4 0 4 42 0.51 0.05 0 0.05 0.56 2 2
14 25 A 99.95 100.67 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 70098 0.8 64 7 0 7 71 0.5 0.05 0 0.05 0.55 2 2
15 25 A 102.16 103.89 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 33765 1.71 48 4 2 6 54 0.46 0.04 1.9 0.05 0.51 2 2
16 25 A 127.86 131.64 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 38000 3.83 138 31 2 33 171 0.52 0.12 0.75 0.12 0.64 2 2
17 25 A 131.65 135.25 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 44992 3.59 176 22 5 27 203 0.6 0.07 1.7 0.09 0.69 2 2
18 25 A 135.26 137.74 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 73952 2.44 115 12 3 15 130 0.35 0.04 0.91 0.04 0.39 2 1
19 25 A 150.3 151.65 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 91007 1.34 144 13 0 13 157 0.65 0.06 0 0.06 0.71 2 2
20 25 A 151.66 153.19 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 82000 1.53 221 18 0 18 239 0.97 0.08 0 0.07 1.04 2 3
21 25 A 153.2 155.92 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 79000 2.64 372 30 0 30 402 0.97 0.08 0 0.08 1.05 2 3
22 25 A 155.93 158.19 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 67000 2.3 270 17 0 17 287 0.96 0.06 0 0.06 1.02 2 3
23 25 A 158.2 160.75 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 71000 2.53 232 29 0 29 261 0.71 0.09 0 0.08 0.79 2 2
24 25 A 250.24 252.25 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 60999 2.01 250 15 0 15 265 1.11 0.07 0 0.07 1.18 2 3
25 25 A 252.26 254.22 1/1/2008 12/31/2012 55003 1.98 161 16 2 18 179 0.81 0.08 1.01 0.09 0.9 2 2

Number of Crashes Crash Rates (MVMT)

03 FASTER Safety: Page 16 of 29



Strategic Highway Safety Plan (SHSP)

 Required by Map-21

 2014 update

 Data driven

 Establishes safety focus

 Establishes goals

 Aligned with CDOT and other agency safety plans

19

SHSP Example Performance Measures
2007-present

Example Performance Measure Target Actual
Goal 
Met?

Total crashes per 100 MVMT 290 212 Yes

Fatal crashes per 100 MVMT 1.0 0.9 Yes

Injury crashes per 100 MVMT 65 51 Yes

Percent of fatal crashes - alcohol-related 29% 35% No

Seat belt use 85% 83% No

Percent of crashes - age 21 to 34 32% 31% Yes

Percent of crashes - age 65+ 12% 12% Yes

Motorcycle crashes per 1,000 registrations 15 12 Yes

Percent of fatal crashes – bicycles 1% 2% No

Percent of fatal crashes –pedestrians 6% 10% No

Construction and work zone crashes 1,150 914 Yes

20

03 FASTER Safety: Page 17 of 29



Highway Safety Improvement Program 
(HSIP)

 Federal Program, Annual Budget $20-30M

 Addresses Crash Locations
 Highway and off-system

 Meets Benefit/Cost Ratio of 1 or greater

 Data Driven process:
 Statewide crash database

 Pattern Recognition

 Crash Mitigation Factors

 Level of Service Of Safety

 Crash Rates

 Crash Severity

21

HSIP Project Types
22

03 FASTER Safety: Page 18 of 29



 Federal and State Programs
 Annual Budget $9.9M
 Behavior Based Grants
 Driver Behavior Focus
 Impaired Driving
 Motorcycle Safety
 Occupant Protection
 Young Drivers
 Speed Enforcement
 Distracted Driving
 Pedestrian Safety

Office of Transportation Safety
(Highway Safety Office)

23

Office of Transportation Safety
(Highway Safety Office)

$4,550,000, 45%

$984,500, 10%

$2,024,000, 20%

$401,117, 4%

$341,271, 
3%

$338,047, 3%

$1,540,106, 15%

Impaired

Motorcycle

Occupant Protection

Speed Enforcement

Young Driver/Distracted Driving

Pedestrian

Traffic Records/Program Support

Highway Safety Office Budget Summary 
FY 2013

24

03 FASTER Safety: Page 19 of 29



FASTER Safety Legislation

 Started in FY 2010 after passage of FASTER 
legislation.

 “…Construction, reconstruction or maintenance 
project that the Commission determines is needed to 
enhance safety of a state highway”. SB 09-108

25

Historical FASTER Safety Projects

Asset 
Management

68 (26%)

Operations
10 (4%)

Wildlife Fencing
7 (3%)

Intersection and 
Interchange 

Improvements
34 (13%)

Shoulders and 
Safety-Related 

Widening
26 (10%)

Resurfacing and 
Reconstruction

31 (12%)

Other
82 (32%)

FASTER Safety Projects

26

03 FASTER Safety: Page 20 of 29



Program Development

 Development Teams
 Oversight Team: Myron Hora – Acting R4 RTD, Kerrie Neet R5 RTD, Deb 

Perkins-Smith – Dir. DTD, Ryan Rice – Dir. TSM&O, Scott Richrath - CFO, and 
Herman Stockinger – Dir. Policy and Government Relations. 

 Core Staff Team: Alisa Babler – HQ Traffic Safety Engineering Section 
Manager, Carol Gould – OTS Highway Safety Manager, Steven Hersey – R1 
Traffic and Safety Engineer, William Johnson – DTD Transportation 
Performance Branch Manager, Sandi Kohrs – DTD Multi-modal Planning Branch 
Manager, Charles Meyer HQ Traffic and Safety Engineering Branch Manager, 
Mike McVaugh – R5 Traffic and Safety Engineer, Jeff Sudmeier – MPO and 
Regional Planning Section Manager, Ermias Weldemicael – DTD Economist, and 
Rebecca White – Policy and Government Relations Local Government Liaison.

 Technical Team: James Biren/Sasan Delshad – R2 Traffic and Safety 
Engineer, Long Nguyen – R4 Traffic and Safety Engineer, David Swenka – HQ 
Traffic and Safety engineer, Sean Yeates –R3, and Zane Znamenacek – R3 Traffic 
and Safety Engineer.

27

New FASTER Safety Program

 New program assumptions:
 The new program addresses Audit Recommendations. 

 Alignment with other Safety Programs.

 Strategic Highway Safety Plan

 PD 14

 Integrated Safety Plan

 Core Performance Measures

28

03 FASTER Safety: Page 21 of 29



 FASTER Safety Program Goals and Objectives

 Reduce total highway crashes.

 Reduce severity of highway crashes (fatality and injury).

 Address systematic safety concerns using a risk-based safety 
approach (FASTER Safety Asset Management).

New Program Goals and Objectives
29

Proposed FASTER Safety Program

* The new Program will focus on two categories: 
Statewide Asset Management and Mitigation Program. 

 Asset Management $40 M

(Proactive Safety Improvements)

 Mitigation Program $47M

(Crash Data, Safety Improvements )

 TOTAL FY15 Allocation $87M

30

03 FASTER Safety: Page 22 of 29



New FASTER Safety Asset Management Program 

 The proposed $40m will be allocated on four Asset 
Categories and administered in accordance with the 
Risk-based Asset Management Plan.

 Fund distribution and program focus: 
 Structures 

 Program focus: signs, signals, high-mast lighting, walls , and 
bridge/traffic rail. 

 Tunnels
 Program focus: tunnel lighting, fire suppression, traffic control, and 

snowmelt 

 Culverts 
 Program focus: critical culverts, culvert rail, and culverts <36”

 Rockfall 
 Program focus: rockfall mitigation/prevention, landslides, sink holes, and 

embankment stability. 

31

New FASTER Safety Mitigation Program

 Project selection process 
 Use metrics to develop crash mitigation list (CML), metrics 

include:
 AADT
 Number of Crashes
 Property Damage Only
 Injury
 Injury + Fatality

 Crash Rates
 Property Damage Only
 Injury
 Injury + Fatality

 Identify treatments for proposed safety projects
 Implement project selection criteria
 Select projects

32

03 FASTER Safety: Page 23 of 29



Use CML to 
develop 

candidate 
locations

Identify 
treatments 

and develop 
projects

Implement 
selection 
criteria

Select and 
prioritize 
projects

New FASTER Safety Mitigation Program

Generalized Project 
Selection Process

33

Proposed Project Selection Criteria

All Region projects considered for FASTER-Safety funding shall 
include a minimum of TWO of the following criteria:

A. Reduce existing crashes

B. Reduce existing crash severity

C. Address existing system for safety weakness

D. Encourage cooperative safety effort with local agency

E. Enhance other highway safety features and/or functions

F. Provide proven safety measures for a systematic/preventative location

G. Improve pedestrian/bicycle safety

H. Existing project (leveraging funding opportunities with proposed safety project)

I. Behavior Based (all users – drivers, passengers, pedestrian, bikes, motorcycle, etc.)

34

03 FASTER Safety: Page 24 of 29



Example
Project Selection Process - I-70 MP 29.50-31.50

35

 Overturning pattern (Location-Off Road Crashes)

Relocated/
Breakaway 

Utility 
Poles

Median 
Rumble 
Strips

Shoulder 
Rumble 
Strips

Upgrade 
Guardrail

Upgrade 
Median 
Barrier

New 
Median 
Barrier

Impact 
Attenuators

Flatten 
Side 

Slopes
Remove 

Obstacles
Fixed/Other Objects X X X X X X X X X
Rear End
Broadside
Overturning X X X X X X
Head-On X X X
Sideswipe Same Direction
Sideswipe Opposite Direction X X X
Approach Turn
Overtaking Turn
Parked Motor Vehicle X
Pedestrian (School-Age) X
Pedestrian (Other) X
Railway Vehicle
Bicycle X
Motorized Bicycle X

Roadside

Example
Project Selection Process - I-70 MP 29.50-31.50

36

03 FASTER Safety: Page 25 of 29



 Project is on “Mitigation List”

 Traffic data – 49 PDO, 9 INJ, 1 FAT

 Guardrail scope addresses pattern

 Region advances Project

Example
Project Selection Process - I-70 MP 29.50-31.50

37

38

03 FASTER Safety: Page 26 of 29



type life
arf   

lanes
fat 

factor
inj 

factor
pdo 

factor notes
BRIDGE - REPLACEMENT, REALIGN APPROACH 20 45 45 45 BRIDGE AND APPROACH BRIDGE ACCIDENTS
BRIDGE - WIDENING 20 40 40 40 BRIDGE AND APPROACH BRIDGE ACCIDENTS
GUARDRAIL - INSTALLATION (MBGR) 20 60 40 0 RUN OFF THE ROAD ACCIDENTS ONLY AND RELATED ACCIDENTS
GUARDRAIL - INSTALLATION (CABLE RAIL) 20 60 40 20 RUN OFF THE ROAD ACCIDENTS ONLY AND RELATED ACCIDENTS
GUARDRAIL - UPGRADE (MBGR) 20 60 60 0 GUARDRAIL ACCIDENTS ONLY
GUARDRAIL - UPGRADE (MBGR TO CABLERAIL) 20 60 60 20 GUARDRAIL ACCIDENTS ONLY
INTERSECTION - ADD RIGHT TURN LANES 20 MULTI 30 30 30
INTERSECTION - RELOCATION/REALIGNMENT 20 35 35 35
INTERSECTION - REPLACE WITH ROUNDABOUT 20 MULTI 50 50 50
LANES - ADD ACCEL/DECEL LANES 20 30 30 30

 Cable Rail project

 Criteria A, Total Crashes
Project

Description

PDO INJ FAT Mitigation 
List?

Matrix PDO
CMF

INJ
CMF

FAT
CMF

PDO
Red

INJ
Red

FAT
Red

Total
Crash

Reduction

Meets 
Criteria 

Cable 
Median 

Rail

49 9 1 Y Y 20% 40% 60% 9.8 3.6 0.6 14 Y

Example
Project Selection Process - I-70 MP 29.50-31.50

39

 Criteria A: Reduce existing crashes – (Must meet all 
3) 
 Location is on the Mitigation List AND

 Scope of project addresses crash patterns per the established 
matrix AND

 The number of crashes reduced , calculated by CMF will be 
calculated and documented.

 Does meet Criteria A.

Example
Project Selection Process - I-70 MP 29.50-31.50

40

03 FASTER Safety: Page 27 of 29



 Criteria B, Crash severity:

Project
Description

INJ FAT Mitigation 
List?

Matrix INJ
CMF

FAT
CMF

INJ
Red

FAT
Red

Severe
Crash

Reduction

Meets 
Criteria 

Cable 
Median Rail

9 1 Y Y 40% 60% 3.6 0.6 4.2 Y

Example
Project Selection Process - I-70 MP 29.50-31.50

41

 Criteria B: Reduce existing crash severity –:
 Location is on the Mitigation List AND

 Scope of project addresses INJ/Fatal crash pattern per the 
established matrix AND

 The number of severe crashes is reduced, calculated by CMF 
will be calculated and documented.  

 Project meets Criteria B. 

 Project meets both Criteria A and Criteria B, 
Project is Advanced.

Example
Project Selection Process - I-70 MP 29.50-31.50

42

03 FASTER Safety: Page 28 of 29



Next Steps

 TC Workshop in February
 Identify methodology for allocation of funds

 Region vs. Statewide vs. Hybrid

 Allocation Formula if applicable

 Refine program structure based on Transportation 
Commission Comments.

 Future Staff Task
 Develop program reporting metrics

43

Questions

?

44

03 FASTER Safety: Page 29 of 29



Transportation Commission of Colorado 
Transportation Asset Management Committee 

Meeting Agenda 
Thursday, January 16, 2014 
4201 East Arkansas Avenue 

 
 

William Johnson, Branch Manager 
Transportation Performance Branch 

 
 
 
           Les Gruen, Chair                  Kathy Connell 
District 9, Colorado Springs              District 6, Steamboat Springs 
 
 Heather Barry      Sidny Zink 
  District 4, Westminster District 8, Durango  
    
   Steven Hofmeister 
   District 11, Haxtun  
 
            Scott McDaniel       Debra Perkins-Smith, Director 
        Acting Chief Engineer    Division of Transportation       

                 Development 
 
 
 

All commissioners are invited to attend this Committee meeting. 
 

 
1. Report Out from Commissioner Gruen – 5 minutes 

2. Risk-Based Asset Management Plan – 20 minutes 

3. Discussion on Future of Committee – 20 minutes 

 

 

THE AGENDA MAY BE ALTERED AT THE CHAIR’S DISCRETION 
 

04 Asset Management Committee: Page 1 of 11



DATE: January 3, 2014 
TO:  Transportation Commission 
FROM: Debra Perkins-Smith, Division of Transportation Development 
  William Johnson, Transportation Performance Branch, DTD 
SUBJECT: Transportation Asset Management Committee 
 
Purpose 
During the January meeting of the Transportation Asset Management Committee, staff will 
provide an overview of the Risk-Based Asset Management Plan and request guidance from 
the Committee on the future of the Asset Management Committee.  
 
Action Requested 
Staff requests that the Committee determine the role going forward for the Asset 
Management Committee. 
 
Background 
In September 2013 the Colorado Transportation Commission formed the Asset Management 
Committee to facilitate a more detailed discussion on asset management with a smaller 
group.  The initial priorities of the group according to the September Committee minutes 
were to seek an alternative surface treatment analysis, improved fleet equipment management 
and a budget tradeoff tool.  Commissioners emphasized that asset management must be 
incorporated into the FY14 budget discussion.  
 
Details   
Since the Asset Management Committee was formed, CDOT has incorporated asset 
management principles into the annual budget discussions and shifted from a formula 
approach for distributing funds to the regions to an asset management approach based on the 
condition and need for the various assets statewide.  This shift is reflected in the Risk-Based 
Asset Management Plan (RB AMP), the initial version of which was recently completed by a 
team of staff working with consultants.   
 
Based on direction from the Asset Management Committee and Senior Management CDOT 
was ahead of the game in developing the asset management plan, and is one of the first states 
in the nation to complete the initial version.  CDOT will be submitting the plan to FHWA in 
the February/March timeframe, who will review the process under which the plan was 
developed and determine whether or not to certify the process in accordance with the MAP-
21 legislation.  The plan must then be updated and submitted to FHWA for recertification at 
least once in the next four years (CDOT intends to update the plan every two years). 
 
At this juncture staff requests that the Asset Management Committee review the progress 
made since September, 2013 and determine the future purpose/role of the Committee. 
 

04 Asset Management Committee: Page 2 of 11



DATE: January 3, 2014 
TO:  Transportation Commission 
FROM: Debra Perkins-Smith, Division of Transportation Development 
  William Johnson, Transportation Performance Branch, DTD 
SUBJECT: Transportation Asset Management Committee 
 
Purpose 
Per the January 2, 2014 discussion with Commissioner Gruen and staff, this is an 
informational memorandum detailing updates on changes to the FY14 tunnels and rockfall 
project lists. 
 
Action Requested 
No action requested; informational only. 
 
Background 
The FY14 budget was determined in January of 2013.  CDOT is currently in the middle of 
FY14, and has additional information that was not available at the time of budget setting, 
when the project lists were set for tunnels and rockfall.  In the interest of making the best 
decisions staff requests the changes discussed in the Details section below. 
 
Details   
Tunnels:  There were 6 projects approved for FY14 for tunnels, four of which are 
proceeding as expected.  Of the two remaining projects, both at Wolf Creek Tunnel, staff 
requests the shifting of funds from one project to another.  These two projects call for the 
replacement of the UPS system and the replacement of the deicing system with newer and 
more reliable technology.  Since the project list was created, staff have had the tunnel UPS 
inspected and learned that it does not need replacement at this time.  At the same time, staff 
has learned that the estimate for the deicing system is higher than anticipated so the $100k 
approved for the UPS project will be shifted to the deicing system project. 
 
Rockfall:  The approved rockfall work for FY14 was within the framework of Rockfall Risk 
Reduction, Emergency Response and Rockfall Device Maintenance.  The locations for the 
Risk Reduction work were the Clear Creek Canyon Corridor, the I-70 Mountain Corridor, 
and an individual site on US36 near Estes Park.  The amount estimated to be spent at these 
locations in FY14 was $7M.  Funding for statewide Emergency Response and Rockfall 
Device Maintenance was $2M. 
 
At the time the work was approved the Rockfall Management Plan (RMP) was under 
development.  The RMP is still being developed to incorporate other geological and 
geotechnical hazards in addition to Rockfall; however, the rockfall prioritization method has 
been updated and is being used to identify FY14 and FY15 work.  This combined with the 
need to avoid duplicating efforts for planned work on the I-70 Mountain Corridor and the 

04 Asset Management Committee: Page 3 of 11



effects to US36 from the September floods, which have reshaped the rockfall efforts on this 
corridor, have resulted in changes to the Risk Reduction work locations.  Using the methods 
outlined in the RMP, the work locations for Risk Reduction will be the Clear Creek Canyon 
Corridor and individual sites on SH3 in Durango, SH145 near Telluride and US550 near 
Ridgeway.  The funding for these locations is earmarked at $5.5M.  $1.5M will be used to 
supplement Emergency Response, Rockfall Device Maintenance, and to perform the design 
and project clearances for FY15 work. 
 
 
 
 
 

04 Asset Management Committee: Page 4 of 11



Transportation Asset Management

TC Asset Management Committee

January 16, 2014

CDOT

Agenda

CDOT’s Risk-Based Asset Management Plan

Discussion on Future of AM Committee

2

04 Asset Management Committee: Page 5 of 11



Agenda

CDOT’s Risk-Based Asset Management Plan

Discussion on Future of AM Committee

3

4

What is Asset Management? 

Transportation Asset Management is defined as “a strategic 
and systematic process of operating, maintaining, upgrading 
and expanding physical assets effectively throughout their life 
cycle.  It focuses on business and engineering practices for 
resource allocation and utilization, with the objective of better 
decision making based upon quality information and well 
defined objectives.”

Source:  NCHRP Report 632

04 Asset Management Committee: Page 6 of 11



MAP-21
Risk-based Asset Management Plan:
• As part of the NHPP, states are required to develop “risk-based asset 

management plans” for the National Highway System. The purpose of the 
plan is to improve or preserve the condition of the assets and the 
performance of the highway system. The plan must, at a minimum, include:

– a summary listing of the pavement and bridge assets on the National 
Highway System within the state, including a description of the condition of 
those assets; 

– asset management objectives and measures; 

– performance gap identification; 

– lifecycle cost and risk management analysis; 

– a financial plan; and 

– investment strategies. 

If a state fails to develop and implement a state asset management plan, that 
state’s federal transportation funding will be reduced by 35 percent.

5

Risk-Based Asset Management Plan (RB AMP)

6

RB AMP Deliverable Date:  December 15, 2013 (Delivered)

Staff: TAM Oversight Committee and TAM Working Committee

Consultant:  Cambridge Systematics with Redd Engineering

Project Purpose/Goal: 

• Develop the Risk-Based Asset Management Plan required 
by MAP-21 

• Pull together asset inventory and condition information 
along with CDOT’s financial outlook and risk approach into 
one document

• Define gaps in asset management and provide a plan for 
reducing/eliminating these gaps

04 Asset Management Committee: Page 7 of 11



Risk-Based Asset Management Plan (RB AMP)

7

Integration with the Statewide Plan and other CDOT Plans:

Risk-Based Asset Management Plan (RB AMP)

8

The RB AMP is a living document.

CDOT will request FHWA 
certification of the process used to 
develop the plan. 

MAP-21 requires that the process 
to develop the asset mgmt plan 
be recertified a minimum of once 
every four years.

04 Asset Management Committee: Page 8 of 11



Risk-Based Asset Management Plan (RB AMP)

9

RB AMP Content:
• Executive Summary

• 1: Introduction

• 2: Value to Citizens

• 3: Asset Inventory and Condition

• 4: Asset Management Performance Measures and Targets

• 5: Current Asset Management Processes

• 6: Life-Cycle Cost Considerations

• 7: Incorporating Risk into the Asset Management Program

• 8: Financial Plan

• 9: Investment Strategies

• 10: Asset Management Gap Assessment

• 11: Asset Management Implementation Plan

• 12: RB AMP Governance

• Appendices

Risk-Based Asset Management Plan (RB AMP)

10

Key Highlights:

• MAP-21 requires that states include inventory and condition for 
pavement and bridges.  CDOT meets this requirement and also 
includes information on seven additional assets: maintenance, 
ITS, road equipment, buildings, tunnels, culverts and rockfall 
mitigation sites. (Chp. 3)

• Lays the foundation for incorporating risk in decision-making.  
This is currently done very well at the project level, however there 
is more work to do at the program and agency levels. (Chp. 7).

• Identifies the asset management gaps for CDOT to work on, 
based on surveys and interviews with CDOT staff. (Chp. 10 & 11)

04 Asset Management Committee: Page 9 of 11



Risk-Based Asset Management Plan (RB AMP)

11

Next Steps:

• Address asset management gaps identified in RB AMP

• Address items from USDOT MAP-21 Rules when 
available

Risk-Based Asset Management Plan (RB AMP)

12

Top 10 Asset Management Gaps Identified: 

1. Develop and Document the Budget Distribution, Project 
Selection and Project Tracking Process

2. Integrate Risk Analysis into Planning and Programming 
Processes

3. Develop Strategies to Manage Project and Program Delivery 
Risks

4. Establish a Risk Framework to Evaluate Alternative Strategies

5. Analyze Budget Tradeoffs Across Programs

6. Improve Project Scoping and Optimization

7. Incorporate Life-Cycle Analysis into Decision-Making

8. Clarify the Role of Target-Setting

9. Implement a Strategic Management Framework to Reflect on 
Progress

10. Communicate the Benefits of TAM

04 Asset Management Committee: Page 10 of 11



Agenda

CDOT’s Risk-Based Asset Management Plan

Discussion on Future of AM Committee

13

14

Purpose/Role 

• Elevate the importance of asset management 
principles at CDOT

• Change business practices

• What is the role going forward for this Committee?

TC AM Committee

04 Asset Management Committee: Page 11 of 11



Transportation Commission of Colorado 
Transit and Intermodal Committee Meeting 

 
Meeting Agenda 

 
Thursday, December 16, 2014 – 9:30 A.M. – 10:00 A.M. 

4201 East Arkansas Avenue 
Denver, Colorado 

 
Mark Imhoff, Director 

Division of Transit and Rail 
 

Debra Perkins-Smith, Director 
Division of Transportation Development 

 
 

 Ed Peterson, Chair Shannon Gifford 
 District 2, Lakewood District 1, Denver 
 

 Kathy Gilliland Kathy Connell 
District 5, Livermore  District 6, Steamboat Springs 

 

Bill Thiebaut 
District 10, Pueblo  

 
 

• Introductions & Approve minutes of November  Transit & 
Intermodal Committee Meeting - Ed Peterson - 5 minutes  

 
• FY 2015 FASTER Transit Project Recommendations/Future Years 

FASTER Redistribution – Mark Imhoff - 15 minutes 
 

• Colorado High Speed Transit/ICS and AGS status and project 
completion – David Krutsinger – 10 minutes 

 
• Adjourn 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THE AGENDA MAY BE ALTERED AT THE CHAIR’S DISCRETION. 

05 T&I Committee: Page 1 of 18



 

Transit & Intermodal Committee Meeting Minutes 
November 21, 2013 

 
Committee Members Attending:  Ed Peterson (Chair), Shannon Gifford, Kathy Gilliland, Kathy Connell, 
and Bill Thiebaut 
 
Also attending were DTD Director Debra Perkins-Smith and Bike/Ped Section Manager, Betsy Jacobsen 
 
Chairman Peterson called the meeting to order at 9:30 am. 
 

1. Approval of October 2013 Minutes:  The minutes of the October 2013 meeting were approved 
unanimously as written.   
 

2. Bicycle Strategy Presentation:  Betsy Jacobsen presented information about the League of 
American Bicyclists’ Bicycle Friendly State Program.  Currently, Colorado is ranked Number Two, 
and Governor Hickenlooper wants the state to be Number One by 2015.  Jacobsen presented six 
strategies to move Colorado in that direction:  

1. Establish a statewide bicycle advisory committee that would be appointed by the 
Governor to advise on policy and issues affecting the state. 

2. Add bicycle safety to the Strategic Highway Safety Plan.  CDOT’s Traffic and Safety 
Branch is examining this as they currently move forward with their plan. 

3. Implement Performance Measures.  Measurements are currently being developed as 
Phase II of the Statewide Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan.  It was noted that developing an 
inventory of bicycle/pedestrian facilities was necessary; as well as a way to determine 
specific funds spent on bike/ped projects when they’re part of a larger road project. 

4. Implement AASHTO’s US Bike Route System.  This is a developing network of routes 
throughout the United States (much like the Interstate System is for motorized 
vehicles).  CDOT would need to coordinate with local agencies and neighboring states to 
determine the best routes.  Funding for appropriate signage and outreach would also be 
required. 

5. Adopt a Mode Share Goal for Biking.  This strategy would encourage integration of 
bicycle transportation needs into all transportation and land use policies.  CDOT can 
work with MPOs to develop a mode share goal and add it to PD 14.  Additionally, 
continued expansion of CDOT’s Bike/Ped Counting Program will provide more accurate 
data regarding actual usage. 

6. Dedicate Funding for Safe Routes to School.  MAP-21 eliminated dedicated funding.  
Colorado has received national recognition for its program, yet unless another funding 
mechanism is provided, the program will expire.   

 
Committee members commented that the six strategies were a good idea.  There were no questions 
or comments regarding implementation.  Perkins-Smith said we would come back to them with 
more details regarding budget needs and timelines for implementing. 

 
The meeting was adjourned at 10:00 am.        

05 T&I Committee: Page 2 of 18



STATE OF COLORADO 
 

 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
 
 
 
 

“Taking Care To Get You There” 

 
DATE: January 3, 2014 
 
TO:  Transportation Commission/Transit & Intermodal Committee 
 
FROM: Mark Imhoff, Director, Division of Transit & Rail 
 
SUBJECT: 2015 FASTER Transit Project Recommendations  
 
 
Purpose 
The purpose of this memo is to brief the Transit & Intermodal Committee on the FY 2015 
FASTER Transit project recommendations, and to present the proposed guidelines for the 
development of a FASTER Transit funds redistribution for FY 2016 and beyond. 
 
Action Requested 
No action is requested in January; the agenda item is for information only, and T&I input is 
sought.  The FY 2015 FASTER Transit project recommendations will be brought to the 
Transportation Commission in February for approval. 
 
Executive Summary 
The FY 2015 recommended projects for FASTER Local funds and FASTER Statewide funds 
are listed in the attachment following this memo; a table is also included for projects not 
recommended, with a brief reason.  The FY 2015 project recommendations will come before 
the Transportation Commission in February for approval. 
 
Staff is developing a recommendation for a redistribution process for allocating the FASTER 
Transit funds to begin in FY 2016, with emphasis on achieving the PD 14 performance 
objectives: 

• Performance Goal, Infrastructure Condition; Transit Asset Condition. 
• Performance Goal, System Performance; Transit Utilization and Transit Connectivity. 

We have begun a process through the Transit & Rail Advisory Committee (TRAC), and 
including the Region Planners and CASTA, to devise a more effective project selection 
process.  We seek Transit & Intermodal Committee input on the redistribution guiding 
principles: 

• Transit Utilization - Fund the highest priority transit projects throughout the state. 
• Transit Asset Condition – Utilizing the capital inventory of local bus fleets, identify a 

replacement schedule for all urban and rural transit vehicles (excluding RTD).  Focus 
the FASTER Transit Local funds, in combination with the FTA capital programs, 
toward replacing local vehicles when needed.  Over time the goal would be to replace 
all transit vehicles (subject to funding availability); this is thought to be an equitable 
distribution of FASTER Local transit funds. 

05 T&I Committee: Page 3 of 18



 

 

• Transit Connectivity – The annual allocation of FASTER Statewide Transit funds to 
the Interregional Express bus program is a key element of the redistribution.  In 
addition, encouragement to local entities to provide more regional services is sought, 
possibly through an annual allocation of Statewide Transit funds as operating 
assistance to local transit providers that operate regional service. 

• Streamline the FASTER Transit distribution process if possible. 
 
Background 
In the past, FASTER Local funds were distributed to the Regions by formula, and each 
Region selected the respective projects following an application process and working in 
conjunction with the local MPOs and TPRs.  FASTER Statewide funds were distributed 
based upon a statewide competition, using an application and evaluation process.  Both the 
FASTER Local and Statewide processes followed a two-year planning horizon.  Therefore, 
during the FY 2014-15 cycle FY 2014 projects were finalized and FY 2015 projects were 
tentatively (preliminary) selected, pending updates, additions, withdrawals and formalization 
during the FY 2015 cycle.  Local entities have used the FY 2015 preliminary program of 
projects as a planning guide for their capital programs.  Therefore, significant deviation from 
the FY 2015 preliminary list would be problematic at the local level, and is not 
recommended.  The Regions have agreed to honor the FY 2015 preliminary program of 
projects. 
 
MAP-21 made a number of significant changes to transit funding.  Under SAFETEA-LU the 
FTA Section 5309 program utilized “earmarks” for distributing bus and facility capital funds.    
Colorado, through the Colorado Transit Coalition, submitted one 5309 application for the 
state’s bus and facility needs, and did very well in the “earmark” system ($8-13M/year in 
recent years). MAP-21 replaced this program with Section 5339, Bus and Bus Facilities, and 
now distributes funds to states on a formula basis. The MAP-21 Section 5339 program 
allocates Colorado $2.1 Million to Colorado by formula for small urban and rural transit 
systems; the three large urbanized areas each receive their own formula funding, totaling 
$2.7M.  The resulting funding gap at the local level has caused a reassessment of the best 
utilization of FASTER Transit Local funds, and how best to ensure safe and reliable bus 
fleets.  The PD 14 category, Transit Asset Condition, emphasizes this priority. 
 
Regional transit connectivity is also a needed element in the statewide transit 
system/network.  The development of the Statewide Transit Plan (on-going) is getting 
consistent feedback that more interregional and regional transit services are needed.  The 
TBD Colorado effort of 2012 also received similar input around the state which led to a TBD 
recommendation: “The state should play an enhanced role in helping to catalyze and secure 
funding for transit projects, such as interregional bus service”.  In addition, during the 
Interregional Express Bus plan development, the supporting local transit entities stressed the 
need for operating assistance for local entities that provide regional service; without such 
operating assistance the ability to provide needed regional service at the local level likely will 
be infeasible. The PD 14 category, Transit Connectivity, emphasizes this priority. 
 
These considerations prompted the evaluation of the FASTER Transit program, and whether 
a redistribution of funds could help to better meet the PD 14 performance objectives.  The 

05 T&I Committee: Page 4 of 18



 

 

proposed guiding principles listed above have been developed, and are proposed to guide 
staff and the TRAC Sub-Committee in re-structuring the distribution of FASTER Transit 
funds beginning in FY 2016.  . 
 
Details   
The immediate need is to finalize the FY 2015 FASTER Transit projects; the recommended 
projects for both Local and Statewide are listed in the attachment at the end of this memo.  
The FY 2015 project recommendations honors the FY 2014-2015 two-year planning cycle, 
and incorporates the Regional distribution formulas from that time.  A revised system will be 
developed over the course of the winter for use starting in FY 2016. 
 
The FY 2015/16 call for “capital” projects was a combined call for both FASTER (Local and 
Statewide) and the FTA capital programs (Sections 5310, 5311 and 5339).  Assessing and 
programming all capital requests in one batch is a more comprehensive approach to capital 
funding.  In total, for FY 2015 $18.78M in capital funding is available: 

• $5.0M – FASTER Local pool 
• $6.0 M – FASTER Statewide pool (note: Total Statewide pool is $9.0M with $3.0M 

allocated to Interregional Express Bus program.) 
• $1.38 M – FTA Section 5310 
• $4.3 M – FTA Section 5311 
• $2.1M -  FTA Section 5339 

 
For FY 2015 109 applications were received from 46 transit entities, totaling $50.6M.  The 
attached tables represent the FY 2015 FASTER project recommendations; FY 2016 was 
portrayed as a planning exercise to prepare for the revised FASTER distribution model.  The 
FTA capital project awards have tentatively been assigned, and will be finalized and 
announced once funding becomes available through the federal FY 2014 cycle. 
 
Key Benefits  
Beginning in 2016, achieve a better utilization of the FASTER Transit funds, alignment with 
the PD 14 performance objectives and coordination with the award of FTA capital funds. 
 
Next Steps 
It is recommended that the Transportation Commission approve the FY 2015 FASTER 
Transit projects in February 2014. 
 
A revised distribution program will be developed over the winter using the guiding principles 
listed above (updated to include T&I Committee input as appropriate) for use in distributing 
FY 2016 FASTER Transit funds.  Recommendations will be brought to the Transportation 
Commission for approval by July 2014 
 
 
 
  

05 T&I Committee: Page 5 of 18



 

 

Table A: Projects Recommended for FY15 FASTER Transit Statewide Funding,  1/3/2014    

      
Applicant (agency rank if 
more than one application) Project FY15 request 

FY15 
Preliminary 
Awards (a) 

FY 15 
Additional 
Awards (b) 

FY15 
recommended 

award 
NFRMPO (c*) Vanpool replacement vehicles (36) $64,000 $64,000   $64,000 
RTD 2 Thornton Park-n-Ride Expansion $997,404 $997,404   $997,404 
Mountain Metro 2 Vanpool Vehicle Replacements (9) $216,000 $216,000   $216,000 
DTR Service Development Plan for North Front Range Commuter Rail $95,100 $95,100   $95,100 
Superior/Louisville DDI Transit Improvements $463,610 $463,610   $463,610 
Aspen 1 Rubey Park Transit Center Redevelopment $1,000,000 $1,000,000   $1,000,000 
Thornton SH 7 at I-25 Carpool Lot $521,988 $521,988   $521,988 
City of Greeley Greeley Evans Transit Regional Transfer Facility  (d) $1,509,920 $0 $1,176,035 $1,176,035 
RTD 6 Church Ranch P-n-R Boarding Platforms Relocation $2,604,781 $0 $1,031,978 $1,265,863 
City of Fort Collins Preventative Maintenance for FLEX $200,000 $0 $200,000 $200,000 

 
Totals $4,314,701 $3,358,102 $2,408,013 $6,000,000 

      NOTES: 
     (a):  FY15 Preliminary Awards were made in February 2013 

   (b):  FY 15 Additional Awards are recommended based on consolidated call for capital projects issued 10/18/13 
and utilizing funds not committed in February 2013  

   
(c*):  Denotes funds that will be used to match federal grant funds 

   (d):  Remainder of City of Greeley project funded from FASTER Local (Table B) 
   

05 T&I Committee: Page 6 of 18



 

 

Table B: Projects Recommended for FY15 FASTER Transit Local Funding, 1/3/2014

Applicant  (agency rank) Project FY15 request
FY15 preliminary 

award (a)
FY15 Additional 

Awards (b)

FY 15 
Recommended 

Awards

Region 1: $2,535,750 available 

Breckenridge 2 Replacement buses (2) $637,500 $450,000 $0 $450,000

Douglas County Replacement Vehicles to be Leased to private operator (4) $0  (c*) $48,000 $0 $48,000

Seniors' Resource Center 2 (d) Replacement Vehicles (4) $24,720 $24,000 $0 $24,000
Summity County 2 Bicycle Racks $0  (c*) $13,405 $0 $13,405
Arvada 2 Olde Town Arvada Bus Transfer Facility phase 2 $1,338,521 $1,338,521 $0 $1,338,521
RTD 1 Civic Center Station Phase II $594,879 $594,879 $0 $594,879
Seniors' Resource Center 1 (d) Vehicle Replacements - SRC Urban and A-Lift (8) $48,000 $48,000 $0 $48,000

$2,643,620 $2,516,805 $0 $2,516,805

Region 2 $765,500 available
Mountain Metro 4 Fixed Routed Vehicle Replacment (4) $1,216,000 $765,000 $0 $765,000

$1,216,000 $765,000 $0 $765,000

Region 3  $608,250 available 
Allpoints 1 (d) Replacement Buses (7) $46,883 $46,883 $0 $46,883
Crested Butte 3 Replacement 38 foot bus #28 $132,000 $132,000 $0 $132,000
Eagle County Cutaway Replacement (3) $0  (c*) $50,000 $0 $50,000
Mesa County 1 (d) Grand Valley Transit bus replacement (7) $521,737 $239,367 $0 $239,367
Snowmass 2 Light-Duty Medium-Sized Cutaway Vans (4) $100,000 $40,000 $0 $40,000
Town of Avon Bus Replacements (3) $656,000 $100,000 $0 $100,000

$1,456,620 $608,250 $0 $608,250

Region 4  $830,050 available 
Boulder 2 Boulder Transit Stop Enhancements $54,800 $54,800 $0 $54,800
Fort Collins 2 Implementation of Network Management System $120,000 $120,000 $0 $120,000
Greeley 3  (d) Fixed Route Service Vehicle Replacements (3) $179,478 $179,478 $0 $179,478
Greeley 4  (d) Paratransit/Demand Response Vehicle Replacements (4) $47,099 $47,099 $0 $47,099
NECALG Vehicle Replacement $94,788 0 $94,788 $94,788
City of Greeley Greeley Evans Transit Regional Transfer Facility (e) $1,509,920 0 $333,885 $333,885

$2,006,085 $401,377 $428,673 $830,050

Region 5  $260,450 available 
Durango 2 Type I vehicle replacement $0  (c*) 64,000 0 64,000
SUCAP 1 (d) Road Runner Transit Fixed Route Bus Repl.  (3) $11,200 11,200 0 11,200

Town of Mountain Village 1
Gondola - Main Drives and Motors  End-of-Service-Life 
Replacement 

$466,000 176,741 0 176,741

$477,200 $251,941 $0 $251,941
NOTES:

(d):  Denotes funds that will be used to match federal grant funds

(a):  FY15 Preliminary Awards were made in February 2013

(b): FY 15 Additional Awards are recommended based on consolidated call for capital projects issued 10/18/13 
and utilizing funds not committed in February 2013 

(c*):  Requests shown as $0 were requested for 2014 but deferred to FY15 due to lack of available funding in FY14 

(e):  Remainder of City of Greeley project funded from FASTER Statewide  (Table A)

05 T&I Committee: Page 7 of 18



 

 

 

Table C: Key Factors in the Evaluation of Proposed Projects Not Recommended for Full FY15 FASTER Statewide Transit Funding

Applicant Project FY15 request

FY 15 
Recommended 
Award Key Factors

RTD 6
Church Ranch P-n-R Boarding 
Platforms Relocation $2,604,781 $1,031,978

Blackhills Stage Lines Vehicle Replacement (1) $448,800 $0

Burlington Trailways Vehicle Replacement (1) $497,970 $0

Colorado State University
University Station MAX/BRT Bike 
Shelter and Wayfinding $115,709 $0

Vride Public/Private Vanpool Partnership $289,075 $0
No local match proposed; DTR essentially asked to sponsor the project but is not prepared to do so; needs 
further review; expansion project

Route might be profitable enough for private funding; will be considered for FTA funding; DTR would have to sponsor, as 
FASTER cannot be awarded to a for-profit entity

Route might be profitable enough for private funding; DTR would have to sponsor and lease bus, as FASTER cannot be 
awarded to a for-profit entity; will be considered for FTA funding

Partial award - large request relative to amount of funding available; consider additonal funding if any other funds are 
returned

Considered a lower priority overall, especially as an expansion; unsure of impact on transit ridership; unsure of how many 
bike securements used by transit riders as opposed to general student population

05 T&I Committee: Page 8 of 18



TRANSIT & 
INTERMODAL 
COMMITTEE

JANUARY 16, 2014

M A R K  I M H O F F ,  D T R  D I R E C T O R

FASTER Transit Redistribution

FASTER Transit Redistribution

SB 09-108 Funding Advancement for Surface 
Transportation and Economic Recovery 

(FASTER)

 $5M/year – Local Transit Projects

 $10M/year – Statewide, Interregional, Regional 
Transit Projects

 5 year History
 FY 2010-2012

 FY 2013

 FY 2014 (current fiscal year)

05 T&I Committee: Page 9 of 18



FASTER Transit Redistribution

Project Award Practice
 $5M Local Pool
 Competitive at the Region Level
 Formula Based Distribution to Engineering Regions
 Regions with MPO/TPRs make award recommendations

 $10M Statewide Pool
 Competitive at a statewide level

 FY 2014/15 cycle
 Two year cycle to allow better planning
 FY 2014 project awards – TC approval February 2013
 FY 2015 “preliminary” awards

FASTER Transit Redistribution

FY 2015 Award Process
 Combined Capital Call-for-Projects

 FASTER Local & Statewide pools
 FTA capital programs
 Comprehensive assessment and programming

 Total capital pool - $18.78M
 FASTER - $5.0M Local/$6.0M Statewide

 Excludes $3.0M allocated to IX Bus
 FTA - $7.78M Capital programs
 109 applications/46 transit entities

 Totaling $50.6M

 FY 2015 FASTER project recommendations
 Tables in TC packet
 Honor FY 2015 “preliminary” awards from FY 2014

 Regions have agreed
 Projects added through competitive process

 FTA capital awards
 Finalized when funding becomes available

05 T&I Committee: Page 10 of 18



FASTER Transit Redistribution

Guiding Principles
 Transit Utilization
 Fund highest priority projects

 Transit Asset Condition – Local Pool
 Utilize capital inventory (on-going)
 Focus on vehicle replacement program

 Transit Connectivity – Statewide Pool
 Interregional Express Bus – annual allocation
 Encourage locally provided regional service

 Consider operating assistance

 Streamline distribution process

FASTER Transit Redistribution

Recommendations

 Approve FY 2015 FASTER projects
 Honor/”grandfather” FY 2015 projects (FY 2014 process)

 Establish guiding principles for future years 
 FY 2016 implementation

 Emphasize PD 14 Transit Performance Objectives

 Support FY 2016 redistribution development
 TRAC Sub-Committee participation

 Completed for TC approval by July 2014

05 T&I Committee: Page 11 of 18



STATE OF COLORADO 
 

 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
 
 
 
 

 “Taking Care To Get You There” 1
  

 
DATE: January 3, 2013 
 
TO:  Transportation Commission/Transit & Intermodal Committee 
 
FROM: Mark Imhoff, Director, Division of Transit & Rail 
 
SUBJECT: Colorado High Speed Transit: Findings/ Conclusions from the AGS and ICS Studies 
 

 
Purpose 
The purpose of this memo is to give the Transit & Intermodal Committee a status of the 
Interregional Connectivity Study (ICS) and the I-70 Advanced Guideway System (AGS) 
Feasibility Study, and a preview of the integration and completion schedule. 
 
Action Requested 
This memo is for information only; no action. 
 
Executive Summary  
Both studies together form a long term vision for a high speed transit (HST) system in 
Colorado.  
 
Background 
CDOT completed its first State Passenger & Freight Rail Plan in Spring 2012.  Two 
companion studies were undertaken to supplement the passenger transit element of the Plan. 
 
The Interregional Connectivity Study (ICS) received a Federal Railroad Administration 
(FRA) planning grant to evaluate technologies, alignments and financial/funding options for 
potential high speed rail along the Front Range from Fort Collins to Pueblo, and the 
“connectivity” with RTD’s FasTracks system in the Denver metro area. 
 
The I-70 Advanced Guideway System (AGS) Feasibility Study is a follow-on element of the 
I-70 Mountain Corridor Programmatic Environmental Impact Study (PEIS).  The AGS 
evaluates high speed transit options between Eagle County Regional Airport and DIA.  Like 
the front-range ICS, the AGS Feasibility Study also evaluates technologies, alignments, and 
financial funding options. The study is strongly coordinated with the ICS to provide an 
integrated statewide answer on high speed transit options. 
 
Together the findings and recommendations of the ICS and AGS will serve as the foundation 
of the state high speed transit network vision, and will be used to update the State Passenger 
& Freight Rail Plan.  
 
 

05 T&I Committee: Page 12 of 18



 

 “Taking Care To Get You There” 2
  

 
Details   
By 2040, the population between Fort Collins and Pueblo is predicted to grow from 4 million 
today, to 6 million. In rough scale, that is as much developed land area as exists within 
Denver’s C-470/E-470 beltway today, or about three more metropolitan areas the size of 
Colorado Springs (2012 Est. Pop: 668,353). High speed transit is one of many possible 
transportation investments that could be made to serve current and future travel needs of 
Colorado. In many parts of the world, high speed transit offers a solution to congested 
highways and congested airports. It can be part of a comprehensive approach to providing a 
high quality of life by maintaining good air quality; delivering business, recreation, and 
tourist transportation, and efficiently connecting urban areas. 
 
High speed transit would offer travel options between destinations 20-100 miles apart, at 
speeds twice that of automobiles or bus systems.  By Federal Railroad Administration 
definitions, high speed inter-city transit technologies are those traveling 90 mph or faster, up 
to 220 mph.  
 
The ICS confirmed commercially available technologies and engineering techniques make 
high speed rail a feasible technology along the Front Range.  For the I-70 Mountain Corridor, 
the AGS study considered existing and emerging technologies against a wide range of 
alignment options.  In the Mountain Corridor, high speed rail would require approximately 
60% of its alignment in tunnels to effectively respond to curves and hills; magnetic 
Levitation (maglev) and/or technologies with similar magnetic motors (linear synchronous or 
linear induction motors) are capable of climbing the I-70 steep grades at high speeds and 
reducing the need for tunnels by one-third to two-thirds.  Fully-electrified double-
track/guideway high speed transit, capable of speeds in excess of 150 mph, is estimated to 
average $75 million per mile on the Front Range I-25 Corridor (rail) and maglev technology 
on the I-70 Mountain Corridor $105 million per mile. 
 
The high speed transit vision connects Fort Collins on the north, through the Denver metro 
area via DIA, to Pueblo on the south; and Eagle County Airport on the west to DIA.  The 340 
mile vision network is estimated at a capital cost of $30.1 Billion (2013 dollars), $198 
Million per year to operate, and carry 18.3 Million riders per year in 2035.  The most 
effective phasing of the system would begin along the Front Range. 
 
There are no identified funding sources at this time for any element of the HST vision.  
Federal funding will be required, as will a new state/local revenue stream.  The I-70 
Mountain Corridor PEIS required an assessment of AGS financial feasibility by 2025.  It is 
determined that AGS is not financially feasible at this time. If funding streams become 
available between now and 2025, this determination may change. 
 
As the integration of the ICS and AGS efforts come to a close this winter, a priority HST 
corridor or project will be identified for federal funding pursuit.  A goal is to have the priority 
corridor “pipeline ready” for further advancement through the federal process over the 
coming years. 
 

05 T&I Committee: Page 13 of 18



 

 “Taking Care To Get You There” 3
  

Key Benefits  
Updating Colorado’s State Freight & Passenger Rail Plan with these findings will keep 
Colorado eligible for future federal funding should Colorado pursue high speed transit. 
 
Next Steps  

• Combine the studies and system integration into a long term high speed transit vision. 
• Transportation Commission Workshop in February or March. 
• Update the State Freight & Passenger Rail Plan with these findings, and at least once 

every five years to maintain FRA eligibility. 
• Identify a priority corridor or project for further advancement through the federal 

process, and pursue subsequent, more detailed studies as warranted. 
• Request inclusion of the HST vision in the fiscally unconstrained Regional 

Transportation Plans for NFRMPO, DRCOG, PPACG, PACOG, and the 
Intermountain TPR. 

 
 
 
 

05 T&I Committee: Page 14 of 18



January 3, 2014

AGS/ICS Briefing
Findings and Conclusions

What Are the AGS & ICS Studies?

2

Purpose:
 The purpose of  the AGS & ICS projects are to provide Colorado with 

a well supported modal option for the State’s transportation network 
that connects communities and destinations for interregional business 
and tourism travel; builds on and strengthens Colorado’s existing 
transportation infrastructure; supports the  State’s Vision, as 
articulated in the ‘State Rail Plan’; and offers statewide social, 
environmental, and economic benefits that are greater than the capital 
and operating costs of its implementation. 

Needs:
 Address the mobility demands of future population growth.

 Improve mobility through provision of a travel option.

 Enhance economic development through improved connectivity.

 Improve the State’s environmental quality and energy efficiency. 

 Provide economic benefits sufficient to receive new funding sources.

05 T&I Committee: Page 15 of 18



What is High Speed Transit?

3

Public and community interest /enthusiasm throughout service area

Speed and convenience induce ridership
 Faster than driving

 One-seat ride best/minimal transfers next

DIA major origin/destination

RTD FasTracks interface/“Connectivity”
 Avoid redundancy

 Beltway around Denver metro area

 Transfer stations at FasTracks rail corridors

 Shared track to CBD/DUS possible (rail, not high speed)

HST Study Findings

4

05 T&I Committee: Page 16 of 18



HSR not compatible with Railroads for shared track
 No available RR capacity/extensive single track sections
 Slow speed & operating constraints

Greenfield alignments preferred
Viable Technologies (in commercial operation)
 High speed rail (HSR) – steel wheel on steel rail
 High speed magnetic levitation (maglev) 
 Other emerging linear induction technologies possible over time

Capital costs 
 HSR - $75 Million/mile
 Maglev - $105 Million/mile
 Mountain terrain requires 20-60% tunnels

• Maglev more cost effective

AGS not financially feasible at this time

HST Study Findings, continued

5

Vision for HST is feasible, long term

 Calculated benefits outweigh costs

No funding sources identified

 Federal funding is a must to implement HST in Colorado

 Evaluate local match for 16 counties within service area, rather than statewide

 P3 Concession will require significant federal and state/municipal investment (“local match”)

Additional agreements and studies needed to further Vision

 No funding identified

Overall Conclusions

6

05 T&I Committee: Page 17 of 18



North:
 North Suburban 

to Fort Collins
Metro: 
 West Suburban 

to DIA via C-
470, I-76 or 
NWQ

 North to South 
Suburban via E-
470

South: 
 South Suburban 

to Pueblo
West:
 West Suburban 

to Eagle County 
Regional Airport

7

 Total Mileage – 340

 Capital Cost - ~$30.1 B

 OPEX - $198.4 M/yr

 Ridership - 18.3 M

 Revenue - $344 M

 OPEX Ratio - 1.7

Scenario Description Measure

HST Vision forms the basis…

Study completion and integration

TC Workshop in February or March

Identify priority corridor(s) or project

 Federal “Pipeline” ready

Update State Freight & Passenger Rail Plan

 Required for federal funding eligibility

Request Inclusion in fiscally-unconstrained Regional Transportation Plans

 NFRMPO, DRCOG, PPACG, PACOG, Intermountain TPR – 2040 Plans

 Required for federal funding eligibility

Next Steps

8

05 T&I Committee: Page 18 of 18



  

 MEMORANDUM 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
Division of Transportation Development 
4201 East Arkansas Avenue 
Denver, Colorado  80222 
(303) 757-9011 
 

 

DATE: January 3, 2014  

 

TO: Transportation Commission   
 

FROM:  Debra Perkins-Smith, Director, Division of Transportation Development 

 Scott Richrath, Chief Financial Officer, Division of Accounting and Finance 

  

SUBJECT: Program Distribution for the Statewide Plan (SWP) and the Statewide 

Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) 
 

 
Purpose: Based on input from the December Commission discussion on Program Distribution, 

present alternatives for assignment of funds to programs. Obtain direction on a scenario for 

Commission adoption in February for use in SWP and STIP development.  

 

Action Requested: Direction on Program Distribution scenario to present for Commission 

adoption in February. 

 

Executive Summary: Based on November commission workshop discussions, staff assigned the 

funds that will be available based on the reduction/retirement of debt service payments on the 

Transbonds to the asset management category. At the December Commission workshop, staff 

was directed to assign available funds to the PD 14 objectives for Maintenance, Surface 

Treatment and Bridge first and then consider other categories. The current policy direction can 

be summarized as follows:  

 

Policy Direction: 

1. Direct funds available from Transbond debt  service retirement to Asset Management 

2. Fund PD 14 objectives for Maintenance, Surface Treatment and Bridge first and then 

identify options for any remaining funds. 

3. Provide for Transportation Commission flexibility to meet future needs 

 

Attachment A shows the FY 15 baseline and a scenario that funds asset management with 

Transbond retirement funds first and then other variance funds as needed to meet PD 14 

objectives for Maintenance, Surface Treatment and Bridge (note that there are remaining debt 

service funds in years 2018-2020 but then other variance funds are needed for asset management 

starting in 2021).  

 

Background: Information on state and federal requirements for the Plan were included in the 

December packet to Commission along with the explanation of the assumptions in the FY 15 

 



baseline scenario (SWP committee pages 1-31). Program Distribution is for fiscal years 2016-

2040 with emphasis on the first 10 years of 2016-2025.  

 

Program Distribution is a part of the Statewide Plan and outlines the assignment of projected 

revenues to various program areas for the time period of the Statewide Plan (FY 2016-FY 2040).  

Program Distribution also identifies the program fund levels that will be used in developing the 

next Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (STIP), which begins with FY 2016.  

Revenues for Program Distribution are based on the Baseline Revenue Projection for the 2040 

Statewide Plan adopted by the TC on April 18, 2013.  In the FY 15 Baseline, federal revenues 

peak in 2025 and decline each year following. SB 228 revenue is projected in years 2016-2020. 

Based on the adopted revenue projections, a positive variance exists only in years 2017 to 2024.  

 

Program Distribution reflects Commission policy by assigning funding levels to categories. The 

assignments illustrate for our planning partners and the public the intended emphasis areas given 

projected revenue expectations.  

 

In order to assign remaining funds (debt service and variance), questions to be addressed are as 

follows:  

 

Policy Questions: 

 

1. Do you want to emphasize asset management? i.e. assign some or all of available funds 

to asset management? (System Preservation/Maintain) 

2. Do you want to emphasize system performance? i.e. assign some or all of available funds 

to TSM&O? (Maximize) 

3. Do you want to emphasize flexibility? i.e. assign some or all of available funds to TC 

contingency to meet needs identified in the future.   

 

Next Steps: SWP committee recommendation on assignment of available funds. Based on 

direction, staff will prepare a fiscally constrained Program Distribution for Commission adoption 

in February that will be used for Statewide Plan and Statewide Transportation Improvement 

Program (STIP) development.  



FY 2026-2040 TOTAL

Line Directed By DRAFT FY 15 Budget FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 -2040 FY 2016 - 2040
1 Asset Management  $              476,396,343  $      475,896,343  $      514,896,343 $      642,896,343 $      642,896,343 $      642,896,343 $      642,896,343 $      642,896,343  $      642,896,343  $      642,896,343 $      642,896,343 $   9,643,445,145 $ 15,777,408,575 
2 Maintenance TC  $              251,300,000  $      251,300,000  $      251,300,000 $      251,300,000 $      251,300,000 $      251,300,000 $      251,300,000 $      251,300,000  $      251,300,000  $      251,300,000 $      251,300,000 $   3,769,500,000 $   6,282,500,000 
3 Surface Treatment TC  $              149,500,000  $      149,500,000  $      149,500,000 $      149,500,000 $      149,500,000 $      149,500,000 $      149,500,000 $      149,500,000  $      149,500,000  $      149,500,000 $      149,500,000 $   2,242,500,000 $   3,737,500,000 
4 Structures On-System TC  $                30,700,000  $        30,200,000  $        30,200,000 $        30,200,000 $        30,200,000 $        30,200,000 $        30,200,000 $        30,200,000  $        30,200,000  $        30,200,000 $        30,200,000 $      453,000,000 $      755,000,000 
5 Rockfall Mitigation TC  $                  5,100,000  $          5,100,000  $          5,100,000 $          5,100,000 $          5,100,000 $          5,100,000 $          5,100,000 $          5,100,000  $          5,100,000  $          5,100,000 $          5,100,000 $        76,500,000 $      127,500,000 
6 Capital Expenditure (Road Equip/Property) TC  $                24,996,343  $        24,996,343  $        24,996,343 $        24,996,343 $        24,996,343 $        24,996,343 $        24,996,343 $        24,996,343  $        24,996,343  $        24,996,343 $        24,996,343 $      374,945,145 $      624,908,575 
7 TSM&O: ITS Maintenance TC  $                14,800,000  $        14,800,000  $        14,800,000 $        14,800,000 $        14,800,000 $        14,800,000 $        14,800,000 $        14,800,000  $        14,800,000  $        14,800,000 $        14,800,000 $      222,000,000 $      370,000,000 
8 Asset Management- To Be Assigned by TC TC  $                               -    $                      -    $        39,000,000 $      167,000,000 $      167,000,000 $      167,000,000 $      167,000,000 $      167,000,000  $      167,000,000  $      167,000,000 $      167,000,000 $   2,505,000,000 $   3,880,000,000 
9 Other TC Directed Programs (Flexible)  $              105,685,257  $        99,056,081  $        99,056,081 $        99,056,081 $        99,056,081 $        99,056,081 $        99,056,081 $        99,056,081  $        99,056,081  $        99,056,081 $        99,056,081 $   1,485,841,215 $   2,476,402,025 

10 Hot Spots TC  $                  2,167,154  $          2,167,154  $          2,167,154 $          2,167,154 $          2,167,154 $          2,167,154 $          2,167,154 $          2,167,154  $          2,167,154  $          2,167,154 $          2,167,154 $        32,507,310 $        54,178,850 
11 Traffic Signals TC  $                  1,472,823  $          1,472,823  $          1,472,823 $          1,472,823 $          1,472,823 $          1,472,823 $          1,472,823 $          1,472,823  $          1,472,823  $          1,472,823 $          1,472,823 $        22,092,345 $        36,820,575 
12 TSM&O: Performance Programs and Services TC  $                  7,236,795  $             607,619  $             607,619 $             607,619 $             607,619 $             607,619 $             607,619 $             607,619  $             607,619  $             607,619 $             607,619 $          9,114,285 $        15,190,475 
13 TSM&O: Congestion Relief TC  $                  4,000,000  $          4,000,000  $          4,000,000 $          4,000,000 $          4,000,000 $          4,000,000 $          4,000,000 $          4,000,000  $          4,000,000  $          4,000,000 $          4,000,000 $        60,000,000 $      100,000,000 
14 Regional Priority Program TC  $                50,000,000  $        50,000,000  $        50,000,000 $        50,000,000 $        50,000,000 $        50,000,000 $        50,000,000 $        50,000,000  $        50,000,000  $        50,000,000 $        50,000,000 $      750,000,000 $   1,250,000,000 
15 Capital Expenditure (ITS Investments) TC  $                10,000,000  $        10,000,000  $        10,000,000 $        10,000,000 $        10,000,000 $        10,000,000 $        10,000,000 $        10,000,000  $        10,000,000  $        10,000,000 $        10,000,000 $      150,000,000 $      250,000,000 
16 Contingency TC  $                30,808,485  $        30,808,485  $        30,808,485 $        30,808,485 $        30,808,485 $        30,808,485 $        30,808,485 $        30,808,485  $        30,808,485  $        30,808,485 $        30,808,485 $      462,127,275 $      770,212,125 
17 Restricted Programs  $              534,178,348  $      710,888,063  $      679,060,070 $      556,837,153 $      564,283,626 $      568,935,838 $      414,870,928 $      417,679,404  $      419,167,919  $      424,026,541 $      428,803,857 $   6,628,695,037 $ 11,813,248,435 
18 TOTAL  $           1,116,259,948  $   1,285,840,487  $   1,293,012,494 $   1,298,789,577 $   1,306,236,050 $   1,310,888,262 $   1,156,823,352 $   1,159,631,828  $   1,161,120,343  $   1,165,978,965 $   1,170,756,281 $ 17,757,981,397 $ 30,067,059,035 
19 Revenue  $           1,116,259,948  $   1,282,534,976  $   1,296,908,991 $   1,309,386,352 $   1,322,319,462 $   1,332,309,447 $   1,179,616,919 $   1,185,134,453  $   1,190,576,641  $   1,198,760,288 $   1,206,460,729 $ 17,892,259,440 $ 30,396,267,698 
20 Variance  $                               -    $        (3,305,511)  $          3,896,497 $        10,596,775 $        16,083,412 $        21,421,186 $        22,793,567 $        25,502,625  $        29,456,298  $        32,781,323 $        35,704,448 $      134,278,043 $      329,208,663 

FY 2026-2040 TOTAL

Line Directed By DRAFT FY 15 Budget FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 -2040 FY 2016 - 2040
1 Asset Management  $              476,396,343  $      483,435,343  $      514,896,343 $      642,896,343 $      642,896,343 $      642,896,343 $      644,961,685 $      653,963,645  $      663,235,664  $      672,785,844 $      678,600,791 $   9,777,723,189 $ 16,018,291,534 
2 Maintenance TC  $              251,300,000  $      258,839,000  $      266,604,170 $      274,602,295 $      282,840,364 $      291,325,575 $      300,065,342 $      309,067,302  $      318,339,321  $      327,889,501 $      337,726,186 $   5,065,892,792 $   8,033,191,849 
3 Surface Treatment TC  $              149,500,000  $      149,500,000  $      155,900,000 $      240,000,000 $      240,000,000 $      240,000,000 $      240,000,000 $      240,000,000  $      240,000,000  $      240,000,000 $      240,000,000 $   3,507,968,612 $   5,733,368,612 
4 Structures On-System TC  $                30,700,000  $        30,200,000  $        47,495,830 $        60,000,000 $        60,000,000 $        60,000,000 $        60,000,000 $        60,000,000  $        60,000,000  $        60,000,000 $        55,978,262 $      530,416,640 $   1,084,090,732 
5 Rockfall Mitigation TC  $                  5,100,000  $          5,100,000  $          5,100,000 $          5,100,000 $          5,100,000 $          5,100,000 $          5,100,000 $          5,100,000  $          5,100,000  $          5,100,000 $          5,100,000 $        76,500,000 $      127,500,000 
6 Capital Expenditure (Road Equip/Property) TC  $                24,996,343  $        24,996,343  $        24,996,343 $        24,996,343 $        24,996,343 $        24,996,343 $        24,996,343 $        24,996,343  $        24,996,343  $        24,996,343 $        24,996,343 $      374,945,145 $      624,908,575 
7 TSM&O: ITS Maintenance TC  $                14,800,000  $        14,800,000  $        14,800,000 $        14,800,000 $        14,800,000 $        14,800,000 $        14,800,000 $        14,800,000  $        14,800,000  $        14,800,000 $        14,800,000 $      222,000,000 $      370,000,000 
8 Asset Management- To Be Assigned by TC TC  $                               -    $                      -    $                      -   $        23,397,705 $        15,159,636 $          6,674,425 $                      -   $                      -    $                      -    $                      -   $                      -   $                      -   $        45,231,766 
9 Other TC Directed Programs (Flexible)  $              105,685,257  $        99,056,081  $        99,056,081 $        99,056,081 $        99,056,081 $        99,056,081 $        99,056,081 $        99,056,081  $        99,056,081  $        99,056,081 $        99,056,081 $   1,485,841,215 $   2,476,402,025 

10 Hot Spots TC  $                  2,167,154  $          2,167,154  $          2,167,154 $          2,167,154 $          2,167,154 $          2,167,154 $          2,167,154 $          2,167,154  $          2,167,154  $          2,167,154 $          2,167,154 $        32,507,310 $        54,178,850 
11 Traffic Signals TC  $                  1,472,823  $          1,472,823  $          1,472,823 $          1,472,823 $          1,472,823 $          1,472,823 $          1,472,823 $          1,472,823  $          1,472,823  $          1,472,823 $          1,472,823 $        22,092,345 $        36,820,575 
12 TSM&O: Performance Programs and Services TC  $                  7,236,795  $             607,619  $             607,619 $             607,619 $             607,619 $             607,619 $             607,619 $             607,619  $             607,619  $             607,619 $             607,619 $          9,114,285 $        15,190,475 
13 TSM&O: Congestion Relief TC  $                  4,000,000  $          4,000,000  $          4,000,000 $          4,000,000 $          4,000,000 $          4,000,000 $          4,000,000 $          4,000,000  $          4,000,000  $          4,000,000 $          4,000,000 $        60,000,000 $      100,000,000 
14 Regional Priority Program TC  $                50,000,000  $        50,000,000  $        50,000,000 $        50,000,000 $        50,000,000 $        50,000,000 $        50,000,000 $        50,000,000  $        50,000,000  $        50,000,000 $        50,000,000 $      750,000,000 $   1,250,000,000 
15 Capital Expenditure (ITS Investments) TC  $                10,000,000  $        10,000,000  $        10,000,000 $        10,000,000 $        10,000,000 $        10,000,000 $        10,000,000 $        10,000,000  $        10,000,000  $        10,000,000 $        10,000,000 $      150,000,000 $      250,000,000 
16 Contingency TC  $                30,808,485  $        30,808,485  $        30,808,485 $        30,808,485 $        30,808,485 $        30,808,485 $        30,808,485 $        30,808,485  $        30,808,485  $        30,808,485 $        30,808,485 $      462,127,275 $      770,212,125 
17 Restricted Programs  $              534,178,348  $      710,888,063  $      679,060,070 $      556,837,153 $      564,283,626 $      568,935,838 $      414,870,928 $      417,679,404  $      419,167,919  $      424,026,541 $      428,803,857 $   6,628,695,037 $ 11,813,248,435 
18 TOTAL  $           1,116,259,948  $   1,293,379,487  $   1,293,012,494 $   1,298,789,577 $   1,306,236,050 $   1,310,888,261 $   1,158,888,694 $   1,170,699,130  $   1,181,459,664  $   1,195,868,466 $   1,206,460,729 $ 17,892,259,441 $ 30,307,941,994 
19 Revenue  $           1,116,259,948  $   1,282,534,976  $   1,296,908,991 $   1,309,386,352 $   1,322,319,462 $   1,332,309,447 $   1,179,616,919 $   1,185,134,453  $   1,190,576,641  $   1,198,760,288 $   1,206,460,729 $ 17,892,259,441 $ 30,396,267,699 
20 Variance  $                               -    $      (10,844,511)  $          3,896,497 $        10,596,775 $        16,083,412 $        21,421,186 $        20,728,225 $        14,435,323  $          9,116,977  $          2,891,822 $                      (0) $                      (0) $        88,325,704 

Assumptions/Notes
1) Allocations to Revenue based programs are based on projected revenues from the 2040 Revenue Projection adopted by the TC in April 2013.
2) Funds available from debt service retirement (TransBond) (~$39 M in FY 16, and $167 M annually thereafter) are assigned to Asset Management and appear on the Asset Management- To Be Assigned by TC line.
3) All other programs are fixed at FY 15 Budget levels (excluding FY 15 Decision Items for Structures and TSM&O: Performance Programs and Services.)

FY 2016-2025

PROGRAM DISTRIBUTION FY 2016 - 2040
1/9/2014

FY 15 BASELINE SCENARIO

4) Structures at $60 M for as long as possible. Program Distribution allocations in FY 16 and FY 17 are less than $60 M due to supplemental funding from RAMP.

6) Remaining variance left unassigned.
7) Starting in 2021 all TransBond used and other variance required to meet PD 14 goals.

2) Maintenance is increased 3% annually over the FY 15 base for years 2016-2025, and then remains flat until 2040.
3) Surface Treatment allocations are based on a total Surface Treatment level of $240 M. Program Distribution alIocations in FY 16 and FY 17 are less than $240 M due to supplemental funding from RAMP. Surface Treatment funded at $240 M for as long as possible. Assumes continued advancement of $86 M to support $240 M level of funding.

5) Remaining TransBond assigned to Asset Management- To Be Assigned by TC.

4) In aggregate, there is a surplus FY 2026-2040, but deficits appear in individual years (2037-2040).

FY 2016-2025

Assumptions/Notes
1) Allocations to Revenue based programs are based on projected revenues from the 2040 Revenue Projection adopted by the TC in April 2013.

SCENARIO 1: PD 14 GOALS AND TRANSBOND IN ASSET MANAGEMENT

Attachment A



TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION of COLORADO 
AUDIT REVIEW COMMITTEE 

This Agenda May Be Altered at the Chair’s Discretion 
 
* Those items marked with an asterisk will be presented to the committee. 

 
 

 
Commissioners Gary Reiff, Les Gruen, Ed Peterson, Bill Thiebaut, Sidny Zink  

 
Meeting Location:  CDOT Headquarters Building, Denver, Colorado 

 
All commissioners are welcome to attend. 

 
MEETING AGENDA: January 16, 2014 

 
1. Call to Order:  (Roll will be noted by the Secretary to the ARC) 

2. Approval of the Minutes of the Last ARC Meeting    Page 2 

3. Status Updates 

a. Action Items from October 17, 2013 meeting    Verbal 

b. Outstanding Audit Recommendations     Page 6 

c. FY14 Audit Plan         

i.   Audit Assignments       Page 7   

ii. Audit Work in Progress    

1. Review of CDOT Indirect Cost Rate   Page 7 

2. Consultant Indirect Cost Rates     Page 8 

3. *Flood Recovery     Page 8 

4. Disputes and Claims      Page 8 

5. Cognizant Audits      Page 8 

iii. Completed Audit Work Summaries       

1. Sanborn      Page 8 

2. DRCOG       Page 8 

iv. *Next Quarter Audit Schedule     Verbal   

d. *Hotline Incident Statistics      Page 10 

e. *Audit Metrics        Page 11 

4. *ARC Questions, Requests, Discussion Items 

a. Audit Plan Discussion 

i. Review of PY14        Page 12 

ii. Proposed Audit Plan for 2015     Page 13 

iii. Risk Assessment Questions       Page 14 

iv. Audit Definitions        Page 15 

b. Comments/Feedback on ARC Documents and Packet    Verbal 

ARC Page 1 07 Audit Review Committee: Page 1 of 17



Colorado Transportation Commission 
Audit Review Committee 

MEETING MINUTES 
October 17, 2013 

9:10 A.M. – 10:00 A.M. 
CDOT Headquarters Auditorium 

 
 
COMMISSIONERS PRESENT:  Gary Reiff, ARC Chairman, Les Gruen, Ed Peterson, Doug 

Aden, William Thiebaut, Sidny Zink, Kathleen Gilliland, and Heather Barry. 

ALSO PRESENT: Heidi Bimmerle, DoHRA Director; Barbara Gold, Audit Director; Scott 
Richrath, Chief Financial Officer; Gregg Miller, BPA; Samuel K. Nnuro, Auditor; Naomi 
Smith, Audit Manager; Gary Vansuch, Director of Process Improvement; Johnny Olson, 
RTD R4 

AND:   Other staff members, organization representatives, and the public.   

 
 
1. Call to Order 

ARC Chairman Gruen called the meeting to order on October 17, 2013, at 9:10 A.M.  
The meeting was held in the Auditorium at the Headquarters of the Colorado Department 
of Transportation.  Roll was noted by the Secretary to the ARC. 

 
2. Election of Chairman and New Members 

The presiding Commissioner Les Gruen made a motion to appoint Commissioner Gary 
Reiff as the Chairman of the Audit Review Committee (ARC).  Commissioner Ed 
Peterson seconded the motion, which was unanimously approved. The newly elected 
chairman introduced the new members of the ARC.    

 
3. Approval of Minutes of the Last ARC Meeting 

ARC Chairman Reiff asked for approval of the meeting minutes for July 18, 2013.  
Approval of the minutes was moved by Commissioner Aden, and seconded by 
Commissioner Thiebaut.  The minutes were adopted as published in the agenda.   

 
4. Action Item from July 18, 2013 Meeting 

Audit Director Barbara Gold provided an update on the action item listed on page 10 of 
the ARC packet when the Commissioner’s convened on July 18, 2013.  Currently, the 
Division is tracking the number of employees’ training hours and other traditional metrics 
measures such as the number of assignments completed. This will enable the Division to 
build and maintain the right team and develop the right skillsets. Throughout the metrics 
analysis we will be able to access skill levels and implement additional training to 
increase auditors’ expertise.  It will also help the Division to prioritize spending on 

ARC Page 2 07 Audit Review Committee: Page 2 of 17



 
 

 

 
 

training to maximize return on investment and ensure staff is supported in their 
development of key skills needed to perform their jobs.  
 

1. Audit Report Presentations  
A. Outstanding Audit Recommendation 

Audit Director Barbara Gold presented the Outstanding Audit Recommendations report.  
She stated that the Outstanding Audit Recommendations have been moving forward 
successfully.  It involved many individuals from the Senior Management Team (SMT).  
The charts in the report summarize the outstanding recommendations data.  The first 
graph on page five is the audit recommendations by area within the organization and the 
status of each recommendation.  Commissioner Thiebaut commented on the two 
outstanding recommendations regarding Federal Highway Administration historical 
clearance audit statuses. Director Gold explained what it means when a recommendation 
is noted as in progress status. It means the Audit Division has already met with the SMT 
member in charge of that particular area, who will be responsible for the implementation 
of that recommendation.  Debra Perkins-Smith, Director of Transportation Development 
explained that the historical clearance audit was done before her time as a division head, 
but the audit was about non-compliance with the Programmatic Agreement between 
CDOT and FHWA.  She stated that her division is currently working with the Audit 
Division to implement those recommendations. Chairman Reiff commented that Barbara 
and her group have been working really hard to implement all the outstanding 
recommendations. He asked Director Gold if there is any recommendation she would like 
to focus on or are all on schedule.  Ms. Gold responded that all the recommendations are 
on schedule.  

 
B. Audit Plan Update and 3rd Quarter Audit Schedule   

The Audit Director went through the audit work plan for the Fiscal Year 2014. She stated 
that the Audit Division will focus more on a risk based approach to auditing. Director 
Gold explained that it is a requirement of the Audit Division to present its plan to the 
Commissioners and get an approval each quarter. We also included a list of the various 
types of audit work and compliance audits that regulatory guidelines require us to 
complete.  The Division will also be conducting three external audits for our sub-
consultant to make sure they are in compliance with applicable rules and regulations. She 
noted that external audits in transportation are not the same as external audits conducted 
by CPA firms, with our external audits there is no financial opinion issued.  
Commissioner Sidny Zink asked if CDOT has a financial statement audit performed each 
year. Director Gold responded that a financial statement audit is completed each year by 
an external CPA firm.  This fiscal year we remain committed to building a strong, value 
added Audit team that collaborates with management to help them achieve CDOT’s 
objectives.  
 
C. Hotline Incidents 

Audit Director Gold provided an update on the CDOT Hotline. Ms. Gold explained the 
reason for the Hotline to the new Commissioners.  She stated that the hotline is designed 
to allow employees to anonymously report alleged instances of fraud or corruption, non-

ARC Page 3 07 Audit Review Committee: Page 3 of 17



 
 

 

 
 

compliance with policies/procedures/regulations, safety issues, misuse of CDOT assets 
and resources, mismanagement, neglect of duty and other areas of concern. The Hotline 
is operated 24/7 by a third-party vendor. The Hotline allegations are tracked, 
investigated, action taken and closed. Allegations involving safety have been the most 
prevalent this year. She mentioned that the Audit Division is working with Darrel Lingk 
to streamline the amount of calls.   The safety calls coming to the Division add a layer of 
delays to the process.  
 
D. NHI Training Announcement.  

Director Gold stated that the Colorado Department of Transportation’s Audit Division is 
proud to announce the hosting of NHI training relative to the AASHTO Audit Guide and 
FAR requirements during the week of November 4th through November 8th, 2013. She 
mentioned that the course is particularly suited for practitioners associated with 
procurement, audit, and the administration of Architectural and Engineering contracts.  
 
E. Flood Recovery 

Ms. Gold provided a brief update on the flood recovery. She stated that the Audit 
Division is working closely with Scott Richrath’s group to come up with proper 
procedures for the flood recovery initiative.  Ms. Gold mentioned that on September 23, 
2013, her Division held a conference call with the Vermont Department of Transportation 
CFO, Audit Chief, Accounting Manager, and Grant Manager to discuss the lessons 
learned from their experience with Hurricane Irene. They provided insight as to Audit’s 
role and the risks they experienced.  She mentioned that the Division will be playing the 
role of a consultant.  
 
F. Review of FASTER Safety Funds. 

Barbara Gold, Audit Director, presented the FASTER Audit. Ms. Gold mentioned that a 
risk based approach to auditing was used to review the controls surrounding the FASTER 
program. She stated that the Executive Director of CDOT requested that the Audit 
Division review FASTER safety funds as it related to road safety projects.   The overall 
goal of the examination was to determine whether CDOT is in compliance with the 
established legislation on eligibility for FASTER funding for road safety. Also, to 
determine if pre and post-award safety metrics were identified, reported, and provided to 
Executive Management. Ms. Gold noted that the above findings on page 19 were 
discussed with CDOT Executive Management.  Changes are needed in order to report on 
how CDOT’s FASTER safety funds have improved road safety. The Division will 
perform a follow-up audit on the framework necessary to establish a control structure that 
provides timely and useful reports about FASTER safety funds. Ms. Gold outlined the 
recommendations that should be implemented to remedy the situation: 
 
CDOT Executive Management agreed, conceptually, to the following audit 
considerations. 
 

1) The Executive Director should communicate his request for reports that show 
how FASTER safety funds have improved safety on Colorado roads. 

ARC Page 4 07 Audit Review Committee: Page 4 of 17



 
 

 

 
 

2) The Executive Director should: 
a. Establish the metric(s) for safety enhancements and improvements 

(approved by the Transportation Commission) that lead to the reduction of 
fatalities, injuries and loss of property; and  

b. Require the development and implementation of a control structure that 
provides reports containing information on the status of attaining FASTER 
safety metrics. The reports should be provided to and reviewed by the 
Executive Director.  

 
Commissioner Reiff commented that going forward it will be a great idea if CDOT could 
provide a visual dashboard on their ongoing projects and the amount associated with each 
project, as well as the source of funding. He noted that the report was very informative 
and educational. He thanks the Director and her staff for a great report.  

 
Adjournment 

Chairman Reiff announced that the meeting was adjourned at approximately 10:00 a.m. 
 
Action Items  

Report back on Fuel Card Audit 
Definition of Cognizant Audit 
Disputes over payments 

ARC Page 5 07 Audit Review Committee: Page 5 of 17



CDOT Audit Divsion
Outstanding Audit Recommendations

as of December 31, 2013

Ref 
# Auditor Recommendation Area

Planned 
Implementation 

Date Status

1 OSA

1a. Establish written policies and procedures and train staff on this process. 1b. Ensure 
that regional inspectors are informed of their roles and responsibilities. 1c. Establish a 
standard process for enforcing federal and state laws and Department regulations when 
illegal signs are identified. 1d. Ensure that permit holders are in compliance. 1e. 
Provide training to regional field staff on program laws and regulations.

Chief 
Engineer

1a-1d April 2014
1e-December 2013

1a-1d Not Due
1e- In Process

2 OSA

2a. Implement a segregation of duties framework over payments.  2b. Seek 
clarification as to when late fees should be charged and implement rules and policies 
to apply fees consistently.  

Chief 
Engineer

2a-August 2013
2b-April 2014

2a-Closed 
2b-Not Due

3 OSA

3a. Creat and use a dedicated roadside advertising fund, or seek statutory change to 
remove the requirement.  3b. Review the fee schedule for outdoor advertising permit 
applications and renewals. 

Chief 
Engineer

3a-January 2014
3b-April 2014

3a-Not Due
3b-Not Due

4 OSA
Establish an effective monitoring process for the TODS and LOGO Sign Programs 
contract. 

Chief 
Engineer 4-Apr-14 Not Due

5 FHWA
Provide training on CDOT’s Section 106 procedures at the next Transportation 
Environmental Workshop. 

Chief 
Engineer In Progress In Process

6 CDOT Update Record Management Procedural Directives for proper record retention. DTD Lean Project In Process

7 CDOT Scan the web application regularly for SQL injection and XSS threats.
DOHRA-

OIT 2014 In Process

8 CDOT
Work with OIT and the Business Process Architect to create policy and procedures for 
reviewing SAP log data and highlight suspicious transactions or data patterns.

DOHRA-
OIT Jan-14 Not Due

9 CDOT

Work with OIT and review the domain administrator accounts assignment for 
appropriateness and set up domain subgroup and reassign domain administrators 
accordingly.

DOHRA-
OIT Jan-14 Not Due

10 CDOT
Work with OIT to ensure segregation of the creation and maintenance of authorization 
profiles.

DOHRA-
OIT Jan-14 Not Due

11 OSA
Ensure that the disaster recovery plan includes all components required by State Cyber 
Security Policies.

DOHRA-
OIT 2014 Not Due

ARC Page 6 07 Audit Review Committee: Page 6 of 17



TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION of COLORADO 
AUDIT REVIEW COMMITTEE 

 
Audit Plan Year 2014 Update 

 
Audit Assignments 
 
The table below notes the work currently in progress, completed for the period October through 
December, and completed year-to-date.  The table consists of two sections – Internal Audit Work 
and External Audit Work.  Internal and external audit work and the categories listed for each are 
defined in the Audit Definitions document on page 15.   
 
 

CDOT Audit 
Audit Assignments 

As of December 31, 2013 

Internal Audit Work 
In Progress 

December 31, 
2013 

Completed 
October - 
December 

Completed 
Year-to-Date 

Special Requests 2 0 1 
Consultations 1 0 1 
Audits 4 0 0 
Hotline Incidents 30 1 15 

Total 37 1 17 

External Audit Work     

Disputes and Claims 3 0 1 
Cognizant Audits 1 1  1 
A-133 Single Audit Reviews 40 190 190 
Consultant Selection Reviews 18 18 72 
Master Pricing Agreement 
Reviews 

2 4 30 

Indirect Cost Rate Reviews 7 1  15 
Sole Source Reviews 1 0 3 

Total 72 214 312 
 
Additional Information on Selected Audit Assignments  
 
Audit Work in Progress    
 
Special Requests 

 
Review of CDOT Indirect Cost Rate 
The Executive Director of CDOT requested the Audit Division to review the indirect costs 
charged to federally funded projects to determine which employees are charging to the indirect 
cost pool.  This will include a review of policies and procedures for charging labor costs to the 
indirect cost code and to perform an analysis on the labor ratios of employees charging to 
indirect, project direct, construction engineering, and Administrative (State Fund) codes.  This 

ARC Page 7 07 Audit Review Committee: Page 7 of 17



TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION of COLORADO 
AUDIT REVIEW COMMITTEE 

 
Audit Plan Year 2014 Update 

 
review will be on the data from headquarters and the regions.  The expected completion date is 
January 2014.   
 
Consultant Indirect Cost Rates 
The Executive Director requested a list of the top 25 consultant firms CDOT has a contract with 
and the indirect cost rate for each. 

 
Consultations 

 
Flood Recovery 
See page 9 for a summary of the work completed as of December 27, 2013. 

 
Disputes and Claims 
A dispute from Region 2 and a dispute and a claim from Region 4 were submitted to the Audit 
Division and are expected to be completed in January 2014.  
 
Cognizant Audit 
We performed a cognizant review of the examination, and supporting work papers, of the indirect 
cost rate for a local architectural and engineering (A/E) firm in Colorado for the period January 1, 
2012 through December 31, 2012.  The cognizant review consisted of reviewing the A/E’s 
independent CPA's work papers to support the audited Statement of Indirect Costs.   The expected 
completion date is January 2014.   
 
Completed Audit Work 
 
Cognizant Audits 

 
Sanborn 
We performed a cognizant review of the examination, and supporting work papers, of the 
Indirect Cost Rate for The Sanborn Map Company, Inc., Mapping Division (Sanborn) for the 
period October 1, 2010 through December 31, 2011.  We issued the cognizant letter on 
December 24, 2013. 

 
Indirect Cost Rate Reviews 

 
DRCOG 
We reviewed Denver Regional Council of Governments’ (DRCOG) calculation of their 2013 
indirect cost allocation rate.  We issued an approval letter on October 28, 2013. 

ARC Page 8 07 Audit Review Committee: Page 8 of 17



STATE OF COLORADO 
 

 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
 
 
 
 

“Taking Care To Get You There” 

DATE: December 27, 2013 
TO:  Audit Review Committee Members 
FROM: Barb Gold, Audit Director 
SUBJECT: Summary of Flood Procedures  
 
Purpose 
Our primary objective is to help CDOT maximize its federal reimbursement for eligible flood 
expenditures, and provide assurance to CDOT Management that the procedures established 
by CDOT and /or the Incident Command Center are being followed. Our initial approach to 
achieve this objective is in the capacity of a consulting role – providing our expertise in 
documenting processes, identifying areas of concern, sample and attribute testing, and 
reporting our results to CDOT Management. 
 
Action Requested 
This is an initial update, no Committee action is requested. 
 
Executive Summary 
We determined the following areas to review based on the level of risk of noncompliance and 
the potential for errors that could decrease our federal reimbursement. 
1. General Understanding of the Project – We are conducting a gap analysis of what the 

reimbursement cycle should be (from the flood event to actual reimbursement) and the 
current processes in place. 

2. Limited Invoice Review – We have begun reviewing a sample of 11 invoices for 
compliance with attributes necessary for federal reimbursement. This sample represents 
80 percent of the first 200 invoices (totaling about $5 million). 

3. Data Management Plan – This contains procedures and requirements management has 
created and can provide assurance of compliance to maximize reimbursement. We will 
review the progress of this plan for consistency and completeness. 

4. Fraud Procedures – We will follow our current procedures in place to investigate and 
report incidents of fraud if and when they are reported. 

5. Detailed Damage Inspection Report – this document is used to request federal 
reimbursement. We will review the process currently in place to create these documents. 

 
Deliverables 
For each of the five items above, we will communicate our analyses, conclusions, 
recommendations and next steps to CDOT Management via biweekly summary reports, 
status meeting or memos. We will include a quarterly summary of our procedures in our 
packet for the Audit Review Committee. 

ARC Page 9 07 Audit Review Committee: Page 9 of 17



TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION of COLORADO 
AUDIT REVIEW COMMITTEE 

 
 

 

0

5

10

15

20

25

Region 1 Region 2 Region 3 Region 4 Region 5 Region 6 HQ

CDOT Audit Division 
Hotline Incidents as Reported by Location
January 2013 through December 2013

Source: Hotline Data obtained by Audit Division

Safety Concerns 
24%

Misconduct 
13%

Other 
20%

Policy Violation 
13%

Fraud 
7%

Theft 
2%

Waste 
9%

Work Place Violence
5%

Discrimination
5%

Substance Abuse
2%

CDOT Audit Division 
Hotline Incidents by Type

January 2013 through December 2013

Source: Hotline Data obtained by Audit Division

ARC Page 10 07 Audit Review Committee: Page 10 of 17



TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION of COLORADO

AUDIT REVIEW COMMITTEE

Audit Division Performance Metrics

Proposal for Audit Plan Year 2015

Audit Division Metrics

Goal

Apr ‐ 

Jun

Jul ‐ 

Sep

Oct ‐ 

Dec

Jan ‐ 

Mar YTD
Training Sessions Presented 4

Department‐Wide Communications 1
Regional visits 6

Audits Completed 12
Requests for Audit Services 6

Report Delivered When Committed
Within 2 
weeks

Add Value Rating 3
Budget/Actual Audit Hours 75%

Audit Team Metrics

Goal

Apr ‐ 

Jun

Jul ‐ 

Sep

Oct ‐ 

Dec

Jan ‐ 

Mar YTD

Hours Available for 9 Auditors 18,720
Audit Hours 11,500

Training Hours 4,720
Leave Hours 1600
Admin Hours 900

ARC Page 11 07 Audit Review Committee: Page 11 of 17



TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION of COLORADO 
AUDIT REVIEW COMMITTEE 

Audit Plan 
As of December 31, 2013	

 
 

 
CDOT Audit 

 PY 14 Audit Plan Update 
As of December 31, 2013 

Internal Audit Work Phase 
Scheduled 

Completion Date 
Actual 

Completion Date 
FASTER Dollars Complete August 2013 September 2013 
CDOT Indirect Cost Rate Reporting August 2013  
Water Quality Postponed September 2013*  
Property Controls – Acquisitions and 
Relocations 

Reporting 
September 2013  

Property Controls – Leases and 
Disposals 

Fieldwork 
September 2013  

Consultant Indirect Cost Rates Fieldwork January 2014  
Fraud Policy and Program Fieldwork January 2014  
Fuel Cost Audit Follow up Planning February 2014  
Scrap Metal Planning March 2014  
Consultant Audit Program Revision Planning March 2014  
Dispute Program Revision Not Started March 2014  
IT Systems and Access Controls Not Started May 2014  
RAMP  Not Scheduled  
SAP  Not Scheduled  
Contract vs Employee Status  Not Scheduled  
Procurement  Not Scheduled  
On-boarding employees  Not Scheduled  
Lean Follow-up and Coordination  Not Scheduled  
Contract Compliance  Not Scheduled  
Outstanding Recommendations  Ongoing Ongoing 
Flood Recovery  Ongoing Ongoing 

*This audit was postponed until approval of a new permit. 
Note: Shaded items are audit work added since the plan was approved in April 2013. 

  

ARC Page 12 07 Audit Review Committee: Page 12 of 17



TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION of COLORADO 
AUDIT REVIEW COMMITTEE 

 
Proposed Audit Plan for 2015 

 
 

CDOT Audit 
 Proposed Audit Plan  

For 2015 
Internal Audit Work Audit Type 

Water Quality Performance 
RAMP Performance 
Contract vs Employee Status Performance 
Procurement Process Performance 
On-Boarding and Off-Boarding of Employees Performance 
Lean Follow-up and Coordination Performance 
Contract Compliance Performance 
Outstanding Recommendations Performance 
Flood Recovery Performance 

External Audit Work 

Estimated 
Number of 

Assignments 
Disputes and Claims 5 
Cognizant Audits 1 
A-133 Single Audit Reviews 230 
Consultant Pre-qualifications 200 
Indirect Cost Rate Reviews 30 
Sole Source Reviews 5 

 

ARC Page 13 07 Audit Review Committee: Page 13 of 17



TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION of COLORADO 
AUDIT REVIEW COMMITTEE 

 
Risk Assessment Questions 

 
We are changing the way we do things in the Audit Division.  One of the areas we are changing is 
the way we develop our audit plan.  We are moving away from a static audit plan that is approved 
once a year by our Audit Review Committee and reflects the risks we see at a point in time to an 
audit plan that is assessed and completed quarterly.  The new audit plan will reflect the current risks 
that both the Audit Division and management have identified for that period. 
 
To accomplish this, we will meet with members of the CDOT Senior Management team and FHWA 
periodically to obtain a better understanding of their business unit.  We will obtain an understanding 
of their concerns, the risks they face, and their control environment.  We will also discuss how the 
Audit Division can add value to their business unit. 
 
It is also critical to solicit feedback from our Audit Review Committee.  We have developed some 
questions we would like you to think about so that we can discuss your areas of concern and audits 
you would like us to conduct in the coming year.     
 

1) What threatens CDOT’s ability to be successful? 

2) What is important to you? 

3) Are there any programs within CDOT that concern you or that you would like more 

information on? 

4) What can the Audit Division provide to help you and CDOT be successful in meeting 

objectives? 

5) If you could make one improvement to CDOT what would it be? 

 

ARC Page 14 07 Audit Review Committee: Page 14 of 17



TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION of COLORADO 
AUDIT REVIEW COMMITTEE 

 
Audit Definitions 

 

1 
 

Internal Audit Work 
Audit work performed on CDOT operations. 
 
Special Requests 

o Audit Division performs a review or provides information to management at their 
request. 

o Added Value:  Provides CDOT Management with information they may need to 
assist them in being successful in meeting their business objectives.   

Consultations 
o Audit Division provides advice on a process, program, system, operation, or any 

other matter at the request of management. 
o Added Value:  Provides CDOT Management with advice and assistance in the 

evaluation of their management control structure.  Our recommendations will assist 
them in being successful in meeting their business objectives.     

 
Audits 

o Audit Division provides an assessment of a process, program, system, operation, or 
any other matter as determined by the Audit Division. 

o Includes follow up on outstanding recommendations to determine the disposition of 
audit recommendations. 

o Added Value:  Provides CDOT Management with assurances that their controls are 
working as intended based on high risk areas and updates management on the 
disposition of recommendations they agreed to implement which are important to 
attaining their objectives.   

Hotline Incidents 
o The Audit Division manages the hotline through an application that allows us to 

maintain a centralized database for documenting the steps taken by the organization 
to investigate allegations reported via the hotline.  The allegations are reviewed and 
the information is disseminated to the appropriate party such as the supervisor, 
Human Resources, and the Audit Committee.  

o Added Value:  Provides the framework and ability for an effective anonymous 
reporting program. This function provides a proactive approach and engages CDOT 
employees to promote an ethical workplace and organization and thereby limit 
liability and loss due to fraud and misconduct in the workplace.  

 
External Audit Work 
Audit work performed on entities contracting with CDOT.  
 
Sole Source Reviews 

o Requests from CDOT purchasing agents to review sole source procurements greater 
than $100,000 for fair and reasonable pricing. 

o Added Value:  Sole Source requests contain an inherently higher risk.  Audit's 
review of these requests mitigates this risk by providing independent assurance to the 

ARC Page 15 07 Audit Review Committee: Page 15 of 17



TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION of COLORADO 
AUDIT REVIEW COMMITTEE 

 
Audit Definitions 

 

2 
 

CDOT's Procurement Office that the request pricing is fair and reasonable prior to 
approval.  

 
Disputes and Claims 

o Audit Division reviews disputes between CDOT and the contracted vendor including 
terms of contract, work performed, and allowable/unallowable costs. 

o Dispute and claim details will be provided upon settlement. 
o Added Value:  Provide CDOT Management with additional support for the quantum 

of the dispute or claim. 
 
Cognizant Audits 

o The Audit Division’s objective is to determine that the indirect cost rate of an 
engineering firm is fair and reasonable and in compliance with federal regulations.   

o This audit can be performed by the home state (the State in which the firm’s 
accounting records are kept), a non-home state (a DOT with an interest in the 
engineering firm), a federal audit agency, or a CPA firm.   

o The rate is approved by: 
 The home state conducting an audit of the rate or hiring a CPA firm to audit 

the rate under their direction. 
 The home state issuing a cognizant letter of concurrence subsequent to a 

review of the work papers of a CPA firm whom the engineering firm hired to 
audit the rate. 

 The non-home state issuing a cognizant letter of concurrence subsequent to a 
review of the work papers of a CPA firm whom the engineering firm hired to 
audit the rate and the home state accepts the letter. 

o Added Value:  Provide assurance that the rates submitted are fair and reasonable per 
Federal Acquisition Regulations.  If the rates are not reasonable, Audit provides our 
determination of recommended reasonable rates. 

 
A-133 Single Audit Reviews 

o Entities that receive federal grant monies from CDOT are required to submit, 
annually, an Audit Compliance Certification Form.  The Audit Division reviews the 
report and form for exceptions on programs impacting CDOT. 

o Added Value:  Assists CDOT Management in its responsibilities with the provisions 
of OMB A-133 requirements relative to audit compliance.  We also document and 
follow-up, with the sub-recipient, on any exceptions noted in the audit report which 
impact CDOT programs.  

 
Consultant New Selection Reviews 

o The Audit Division’s objective is to determine that the direct labor rates, overhead 
rates, billing rates, or in the alternative, Fee Schedule Billing Rates are fair and 
reasonable. 

o Added Value:  Provide CDOT’s Contracts and Agreements Section with assurance 
that the rates submitted are fair and reasonable per Federal Acquisition Regulations.  

ARC Page 16 07 Audit Review Committee: Page 16 of 17



TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION of COLORADO 
AUDIT REVIEW COMMITTEE 

 
Audit Definitions 

 

3 
 

If the rates are not reasonable, Audit provides our determination of recommended 
reasonable rates. 

 
Master Pricing Agreement Reviews 

o The Audit Division’s objective is to determine that the direct labor rates, overhead 
rates, billing rates, or in the alternative, Fee Schedule Billing Rates are fair and 
reasonable. 

o Added Value:  Provide CDOT’s Contracts and Agreements Section with assurance 
that the rates submitted are fair and reasonable per Federal Acquisition Regulations.  
If the rates are not reasonable, Audit provides our determination of recommended 
reasonable rates. 

 
Indirect Cost Rate Reviews 

o The Audit Division’s objective is to determine that the indirect cost rate and fringe 
rate, as applicable, are fair and reasonable and in compliance with federal regulations 
for local agencies and non-profit organizations. 

o Includes Council of Governments (COGs), Metropolitan Planning Organization 
(MPOs), local agencies, and non-profit agencies. 

o Our reviews have been limited to those requested by the agencies; however, in the 
upcoming year we will be developing a risk based audit program so that we are 
proactive at reviewing the rates of these agencies. 

o Added Value:  Provide assurance that the rates submitted are fair and reasonable per 
the Code of Federal Regulations.  If the rates are not reasonable, Audit provides our 
determination of recommended reasonable rates. 

 

ARC Page 17 07 Audit Review Committee: Page 17 of 17



 1 

Transportation Commission of Colorado 
Safety Committee Meeting Agenda 

January 16, 2014 @ 10:30 
4201 East Arkansas Avenue; Auditorium 

Denver, Colorado 
 
 
 

Darrell Lingk 
Director,  

Office of Transportation Safety 
 

Herman Stockinger 
    Secretary 

 
 

Kathy Connell, Chair 
District 6, Steamboat Springs 

Steve Hofmeister 
District 11, Haxtun 

 
Heather Barry 

District 4, Westminster 

 
Sidny Zink, 
District 8, Durango 

  
  

 
THE AGENDA MAY BE ALTERED AT THE CHAIRMAN’S DISCRETION 

 
1.   Call to Order and Roll Call  
 
2.   Discuss & Act on Safety Committee Minutes of August 15, 2013 
 
3.   Public Outreach – Emily Wilfong – 10 minutes 
 
4.   CDOT Employee Safety  
  Risk Management Report – 5 minutes 
  Excellence in Safety – 5 minutes 
 
5.  Rock Fall Program – 10 minutes 
 
7.  Adjournment 
   
 
 

08 Safety Committee: Page 1 of 28



Memorandum 

Office of Transportation and Safety  
Risk Management  
4201 E. Arkansas Ave., Room 274 
Denver, Colorado 80222 
 

TO:  Transportation Commission Safety Committee Members 

FROM: Darrell S. Lingk, Director of the Office of Transportation Safety & Risk 
Management 

RE:  Safety Committee Agenda  

DATE:  December 24, 2014 

 

Public Relations for the Drug Impaired Driving: 
 
Ms. Emily Wilfong will present CDOT's ongoing efforts to develop a public awareness campaign on 
marijuana impaired. Emily will present this information using a PowerPoint presentation that will not be 
included in the TC Packet.  Instead, the Commission will receive in their mailing packet a Marijuana 
Impaired Driving Campaign Development Overview.  This Overview will contain all of the same 
information as will be presented in Emily’s presentation. No action will be required by Commission 
Safety Committee members. This will for information purposes only. 
  
Risk Management Report & CDOT Excellence in Safety: 
 
The mailing packet will include the Fiscal Year 2014, 1st Quarter Loss Control Report and the 
Excellence in Safety Workers’ Compensation/Loss Time claim comparison for the time period from May 
1, 2013 through November 30, 2013.  Mr. Lingk will provide an overview of how CDOT is performing 
from a safety program perspective and discuss the influences that lost time and non-lost time workers’ 
compensation claims have on CDOT’s safety culture. No action will be required by the Commission 
Safety Committee members.  
 
Rock Fall Mitigation Program:  
 
The Rock Fall Mitigation presentation titled, “Rock Fall Program Update”, is for informational purposes 
only and it is intended to update Safety Committee members on the status of this program.  No action 
will be required by the Commission Safety Committee members.  This presentation will not be included 
in the TC Packet.  
 

Q&A: 

The remainder of the time allotted will be reserved for questions and general discussion. 

 

08 Safety Committee: Page 2 of 28



Marijuana Impaired 
Driving Campaign

Emily Wilfong

Communications Manager, Traffic Safety

CDOT

Campaign Background
O Secured $430,000 in federal grant funding 

from the National Highway Traffic Safety 
Administration.

08 Safety Committee: Page 3 of 28



"We will do everything in our power to make 
sure kids don't smoke pot and that we don't 
have people driving who are high. This 
ballot measure gives Colorado the ability to 
regulate marijuana properly,”

-- Gov. John Hickenlooper

Campaign Timeline
O May 2013: Applied for funding

O August 2013: Secured funding and 
began research and strategy development

O October 2013: Finalized strategy 
development and began creative 
development

O March 2014: Launch marijuana impaired 
driving campaign

08 Safety Committee: Page 4 of 28



Information 
Gathering/Sharing

O Met with:
O Washington State Traffic Safety
O Colorado Department for Health & Environment
O Department of Revenue
O Department of Justice
O Office of Behavioral Health
O Colorado State Patrol/Law enforcement
O Tourism
O Governor’s office
O Marijuana industry representatives
O Toxicologists 

Information 
Gathering/Sharing

O Identified other state agencies working on 
marijuana-related campaigns

O Identified and gathered fatality/crash data 
and DUI offender evaluation screenings 
related to marijuana

O Identified relevant spokespeople and 
partnerships

08 Safety Committee: Page 5 of 28



Survey Research
O Surveyed attitudes and behaviors related 

to marijuana usage and impaired driving 
through a phone survey of 770 
Coloradans

Survey Research Results
O Males ages 18-34 are more likely to consume marijuana

O Nearly a quarter of marijuana users have driven a motor vehicle 
after consuming 

O Those who drove within two hours after consuming did so, on 
average, 17 times a month.

O One third of respondents “somewhat” or “strongly” agreed that 
it’s safer driving under the influence of marijuana than alcohol.

O If used marijuana in past year, half as likely to think a person 
could get a DUI an hour after consuming as those who have 
never used.

08 Safety Committee: Page 6 of 28



Focus Groups
O Six focus groups (recreational users, 

medical users, industry workers, Spanish-
language dominant)

O Discussed marijuana use, knowledge of 
marijuana impaired driving laws, 
marijuana driving behavior, message 
testing

Focus Group Findings
O Low awareness that you can get a DUI for 

consuming marijuana
O Most participants drive “high” and most do 

so on a regular basis
O All felt it was safer to drive under the 

influence of marijuana versus alcohol
O Tested humor-based, informational and 

enforcement-based messages.
O Informational messages resonated most

08 Safety Committee: Page 7 of 28



Campaign Target Audience

Primary Secondary
O Recreational/casual 

users
O Males, 18-34
O Higher binge risk
O Likely to combine 

marijuana and alcohol
O Less aware of 

marijuana DUI laws 
and consequences

O Medical marijuana 
cardholders

O Males/Females, 18-34

O Daily users

O More aware of marijuana 
DUI laws

O Feel safe driving high

Main Message Desired Outcome

O If you drive high, 
you will get a DUI

O Understand that 
driving high is illegal

O Stay out of the car 
when high

08 Safety Committee: Page 8 of 28



Creative Concept

Next Steps
O Identify appropriate media mix (TV, online, 

billboards, etc.)

O Identify relevant partnerships to strengthen the 
campaign

O Develop an editorial calendar of marijuana 
impaired driving stories to pitch to Colorado 
media, including a campaign launch press 
conference

O Launch campaign March 2014

08 Safety Committee: Page 9 of 28



Marijuana Impaired 
Driving Campaign

Emily Wilfong

Communications Manager, Traffic Safety

CDOT

Campaign Background
O Secured $430,000 in federal grant funding 

from the National Highway Traffic Safety 
Administration.

08 Safety Committee: Page 10 of 28



"We will do everything in our power to make 
sure kids don't smoke pot and that we don't 
have people driving who are high. This 
ballot measure gives Colorado the ability to 
regulate marijuana properly,”

-- Gov. John Hickenlooper

Campaign Timeline
O May 2013: Applied for funding

O August 2013: Secured funding and 
began research and strategy development

O October 2013: Finalized strategy 
development and began creative 
development

O March 2014: Launch marijuana impaired 
driving campaign

08 Safety Committee: Page 11 of 28



Information 
Gathering/Sharing

O Met with:
O Washington State Traffic Safety
O Colorado Department for Health & Environment
O Department of Revenue
O Department of Justice
O Office of Behavioral Health
O Colorado State Patrol/Law enforcement
O Tourism
O Governor’s office
O Marijuana industry representatives
O Toxicologists 

Information 
Gathering/Sharing

O Identified other state agencies working on 
marijuana-related campaigns

O Identified and gathered fatality/crash data 
and DUI offender evaluation screenings 
related to marijuana

O Identified relevant spokespeople and 
partnerships

08 Safety Committee: Page 12 of 28



Survey Research
O Surveyed attitudes and behaviors related 

to marijuana usage and impaired driving 
through a phone survey of 770 
Coloradans

Survey Research Results
O Males ages 18-34 are more likely to consume marijuana

O Nearly a quarter of marijuana users have driven a motor vehicle 
after consuming 

O Those who drove within two hours after consuming did so, on 
average, 17 times a month.

O One third of respondents “somewhat” or “strongly” agreed that 
it’s safer driving under the influence of marijuana than alcohol.

O If used marijuana in past year, half as likely to think a person 
could get a DUI an hour after consuming as those who have 
never used.

08 Safety Committee: Page 13 of 28



Focus Groups
O Six focus groups (recreational users, 

medical users, industry workers, Spanish-
language dominant)

O Discussed marijuana use, knowledge of 
marijuana impaired driving laws, 
marijuana driving behavior, message 
testing

Focus Group Findings
O Low awareness that you can get a DUI for 

consuming marijuana
O Most participants drive “high” and most do 

so on a regular basis
O All felt it was safer to drive under the 

influence of marijuana versus alcohol
O Tested humor-based, informational and 

enforcement-based messages.
O Informational messages resonated most

08 Safety Committee: Page 14 of 28



Campaign Target Audience

Primary Secondary
O Recreational/casual 

users
O Males, 18-34
O Higher binge risk
O Likely to combine 

marijuana and alcohol
O Less aware of 

marijuana DUI laws 
and consequences

O Medical marijuana 
cardholders

O Males/Females, 18-34

O Daily users

O More aware of marijuana 
DUI laws

O Feel safe driving high

Next Steps
O Develop go-to-market marijuana impaired 

driving message

O Develop creative approach

O Identify appropriate media mix (TV, online, 
billboards, etc.)

O Identify relevant partnerships to strengthen the 
campaign

O Develop an editorial calendar of marijuana 
impaired driving stories to pitch to Colorado 
media, including a campaign launch press 
conference

O Launch campaign March 2014

08 Safety Committee: Page 15 of 28



Workers’ Compensation Claims                                                             
Combined Monthly Totals for May 1 – November 30* 

 

*All Claims valued as of December 2, 2013.  Number is subject to change due to late reporting. 
 

Workers’ Compensation Claims 

 

Workers’ Compensation Lost Time Claims 

 

211 
190 

206 

160 

0

50

100

150

200

250

2010 2011 2012 2013

97 96 94 

52 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

2010 2011 2012 2013

08 Safety Committee: Page 16 of 28



*Data captured July 8, 2013.  As data matures and claims/incidents are reported the number is subject to change.

0.67 

0.74 

0.84 
0.81 

0.09 0.08 
0.04 

0.06 

0.12 
0.1 

0.06 0.05 

0.12 

0.08 0.06 
0.08 

0

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.6

0.7

0.8

0.9

FY 2010 FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013

WC Claims Job Activity Fiscal Year Percentages Comparison* 

Maintenance Engineering Traffic All Others

08 Safety Committee: Page 17 of 28



WC Injuries
Lost Time Work 

Days
Auto Equipment 

Accidents Property Overall

Region 1

Region 2

Region 3

Region 4

Region 5

Charts of the four loss categories are summarized on the following pages.

EXCELLENCE IN SAFETY

QUARTER 1, FY 2014
(July 1 - September 30)

QUARTERLY REPORT

Overall Goal:   10% reduction in each 
measurement category FY 2013 to FY 2014 

Rating   Defined    
        Green  = Exceeding Goal 
                 
        Yellow  = Trending Lower 
 
        Red = Trending Higher 

The color coding system used for determining the 
overall score for each Region is based upon a 
combination of each of the 4 primary loss categories 
as indicated in the Table below: 

Rating = Overall Cumulative  
(This scale applies to above table only) 
4 Green = Green  
3 Green = Green  
2 Green = Yellow  
1 Green, 3 Yellow = Yellow  
1 Green, 1 Red, 2 Yellow = Yellow  
3 Yellow, 1 Red = Yellow  
4 Yellows = Yellow  
1 green, 2 Red = Red  
2 Yellow, 2 Red = Red  
All Others = Red  

08 Safety Committee: Page 18 of 28



Rating * % Difference = Comparison between FY 2013 Quarter One and FY 2014 Quarter One

10% or Higher Decrease  = Green

1% - 9% Decrease = Yellow

Any % Increase = Red

Goal = To achieve a 10% reduction in the total number of WC claims 
from previous fiscal year. 

12 

9 

17 

13 

16 

13 

12 

15 

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35

FY13 Reg 1

FY14 Reg 1

FY13 Reg 2

FY14 Reg 2

FY13 Reg 3

FY14 Reg 3

FY13 Reg 4

FY14 Reg 4

FY13 Reg 5

FY14 Reg 5

WC Claims Quarter Comparison 
FY 2013 Quarter One & 2014 Quarter One 

(July 1 - September 30) 
 % 

Difference* 

-24% 

-19% 

20% 

33% 
20 

30 

-25% 

08 Safety Committee: Page 19 of 28



Rating * % Difference = Comparison between FY 2013 Quarter One and FY 2014 Quarter One

10% or Higher Decrease  = Green

1% - 9% Decrease = Yellow

Any % Increase = Red

Goal = To achieve a 10% reduction in the total number of WC 
Lost Time claims from previous fiscal year 

8 

14 

6 

2 

9 

5 

7 

6 

10 

7 

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16

FY13 Reg 1

FY14 Reg 1

FY13 Reg 2

FY14 Reg 2

FY13 Reg 3

FY14 Reg 3

FY13 Reg 4

FY14 Reg 4

FY13 Reg 5

FY14 Reg 5

WC Lost Time Claims Comparison 
FY 2013 Quarter 1 & 2014 Quarter 1 

Lost Time Claim = Employee Three or more Days Absent 

% Difference* 

43% 

-30% 

-66% 

-44% 

-14% 

08 Safety Committee: Page 20 of 28



Rating * % Difference = Comparison between FY 2013 Qtr 1 and FY 2014 Qtr 1

10% or Higher Decrease  = Green

1% - 9% Decrease = Yellow

Any % Increase = Red

Goal = To achieve a 10% reduction in the total number of Auto accident 
claims from previous fiscal year 

** Two Acts of God occurred in FY14 Quarter One.  The hail occurrence in Region 4 had 5 
claims which are not included in the total number of claims for Region 4.  The flood 
occurrence in Region 4 had 6 claims which are not included in the total number of claims 
for Region 4.  

16 

15 

2 

4 

4 

3 

12 

15 

2 

3 

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16 18

FY13 Reg 1

FY14 Reg 1

FY13 Reg 2

FY14 Reg 2

FY13 Reg 3

FY14 Reg 3

FY13 Reg 4

FY14 Reg 4

FY13 Reg 5

FY14 Reg 5

Auto Equipment Accidents Comparison 
FY 2013 Quarter 1  & 2014 Quarter 1 

% Difference* 

-6% 

50% 

-25% 

20% 

33% 

08 Safety Committee: Page 21 of 28



Rating * % Difference = Comparison between FY 2013 Quarter One and FY 2014 Quarter One

10% or Higher Decrease  = Green

1% - 9% Decrease = Yellow

Any % Increase = Red

Goal = To achieve a 10% reduction in the total number of Property 
Damage accident claims from previous fiscal year 

** Two Acts of God occurred in FY14 Quarter One.  The hail occurrence in Region 4 had 7 
claims which are not included in the total number of claims for Region 4.  The flood 
occurrence in Region 3 had 2 claims and Region 4 had 11 claims which are not included in 
the total number of claims for Region 3 and 4.  

9 

15 

2 

4 

0 

6 

7 

17 

4 

3 

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16 18

FY13 Reg 1

FY14 Reg 1

FY13 Reg 2

FY14 Reg 2

FY13 Reg 3

FY14 Reg 3

FY13 Reg 4

FY14 Reg 4

FY13 Reg 5

FY14 Reg 5

Property Damage Accidents Comparison 
FY 2013 Quarter 1  & 2014 Quarter 1** 

% Difference* 

40% 

50% 

100% 

59% 

-25% 

08 Safety Committee: Page 22 of 28



50

60

70

80

90

Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4

WC Statewide Claims Comparison 
FY 2013 Qtr 1 = 83 FY 2014 Qtr 1 = 87

10

20

30

40

Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4

WC Lost Time Statewide Comparison 
FY 2013 Qtr 1 = 40 FY 2014 Qtr 1 = 34

10

20

30

40

50

Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4

Property Damage Accidents 
Statewide Comparison 

FY 2013 Qtr 1 = 23 FY 2014 Qtr 1 = 45

35

40

45

Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4

Auto Equipment Incidents Statewide 
Comparison 

FY 2013 Qtr 1 = 39 FY 2014 Qtr 1 = 42

08 Safety Committee: Page 23 of 28



361 351 345 
322 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

FY 2010 FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013

Workers' Compensation Claims 
Fiscal Year Comparison 

228 

185 
202 

171 

0

50

100

150

200

250

FY 2010 FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013

Auto Equipment Incidents 
Fiscal Year Comparison  

264 

194 190 
219 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

FY 2010 FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013

Property Damage Incidents 
Fiscal Year Comparison 

08 Safety Committee: Page 24 of 28



Transportation Commission of Colorado
Safety Committee – January 2014

Rockfall Program Update

FY 14 – 1st Quarter

FY 13 Projects

• I-70 Georgetown Hill – Completion expected spring 2014

• SH 133 Paonia Reservoir – Advertisement expected spring 2014

FY 14 Projects

• US6/SH119 Clear Creek Canyon Corridor (R1) – Design Phase

• SH3 Durango (R5) – Design Phase

• SH145 Telluride Village (R5) – Design Phase

• US550 Ridgeway (R5) – Design Phase

08 Safety Committee: Page 25 of 28



FY 14 1st Quarter Rockfall Assistance
21 locations statewide

R1 – 7 locations

R2 – 4 locations

R3 – 2 location

R4 – 6 locations

R5 – 2 locations SH119 – Boulder Canyon

FY14 Spending Categories:

Risk Reduction - Corridors

08 Safety Committee: Page 26 of 28



FY14 Spending Categories:

Risk Reduction – High Risk

FY14 Spending Categories:

Emergency Response

08 Safety Committee: Page 27 of 28



Rock stopped by fence

FY14 Spending Categories:

Maintenance

Questions?

08 Safety Committee: Page 28 of 28



 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Safety         People          Integrity          Customer Service          Excellence Respect 
 

1 
 

STATE OF COLORADO 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
 
Chief Engineer’s Office        
4201 E. Arkansas Ave., Room 262  
Denver, CO 80222 
(303) 757-9204 
(303) 757-9656 – FAX 
 
 
 
 
Date:   January 3, 2014 

To:   Colorado Transportation Commission 

From:   Scott McDaniel, Acting Chief Engineer  

Subject: Status of RAMP Partnership & Operations Projects 

 

This memo serves as an update for the RAMP Partnership & RAMP Operations projects as 
recommended by CDOT staff and approved by the Transportation Commission on October 16th, 
2013. CDOT staff has compiled the program of projects into the following lists.   

 Selected RAMP Partnership Projects (public-private & public-public) 

 Selected RAMP Operations Projects  
 
 
1. The deadline for submitting letters of commitment along with supporting scope, schedule 

and budget is January 6, 2014. 

2. The updated scopes, schedules, and budgets received will be reviewed for agreement with 
the prior Commission approval. Any matters requiring additional commission action arising 
from these reviews will be brought forward once identified. 

3. Three partners have taken benefit of the extension available for flood impacted areas. The 
I-25 Corridor project (Project #4-5) has been granted an extension.  Larimer County has 
submitted a deadline extension request for SH14 / Greenfields Court – Frontage Road 
Relocation (Project #4-25) to wait for the results of the flood assessment survey. Boulder 
County has submitted a request for SH119 Boulder Canyon Trail Extension (Project #4-58). 

4. Of the 43 selected RAMP Partnership projects, there are two public-public partnership 
projects (#2-27 and #2-29) where the local partner (Las Animas County) has withdrawn their 
application, bringing the total number of RAMP Partnership projects to forty-one (41).  The 
Town of Fraser has indicated some difficulty in their recommitment for the US40 
Improvements (Project #3-31). This project may be withdrawn unless the town gets their 
own recommitment from a private partner engaged in the project.  

 

09 RAMP LOC Update: Page 1 of 13



 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Safety         People          Integrity          Customer Service          Excellence Respect 
 

2 
 

5. As of January 3, 2014 CDOT staff and the Program Management team have received a total 
of 25 signed Letters of Commitment, with accompanying scopes, schedules and budgets for 
the RAMP Public-Public Partnership projects.   All information received is currently under 
review by CDOT Headquarters and Portfolio/Program Management staff. 

6. The total number of RAMP Operations projects remains unchanged at thirty-one (31). 

7. As of January 3, 2014, CDOT staff and the Program Management team have received a 
total of 14 scopes, schedules and budgets out of the 31 RAMP Operations projects.  10 of 
the 31 Operations projects have local agency participation which requires a signed Letter of 
Commitment.  As of January 3, 2014, 7 out of 10 of these letters have been received by 
CDOT and Program Management staff.  All received information is currently under review by 
CDOT Headquarters and Program Management staff. 

 

09 RAMP LOC Update: Page 2 of 13



Printed on: 

Stage October November December January

Public-Private Projects NOT requiring  Local Commitment 3 3 3 3

Approved Deadline Extensions 2 2 2 2

Letters Pending 38 38 35 11

Evidence of Commitment Letters Received 1 25

Approved Letters of Commitment

Applications Withdrawn 2 2

Total Partnership Projects 43 43 43 43

RAMP Program Update: Partnerships 
1/3/2014 10:28

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45
3 3 3 3

2 2 2 2

38 38

35

11

1

25

N
um

be
r o

f P
ro

je
ct

s

Month

Letters of Commitment

Approved Letters of
Commitment

Evidence of Commitment
Letters Received

Letters Pending

Approved Deadline
Extensions

Public-Private Projects NOT
requiring  Local
Commitment

Master.xlsm, CM-P 1 of 2 01.03.2014 Mailer: Version 109 RAMP LOC Update: Page 3 of 13



Printed on: 

Stage October November December January

Public-Private Projects NOT requiring  Local Commitment 21 21 21 21

Approved Deadline Extensions

Letters Pending 10 10 10 3

Evidence of Commitment Letters Received 7

Approved Letters of Commitment

Total Operation Projects 31 31 31 31

RAMP Program Update: Operations
1/3/2014 10:28

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35
21 21 21 21

10 10 10

3
7

N
um

be
r o

f P
ro

je
ct

s

Month

Letters of Commitment 

Approved Letters of
Commitment

Evidence of Commitment
Letters Received

Letters Pending

Approved Deadline
Extensions

Public-Private Projects NOT
requiring  Local
Commitment

Master.xlsm, CM-O 2 of 2 01.03.2014 Mailer: Version 109 RAMP LOC Update: Page 4 of 13



RAMP 
Tracking 
Number

Project Name (Description)
Applicant 

Name
Project Scope

Delivery 
Schedule

Budget
Local 

Commitment 
Letter

Deadline 
Extension

TC Approved 
Budget

TC Approved 
RAMP Request

Public-Private Partnerships: HPTE P3 Projects

1-2
C-470 Managed Tolled Express Lanes: Kipling to I-25 
(pending P3 financial review and local govt. agreement)

C-470 Corridor 
Coalition

Under Local 
Partner Review

Under Local 
Partner Review

Under Local 
Partner Review

Under Local 
Partner Review

Not Eligible $200.000 M $100.000 M

4-5(a) I-25: 120th to SH 7 Tolled Express Lanes (Region 1) CDOT R1
Under CDOT 

Development 
at Region

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region
NA $1040.0 M $55.00 M

4-5(b) I-25: 120th to SH 7 Tolled Express Lanes (Region 4) CDOT R4
Under CDOT 

Development 
at Region

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region
NA $.000 M $35.00 M

NA HPTE P3 Development Fund - NA NA NA NA - $200.000 M $40.000 M

TOTAL: Public-Private Partnerships (HPTE P3 Projects) $1440.0 M $230.0 M
Public-Public Partnerships: Large Projects $20M +

1-15 US 6 and SH 93: 19th St. Intersection Grade Separation City of Golden
Under Local 

Partner Review
Under Local 

Partner Review
Under Local 

Partner Review
Under Local 

Partner Review
Not Eligible $25.000 M $20.000 M

1-19
Colorado Blvd. in Idaho Springs: Phase 2 & Phase 3, and 
Devolution

City of Idaho 
Springs

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Not Eligible $21.900 M $21.900 M

Selected RAMP Partnership Projects - 
Attachment A

Status for Approval of RAMP Funding
Application Stage

Under CDOT Development at Region
Under Local Partner Review

Under CDOT HQ Review
Approval Date

Request 
Granted; 

submittals due 
April 7th, 2014

Master.xlsm.xls Sum-P 1/3/2014 1 of 909 RAMP LOC Update: Page 5 of 13



RAMP 
Tracking 
Number

Project Name (Description)
Applicant 

Name
Project Scope

Delivery 
Schedule

Budget
Local 

Commitment 
Letter

Deadline 
Extension

TC Approved 
Budget

TC Approved 
RAMP Request

1-37
Federal Blvd: 6th to Howard Reconstruction and 
Multimodal Improvements

City & County 
of Denver

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region
Not Eligible $29.204 M $23.363 M

1-46 I-25 and Arapahoe Rd. Interchange

Arapahoe 
County & the 

I-25/Arapahoe 
Interchange 

Coalition

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under Local 
Partner Review

Not Eligible $74.000 M $50.400 M

2-21 I-25 and Cimarron Interchange Reconstruction PPACG
Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Not Eligible $30.000 M $24.000 M

2-31
I-25 Ilex to 1st St. in Pueblo (includes devolution match in 
RAMP request)

PACOG
Under CDOT 

Development 
at Region

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region
Not Eligible $33.200 M $22.000 M

3-40 SH 9 Grand County Safety Improvement Project Grand County
Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Not Eligible $46.000 M $36.222 M

Subtotal: Large Projects $259.304 M $197.885 M
Public-Public Partnerships: Medium Projects $10M - $19.9M

1-7
Eisenhower-Johnson Memorial Tunnels (EJMT) Fire 
Suppression System

CDOT – Region 
1

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region
Not Eligible $25.000 M $9.000 M

1-14 SH 2 in Commerce City Widening and Devolution
City of 

Commerce City
Under Local 

Partner Review
Under Local 

Partner Review
Under Local 

Partner Review
Under Local 

Partner Review
Not Eligible $20.800 M $13.600 M

2-22
I-25 Fillmore Interchange Diverging Diamond Interchange 
(DDI) Conversion

PPACG
Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Not Eligible $21.300 M $11.000 M

3-9 I-70 Simba Run Underpass Town of Vail
Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Not Eligible $20.800 M $14.600 M

Master.xlsm.xls Sum-P 1/3/2014 2 of 909 RAMP LOC Update: Page 6 of 13



RAMP 
Tracking 
Number

Project Name (Description)
Applicant 

Name
Project Scope

Delivery 
Schedule

Budget
Local 

Commitment 
Letter

Deadline 
Extension

TC Approved 
Budget

TC Approved 
RAMP Request

3-12/29 SH 9 - Frisco to Breckenridge: Iron Springs Alignment 
Summit 
County

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under Local 
Partner Review

Not Eligible $21.985 M $17.500 M

4-20 US 287: (North College) Conifer to Laporte Bypass
City of Ft. 

Collins
Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Eligible $36.000 M $17.500 M

5-15
SH 62 Ridgway Street Improvements (pending approval 
of local match)

Town of 
Ridgway

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Not Eligible $13.791 M $10.495 M

Subtotal: Medium Projects $159.676 M $93.695 M
Public-Public Partnerships: Small Projects < $10M

2-1 SH 67 in Victor Devolution (cash payment) City of Victor
Under Local 

Partner Review
Under Local 

Partner Review
Under Local 

Partner Review
Under Local 

Partner Review
Not Eligible $.308 M $.308 M

2-5 US 160 Turnouts
Town of La 

Veta/Huerfano
Under Local 

Partner Review
Under Local 

Partner Review
Under Local 

Partner Review
Under Local 

Partner Review
Not Eligible $1.015 M $.840 M

2-7 US 24 Business Route Devolution (cash payment) El Paso County
Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Not Eligible $2.602 M $2.602 M

2-20
US 50 / Dozier / Steinmeier Intersection / Signal 
Improvements (companion project - Operations 2-9)

City of Canon 
City

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Not Eligible $1.500 M $1.200 M

2-23 SH 21 / Old Ranch Rd. Interchange Completion PPACG
Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Not Eligible $9.266 M $.600 M

2-27
I-25A: Exit 18 NW Frontage Rd. Devolution (cash 
payment)

Las Animas 
County

Application 
Withdrawn

Application 
Withdrawn

Application 
Withdrawn

Application 
Withdrawn

Not Eligible $.000 M $.000 M

2-29 I-25 Exit 11 SW Frontage Rd. Devolution (cash payment)
Las Animas 

County
Application 
Withdrawn

Application 
Withdrawn

Application 
Withdrawn

Application 
Withdrawn

Not Eligible $.000 M $.000 M

2-33
US 50 / SH 45 Interchange, Wills to Purcell-Pueblo 
(includes devolution match in RAMP request)(companion 
project 2-10)

PACOG
Under Local 

Partner Review
Under Local 

Partner Review
Under Local 

Partner Review
Under Local 

Partner Review
Not Eligible $10.000 M $5.000 M

Master.xlsm.xls Sum-P 1/3/2014 3 of 909 RAMP LOC Update: Page 7 of 13



RAMP 
Tracking 
Number

Project Name (Description)
Applicant 

Name
Project Scope

Delivery 
Schedule

Budget
Local 

Commitment 
Letter

Deadline 
Extension

TC Approved 
Budget

TC Approved 
RAMP Request

3-6 SH 6 / SH 13 in Rifle Devolution City of Rifle
Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Not Eligible $5.600 M $5.600 M

3-14 I-70 Eagle Interchange Upgrade Town of Eagle
Under Local 

Partner Review
Under Local 

Partner Review
Under Local 

Partner Review
Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Not Eligible $9.887 M $3.500 M

3-24 I-70 Exit 31 Horizon Drive
City of Grand 

Junction
Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Not Eligible $5.000 M $4.000 M

3-31 US 40 Improvements in Fraser Town of Fraser
Under Local 

Partner Review
Under Local 

Partner Review
Under Local 

Partner Review
Under Local 

Partner Review
Not Eligible $1.950 M $1.268 M

4-6 US 34 in Estes Park Improvements and Devolution CDOT R4
Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Eligible $16.000 M $4.200 M

4-25
SH 14 / Greenfields Ct. - Frontage Rd. Relocation and 
Intersection Improvements

Larimer 
County

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region

Eligible; 
Request 

Submitted
$2.100 M $1.680 M

4-28 SH 392 & CR 47 Intersection Safety Improvements Weld County
Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Not Eligible $3.685 M $1.843 M

4-29 US 34 & CR 49 Intersection Safety Improvements Weld County
Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Not Eligible $2.200 M $1.500 M

4-30 SH 392 & CR 74 Intersection Safety Improvements Weld County
Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Not Eligible $2.250 M $1.000 M

4-
34/51/52

Turning Lanes at US 34 and County Road H / US 385 & 
YCR 33.6 / US 34 & YCR J

Yuma County
Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Not Eligible $1.752 M $1.800 M

4-54
SH 119: (Diagonal) 30th to Foothills Parkway Multi-modal 
Improvements Project

City of Boulder
Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Eligible $16.000 M $4.456 M

Master.xlsm.xls Sum-P 1/3/2014 4 of 909 RAMP LOC Update: Page 8 of 13



RAMP 
Tracking 
Number

Project Name (Description)
Applicant 

Name
Project Scope

Delivery 
Schedule

Budget
Local 

Commitment 
Letter

Deadline 
Extension

TC Approved 
Budget

TC Approved 
RAMP Request

4-58 SH 119 Boulder Canyon Trail Extension
Boulder 
County

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region

Eligible; 
Request 

Submitted
$16.000 M $4.373 M

5-6 US 550 Sky Rocket Box Culvert Replacement City of Ouray
Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Not Eligible $2.000 M $1.600 M

5-8 SH 172 / 151 Signalization
Town of 
Ignacio

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Not Eligible $1.800 M $1.430 M

5-10 US 160 / Wilson Gulch Road Extension
City of 

Durango
Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Not Eligible $6.400 M $4.288 M

5-13 SH 145 at CR P Safety Improvements
Montezuma 

County
Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Not Eligible $1.660 M $1.577 M

5-14 US 285 Antonito Storm Drain System Replacement
Town of 
Antonito

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Not Eligible $2.742 M $2.194 M

5-18 US 24 Enhancement Project in Buena Vista
Town of Buena 

Vista
Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Not Eligible $2.497 M $1.997 M

Subtotal: Small Projects $124.216 M $58.856 M
TOTAL: Public-Public Partnership Projects $1983.196 M $580.435 M

Master.xlsm.xls Sum-P 1/3/2014 5 of 909 RAMP LOC Update: Page 9 of 13



RAMP 
Tracking 
Number

Project Name (Description)
Applicant 

Name
Project Scope

Delivery 
Schedule

Budget
Local 

Commitment 
Letter

Deadline 
Extension

TC Approved 
Budget

TC Approved 
RAMP 

Request

1-9a I-70 Eastbound Peak Period Shoulder Lanes
CDOT – Region 

1
Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Not Applicable: 
No Local 
Partner

Not 
Eligible

$31.500 M $18.000 M

1-9b I-70 Eastbound Peak Period Shoulder Lanes
CDOT – Region 

1
Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

x $2.500 M $2.000 M

1-27 SH-74 South of El Rancho Safety Shoulders
Jefferson 
County

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region
NA

Not 
Eligible

$.058 M $.058 M

1-41 State Highway Signal Upgrades - Phase I - Colfax Signals City of Denver
Under Local 

Partner Review
Under Local 

Partner Review
Under Local 

Partner Review

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region

Not 
Eligible

$.900 M $.800 M

1-42 State Highway Signal Upgrades - Phase I - Colfax Signals City of Denver
Under Local 

Partner Review
Under Local 

Partner Review
Under Local 

Partner Review

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region

Not 
Eligible

$24.900 M $.900 M

1-44
State Highway Signal Upgrades - Phase I - Santa Fe and 
Evans Traffic Signal

City of Denver
Under Local 

Partner Review
Under Local 

Partner Review
Under Local 

Partner Review

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region

Not 
Eligible

$.585 M $.500 M

1-51
Continuous Flow Metering (CFM), Weight-in-Motion 
(WIM), and Relocated Portal Attendant Stations at 
Eisenhower-Johnson Memorial Tunnel (EJMT)

CDOT Region 1
Under CDOT 

Development 
at Region

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region
NA

Not 
Eligible

$2.575 M $2.575 M

RAMP Operations

Approval Date

Selected RAMP Operations Projects - 
Attachment A

Status for Approval of RAMP Funding
Application Stage

Under CDOT Development at Region
Under Local Partner Review

Under CDOT HQ Review

Master.xlsm.xls Sum-Op 1/3/2014 6 of 909 RAMP LOC Update: Page 10 of 13



RAMP 
Tracking 
Number

Project Name (Description)
Applicant 

Name
Project Scope

Delivery 
Schedule

Budget
Local 

Commitment 
Letter

Deadline 
Extension

TC Approved 
Budget

TC Approved 
RAMP 

Request

1-53
New Traffic Signal Controllers for Congested Corridors in 
the Denver Metropolitan Area

CDOT – Region 
1 Traffic

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region
NA

Not 
Eligible

$1.060 M $1.060 M

1-54 I-76 at 88th Ave. Interchange Improvements (MP 10)
CDOT – Region 

1 Traffic

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region
NA

Not 
Eligible

$1.050 M $1.050 M

1-56 US 285 at Mount Evans Blvd./Pine Valley Rd. (MP 229)
CDOT – Region 

1 Traffic

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region
NA

Not 
Eligible

$.422 M $.422 M

1-59
SH 86 Intersection Improvement at Crowfoot Valley Rd. 
(MP 101.53)

CDOT – Region 
1 Traffic

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region
NA

Not 
Eligible

$.516 M $.516 M

1-63 I-70 at Grapevine Rd. (MP 256.0)
CDOT – Region 

1 Traffic

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region
NA

Not 
Eligible

$.189 M $.189 M

2-8 US 24 / Judge Orr Rd. Intersection Improvement
CDOT R2 

Traffic
Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

NA
Not 

Eligible
$2.000 M $2.000 M

2-9
US 50 / Dozier Ave. Intersection Improvement 
(companion project to 2-20)

CDOT R2 
Traffic

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

NA
Not 

Eligible
$1.000 M $1.000 M

2-10
US 50 / Purcell and US 50 / McCullock Intersection 
Improvement

CDOT R2 
Traffic

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region
NA

Not 
Eligible

$1.200 M $1.200 M

2-17
US 50 / 32nd Ln., US 50 / Cottonwood Ave., US 50 / 34th 
Ln. Intersection Improvements

CDOT R2 
Traffic

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

NA
Not 

Eligible
$1.500 M $1.500 M

3-33 I-70 Vail Chain Station Improvements CDOT
Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

NA
Not 

Eligible
$4.500 M $4.500 M

3-34 I-70 Glenwood Canyon Variable Speed Signing CDOT
Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

NA
Not 

Eligible
$2.200 M $2.200 M

Master.xlsm.xls Sum-Op 1/3/2014 7 of 909 RAMP LOC Update: Page 11 of 13



RAMP 
Tracking 
Number

Project Name (Description)
Applicant 

Name
Project Scope

Delivery 
Schedule

Budget
Local 

Commitment 
Letter

Deadline 
Extension

TC Approved 
Budget

TC Approved 
RAMP 

Request

4-13 Adaptive Signal Control - US85 Greeley
CDOT Region 4 

Traffic
Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Not 
Eligible

$.750 M $.600 M

4-35
Loveland I-25 and Crossroads Blvd. Anti-Icing Spray 
System

City of 
Loveland

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Eligible $.250 M $.200 M

4-36
Loveland Road Weather Information System (RWIS) 
Update / Expansion

City of 
Loveland

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Eligible $.380 M $.304 M

4-41 Adaptive signals on US 34 Bypass in Greeley
CDOT Region 4 

Traffic
Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Not 
Eligible

$.500 M $.400 M

4-42 Fiber Optics and ITS Devices on I-76
CDOT Region 4 

Traffic
Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

NA
Not 

Eligible
$11.000 M $5.000 M

4-44/49
Adaptive Signals on SH 119 Airport Rd. to Zlaten Dr. in 
Longmont / Adaptive Signals on SH 119: I-25 to WCR 3.5

CDOT Region 4 
Traffic

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Eligible $1.850 M $1.680 M

4-50
Fiber Optic Communication from I-25 to CDOT West 
Yard 

CDOT Region 4 
Traffic

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

NA Eligible $1.700 M $1.700 M

4-66
Adaptive Traffic Signals System along US 287 (Main St.) 
in Longmont

City of 
Longmont

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Eligible $1.760 M $1.100 M

5-3
US 160 Corridor Signalized Intersection Improvements 
and Signal Coordination

CDOT Region 5 
Traffic and 

Safety 
Program

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

Under CDOT 
HQ Review

NA
Not 

Eligible
$3.758 M $3.758 M

O-1
Fiber Optic Backbone - I-25(Pueblo to Walsenburg); and 
US 285 (C-470 to Conifer)

CDOT ITS
Under CDOT 

Development 
at Region

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region
NA

Not 
Eligible

$3.500 M $3.500 M

O-2 I-70 Mountain Corridor Wireless Improvement CDOT ITS
Under CDOT 

Development 
at Region

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region
NA

Not 
Eligible

$5.300 M $1.700 M

Master.xlsm.xls Sum-Op 1/3/2014 8 of 909 RAMP LOC Update: Page 12 of 13



RAMP 
Tracking 
Number

Project Name (Description)
Applicant 

Name
Project Scope

Delivery 
Schedule

Budget
Local 

Commitment 
Letter

Deadline 
Extension

TC Approved 
Budget

TC Approved 
RAMP 

Request

O-3 CDOT ITS Information Kiosks- Pilot Project CDOT ITS
Under CDOT 

Development 
at Region

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region
NA

Not 
Eligible

$.480 M $.480 M

O-4 Regional Satellite Solar Powered Cameras (LiveView) CDOT ITS
Under CDOT 

Development 
at Region

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region
NA

Not 
Eligible

$1.750 M $1.750 M

O-6 Enhanced Traffic Incident Management Software CDOT ITS
Under CDOT 

Development 
at Region

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region

Under CDOT 
Development 

at Region
NA

Not 
Eligible

$7.000 M $3.000 M

$118.633 M $65.642 MTOTAL: Operations Projects

Master.xlsm.xls Sum-Op 1/3/2014 9 of 909 RAMP LOC Update: Page 13 of 13



STATE OF COLORADO 
 

 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
 
 
 
 

“Taking Care To Get You There” 

 
DATE: January 7, 2014    
TO:  Transportation Commission 
FROM: Anthony R. DeVito, Region 1 Transportation Director  
SUBJECT: Westbound Twin Tunnel Widening: Why Now? 
 
Purpose: 
The purpose of this memorandum is to summarize the presentation to be made to the 
Transportation Commission on January 16th, presenting a business case for proceeding with a 
Westbound (WB) Twin Tunnel Widening project now. 
 
Action Requested: 
Allocate $48 Million of the returned HPTE RAMP funds. 
  
Key Benefits: 
CDOT has an opportunity to capitalize on efficiencies and knowledge gained over the last 
two years with the Eastbound (EB) Twin Tunnel Widening project.  Widening the westbound 
bore can never be done cheaper than today and while the economy of scale argument is valid 
for many transportation projects—what is unique about this project is the specialized nature 
of tunnel projects.  Widening the bore now opens the opportunity to implement relatively low 
cost operational improvements and better positions the corridor for possible future private 
investment.  

• Efficiencies and Cost Savings  
o Cost Savings ~$6 M in the following areas: 

 Mobilization  
 Efficiencies with Portal-to-Portal road 

o Other Efficiencies 
 Same tunnel expertise available 
 Same contractor and construction management staff available 
 Utilize Eastbound Twin Tunnel Environmental Clearance information 

for Westbound clearance 
 Streamlined Context Sensitive Solutions process 

• Detour Availability 
o Proven to operate safely and effectively 
o Provides safety benefits to the traveling public and construction personnel 

• Impact Savings to the Public 
o In the future, WB Bore widening would require a two-season construction 

schedule due to loss of detour; if conducted now, project could be finished in 
one season. 

o Blasting impacts would require substantial stops (20 min stops plus additional 
time to clear the queue) in both east and westbound direction; if conducted 
now, eastbound traffic would release with 10 minutes after blast (as was seen 
with EB Twin Tunnel blasting). 

10 Twin Tunnels Workshop: Page 1 of 14



 

2 
 

o Future WB Bore widening would require EB Peak Period Shoulder Lane 
(PPSL) to shut down during construction; if conducted now, WB Bore 
construction would happen simultaneously as EB PPSL construction. 

• Safety Benefits: 
o The widened WB tunnel will eliminate the “black hole” effect that causes 

motorists to slow as they approach the existing, tightly constrained tunnel. 
o New portal design provides added rockfall protection 
o Widened bore will provide shoulders. 

• WB bore widening creates opportunity for WB operational improvements. 
• Capitalize on the success of and knowledge gained from EB Twin Tunnel Project. 

o Even with a construction project of this magnitude, I-70 traffic volumes 
higher than previous two summer seasons.  

• Strong Community Support 
 
Next Steps:  
Transportation Commission discussion and decision on January 16th.  
 
If funding is approved, anticipate project progression similar to EB Twin Tunnel Project: 

• Environmental Clearance completed by Spring 2014 
• Construction to start Spring 2014 
• Construction complete end of year 2014 

 
Also included is a Draft Memorandum of Understanding between CDOT, Clear Creek 
County and the City of Idaho Springs which provides a principal path forward in the short 
and mid-term for key improvements on I-70, including but not limited to widening of the WB 
Bore. 
 
Attachments: 
Draft Memorandum of Understanding between Clear Creek County, the City of Idaho 
Springs and the Colorado Department of Transportation 

10 Twin Tunnels Workshop: Page 2 of 14



 

1 
 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
BETWEEN CLEAR CREEK COUNTY, CITY OF IDAHO SPRINGS AND THE 

COLORADO DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
 
 This Memorandum of Understanding, dated _____________, 2013 (“Agreement”), is by 
and between Clear Creek County, Colorado, a statutory county acting by and through its 
Board of County Commissioners (“CCC”), the City of Idaho Springs, Colorado, a statutory 
city (“City”), and the Colorado Department of Transportation, an executive agency of the 
state of Colorado (“CDOT,” and, together with CCC and City, the “Parties”). 
 

Recitals 
 
 WHEREAS, after years of study by the Federal Highway Administration (“FHWA”), 
CDOT, and the stakeholders in the I-70 Mountain Corridor, including extensive community 
process, to identify improvements to I-70 that would improve transportation and the quality 
of life in the I-70 Mountain Corridor, the I-70 Mountain Corridor Final Programmatic 
Environmental Impact Statement (“PEIS”) and Record of Decision (“ROD”) describing a 
preferred alternative for improvements in the Corridor were approved in 2011; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Parties have participated in discussions since the ROD was issued to 
identify appropriate improvements to accommodate transportation and community needs 
which are consistent with the PEIS and ROD; and 
 
 WHEREAS, among them are a tolled managed peak period shoulder lane in both 
directions between the Twin Tunnels at Idaho Springs and Empire Junction; and 
 
 WHEREAS, under current Colorado law, the Colorado High Performance Transportation 
Enterprise (HPTE) is responsible for certain tolled lanes, and is required to use funds derived 
from managed lanes and other tolling arrangements in the corridor in which they were 
derived; and 
 
 WHEREAS, this Agreement reflects a shared vision between the Parties for the future of 
the I-70 Corridor within Clear Creek County and the City that is consistent with the PEIS and 
ROD; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Parties intend that this Agreement form the basis for implementing that 
vision for the I-70 Corridor within Clear Creek County and the City; and 
 

10 Twin Tunnels Workshop: Page 3 of 14



 

2 
 

 WHEREAS, the City and CDOT also intend that this Agreement form the basis for 
completing the long-planned improvements to Colorado Boulevard (Business I-70) and 
devolution of ownership to the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the parties are authorized to enter into this Agreement by Article XI, Section 
7, and Article XIV, Section 18, of the Colorado Constitution, and Section 29-1-203 of the 
Colorado Revised Statutes, as amended. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements stated 
herein, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is 
hereby acknowledged by the Parties, the Parties agree as follows: 

 
Section I Purpose:   

The purpose of the MOU is to outline a mutually acceptable basis for moving ahead with 
certain improvements on the Interstate 70 (I-70) Mountain Corridor, within Clear Creek 
County, to enhance safety and the travel experience, while preserving the values of the 
corridor’s communities. The MOU provides a principal path forward in the short and mid-
term and does not exclude other mutually acceptable improvements which are permissible 
under the PEIS and ROD.  

Section II: Integrated Plan of Improvements: 

All projects listed in this Section constitute a package, representing the parties’ commitment 
to an integrated plan of improvements for I-70 consistent with the I-70 Mountain Corridor 
Final Programmatic Environmental Impact Statement (PEIS) and Record of Decision ROD. 
All projects or proposed projects in this section are required to comply with the I-70 
Mountain Corridor Final PEIS and ROD (unless noted otherwise), applicable Federal laws 
and regulations including but not limited to the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA), 
the I-70 Mountain Corridor Context Sensitive Solution (CSS) Process (unless noted 
otherwise), comply with CSS Design Criteria for Engineering and Aesthetic Guidelines when 
feasible (when not feasible, CDOT will obtain the appropriate Design Variance approval 
from Federal Highway Administration (FHWA)) and will follow the Design Exception 
Process noted in the Design Criteria for Engineering 
(http://www.coloradodot.info/projects/contextsensitivesolutions/design/design-criteria.html)  
and are subject to local permitting requirements.   The Parties agree to cooperate to 
implement the following program of improvements for I-70 and other commitments within 
Clear Creek County: 

 

 

10 Twin Tunnels Workshop: Page 4 of 14

http://www.coloradodot.info/projects/contextsensitivesolutions/design/design-criteria.html


 

3 
 

A. Short Term (Two to Three Year) Timeframe:  

1. Eastbound (EB) Express Toll Peak Period Shoulder Lane (PPSL): Empire Junction 
to Twin Tunnels: continue CSS Process already underway for EB PPSL Project.  The 
parties agree to:  

• A PPSL is intended to operate only during periods of peak traffic, during only 
parts of the year, to be further defined in the Operational Agreement discussed 
below. 

• Implement the project to remain a two-lane highway with shoulders within the 
existing footprint where feasible. 

o Where not feasible CDOT will work through the CSS process to develop a 
solution.  

• Minimize infrastructure and throwaway work where feasible. 
• The SH 103 and Exit 241 bridges over I-70 will need replacement, and will be 

designed to accommodate anticipated future improvements.   
• Implement required mitigation (including mitigation of impacts identified in any 

level of NEPA or CDOT environmental review process including Categorical 
Exclusion) for identified impacts in the project area.  

• Seek reasonable enhancement opportunities with direct nexus to project, 
consideration of budget and consideration of the interim nature of the project.  

o CDOT will provide agreed upon enhancements determined through the 
CSS Process at the Charlie Tayler Water Wheel Park due to impacts from 
I-70 widening. 

o The City of Idaho Springs will continue to be responsible for the 
maintenance of the Charlie Tayler Water Wheel Park after enhancements 
are constructed. 

• If necessary, CCC and Idaho Springs will provide CDOT a letter allowing for 
temporary occupancy of the Greenway and other recreational resources in their 
jurisdiction during PPSL construction. 

• As part of the Eastbound PPSL project, CDOT agrees to provide, under a separate 
Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA), $2 million and Clear Creek County 
$500,000 for a total of $2.5 million for the design of the Clear Creek County 
Greenway from MP 241 to Empire Junction. 

o Greenway project will be managed by Clear Creek County with CDOT 
oversight and is subject to a separate IGA.  

o Any cost overruns specific to the Greenway project will be the 
responsibility of Clear Creek County. Funding was approved by the 
Transportation Commission in October 2013. 

10 Twin Tunnels Workshop: Page 5 of 14



 

4 
 

• CDOT will conduct a local road network operational analysis to investigate 
options for Clear Creek County to operate the local roads for enhanced local 
mobility during congested times on I-70. 

• CDOT will submit Field Inspection Report (FIR) level (approximately 30% 
design level) plans and any additional information for County and City 1041 
permit applications. 

• The Parties will continue to discuss local permitting variance processes and ways 
to expedite the 1041 process. 

• Develop an EB PPSL Operational Agreement to outline the operating protocols of 
the shoulder lanes and review periods. 

o This PPSL Operational Agreement will be executed between FHWA, 
CDOT, HPTE, CCC and Idaho Springs and include elements agreed to 
through the CSS process. 
 The Parties to the PPSL Operational Agreement will collect data 

annually and will periodically re-assess the PPSL operation. 
 Consideration of PPSL closure due to adverse weather and 

incidents 
 Consideration of emergency response 
 The PPSL Operational Agreement must be in place prior to project 

advertisement.  
• CDOT, through the HPTE, shall be responsible for managing toll rates in the 

PPSL and the inside lane of the new EB three lane section from Exit 241 to Floyd 
Hill to maintain toll express lane mobility. 

Project Timeframe: Funding approved by the Transportation Commission October 2013, 
Project Open to Traffic by July 2015. 

The Parties further agree the Eastbound PPSL meets the definition of non-infrastructure 
related components under the I-70 Mountain Corridor ROD and the Final PEIS. The 
Parties acknowledge the FHWA is the responsible agency and has the authority to 
determine compatibility with the ROD, and it has determined this project is a non-
infrastructure related component. 

2. Westbound Twin Tunnel Widening: The parties acknowledge that widening the WB 
Twin Tunnel while the EB Twin Tunnel construction detour is in place will be beneficial 
to CDOT and local communities. General project elements include tunnel widening, 
necessary rock cuts to minimize rockfall and accommodate construction staging and 
portal completion and; minimal roadway design and construction to accommodate WB I-
70 traffic detour.  Tunnel widening will accommodate three-lanes at some future date; 
opening day roadway template would remain a two-lane highway with shoulders. The 
Parties agree to:   

10 Twin Tunnels Workshop: Page 6 of 14



 

5 
 

• Continued use of CR 314/ Game Check Area to accommodate EB Interstate 70 
traffic detour 

o CCC will provide CDOT a letter allowing for the temporary occupancy 
of SL Memorial Trail, Game Check Area and any other recreational 
resources that may be impacted. 

• Consideration of Project as next phase of Eastbound Twin Tunnel Project and 
thus a continuation of that Project’s CSS Process.  

o The intent is to avoid duplication of effort in CSS and adhere to previously 
agreed to design and other tunnel elements incorporated in the EB Twin 
Tunnel project.  

• Continue to implement adaptive mitigation principles from the EB Twin Tunnels 
NEPA document. For example, there would be no need to monitor air quality 
because we now have enough data to know that air quality impacts due to blasting 
are negligible.  

• The parties understand current EB Twin Tunnel Construction Package 3 is 
delayed until after WB Bore completion.   

o Elements of Twin Tunnel Construction Package 3 include: 
decommissioning of detour on CR 314, restoration of CR 314 and 
Greenway, enhancements to the game check area, stream enhancements, 
and retaining wall aesthetic treatment. 

o Clear Creek County will be held harmless for any additional costs above 
$1.35 million for Game Check enhancements resulting from the 
construction delay. 

o Improvements identified in EB Twin Tunnel Construction Package 3 will 
be implemented no later than December 2015. 

• CDOT will submit FIR level plans (approximately 30% design level) and any 
additional information for County and City 1041 permit applications. 

•  The Parties will continue to discuss local permitting variance processes and ways 
to expedite the 1041 process. 

Project Timeframe: Prep-work starting in February 2014, with full construction April – 
December 2014. EB Twin Tunnel Construction Package 3: no later than December 2015. 

The Parties further agree the Westbound Twin Tunnels widening is a component of the 
“specific highway improvements” under the I-70 Mountain Corridor ROD and the Final 
PEIS. The Parties acknowledge the FHWA is the responsible agency and has the 
authority to determine compatibility with the ROD. 

3. Idaho Springs Colorado Boulevard (I-70 B) Devolution- Project consists of 
improvements to Colorado Boulevard from Exit 241 to the west and includes 
improvement to SH103 between I-70 and Colorado Boulevard and devolution of 
Colorado Boulevard to the City of Idaho Springs. This project is not identified in the 
Preferred Alternative in the PEIS ROD and is not subject to the CSS process; however 

10 Twin Tunnels Workshop: Page 7 of 14



 

6 
 

CDOT will continue to work closely with the City of Idaho Springs as project is designed 
and implemented. The City of Idaho Springs agrees to allow CDOT to submit FIR level 
plans (approximately 30% design level) for the 1041 permit application. Project funding 
was approved by Transportation Commission in October 2013. Project will be subject to 
a separate IGA. 

Project Timeframe: CDOT’s intent is to finish design on Phase 3 which will be 
consolidated with the existing Phase 2 design and advertised as a single project. CDOT 
will coordinate with the city to determine best project delivery method and associated 
project construction schedule. Anticipate advertisement for construction Spring 2015.  

B. Mid-Term Projects (> Three Years): 

1. Westbound I-70 PPSL: The Parties agree a Westbound I-70 PPSL project from Twin 
Tunnels to Empire Junction will be implemented as the mid-term project when funded.  
Any westbound construction between Empire and Idaho Springs will not exceed the 
scope of the EB PPSL project.  A Westbound PPSL project will minimize infrastructure 
and throwaway work and implement within existing footprint where feasible and 
considered an interim improvement.  The Westbound PPSL will incorporate peak period 
toll operations similar to the EB PPSL. The parties will pursue funding opportunities, 
including the potential of furthering the development of Clear Creek County’s Greenway 
plan. The Parties agree a Westbound PPSL concept meets the definition of non-
infrastructure related components under the I-70 Mountain Corridor ROD and the Final 
PEIS. The Parties acknowledge the FHWA is the responsible agency and has the 
authority to determine compatibility with the PEIS ROD.  FHWA would make such 
determination after project initiation.   

2. Westbound I- 70 Floyd Hill: Parties agree to investigate funding opportunities to 
advance improvements as defined in the I-70 Mountain Corridor PEIS ROD (in total or in 
part) on WB I-70 from the top of Floyd Hill to Twin Tunnels. Elements include widening 
to three lanes, improving the design speed of both eastbound and westbound I-70, 
replacement of the bridge at the bottom of Floyd Hill, interchange reconstruction at US 6 
Clear Creek Canyon, and Phase 2 of the Greenway and Frontage Road (CR 314 from Exit 
241 to 243).    The third lane will be operated as an express toll lane during peak periods. 

C. Other Considerations: 

• Use of Excess Revenue from EB PPSL: Excess revenue is defined as revenue 
received by the HPTE from tolls above and beyond that required to operate, 
maintain, reconstruct and finance the PPSL and is required to stay on the corridor. 
The parties agree to further explore the implementation of a process whereby at 
such time excess revenue exists, Clear Creek County, the City of Idaho Springs, 
CDOT and HPTE discuss prioritization and use of excess revenue.  

10 Twin Tunnels Workshop: Page 8 of 14



 

7 
 

• As noted in the  Twin Tunnels Finding of No Significant Impact and Section 4(f) 
Finding (October 2012), the parties understand and agree the third lane added as 
part of the EB Twin Tunnel Lane from Exit 241 to Floyd Hill is intended to 
operate as a Peak Period Express Toll Lane.  Toll operations are anticipated to 
begin as early as July 2015 and no later than 2017. 

• CDOT will continue to explore demonstration opportunities for noise abatement 
at Lawson. This is consistent with the implementation recommendations found in 
CDOT Department of Transportation Development’s (DTD) recently completed  
research study entitled: Investigation into Effective Traffic Noise Abatement 
Design Solutions for Mountain Corridors (July 2013).  

D.  Other Project Elements For All Projects Except Colorado Boulevard: 
 

• If a managed lane or other pay-for-use lane is to be added in the project areas, 
CDOT shall ensure that the free lanes are kept and maintained in at least the same 
state of repair as the managed or pay-for-use lanes. 
 

• If a managed or other form of pay-for-use lane is to be added in the Corridor, the 
Parties will follow the requirements established under all applicable provisions of 
Article 4 of Title 43, Part 8 of Colorado Revised Statutes, including specifically 
the requirements established under §43-4-808(3) thereof. 

 
Section III.  Implementation and Funding: 
 

A. Funding exists and is committed for the Westbound Twin Tunnel Bore Widening, 
Eastbound Peak Period Shoulder Lane, the Idaho Springs Colorado Boulevard (I-70B) 
Devolution, and the completion of the Twin Tunnels Projects.   

 
B. CDOT has committed to Phase 2 of the Frontage Road Projects in the Frontage Road 

IGA and the November  2012, MOA. 
 

C. CDOT intends to execute the devolution of Colorado Blvd through the RAMP process 
and per formalized agreement with the City of Idaho Springs. 

 
D. The parties agree to use their best efforts to fund and implement the Westbound Peak 

Period Shoulder Lane and Westbound I-70 from Floyd Hill to Twin Tunnels Projects 
covered in this Agreement.  This shall include efforts to include the proposed 
improvements in Section I on the Fiscally Constrained Regional Transportation Plan and 
develop an overall plan of finance. 

 
E. Nothing in this Agreement shall obligate either of the Parties to unfunded mid-term 

projects. However, if any such projects are undertaken, they shall follow the design and 
operational principles and conditions identified in Section 2 of this Agreement. 

 
 

10 Twin Tunnels Workshop: Page 9 of 14



 

8 
 

 
 
Section IV. Permits: 
 
This Agreement is not an agreement by the County or the City to issue permits for any Project.  
All Projects are subject to whatever local permitting requirements are or may become applicable. 
 
Section VI.  Financial Obligations: 
 
None of the obligations imposed upon any Party by this Agreement constitutes an indebtedness 
or multiple fiscal year financial obligation of such Party within the meaning of any 
constitutional, statutory, or charter limitation or provision.  This Agreement shall not directly or 
indirectly obligate any Party to make any payments.  All financial obligations between the 
Parties will be encumbered under separate Intergovernmental Agreements.  The officer of each 
Party at any time charged with the responsibility of formulating budget proposals for such Party 
is hereby directed to include in the annual budget proposal submitted to its respective governing 
body, in any year in which this Agreement shall be in effect, items for all payments required by 
such Party for the ensuing year under this Agreement.  Notwithstanding this directive regarding 
the formulation of budget proposals, it is the intention of each Party that any decision to effect an 
appropriation for the payment of any amounts required to be paid by such Party in the ensuing 
year under this Agreement shall be made solely by its governing body.   
          
Section VII. Effective Date: 
 
This MOU becomes effective when funding is approved for WB Tunnel for construction in 
2014. 
 

FOR THE COLORADO DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION 
 
 
Donald E. Hunt 
Executive Director 
 
FOR THE CITY OF IDAHO SPRINGS 
 
 
Michael Hillman 
Mayor 
 
FOR CLEAR CREEK COUNTY 
 
Tim Mauck 
Chairman, Board of County Commissioners 

10 Twin Tunnels Workshop: Page 10 of 14



Transportation Commission Workshop

January 16, 2013

Westbound Twin Tunnel Widening: Why Now?

Project Overview: Widen Westbound (WB) Twin Tunnel 

Estimated Cost: $55 Million

Commission Request: Allocate $48 Million of the 
Returned HPTE RAMP Funds 

WB Twin Tunnel Widening: Why Now?

• Efficiencies and Cost Savings

• Detour Availability 

• Impact to the Public

• Sets the stage for  future WB Operational Improvements

• Build on Success of Eastbound (EB) Twin Tunnel Project

Cost Savings 
($6 million construction plus user costs)

• Mobilization Savings:

» Tunneling Equipment (over $650k)

» Electrical Equipment (nearly $1 million)

» Water Supply / Wastewater Treatment ($350k)

» Tunnel Forms, Gantries, Canopies ($200k)

» Mobilization Indirects (over $200k)

• Efficiencies with Portal-to-Portal Road ($3M to $4M)

• The user cost savings of doing the work now versus in the future 
could easily be in the tens of millions.

• No lost revenues due to a future year without EB Peak Period 
Shoulder Lane (PPSL).

10 Twin Tunnels Workshop: Page 11 of 14



Tunnel Rebar Gantries (left) and Tunnel 
Lining Forms (Right) Other Efficiencies

• The WB tunnel and rock conditions are identical 
to the EB tunnel.

• Same tunnel design & expertise available.

• Same contractor/blaster and construction 
management staff available.

• Utilize EB Environmental Assessment  
information for WB CatEX.

• Streamlined Context Sensitive Solutions process.

EB Twin Tunnel Detour Route and
Portal-to-Portal Road Utilization of Existing Detour

• Provides safety benefits to the traveling public 
and construction personnel.

• Detour has proven it can operate safely.

• Head-to-head traffic in EB tunnel would not be 
necessary.

• Larger buffer between WB tunnel portal work.

• Project personnel and equipment wouldn’t mix 
with I-70 traffic.

10 Twin Tunnels Workshop: Page 12 of 14



Impacts to Traveling Public Future vs. Now

Future Construction

• Two Season construction 
timeframe

• Blasting impacts greater: 
EB & WB (~30 min hold)

• Requires EB Peak Period 
Shoulder Lane to shut 
down during construction

Construction Now

• Construction in One 
Season

• EB traffic would release 
~10 min 

• Construction would 
happen simultaneously 
as EB PPSL construction

Additional Benefits

• Safety Benefits:

» The widened WB tunnel will eliminate the “black hole” 
effect that causes motorists to slow as they approach 
the existing, tightly constrained tunnel.

» New portal design provides added rockfall protection.

» Widened Bore will provide shoulders.

• Widened bore enables low cost, high benefit operational 
improvements such as WB Peak Period Shoulder Lanes.

Eastbound Twin Tunnel Project Success

• Opened to Traffic December 12, 2013 

• One Season Construction

• Detour Route 

• Portal to Portal Road

• Community Support

• Higher Interstate volumes then prior two summer seasons 
with a major construction project

10 Twin Tunnels Workshop: Page 13 of 14



Estimated Cost & Project Schedule

• Region has worked with Kraemer -Obayashi Joint 
Venture and this additional phase would require an 
additional $55 Million.

• Expedited Environmental Clearance and final design will 
allow for April 1 commencement and 8 month delivery 
schedule.

• Region committing $7M of FY 15 RPP.

• Request Commission to reallocate $48M from returned 
HPTE RAMP funds.

WB Twin Tunnel Widening: Why Now?

QUESTIONS?

10 Twin Tunnels Workshop: Page 14 of 14



Transportation Commission 
January 16, 2013 

Meeting Schedule & Agenda 
4201 East Arkansas Avenue 

Denver, Colorado 80222 
 

Douglas E. Aden, Chairman 
Grand Junction, District 7 

 
Shannon Gifford 

Denver, District 1 
Ed Peterson, Vice Chairman 

Lakewood, District 2 
Gary M. Reiff 

Englewood, District 3 
Heather Barry 

Westminster, District 4 
Kathleen Gilliland 

Livermore, District 5 
 
 

Kathy Connell 
Steamboat Springs, District 6 

Sidny Zink 
Durango, District 8 

Les Gruen 
Colorado Springs, District 9 

William Thiebaut 
Pueblo, District 10 
Steven Hofmeister 

Haxtun, District 11 
 

        THE CHAIRMAN MAY ALTER THE ITEM SEQUENCE OR TIMES 
 
The times indicated for each topic on the Commission agenda are an estimate and 
subject to change.  Generally, upon the completion of each agenda item, the 
Commission will immediately move to the next item.  However, the order of agenda 
items is tentative and, when necessary to accommodate the public or the 
Commission's schedules, the order of the agenda items is also subject to change. 
 
Documents are posted at http://www.coloradodot.info/about/transportation-
commission/meeting-agenda.html no less than 24 hours prior to the meeting.  The 
documents are considered to be in draft form and for information only until final 
action is taken by the Commission. 
 
Unless otherwise noted, all meetings are in CDOT HQ Auditorium. 
 
**************************************************** 
TRANSPORATION COMMISSION MEETING .................................... Tab 11 
 
12:15 p.m. 1. Call to Order, Roll Call 
   
12:15 p.m. 2. Audience Participation; Subject Limit: 
         10 minutes; Time Limit: 3 minutes 
 
12:15 p.m. 3. Comments of Individual Commissioners 
 
12:20 p.m. 4. Executive Director’s Report (Don Hunt)  
 
12:25 p.m. 6. HPTE Director’s Report (Michael Cheroutes) 
 
12:30 p.m. 7. FHWA Division Administrator Report (John Cater) 
 

http://www.coloradodot.info/about/transportation-commission/meeting-agenda.html
http://www.coloradodot.info/about/transportation-commission/meeting-agenda.html


12:35 p.m. 8. STAC Report (Vince Rogalski) 
 
12:40 p.m. 9. Act on Consent Agenda ........................................... Tab 12 
 

a) Resolution to approve the Regular Meeting Minutes of December 19, 
2013 (Herman Stockinger) ............................. Consent Agenda p1 
 

b) Resolution to Approve Policy Directive 600.0 on Equal Employment 
Opportunity and Affirmative Action  

   (Heidi Humphreys) ......................................... Consent Agenda p20 
 

c) Resolution to Approve Policy Directive 603.0 on Prohibiting Sexual 
Harassment (Heidi Humphreys) ..................... Consent Agenda p28 

 
d) Resolution to Approve Policy Directive 604.0 on Non-Discrimination 

and Repeal Policy Directive 611.0  
   (Herman Stockinger) ...................................... Consent Agenda p37 

 
e) Declaration of Excess Property, Parcel 33-EX, created under Project 

F006-1(2) (Myron Hora) ................................. Consent Agenda p53 
 

f) Resolution to Approve Compliance Agreement for U.S. 36 Concession 
Project (Mike Cheroutes) ................................ Consent Agenda p56 

 
12:45 p.m.  10. Discuss and Act on 8th Supplement to the FY’2014 Budget (Scott 

Richrath) ..................................................................... Tab 13 
 
12:50 p.m. 11. Discuss and Act on a Resolution for the COP for the Relocation of 

Region 4 HQ (Scott Richrath) ....................................... Tab 14 
 
1:05 p.m. 12. Discuss and Act on a Resolution for Promulgation of Permanent 

Tunnel Rules (Anthony DeVito) .................................... Tab 15 
 
1:15 p.m. 13. Discuss and Act on the Adoption of Temporary Tunnel Rules 

(Anthony DeVito) ......................................................... Tab 16 
 
1:25 p.m. 14. Discuss and Act on the Approval of the Interregional Express Bus 

Plan and Implementation (Mark Imhoff) ....................... Tab 17 
 
1:35 p.m. 15. Other Matters: 
 
1:35 p.m. 16. Acknowledgements: 
  
1:40 p.m. 17. Adjournment 
 



Transportation Commission of Colorado 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

December 19, 2013 
 

Chairman Doug Aden convened the meeting at 10:45am in the auditorium of 
the headquarters building in Denver, Colorado. 
 
PRESENT WERE:  Doug Aden, Chairman, District 7 
   Shannon Gifford, District 1 
   Ed Peterson, District 2 
   Gary Reiff, District 3 
   Heather Barry, District 4 

Kathy Gilliland, District 5 
Kathy Connell, District 6 

   Sidny Zink, District 8 
   Les Gruen, District 9 

Bill Thiebaut, District 10 
Steven Hofmeister, District 11 

 
ALSO PRESENT:  Don Hunt, Executive Director 

Scot Cuthbertson, Chief Operating Officer 
Gary Vansuch, Director of Process Improvement 
Debra Perkins-Smith, Director of Division of Transportation 
Tim Harris, Chief Engineer 
Heidi Humphreys, Director of Admin & Human Resources 
Barbara Gold, Audit Director 
Amy Ford, Public Relations Director 
Scott McDaniel, Director of Staff Services 
Soctt Richrath, CFO 
Herman Stockinger, Director of Policy and Government Relations 
Mike Cheroutes, Director of HPTE 
Mark Imhoff, Director of Division of Transit and Rail 
Ryan Rice, Director of Operations Division  
Darrell Lingk, Director of Office of Transportation Safety 
Tony DeVito, Region 1 Transportation Director 
Tom Wrona, Region 2 Transportation Director 
Dave Eller, Region 3 Transportation Director  
Johnny Olson, Region 4 Transportation Director 
Myron Hora, Acting Region 4 Transportation Director  
Kerrie Neet, Region 5 Transportation Director  
Kathy Young, Chief Transportation Counsel  
John Cater, FHWA 
Vince Rogalski, Statewide Transportation Advisory Committee 
(STAC) 

 
AND:  Other staff members, organization representatives, 

the public and the news media 
 

An electronic recording of the meeting was made and filed with supporting 
documents in the Transportation Commission office. 
  

12 Consent Agenda: Page 1 of 56



Audience Participation 
 
Chairman Aden stated that there were no members of the audience wishing to 
address the Commission. Because the meeting began early, Chairman Aden stated 
that he would return to this item at the posted time in case someone arrived who 
wanted to address the Commission. 
 
Individual Commissioner Comments 
 
Commissioner Gifford stated that Denver City and County has a number of major 
infrastructure projects that are ongoing. Commissioner Gifford joined a bus tour of 
the projects. She stated that the most difficult part of the bus tour was the 
discussion around the I-70 viaduct. Executive Director Hunt addressed everyone’s 
questions to explain the process behind the decisions and the plan for the future. 
 
Commissioner Hofmeister thanked everyone involved in the construction of the roads 
in Region 4. He stated that the crews were able to finish those roads very quickly. 
 
Commissioner Thiebaut stated that he attended the Colorado Counties, Inc., (CCI) 
winter seminar in Colorado Springs. He stated that he attended a session on funding 
and planning for transportation infrastructure and that Debra Perkins-Smith gave an 
excellent panel presentation at the session. Both she and the CDOT staff are able to 
publicly outline and state the goals and the missions of CDOT clearly. He also stated 
that many of the county commissioners want more projects in their counties but that 
on the whole there was an upbeat and positive reflection about the working 
relationship with CDOT.  
 
Commissioner Gilliland stated that people across the North Front Range were 
complimenting CDOT on the excellent job after the floods. She thanked Director Hunt 
and the Region 4 staff, as well as the Governor, for getting all the roads open by 
December 1. She stated that the Governor set that goal, and CDOT was able to make 
that happen even before December 1 due to a tremendous effort on everyone’s part. 
She extended Happy Holidays to everyone on the Commission and all of the staff and 
friends of CDOT.  
 
Commissioner Gruen echoed Commissioner Gilliland’s holiday wishes to the 
Commission and to CDOT staff.  
 
Commissioner Connell attended the opening ceremony of the Twin Tunnel with 
Director Hunt and Commissioner Peterson. She stated that she was very pleased to 
see highway patrolmen stopping trucks for illegal passing and other driving 
infractions. She also described the ease of traffic flow through the new tunnel. Only 
in the first week since opening, she has heard from multiple constituents who are 
pleased with the immediate effects of opening the tunnel. She congratulated Tony 
DeVito and all CDOT staff who were involved in the project. 
 
Commissioner Barry complimented her district, stating that the opening of the Old 
Wadsworth Bridge in Broomfield has made the drive safer, healthier for the 
community, more visually appealing and faster. She stated that work is commencing 
on I-25 and that she is hearing great things about that project. These projects are 
making a big difference in traffic in the region. She complimented the work on the 

12 Consent Agenda: Page 2 of 56



Tunnel project and stated that several people have stopped by her office to praise the 
opening of the tunnel and the difference it has made in travel times. She also wished 
everyone Happy Holidays. 
 
Commissioner Peterson stated that he also attended the opening ceremony at the 
Twin Tunnels on December 7, 2013. He now wants to leverage this for a like project 
in the area. He thanked his fellow Commissioners and CDOT staff for all the excellent 
work over the past year. He wished everyone a merry Christmas and happy holiday 
season. 
 
Chairman Aden stated that Executive Director Hunt, RTD Dave Eller and some of the 
staff from Region 3 attended the Grand Junction MPO meeting. He stated that he 
attended the annual legislative meetings, including the Joint Budget Committee 
(JBC) hearing and the joint meeting with the House and Senate Transportation 
Committees to review CDOT’s progress in terms the SMART Act and performance 
goals. CDOT received very positive feedback. He thanked Kurt Morrison for a great 
job done at the legislature.   
 
Executive Director’s Report: 
 
Executive Director Hunt stated that CDOT employees across the state gave their time 
and spent weeks in the Incident Command Center in order to meet the December 1 
deadline. He stated that when he and the Governor promised that all 225 miles of 
closed roadways would be open on December 1, he was not convinced it could 
happen. But they made sure everyone had the resources necessary and found the 
commitment across the state to make it happen. He thanked Region 4 and all CDOT 
employees who made the Department look tremendously good in the eyes of all the 
customers.  
 
He stated that CDOT had a very good year and capped it off with the opening of the 
Twin Tunnels. He stated that the Tunnel Project opened the imagination to what a 
little money can do to move CDOT into the future. He stated that he is struck by the 
difference between the new and the old tunnels. The state built the old tunnels in 
1961, and since then, the population of Colorado has grown from 1.5 million to 5.3 
million. CDOT is now working with Clear Creek County and Idaho Springs to find a 
way forward with a Memorandum of Understanding. The memorandum will be topic 
of discussion at the Commission meeting in January 2014, and the Commission will 
look at ways to possibly find some money once again to accelerate projects in the I-70 
Mountain Corridor.  
 
He stated that between flood recovery, road openings and Twin Tunnel openings, the 
PR and Communications staff led by Amy Ford has stayed very busy. It is important 
to celebrate these events so that people do not forget the victories. He thanked that 
office for their many successful events.  There is an upcoming one on January 6, 
2014, at the new Colorado History Museum where the Governor will recognize 
employees from multiple departments that helped with the flood response.  
 
He stated, as Chairman Aden previously did, that they attended the JBC meeting and 
the Transportation Committee meetings. The meetings went very well. He thanked 
Chairman Aden for attending all those meetings to demonstrate the strong leadership 

12 Consent Agenda: Page 3 of 56



at CDOT. Chairman Aden was recognized at the JBC for his lengthy tenure and 
commitment to public service.  
 
Executive Director Hunt recognized Mindy Crane for her twelve years of dedicated 
service at CDOT because she is going to work at the Denver International Airport.  
 
Chairman Aden echoed Director Hunt’s recognition of Mindy Crane and wished her 
the very best. 
 
Chief Engineer’s Report: 
 
Tim Harris stated that he signed a letter in August congratulating an employee for 20 
years of experience. He had planned to present it in the September Commission 
meeting, but this employee was unable to attend the September Commission 
meeting. He presented the certificate to Johnny Olson for his dedicated service to 
CDOT. 
 
High Performance Transportation Enterprise (HPTE) Director’s Report  
 
Michael Cheroutes stated that the HPTE Board met December 18, 2013, and elected 
permanent officers. During the meeting, the Board discussed US 36, and the Board 
plans to update the Commission on this project in January 2014. They discussed 1-
70E, I-25N, C470 and the Beltway and budget actions. They all look forward to a 
successful 2014. He wished everyone Happy Holidays. 
 
FHWA Division Administrator Report 
 
John Cater stated that the planning video for the Statewide Transportation Plan has 
garnered the attention in other states like Washington and can serve as a model for 
them. He congratulated all CDOT staff who contributed to the project. 
 
He stated that CDOT has received $30 million in emergency funds and should receive 
another $110 million before the end of the year. Another allocation should be 
available in April.  
 
He then recognized Mindy Crane and Tim Harris for their CDOT years of service.  
 
He also recognized Doug Bennett who has been in the Federal Highways office since 
1995. Doug Bennett was the Assistant Division Administrator (ADA). He was 
currently the second-longest serving ADA in the country. He has been a tremendous 
asset. He has received the Administrator’s Award and the Secretary’s Award a 
combination of four times and recently received a Distinguished Service Award from 
the Executive Director. John Cater wished him the best in retirement and thanked 
him for his service. 
 
Chairman Aden also thanked Doug Bennett for his service.  
 
 
 
 
 

12 Consent Agenda: Page 4 of 56



Audience Participation 
 
Chairman Aden returned to the request Audience Participation since the listed time 
had arrived. Chairman Aden stated that there were no members of the audience 
wishing to address the Commission. 
 
STAC Report  
 
Vince Rogalski stated that STAC met on December 13, 2014. Tim Harris updated the 
RAMP list of commitment letters. Tim Harris also discussed the Portfolio Management 
System in relation to the budget, the floods and RAMP. 
 
The Colorado legislative session begins in January 2014, and CDOT is sponsoring 
two bills dealing with outdoor advertising and flagger training. Herman Stockinger 
told the STAC that CDOT submitted a $1.6 million capital request for lighting in the 
Hanging Lakes Tunnel.  
 
Mark Imhoff gave the STAC the same presentation that the Commission received 
during an earlier workshop on the Interregional Express Bus. STAC discussed 
commercial advertising and weekend trips. The STAC recommended to the 
Commission to move forward with the Interregional Express Bus.  
 
STAC discussed the Statewide Plan, and Sandi Kohrs provided a presentation on 
PD14. STAC discussed the goals and the aspirational goals. They also discussed 
Program Distribution, and how it will work to meet the goals of PD14. Scott Richrath 
provided information regarding RAMP, the funding and when it expires. He explained 
that when RAMP expires there will be a need for TRANS Bonds to fill in if the CDOT 
wants to keep the same level of programming.  
 
STAC subcommittee and STAC approved distribution for various programs, but they 
were stuck on the formula for CMAQ distribution. The formula that the 
subcommittee originally recommended was 100% population, figuring that pollution 
is not regulated to state highways but all roads in the area. The old formula was 50% 
population and 50% Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT). After lengthy discussion, the STAC 
recommended 75% population and 25% VMT to move forward with the CMAQ 
program.  
 
Debra Perkins-Smith provided an update on RPP and the fact that the Commission 
moved forward in November to make the program $50 million. She stated that the 
45-40-15 formula is only approved for one year and that the Commission will look at 
this formula over the next year to see if it there is a more appropriate one. One of the 
comments was that when STAC begins to look at the elements of the formula, they 
will need to take a statewide perspective.  
 
The final item at the STAC meeting was the FY’2013 reallocations. STAC 
recommended to continue with staff recommendations, which the Commission 
discussed in the morning workshops. 
 
Act on Consent Agenda 
 

12 Consent Agenda: Page 5 of 56



Chairman Aden stated that Commissioner Reiff requested Item E be removed from 
the Consent Agenda for further discussion. 
 
Commissioner Connell moved to approve Items A, B, C and D on the Consent 
Agenda. Commissioner Gruen seconded the motion. On a vote of the Commission, 
the Consent Agenda Items A, B, C and D were unanimously approved. 
 
Resolution #TC-3116 
 
BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED, that the Transportation Commission’s Regular Meeting 
Minutes of November 20, 2013, are hereby approved as published in the official 
agenda of December 18 & 19, 2013.  
 
  

12 Consent Agenda: Page 6 of 56



 
Resolution #TC-3117 
 

 
 
  

12 Consent Agenda: Page 7 of 56



Resolution #TC-3118 
 

 
 
  

12 Consent Agenda: Page 8 of 56



Resolution #TC-3119 
 

 
 

 
 
  

12 Consent Agenda: Page 9 of 56



Discuss and Act on the Use of CMAQ Funds in FY’14-17 for CNG Station and 
Vehicles and Alternative Fuel Advancements 
 
Chairman Aden asked Commissioner Reiff to address Item E on the Consent Agenda, 
and Commissioner Reiff stated that Debra Perkins-Smith prepared an explanation of 
the resolution. 
 
Debra Perkins-Smith stated that the proposal was discussed in workshop in 
November 2013. It had also been discussed in STAC previously. She stated that Tom 
Hunt from the Colorado Energy Office was in attendance to answer any specific 
questions for the Commission. This proposal by the Colorado Energy Office is to 
develop a CNG program through the opportunities in MAP-21, which allows the state 
to use CMAQ funding for this purpose throughout the state. CDOT worked with the 
Colorado Energy Office to develop a program, which has been approved through 
STAC. It is $30 million over four years for the statewide program to be developed.  
 
Commissioner Reiff asked Deb Perkins-Smith if DRCOG had approved the 
recommendation. She stated that DRCOG agreed with the recommendation but 
requested two elements in a letter to the Governor. The first was that electric vehicles 
also be allowed to recharge at the CNG stations, or that the option at least be 
explored. The second was that older vehicles be taken off the road and replaced for 
CNG rather than new vehicles. She stated that these are both elements that can be 
looked at or accommodated in the program that is being developed. There is one 
request from STAC that was included in the resolution that there is an Advisory 
Committee. Some communities, such as Weld County, have extensive experience with 
this, and the STAC thought they could be helpful in the development process. 
 
Commissioner Reiff asked if STAC also supports the resolution, and Deb Perkins-
Smith affirmed that they did. 
Chairman Aden entertained a motion to approve the resolution. Commissioner 
Gilliland moved to approve Consent Agenda Item E, and Commissioner Peterson 
seconded the motion. By vote of the Commission, the resolution was unanimously 
approved. 
 
  

12 Consent Agenda: Page 10 of 56



Resolution #TC-3120 
 

 
 

12 Consent Agenda: Page 11 of 56



 
 
Discuss and Act on the 7th Supplement to the FY2014 Budget 
 
Scott Richrath stated that as he mentioned during an earlier workshop on PD703, 
the staff would err on the side of caution, bringing items before the entire 
Commission that have already been presented in Asset Management Committee 
meetings. The documents differentiate between those items that have been presented 
previously and newly presented items. He requested confirmation of approval for 
previously presented ones. 
 
He highlighted that as the Department transitions into cash management; they will 
begin to present this information to the Commission in a different format. 
Presentations have formerly been in “Year of Budget” format, and they will now be in 
“Year of Cash Expenditure” format. The department is no longer identifying the year 
of the source of the budget dollars, but the year that the resident engineer, the 
program engineer or the RTD projected spending those dollars. That has driven the 
need for this presentation to include $40 million of surface treatment projects as 
FY’15 projected expenditures. These funds may be split over multiple years. 
 

12 Consent Agenda: Page 12 of 56



He then discussed the FY’13 Reconciliation. He stated that this requests the 
Commission to formally adopt the movement of Contingency into local agency 
programs in order to keep those programs whole. This has been built into the 
supplement action. 
 
He described the projects being presented to the Commission for the first time, 
detailed in the supplement request. Some of these funds are FY’15 funds advanced 
into FY’15. He stated that in March he will present a policy directive addressing 
whether the Commission wants see surface treatment projects presented on a 
monthly basis. He then highlighted several projects from the supplement. 
 
He described $30 million in rehabilitation and preventative maintenance projects on 
bridges across the state. This was an innovative approach of looking at the state 
bridge system and asking contractors to address them collectively, rather than one at 
a time. He thanked Joshua Laipply and the engineers in the region for taking this 
collective approach.  
 
Chairman Aden entertained a motion to approve the 7th Supplement to the FY’14 
Budget. Commissioner Connell moved to approve the resolution, and Commissioner 
Gilliland seconded the motion.  
 
Commissioner Gruen stated that he was pleased to see these RAMP funds budgeted. 
 
Upon vote of the Commission, the resolution passed unanimously. 
 
Resolution #TC-3121 
 
BE IT SO RESOLVED THAT the 7th Supplement to the Fiscal Year 2014 Budget be 
approved. 
 
Discuss and Act on the Emergency Relief Supplement 
 
Scott Richrath stated that $1.6 million of reimbursements came in, and that CDOT 
had $1.6 million set aside. With the exception of the $6.7 million move of contingency 
into funding local agencies programs for FY’13, there was very little activity. 
 
Chairman Aden entertained a motion to approve the Third Supplement to the 
Emergency Relief Funding. Commissioner Peterson moved to approve the resolution, 
and Commissioner Gilliland seconded that motion. Upon vote of the Commission, the 
resolution passed unanimously. 
 
Resolution #TC-3122 
 
BE IT SO RESOLVED that the Third Supplement to the Emergency Relief Funding be 
approved. 
 
Discuss and Act on a Resolution for the CO SIB Interest Rate  
 
Scott Richrath stated that every six months the Commission sets an interest rate for 
the State Infrastructure Bank (SIB). He explained that the SIB is in-state legislation 
that provides funding for two programs significantly: aeronautics and a highway 

12 Consent Agenda: Page 13 of 56



program. He explained that the SIB offers favorable rates as a way to spur on capital 
development for projects that might not otherwise be able to move forward at the 
local level. 
 
He stated that staff recommends an interest rate of 2.5%. Over the last year, this rate 
has remained fairly consistent with the municipal market rate and the market rate 
on treasuries in terms of the movement of the rate.  
 
Commissioner Aden entertained a motion to approve the CO SIB interest rate at 
2.5%. 
 
Commissioner Gifford stated that the Commission had indicative interest rates in 
terms of what the yield is expected to be. She asked how relationship was set 
between these and the interest rate recommended, and she asked what the average 
term of the loans is. Scott Richrath stated that the average term is around ten years, 
but that is aligned with the size of the project. He stated that these are not typically 
larger projects. He stated that they work with financial advisors to align rates to a ten 
year projection.  
 
Commissioner Hofmeister moved to approve the resolution, and Commissioner 
Connell seconded that motion. On vote of the Commission, the resolution passed 
unanimously. 
 
  

12 Consent Agenda: Page 14 of 56



Resolution #TC-3123 
 

 
 
 
 
Discuss and Act on a Resolution to Open the Transportation Commission Rules 
 
Herman Stockinger explained that Rules are allowed for in statute, that CDOT may or 
shall promulgate rules. CDOT has 25 sets of rules. Approximately half of these are 
owned and controlled by the Executive Director, and the other half are owned and 
controlled by the Transportation Commission. He explained that one set that the 
Commission controls is the SIB rules that there have been multiple resolutions on 
during the December meeting.  
 

12 Consent Agenda: Page 15 of 56



He stated that rules carry the force of law and must follow the Administrative 
Procedures Act. A resolution to open the rules addresses to issues: 1) Does the 
Commission want to open the rules to make necessary changes? 2) Does the 
Commission want to serve as the hearing officers or want to appoint an 
administrative rules employee to conduct the hearings? 
 
He explained that the rules addressed today are the rules that govern how the 
Transportation Commission operates. There are two substantive changes. Under 
2.06, the Commission officers will be elected and begin serving in July rather than 
August or September, as is currently. This will coincide with gubernatorial 
appointments. Under 7.05 all resolutions currently go to Attorney General’s office for 
approval. This language has been revised so that some standard language resolutions 
do not have to go the Attorney General every month. 
 
Commissioner Aden entertained a motion to approve the Resolution to Open the 
Transportation Commission Rules. Commissioner Gilliland moved to approve the 
resolution, and Commissioner Connell seconded the motion. Upon vote of the 
Commission, the resolution passed unanimously. 
 
  

12 Consent Agenda: Page 16 of 56



Resolution #TC-3124 
 

 
 
Other Matters 
 
Chairman Aden stated that there were no other matters to come before the 
Commission. 
 
Acknowledgements 
 
Tony DeVito explained that on November 21, 2013, there was an incident in which 
Dave Haley stumbled on his way back to a desk after a meeting. Dave’s right arm was 
rigid and his face was withdrawn on the right side because he had had a stroke. 
However, due to the quick response of Christine Tretter, Trinidad Urrutia and Stuart 
Tashiro, he was rushed to hospital, received the necessary treatment and is back at 
work today with no restrictions.  
 
He explained that there was a lesson for all of us. The Region is going to push forth a 
FAST campaign: Face, Arms, Say Something Simple, Time is of the Essence. This 

12 Consent Agenda: Page 17 of 56



campaign will help employees recognize stroke. Our employees’ quick responses were 
a result of the excellent first aid training that the CDOT maintenance teams provide. 
There have now been three maintenance teams that have come before the 
Commission because they have saved lives.  
 
Tony DeVito presented Stuart Tashiro, Christine Tretter and Trinidad Urrutia with a 
certificate for their quick response. 
 
Chairman Aden thanked these employees for their great example of the CDOT family 
taking care of one another. 
 
Executive Director Hunt stated that this was a very difficult challenge in 2013 to 
single out one Region to recognize. The Director’s Cup must be assessed for the entire 
year, beginning to end, even though there was an extraordinary event in Region 4. 
But many employees throughout CDOT also rose to the occasion to help Region 4 
through the floods. Each region submits the writing portion to describe the successes 
of their own region. The other half of the competition is based on data compiled by 
the Chief Engineer. Therefore, it is both qualitative and quantitative.  
 
Director Hunt described the successes of each region. Region 5 focused on strategic 
focus areas, highlighting innovations in mapping to avoid conflicts among 
engineering and maintenance projects. This is an ongoing study to better identify 
locations of passing lanes and slow vehicle turnouts. Region 4 discussed “No 
Boundaries” to highlight their accomplishments in organization and integration for 
their new, much larger region. They described their success through better financial 
management within the region and their extremely hard work to get people talking 
about converting a general purpose lane to a managed lane on I-25. They also 
performed excellently in response to the floods. Region 3 focused on change in 2013 
and expanded their boundaries. They created strong partnerships for RAMP projects 
and provided support to Region 4 on the flood. Region 2 highlighted teamwork as a 
key to their success. Their employees saved a life. They brought to large 
environmental studies to completion and brought forward creative RAMP 
partnerships. They also provided support during the flood. Region 1 described their 
reorganization during the creation of the “New Region 1.” The US 36 project made 
significant progress, and a TIGER Grant was received for the Eisenhower-Johnson 
Fire Suppression System. They moved the bridge on the I-70/Pecos Interchange, as 
well as addressing their own flood damage. There was also the December opening of 
the I-70 Twin Tunnels Project.  
 
After careful consideration of both the qualitative and quantitative support, the 
Region that exceeded all the others was Region 2.  
 
Ton Wrona accepted the Director’s Cup for Region 2. He thanked his staff and 
selection committee. He stated that his staff was wonderful and the region had a 
super year, dealing with a lot of adversity.  
 
Executive Director acknowledged Tim Harris, the Chief Engineer, who retired at the 
end of 2013. He described Tim’s excellent career at HQ, the regions and staff 
branches. He stated that Tim was a natural leader, committed, dedicated and kind. 
He stated that Tim would be sorely missed at CDOT and wished him the best in the 
coming years.  

12 Consent Agenda: Page 18 of 56



 
Chairman Aden presented Tim Harris with a plaque to recognize his 33 year career at 
CDOT.  
 
The Commissioners individually thanked Tim Harris for his service, leadership and 
dedication at CDOT. 
 
Tim Harris stated that he has enjoyed his career at CDOT due to the high quality of 
employees at CDOT. He traveled many places with many people, building 
relationships and serving the public. He thanked everyone for their service as well. 
 
Adjournment 
 
Chairman Aden announced that the meeting was adjourned at 11:45am. 

12 Consent Agenda: Page 19 of 56



STATE OF COLORADO 
 

 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
 
 
 
 

“Taking Care To Get You There” 

 
DATE: January 3, 2014 
 
TO:  Transportation Commission 
 
FROM: Herman Stockinger / Heidi Humphreys 
 
SUBJECT: Approval of Updated Policy Directive 600.0 “Equal Employment Opportunity 

and Affirmative Action”  
 
 
Purpose 
To confirm CDOT’s commitment to equal employment opportunity and affirmative action as  
part of its ongoing effort to update policies so that they comply with federal and state 
requirements.  
 
Action Requested 
Approval of updated Policy Directive 600.0 “Equal Employment Opportunity and 
Affirmative Action.”  
 
Executive Summary  
This Policy Directive is intended to address the FHWA's requirement to have a policy in 
place with regard to employment practices, as well as incorporating reference to the 
Department’s Affirmative Action Plan.  The Commission is authorized by Section 43-1-106 
(8)(a), C.R.S. to formulate policy for CDOT.  The Department continues to focus efforts on 
updating its policies in compliance with state and federal regulations.  As a recipient of 
federal funding, CDOT must ensure that its employment practices offer equal opportunities 
to employees and applicants including those within currently protected classes as required by 
Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and Colorado Anti-Discrimination laws.  

Background 
Policy Directive 600.0 “Equal Employment Opportunity and Affirmative Action  updates 
current Policy Directive 600.0, “Equal Employment Opportunity and Non-Discrimination 
Policy” adopted June 18, 2008.     
 
Details   
The Division of Administrative Services, Employee Relations / Legal Office oversees 
CDOT’s compliance with federal regulations and state law pertaining to equal employment 
opportunities and affirmative action.  This Policy Directive outlines CDOT’s general policy 
for all CDOT employees and applicants with regard to compliance with Title VII of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964 and Colorado Anti-Discrimination laws.  It does not include CDOT’s 
obligations under Title VI, which are set forth in Policy Directive 604.0, “Non-
Discrimination Policy,” overseen by the Civil Rights and Business Resource Center.   

12 Consent Agenda: Page 20 of 56



 

 

 
Policy Directive 600.0 has been due for review since May 2012. This updated 
version identifies and describes the currently protected classes under federal 
regulations and state law.  This includes compliance with the Genetic Information 
Nondiscrimination Act of 2008 (“GINA”), 43 U.S.C. § 2000ff, which prohibits the 
use of the improperly disclosed genetic information in hiring and promotion. It also 
adheres to the Department of Regulatory Agencies (“DORA”) guideline pertaining 
to Colorado Anti-Discrimination Laws under § 24-34-401, et seq., C.R.S.      
 
Key Benefits  
Compliance with federal and state requirements and clarity of direction to the Department in 
all hiring and employment practices.  
 
Next Steps  
This Policy Directive will be implemented by the Division of Administrative Services, 
Employee Relations / Legal Office and applies to all offices, divisions, regions, and branches 
of CDOT.  Affirmative Action compliance will be overseen by the Affirmative Action 
Officer.  
 
Attachments 
Updated Policy Directive 600.0 
Policy Directive 600.0 currently in effect 

12 Consent Agenda: Page 21 of 56



COLORADO DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION 

 POLICY DIRECTIVE 
 PROCEDURAL DIRECTIVE 

Subject 
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY AND NON-DISCRIMINATION POLICY 

Number 

600.0 
Effective 
06/18/08 

Supersedes 
09-01-07 

Originating office 
Center for Equal Opportunity 

     

  
POLICY DIRECTIVE CURRENTLY IN EFFECT 

 
PURPOSE 
  
1. To ensure that no person shall, on the grounds of race, color, religion, gender 

(including sexual harassment), sexual orientation, national origin, age, 
political affiliation, organizational membership, veteran’s status, disability or 
other non-job related factor, be excluded from participation in, be denied the 
benefit of, or be subjected to discrimination or harassment under any program 
or activity receiving state or federal financial assistance directly or indirectly 
by CDOT. 

  
2. To provide a policy that will standardize requirements by assuring uniform 

application and effective implementation of the provisions of the applicable 
state and federal Civil Rights Statutes. 

  
SPECIFIC AUTHORITY 
  
Primary impetus for equal opportunity and non-discrimination in accordance with: 
  
1. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 
2. Federal-Aid Highway Act of 1968, Section 22(a) 
3. Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended 
4. Presidential Executive Order 11246, as amended 
5. Section 136(b) of the Federal-Aid Highway Act of 1970 
6. Governor's Executive Order, April 1975 
7. Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Section 503 and 504 
8. Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended 
9. Article XII, Section 13, State Constitution 
10. Chapter 9:  Rules and Regulations of the State Personnel System 
11. CRS 24-34-402.  Discriminatory or unfair employment practices 
12. Colorado Civil Rights Commission standards and guidelines 
13. American’s with Disabilities Act of 1990 
  
APPLICABILITY 
  
This directive applies to employees of the Colorado Department of Transportation 
and all divisions thereof and external employees of CDOT such as consultants and 

12 Consent Agenda: Page 22 of 56



Subject 
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY AND NON-DISCRIMINATION POLICY 

Number 

600.0 
 

contractors. 
 
POLICY 
  
The Colorado Department of Transportation is committed to equal opportunity and 
non-discrimination under the law instituted by this state and the U.S. Congress.  It is 
the responsibility of every person within the Department of Transportation to 
incorporate and implement actions of equal opportunity.  The Colorado Department 
of Transportation’s commitment to non-discrimination is essential in performing our 
duties to the State of Colorado and to serve the people.  It is the policy of this 
Department to take an active role in instituting equal rights and non-discrimination 
of all people in accordance with the state and federal laws, and the policies of 
Congress. In addition, the State of Colorado and federal law prohibit retaliation 
against any employee because he or she has made a report of alleged discrimination 
or harassment; has testified, assisted or participated in any manner in an 
investigation of such report; or has opposed discrimination or harassment.  
 
Harassment is a form of employment discrimination that is prohibited by law and 
this policy. Harassment is unwelcome conduct that is based on race, color, sex, 
religion, national origin, disability, and/or age. 
 
Harassment becomes unlawful where: 
 
1) enduring the offensive conduct becomes a condition of continued employment, 

or 
2) the conduct is severe or pervasive enough to create a work environment that a 

reasonable person would consider intimidating, hostile, or abusive. 
 

Petty slights, annoyances, and isolated incidents (unless extremely serious) will not rise to the 
level of illegality. To be unlawful, the conduct must create a work environment that would be 
intimidating, hostile, or offensive to reasonable people.  Offensive conduct may include, but is 
not limited to: 

• offensive jokes, slurs, epithets or name calling 

• physical assaults or threats 

• intimidation 

• ridicule or mockery 

• insults or put-downs 

• offensive objects or pictures 

• interference with work performance. 

12 Consent Agenda: Page 23 of 56



Subject 
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY AND NON-DISCRIMINATION POLICY 

Number 

600.0 
 

 The harasser can be the victim's supervisor, a supervisor in another area, a co-worker, or a 
non-employee. The victim does not have to be the person harassed, but can be anyone 
affected by the offensive conduct. 

Regional Transportation Directors and Division Program Directors and subordinates 
will be responsible and accountable to the Executive Director for performing all 
official actions in a manner consistent with federal and state non-discrimination 
laws and policies within the spirit and letter of the Colorado Constitution. 
  
IMPLEMENTATION 
  
The policy stated herein shall be effective immediately and shall be implemented by 
all divisions of the Colorado Department of Transportation. 
 
REVIEW DATE: May  2012 
 

 
.      

 

6/18/08 

6/18/08 

12 Consent Agenda: Page 24 of 56



Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 
I. PURPOSE 
 
To ensure that  no person, such as a member of the public, applicant,  or employee, 
shall, on the grounds of race, color, religion, gender (including sexual harassment), 
sexual orientation  as defined in § 24-34-401 (7.5), C.R.S., national origin, age, genetic 
information, political affiliation, organizational membership, veteran’s status, 
disability, marriage to a co-worker, pregnancy, or because such person has opposed 
any unlawful discriminatory practice or other non-job related factor, be excluded from 
participation in, be denied the benefit of, or be subjected to discrimination or 
harassment in hiring or employment practices. 
 
II. AUTHORITY  
 
Executive Director, § 43-1-105, C.R.S. 
 
Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e 
(http://www.eeoc.gov/laws/statutes/titlevii.cfm) 
 
Rehabilitation Act, 29 U.S.C. § 791 
(http://www.eeoc.gov/laws/statutes/rehab.cfm) 
 
Age Discrimination Act of 1975, 29 U.S.C. § 621 
(http://www.eeoc.gov/laws/statutes/adea.cfm) 
 
The Equal Pay Act, 29 U.S.C. § 206(d) 
(http://www.eeoc.gov/laws/statutes/epa.cfm) 
 
The Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act, 42 U.S.C. § 2000ff 
(http://www.eeoc.gov/laws/statutes/gina.cfm) 
 
The Civil Rights Act of 1991, 29 CFR 1614  
(http://www.eeoc.gov/laws/statutes/cra-1991.cfm)  
 
§ 24-34-401, et seq., C.R.S. 
 
III. APPLICABILITY 
 

COLORADO DEPARTMENT OF  
TRANSPORTATION 

X POLICY DIRECTIVE 
PROCEDURAL DIRECTIVE 

Subject 
EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITYAND AFFIRMATIVE ACTION 

 
600.0 

Effective 
 

Supersedes 
06/18/08  

Originating Office 
Division of Administrative Services 

12 Consent Agenda: Page 25 of 56

http://www.eeoc.gov/laws/statutes/titlevii.cfm
http://www.eeoc.gov/laws/statutes/rehab.cfm
http://www.eeoc.gov/laws/statutes/adea.cfm
http://www.eeoc.gov/laws/statutes/epa.cfm
http://www.eeoc.gov/laws/statutes/gina.cfm
http://www.eeoc.gov/laws/statutes/cra-1991.cfm


Subject 
EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITYAND AFFIRMATIVE ACTION 

Number 

600.0 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

This directive applies to all divisions, branches, regions and offices of the Colorado Department 
of Transportation (“CDOT” or “Department”) with regard to applicants and employees.  For 
purposes of this Policy, “employees” includes all employees, including management level, as 
well as temporary employees, volunteers and applicants.  
 
IV. POLICY 
 
It is the policy of CDOT to provide equal opportunity in employment and to prohibit 
discrimination in employment based on the above mentioned factors. 
CDOT supports the rights of employees to exercise all available rights under applicable civil 
rights laws and does not tolerate retaliation against employees who engage in a protected 
activity.  Any employee or program issue related this EEO policy should be addressed to the 
Regional Civil Rights Office, Employee Relations Legal (ER/L), or the Affirmative Action 
Officer.  

V. IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 
 
A.  This Policy Directive shall be effective upon approval by the Transportation 
Commission.   
 
B.  It shall be implemented by the Affirmative Action Officer in the Office of 
Employee Relations / Legal at CDOT Headquarters. 
 
VI. REVIEW DATE 
 
This Policy Directive shall be reviewed on or before January 2019. 
 
 
_______________________________  _________________________ 
Secretary, Transportation Commission  Date of Approval 
 
 

12 Consent Agenda: Page 26 of 56



Resolution # TC- 

Adoption of Policy Directive 600.0 “Equal Employment Opportunity and 
Affirmative Action”  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to § 43-1-106(8)(a), C.R.S., the Colorado 
Transportation Commission is charged with formulating general policy 
for the Colorado Department of Transportation (“CDOT); and  

WHEREAS, CDOT is required to comply with Title VII of the Civil Rights 
Act, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e, and related statutes as a recipient of federal 
funds from the U.S. Department of Transportation; and   

WHEREAS, CDOT is required to comply with the Colorado Anti-
Discrimination Laws under § 24-34-401, et seq., C.R.S.; and, 

WHEREAS, Policy Directive 600.0 seeks to fulfill the Federal Highway 
Administration’s requirement to have a policy in place with regard to equal 
opportunity employment practices and prohibition of discrimination, which  
practices will be implemented through all phases of CDOT’s Affirmative Action 
Plan; and, 

WHEREAS, Policy Directive 600.0 updates and replaces Policy Directive 
600.0, “Equal Opportunity and Non-Discrimination Policy” adopted on June 
18, 2008; and 

WHEREAS, updated Policy Directive 600.0 confirms CDOT’s commitment to 
equal opportunity in employment and the prohibition of discrimination in 
employment. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Commission herein adopts Policy 
Directive 600.00 “Equal Employment Opportunity and Affirmative Action.” 

 

_______________________________________   _________________________ 

Transportation Secretary    Date 

 

 

12 Consent Agenda: Page 27 of 56



STATE OF COLORADO 
 

 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
 
 
 
 

“Taking Care To Get You There” 

 
DATE: January 3, 2014 
 
TO:  Transportation Commission 
 
FROM: Herman Stockinger / Heidi Humphreys 
 
SUBJECT: Approval of Updated Policy Directive 603.0 “Policy Prohibiting Sexual 

Harassment”  
 
 
Purpose 
To confirm CDOT’s commitment to prohibiting sexual harassment in the workplace and 
comply with federal and state requirements.  
 
Action Requested 
Approval of updated Policy Directive 603.0 “Policy Prohibiting Sexual Harassment”  
 
Executive Summary  
The Commission is authorized by Section 43-1-106 (8)(a), C.R.S. to formulate policy for 
CDOT.  The Department continues to focus efforts on updating its policies in compliance 
with state and federal regulations.  As a recipient of federal funding, CDOT must ensure that 
it has a policy in place prohibiting sexual harassment in the workplace as required by Title VII 
of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. 2000e.  This policy is also required by state 
statute, § 24-34-402, C.R.S. and 4 CCR 801-1, Personnel Board Rules and Personnel 
Director’s Administrative Procedures.   

Background 
Policy Directive 603.0 “Policy Prohibiting Sexual Harassment” current Policy Directive 
603.0, “Sexual Harassment” adopted August 16, 2007.     
 
Details   
The Division of Administrative Services, Employee Relations / Legal Office oversees 
CDOT’s compliance with federal regulations and state law pertaining to the prohibition of 
sexual harassment in the workplace.  This Policy Directive outlines CDOT’s general policy 
for all CDOT employees with regard to compliance with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 
1964 and state law and regulations set forth above.     
 
Policy Directive 603.0 has been due for review since August 2012. This updated 
version identifies and describes the current federal and state law and regulations.  It 
sets forth a clear prohibition that sexual harassment in the workplace will not be 
tolerated.   
 

12 Consent Agenda: Page 28 of 56



 

 

Key Benefits  
Compliance with federal and state requirements and clarity of direction to the Department 
regarding the prohibition of sexual harassment in the workplace.  
 
Next Steps  
This Policy Directive will be implemented by the Division of Administrative Services, 
Employee Relations / Legal Office and applies to all offices, divisions, regions, and branches 
of CDOT.  The Employee Relations / Legal Office will work with the Office of Organization 
Learning and Development to develop and provide educational training on this Policy. 
 
Attachments 
Policy Directive 603.0 currently in effect 
Updated Policy Directive 603.0 

12 Consent Agenda: Page 29 of 56



Page 1 of 4 

COLORADO DEPARTMENT OF  
TRANSPORTATION 

 POLICY DIRECTIVE 
 PROCEDURAL DIRECTIVE 

Subject 
SEXUAL HARASSMENT 

Number 
603.0 

Effective 
08-16-07 

Supersedes 
09-15-99 

Originating Office 
Center for Equal Opportunity 
 

 
PURPOSE 
 
To prevent all forms of sexual harassment at CDOT. 
 
AUTHORITY 
 
Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 
Executive Director, Colorado Department of Transportation 
Colorado Revised Statute 24-34-402 Discriminatory or Unfair Employment Practices 
 
APPLICABILITY 
 
This directive applies to all Divisions of the Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT). 
 
POLICY 
 
It is the policy of the CDOT to provide and maintain for all employees a work environment free 
from all forms of sexual harassment.  Sexual harassment is against the law.  All CDOT employees 
and customers are expected to abide by the policy against sexual harassment.  In addition, the State 
of Colorado and federal law prohibit retaliation against any employee because he or she has made 
a report of alleged sexual harassment; has testified, assisted or participated in any manner in an 
investigation of such report; or has opposed sexual harassment.  
 
DEFINITIONS 
 
Sexual harassment is a form of gender discrimination.  It is defined as unwelcome sexual 
advances, requests for favors, and other unwelcome verbal and physical conduct based on an 
employee’s sex when: 
 

• submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of a 
person's employment; or 

 
• submission to or rejection of such conduct is used as a basis for making employment 

decisions about a person; or 
 
• such conduct has the purpose or effect of substantially and unreasonably interfering with 

an individual's work performance or creates an intimidating, hostile or offensive work 
environment. 

12 Consent Agenda: Page 30 of 56



Subject 
SEXUAL HARASSMENT POLICY 

Number 
603.0 

 

Page 2 of 4 

 
Sexual harassment may be perpetrated by men or women of the same or opposite sex.  Any 
employee (male or female) may be a victim of sexual harassment. The victim does not have to be 
the person harassed but could be anyone affected by the offensive conduct. 
 
Quid Pro Quo – when a supervisor demands sexual favors and, if the employee does not comply, 
takes a tangible employment action against the employee such as: 

• making a significant change in employment status, as in hiring firing, failing to promote, 
•  reassignment of significantly different responsibilities, or 
• a decision causing a significant change in benefits. 

 
Hostile work environment - involves workplace conditions that are sufficiently severe and 
pervasive to alter the conditions of the victim’s employment and create an abusive work 
environment.  A hostile work environment may include actions and or behavior such as: 
 

• sexual advances or requests for social dates that are unwanted (this may include situations 
that began as reciprocal attractions, but later ceased to be reciprocal); 

 
• sex -oriented physical contact or gestures such as touching, patting, or repeated brushing 

against the body; 
 
• the (actual or electronic) display of sexually suggestive objects, pictures, cartoons or 

posters; viewing or transmitting sexually oriented subject matter is a violation of CDOT 
policy that may result in disciplinary action including termination. 

 
• sexually oriented verbal comments, jokes, innuendoes or obscenities;  
 
• sexually suggestive letters, notes, invitations, emails, electronic messages, displays or 

other written material; 
 
• reprisals or threats after a negative response to sexual advances; 
 
• sex-oriented entertainment appearing at the office or any other work-related site or 

function; and 
 
• physical conduct such as impeding or blocking movement, touching or sexual assault. 

 
Sexual harassment is conduct that meets the above criteria and interferes with an employee's: 
 

• ability to do his or her work; or 
 

• enjoyment of all work-related opportunities and benefits; or 
 

• comfort level in his or her work environment. 
 

12 Consent Agenda: Page 31 of 56



Subject 
SEXUAL HARASSMENT POLICY 

Number 
603.0 

 

Page 3 of 4 

 
 
RESPONSIBILITIES 

 
All CDOT employees should read and understand the sexual harassment policy.  

 
EEO 
 
The Headquarters Center for Equal Opportunity staff and the Regional Civil Rights Managers are 
responsible for receiving, investigating and acting on reports of sexual harassment. All claims of 
sexual harassment will be investigated. 
 
Employee 

 
An employee who is being sexually harassed should attempt to resolve the issue as soon as 
possible.  If possible, and if safe, inform the person whose behavior or action is unwelcome or 
offensive to stop the offending behavior, and thereby informally resolve the issue. If the employee 
does not feel comfortable with approaching that person, or if the offending behavior continues, the 
employee should seek assistance from his/her supervisor (or any supervisor in the chain of 
command) and/or the Regional Civil Rights Manager or the Headquarters Center for Equal 
Opportunity (303-757-9303 or 1-800-925-3427).  Employees may notify supervisors and civil 
rights professionals verbally, in writing, via personal e-mail, or EO@dot.state.co.us. 

 
Managers/Supervisors 
 
When a supervisor/manager receives a report or has knowledge of alleged harassment, the 
supervisor/manager will take action to correct the situation to the extent possible in a timely 
manner.  The supervisor/manager will promptly notify the respective Civil Rights Office in 
writing when an employee has alleged discrimination, and describe any mitigating action taken.  A 
manager/supervisor is responsible for reporting all allegations of sexual harassment to the 
appropriate Headquarters Center for Equal Opportunity (303-757-9303, 1-800-925-3427, 
EO@dot.state.co.us) or the Regional Civil Rights Manager. Managers/supervisors are also 
responsible for documenting the allegations and for respecting the privacy of all parties.  
 
Managers and supervisors must also take prompt action to stop inappropriate and impermissible 
behavior, and must take effective action to prevent incidents of alleged harassment.  Some actions 
to prevent sexual harassment include: 

• Ensure that your staff completes required training. 
• Consult with the Headquarters Center for Equal Opportunity (303-757-9303 or 1-800-925-

3427) or your Regional Civil Rights Manager for assistance or specialized training. 
• Establish a workplace atmosphere of respectful communication that supports CDOT 

Values. 
• Be alert and sensitive to possible sexual harassment situations or offensive behavior. 
• Be accessible and listen to employee concerns. 

12 Consent Agenda: Page 32 of 56



Subject 
SEXUAL HARASSMENT POLICY 

Number 
603.0 

 

Page 4 of 4 

 
Appointing Authorities 
 
All appointing authorities and civil rights professionals shall be responsible for the 
enforcement of this policy. This includes ensuring that the supervisor in question has taken 
proper steps to stop alleged sexual harassment and that all complaints are investigated 
according to the CDOT Civil Rights Complaint Investigation Procedural Directive 600.6. 

 
Any employee who violates this policy may be subject to corrective and/or disciplinary action, up 
to and including termination. 
 
CDOT expects all employees to treat each other with courtesy and respect. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION 
 
This policy shall be effective immediately and shall be implemented by all Divisions of the 
Colorado Department of Transportation. 
 
REVIEW DATE:          August 2012. 
 

  

 

08/16/07 

08/16/07 

12 Consent Agenda: Page 33 of 56



Page 1 of 2 

COLORADO DEPARTMENT OF  
TRANSPORTATION 

 POLICY DIRECTIVE 
 PROCEDURAL DIRECTIVE 

Subject 
POLICY PROHIBITING SEXUAL HARASSMENT 

Number 
603.0 

Effective 
 

Supersedes 
08.16.2007 

Originating Office 
Division of Administrative Services / Employee Relations / Legal 
 

 
I.  PURPOSE 

 
The Colorado Department of Transportation will not tolerate acts of sexual harassment or related retaliation 
against or by any employee. 
 
II.   AUTHORITY 
 
Transportation Commission pursuant to § 43-1-106, C.R.S. 

 
42 U.S.C. 2000e, “Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964” as amended. 
 
§ 24-34-402, C.R.S.  
 
4 CCR 801-1, Personnel Board Rules and Personnel Director’s Administrative Procedures 
 
III. APPLICABILITY 
 
This Policy Directive applies to all offices, divisions, regions and branches of the Colorado 
Department of Transportation. 
 
IV.   POLICY 
 
No employee shall commit an act of sexual harassment or related retaliation.  It is a violation of this Policy 
Directive for anyone acting knowingly, recklessly, or negligently either to make a false complaint of sexual 
harassment or to provide false information regarding a complaint.  It is intended that individuals who violate 
this Policy Directive may be disciplined or subjected to corrective action, up to and including termination. 
 
V.  IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 

 
1.  Employee Relations / Legal shall provide an electronic notification of this Policy Directive within one 
week of adoption to all Employee Relations/Legal staff members, Appointing Authorities, Regional Civil 
Rights Managers, and the Office of Organizational Learning & Development.   
 
2.  Employee Relations / Legal will work with the Office of Policy and Government Relations to post this 
Policy Directive on the Department intranet within one week of adoption.  
 
3.  Employee Relations / Legal shall work with the Office of Organizational Learning and Development to 
develop and provide educational training on this Policy Directive.  
 
 
 

12 Consent Agenda: Page 34 of 56



Subject 
POLICY PROHIBITING SEXUAL HARASSMENT 

Number 
603.0 

 

Page 2 of 2 

VI.   REVIEW DATE 
 

This Policy Directive will be reviewed on or before January, 2019. 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________   __________________________________  
Secretary, Transportation Commission   Date of Approval 

12 Consent Agenda: Page 35 of 56



Resolution # TC- 

Adoption of Policy Directive 603.0 “Policy Prohibiting Sexual 
Harassment”   
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to § 43-1-106(8)(a), C.R.S., the Colorado 
Transportation Commission is charged with formulating general policy 
for the Colorado Department of Transportation (“CDOT); and  

WHEREAS, CDOT is required to comply with Title VII of the Civil Rights 
Act, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e, and related statutes as a recipient of federal 
funds from the U.S. Department of Transportation; and   

WHEREAS, CDOT is required to comply with the Colorado Anti-
Discrimination Laws under § 24-34-402, C.R.S., and 4 CCR 801-1, 
Personnel Board Rules and Personnel Director’s Administrative 
Procedures; and, 

WHEREAS, CDOT is required to comply with the Equal Employment 
Opportunity Commission (“EEOC”) requirement to have a Policy in place with 
regard to the prohibition of sexual harassment in the workplace; and, 

WHEREAS, this Policy Directive updates and replaces Policy Directive 603.0, 
“Sexual Harassment” adopted on August 16, 2007; and 

WHEREAS, this updated Policy Directive 603.0 confirms CDOT’s commitment 
to the prohibition of sexual harassment in the workplace. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Commission herein adopts Policy 
Directive 603.00 “Policy Prohibiting Sexual Harassment.”  

 

 

_______________________________________   _________________________ 

Transportation Secretary    Date 

 

12 Consent Agenda: Page 36 of 56



STATE OF COLORADO 
 

 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
 
 
 
 

“Taking Care To Get You There” 

 
DATE: January 3, 2014 
 
TO:  Transportation Commission 
 
FROM: Herman Stockinger / Heidi Humphreys 
 
SUBJECT: Approval of Updated Policy Directive 604.0 “Policy on Non-Discrimination” 

and Repeal of Policy Directive 611.0 “Disadvantaged Business Enterprise 
Program”  

 
 
Purpose 
This action item is part of the Department’s ongoing effort to update policies so that they 
comply with federal and state requirements, and repeal any policies which can be 
consolidated or are no longer necessary.  
 
Action Requested 
Approval of updated Policy Directive 604.0 “Policy on Non-Discrimination” and repeal of 
Policy Directive 611.0 “Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program.”  
 
Executive Summary  
As a recipient of federal funding, CDOT must ensure that its programs and activities do not 
discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, disability, or age under Title VI 
of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 
(ADA), the Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, and related statutes.  The Federal Highway 
Administration requires that state transportation agencies have policy statements that prohibit 
discrimination and outline the agency’s commitment to the objectives of the Disadvantaged 
Business Enterprise program. Policy Directive 604.0 lists various forms of discrimination 
prohibited by federal law and describes federal objectives aimed at promoting non-
discrimination. It has included relevant language from Policy Directive 611.0 so that this 
directive can be repealed. 
 
Background 
Policy Directive 604.0 “Policy on Non-Discrimination” updates Policy Directive 604.0, 
“Non-Discrimination in Federally Funded Programs Policy,” adopted July 7, 2004. This 
Policy Directive also replaces Policy Directive 611.0, “Disadvantaged Business Enterprise 
Program,” adopted April 15, 2010 which has been consolidated into Policy Directive 604.0.   
 
Details   
The Civil Rights and Business Resource Center works with regional civil rights staff to 
ensure compliance with federal civil rights laws and guidance.  Policy Directive 604.0 
outlines CDOT’s general non-discrimination policy for all CDOT programs and activities, 

12 Consent Agenda: Page 37 of 56



 

 

but does not include CDOT’s Equal Employment Opportunity policy, which is set forth in 
Policy Directive 600.0 and now implemented by the Division of Administrative Services, 
Employee Relations / Legal Office.  While some prohibited actions listed in Policy Directive 
604.0 may not be applicable CDOT, they may be applicable to CDOT’s contractors or sub-
recipients and therefore have been included in this Policy Directive.   
 
Policy Directive 604.0 has been due for review since July 2011. This updated 
version identifies and describes the forms of discrimination that are prohibited by 
federal law and highlights objectives implicit within the general policy related to 
access for persons with disabilities, access for persons with limited English 
proficiency, principles of environmental justice, and fair competition for federally-
funded contracts.      
 
Key Benefits  
Compliance with federal and state requirements and clarity of direction to the Department 
and all entities and individuals to whom this policy applies. 
 
Next Steps  
This Policy Directive will be implemented by the Civil Rights & Business Resource Center, 
Division of Administration Services and applies to all offices, divisions, regions, and 
branches of CDOT, contractors and anyone who acts on behalf of CDOT. This policy also 
applies to any program or activity of any department or agency to which CDOT extends 
federal financial assistance.  The term “program or activity” includes all the operations of a 
department, agency, special purpose district, or other instrumentality of a local government 
that receives federal financial assistance.  See 42 U.S.C. § 2000d-4a(1).  Federal financial 
assistance includes grants, training, and use of equipment, donations of surplus property, and 
other assistance. 
 
 

12 Consent Agenda: Page 38 of 56



COLORADO DEPARTMENT OF  
TRANSPORTATION 

 POLICY DIRECTIVE 
 PROCEDURAL DIRECTIVE 

Subject 
POLICY ON NON-DISCRIMINATION 

Number 
604.0 

Supersedes 
604 (7/1/04) 
611 (4/15/10) 

Effective 
TBD 

Originating Office 
Civil Rights & Business Resource Center,  
Division of Administrative Services 

     

  
I.  Purpose 
 
To ensure that no person shall, on the ground of race, color, national origin, sex, disability, or 
age, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to 
discrimination in the operations of the Colorado Department of Transportation (“CDOT”) or of 
any department or agency to which CDOT extends federal financial assistance.  
 
II. Authority 
 
See Appendix A. This Policy Directive is intended to meet Federal Highway Administration and 
Federal Transit Authority requirements.  
  
III. Applicability 
 
This Policy Directive applies to all operations of CDOT, including all offices, divisions, regions, 
and branches of CDOT, its contractors and anyone who acts on CDOT’s behalf. This Policy 
Directive also applies to the operations of any department or agency to which CDOT extends 
federal financial assistance. Federal financial assistance includes grants, training, use of 
equipment, donations of surplus property, and other assistance. 
 
IV. Policy 
 
1.  It is CDOT’s policy that no person shall on the ground of race, color, national origin, sex, 
disability, or age, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to 
discrimination in any operation of CDOT or of any department or agency to which CDOT 
extends federal financial assistance.    
 

A.  Examples of prohibited types of discrimination based on race, color, national origin, 
sex, disability, or age include: 

 
  (1) Denial to an individual any service, financial aid, or other benefit; 
 
  (2) Distinctions in the quality, quantity, or manner in which a benefit is provided; 
 
  (3) Segregation or separate treatment; 
 
  (4) Restriction in the enjoyment of any advantages, privileges, or other benefits  
  provided; 

12 Consent Agenda: Page 39 of 56



Subject 
Policy on Non-Discrimination 

Number 
604.0 

 

Page 2 of 6 
 

 
  (5) Discrimination in any activities related to highway and infrastructure or  
  facility built or repaired; and 
 
  (6) Discrimination in employment. 
 

B.  Prohibited discrimination may be intentional or unintentional. Seemingly neutral acts 
that have disparate impacts on individuals of a protected group and lack a substantial 
legitimate justification are a form of prohibited discrimination. Instances where 
seemingly neutral acts may result in discrimination include: 

 
(1) Utilizing criteria or methods of administration that have the effect of 
subjecting persons to discrimination or have the purpose or effect of substantially 
reducing the likelihood that persons can benefit from the objectives of a program 
or activity with respect to persons; 
 
(2) Using different standards or requirements for determining whether a person 
satisfies any admissions, enrollment, quota, eligibility, membership, or other 
requirement for any service, financial aid, or other benefit; and 
 
(3) Determining the site or location of a facility that has the effect of excluding 
persons, denying them the benefits of, or otherwise subject to them 
discrimination. 
 

C.  Harassment and retaliation are also forms of discrimination. Harassment includes a 
wide range of abusive and humiliating verbal or physical behaviors that are directed 
against a particular person because of race, color, national origin, sex, disability, or age.   
This Policy Directive prohibits retaliation against any person because he or she has 
reported alleged discrimination under this Policy Directive or has testified, assisted or 
participated in any manner in an investigation of such report, or has opposed such 
discrimination. No one shall intimidate, threaten, coerce, or discriminate against any 
individual for the purpose of interfering with their rights against discrimination. 

 
D.  As part of this Policy Directive, CDOT adheres to the following objectives, which 
shall not be interpreted in any way to limit the general policy stated above: 

 
(1) Access for Persons with Disabilities – No qualified disabled person shall, 
solely by reason of his or her disability, be excluded from participation in, be 
denied the benefits of, or otherwise be subjected to discrimination. Aids, benefits, 
and services, to be equally effective, are not required to produce the identical 
result or level of achievement for disabled and non-disabled persons, but must 
afford persons with disabilities equal opportunity to obtain the same result, to gain 
the same benefit, or to reach the same level of achievement, in the most integrated 
setting that is reasonably achievable.  Even if separate or different aid, benefits, or 
services are available to handicapped persons, a qualified disabled person shall 

12 Consent Agenda: Page 40 of 56



Subject 
Policy on Non-Discrimination 

Number 
604.0 

 

Page 3 of 6 
 

not be denied the opportunity to participate in the programs or activities that are 
not separate or different.   

 
(2) Access for Persons with Limited English Proficiency – Individuals who have a 
limited ability to read, write, speak, or understand English are considered limited 
English proficient (“LEP”). Language for LEP individuals can be a barrier to 
accessing important benefits or services, understanding and exercising important 
rights, complying with applicable responsibilities, or understanding other 
information provided by CDOT.  Ignoring LEP populations may constitute 
discrimination on the basis of national origin. CDOT shall seek to communicate 
with LEP populations and provide LEP individuals meaningful access to CDOT 
programs and activities. 
 
(3) Principles of Environmental Justice – CDOT will meaningfully engage all 
sectors of the public, including low-income and minority populations, potentially 
affected by CDOT projects. To help ensure the fair distribution of the benefits and 
burdens associated with CDOT programs and activities, CDOT will be guided by 
the following environmental justice principles:   
 

(a) To avoid, minimize, or mitigate disproportionately high and adverse 
human health and environmental effects, including social and economic 
effects, on minority and low-income populations;   
 
(b) To ensure the full and fair participation by all potentially affected 
communities in CDOT’s decision-making process; and   
 
(c)To prevent the denial of, reduction in, or significant delay in the receipt 
of benefits by minority and low-income populations.  
 

(4)  Fair Competition for Federally-Funded Contracts – A Disadvantaged 
Business Enterprise (“DBE”) is a business that is owned and controlled by a 
socially and economically disadvantaged individual or individuals.  The 
objectives of CDOT’s DBE program are to: 
 

(a) To ensure nondiscrimination in the award and administration of 
federally-assisted contracts in CDOT’s highway, transit, and airport 
programs; 
 
(b) To create a level playing field on which DBEs can compete fairly for 
federally-assisted contracts; 
 
(c) To ensure that CDOT’s DBE program is narrowly tailored in 
accordance with applicable law; 
 
(d) To ensure that only firms that fully meet this part's eligibility standards 
are permitted to participate as DBEs; 

12 Consent Agenda: Page 41 of 56



Subject 
Policy on Non-Discrimination 

Number 
604.0 

 

Page 4 of 6 
 

 
(e) To help remove barriers to the participation of DBEs in federally-
assisted contracts; and 
 
(f) To assist the development of firms that can compete successfully in the 
marketplace outside the DBE program. 

 
V.  Implementation Plan 
 
1.  This Policy Directive shall be effective immediately upon approval by the Transportation 
Committee.  
 
2.  The Civil Rights & Business Resource Center (“CRBRC”) shall implement this Policy 
Directive and will coordinate education and training to ensure compliance with this Policy 
Directive.   All CDOT employees, its contractors, and anyone who acts on behalf of CDOT, 
including any department or agency to which CDOT extends federal financial assistance, shall be 
responsible for assuring that the proscribed discrimination does not occur.  Should the potential 
for discrimination be discovered, action to eliminate the potential shall be taken.  
 
3.  Notices informing individuals of their rights under this Policy Directive will be posted on 
CDOT’s internal and external webpages, and be displayed in public office areas. These notices 
will also be consistent with CDOT’s policy for communicating with LEP populations.   
 
4.  As required by federal law, the CRBRC and regional civil rights staff shall be responsible for 
acquiring non-discrimination assurances, investigating discrimination complaints, conducting 
reviews of program areas, and preparing required reports. 
 
VI. Review Date 
 
This Policy Directive shall be reviewed on or before five years after the effective date. 
 
    
______________________________________  _____________________ 
Secretary, Transportation Commission   Effective Date 
 
 
  

12 Consent Agenda: Page 42 of 56



Subject 
Policy on Non-Discrimination 

Number 
604.0 

 

Page 5 of 6 
 

APPENDIX A: Authority for Policy Directive 604.0 
 
Federal Statutes 
 
Title VI of the 1964 Civil Rights Act, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d  
 
Age Discrimination Act of 1975, 42 U.S.C. § 6101   
 
Federal Aid Highway Act of 1970, 49 U.S.C. § 306     
 
Federal Aid Highway Act of 1973, 23 U.S.C. § 324    
 
Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, Pub. L. No. 100-259, 102 Stat. 28   
 
Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101 – 12213   
 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 § 504, 29 U.S.C. § 794 
 
Federal Transit Laws, 49 U.S.C. § 5332 
 
Federal Regulations 
 
23 CFR §1.36 – Compliance with Federal laws and regulations 
 
23 CFR pt. 200 – Title VI Program and Related Statutes – Implementation and Review 
Procedures 

 
23 CFR pt. 771 – Environmental Impact and Related Procedures   
 
28 CFR pt. 35 – Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability in State and Local Government 
Services 
 
28 CFR pt. 36 – Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability in Public Accommodations and in 
Commercial Facilities 
 
28 CFR pt. 42, subpart C – Nondiscrimination in Federally Assisted Programs – Implementation 
of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 
 
49 CFR pt. 21 – Nondiscrimination in Federally-Assisted Programs of the Department of 
Transportation – Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 
 
49 CFR pt. 26 – Participation By Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in Department of 
Transportation Financial Assistance Programs 
 
49 CFR pt. 27 – Nondiscrimination of the Basis of Disability in Programs or Activities 
Receiving Federal Financial Assistance  

12 Consent Agenda: Page 43 of 56



Subject 
Policy on Non-Discrimination 

Number 
604.0 

 

Page 6 of 6 
 

 
49 CFR § 37.5 – Nondiscrimination – Transportation Services for Individuals with Disabilities 
(ADA) 
 
Executive Orders 
 
Exec. Order No. 12898, 59 Fed. Reg. 7629 – Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice 
in Minority Populations and Low-Income Populations 

 
Exec. Order No. 13166, 65 Fed. Reg. 50121 – Improving Access to Services for Persons with 
Limited English Proficiency 
 
 

12 Consent Agenda: Page 44 of 56



 1 

COLORADO DEPARTMENT OF  
TRANSPORTATION 

 POLICY DIRECTIVE 
 PROCEDURAL DIRECTIVE 

Subject 
NON-DISCRIMINATION IN FEDERALLY FUNDED PROGRAMS POLICY 

Number 
604.0 

Supersedes 
07/01/04 

Effective 
03/17/92 

Originating Office 
CENTER FOR EQUAL OPPORTUNITY 

     

  
Policy Currently in Place 

Purpose: 
1. To ensure that no person shall, on the ground of race, color, national origin, 

sex, handicap or age, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits 
of, or be subjected to discrimination under any Colorado Department of 
Transportation program or activity; and  

2. To provide a policy that will standardize non-discrimination requirements in 
federally funded programs by assuring uniform application and effective 
implementation of the provision of the applicable federal Civil Rights 
legislation. 

  
Authority: 
Title VI of the 1964 Civil Rights Act, the Federal Aid in Highway Act, sec. 162(a), the 
Age Discrimination Act of 1975, the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, sec. 504, and Executive 
Order 12898. 
  
 
Applicability: 
This directive shall apply to all employees of the Colorado Department of Transportation 
and all divisions thereof and all external employees or agents including consultants and 
contractors.  
  
Policy: 
It is the policy of the Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT) to ensure that the 
most fundamental principles of equality of opportunity and human dignity are upheld and 
that all decisions involving our employees, contractors and consultants and the traveling 
public are based on individual merit. It is the policy of CDOT to ensure that all its 
programs, policies and activities do not have the effect of excluding persons from 
participation in, denying the benefits of, or subjecting person to discrimination due to 
race, color, national origin, sex, handicap or age. It is the responsibility of every person 
within CDOT and all CDOT external agents to incorporate and implement actions 
consistent with non-discrimination in programs. 
  
Background: 
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 prohibits discrimination based on race, color and 
national origin in federally assisted programs.  Parallel statutes likewise forbid sex, age 
and handicap discrimination by recipients of federal funds. CDOT is a recipient of federal  
 

12 Consent Agenda: Page 45 of 56



 2 

 
 
Subject 
NON-DISCRIMINATION IN FEDERALLY FUNDED PROGRAMS POLICY 

Number 
604.0 

 
funds and as such it, as well as all of its responsible agents, contractors and consultants, is 
required to assure such non-discrimination. 1   
 
This prohibition against discrimination applies to all phases, activities and programs of 
CDOT when any part of CDOT receives federal assistance regardless of whether that 
particular program or activity is directly federally funded or assisted.2  This prohibition 
against discrimination applies not only to activities and programs provided directly by 
CDOT through its staff and resources, but also to activities and programs funded totally 
or in part by CDOT through contracts or other funding relationships or assistance.  Due to 
its broad scope and applicability both civil rights and program personnel are involved in 
assuring that the proscribed discrimination does not occur. 
 
Discrimination in federally funded programs and activities need not be intentional.  
Seemingly neutral acts that have the effect of foreclosing* CDOT services, benefits or 
programs on the basis of prohibited discrimination are likewise illegal.  In addition, 
CDOT prohibits retaliation against any employee, contractor or consultant because he or 
she has made a report of alleged discrimination under this policy or has testified, assisted 
or participated in any manner in an investigation of such report, or has opposed such 
discrimination.  
 
Federal legislation and implementing regulations require establishment of a Civil Rights 
Unit and designation of a Coordinator to coordinate its non-discrimination assurances, 
investigate and promptly dispose of discrimination complaints received directly by the 
State and conduct non-discrimination reviews of program areas for continuing 
compliance and prepare other required reports. The Executive Director has fulfilled this 
statutory requirement by establishing the Center for Equal Opportunity and has delegated 
coordination of non-discrimination in federally funded programs to the Center for Equal 
Opportunity Manager. 3  
 
                                                 
1  23 C.F.R. 200.5(n) defines a recipient as “any state, territory… political subdivision or instrumentality 
thereof, or any public or private agency, institution or organization or other entity or any individual in any 
State…to whom federal financial assistance is extended, either directly or through another recipient, for 
any program.” 
 
2 The Civil Right Restoration Act of 1987 restored the broad institution-wide scope and coverage of Title 
VI and parallel non-discrimination statutes by extending coverage to all programs and activities of Federal -
Aid recipients, sub-recipients and contractors, whether such activities are federally assisted or not.  It 
provides in pertinent part: “For the purpose of this subchapter, the term “programs or activity” and the term 
“program” means all the operations of a department, agency, special purpose district or other 
instrumentality of a State or of a local government… any part of which is extended Federal financial 
assistance.” 
 
3 23 C.F.R. 200.9 specifies State highway agency responsibilities.  

12 Consent Agenda: Page 46 of 56



 3 

 

 
 
Subject 
NON-DISCRIMINATION IN FEDERALLY FUNDED PROGRAMS POLICY 

Number 
604.0 

 
Implementation: 
 
This policy shall be effective immediately and implemented by all divisions of the 
Colorado Department of Transportation within the program under his or her authority.  
Each affected manager will also ensure that those working with CDOT will also comply 
with requirements of non-discrimination as outlined in 23 C.F.R. 200.  The Colorado 
Department of Transportation Title VI Coordinator shall be responsible for interpreting 
the requirements of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and all applicable 
enforcements regulations. 
 
Review Date: 
 
This policy will be reviewed in July of 2011. 

  
  
 
 07/01/04 

  _________________  __________  ______________                         
      Executive Director, CDOT    Date 
 
  
                   07/01/04  
     ______________________________       ____________               
  Secretary, Transportation Commission   Date 
 
 
*[Neutral practices that hinder protected person from benefiting from or participating in 
CDOT programs or services or which substantially reduce the ability of protected persons 
to benefit from or participate in programs or activities.] 

 

 

 

12 Consent Agenda: Page 47 of 56



 

COLORADO DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION 

 POLICY DIRECTIVE 
 PROCEDURAL DIRECTIVE 

Subject 

DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PROGRAM 
Number 
611.0 

Effective 
4/15/2010 

Supersedes 
All Previous 

Originating office 
Center for Equal Opportunity 

     

  
PURPOSE 

  
The purpose of this directive is to set forth the objectives for implementation of a Disadvantaged 
Business Enterprise (DBE) Program by the Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT).  
The intent of this program is to ensure nondiscrimination in DOT-assisted contracts and create a 
level playing field where DBEs can compete fairly in CDOT’s federal-aid contracting and 
procurement activities. 
  
AUTHORITY 
  
• Transportation Commission 
• 49 CFR Part 26 
• C.R.S.43-1-106(8)(a) and (k) 
• Titles I, III, and V of the Transportation Equity Act for the 21st Century (TEA-21), Pub. 
             L. 105-178, 112 Stat. 107 
• 49 U.S.C. 47101, et seq. 
  
APPLICABILITY 
  
All U.S. DOT Federal aid contracts for construction, consulting, and procurement. 
  
DEFINITION 
  
The Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program is a program required by the US DOT and its 
modal agencies as a condition to receive Federal aid and ensures that contracting opportunities 
are made available to businesses owned by women, minorities and individuals that are socially 
and economically disadvantaged as defined in 49 CFR, Part 26.   
  
POLICY 
  
In accordance with 49 CFR Part 26, the Colorado Department of Transportation and the 
contractors, subcontractors, cities, counties and other local entities with whom it does business 
will take all necessary and reasonable steps to ensure that disadvantaged business enterprises 
have the opportunity to compete for and participate in contracts financed with federal funds.  
 

12 Consent Agenda: Page 48 of 56



 

Subject 

DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PROGRAM 
Number 
611.0 

  

 
Neither the Colorado Department of Transportation nor its contractors shall discriminate on the 
basis of race, creed, color, national origin, or sex in the award and performance of state or 
federally funded contracts. 
  
 RESPONSIBILITY 
  
Responsibility for the administration of this program is assigned to the Director of the Center for 
Equal Opportunity who is designated as the DBE Liaison Officer.  In partnership with the staff 
of the Center for Equal Opportunity and the Regional Civil Rights Offices, the DBE Liaison 
Officer has responsibility for developing, managing and implementing the DBE program on a 
day-to-day basis; for ensuring that technical assistance activities for DBEs are carried out; and 
for ensuring that information on available business opportunities is disseminated so that DBEs 
are provided an opportunity to bid on all state and federally funded contracts. 
  
Each Regional Transportation Director (RTD), Division Director, Office and Branch Manager, 
and Region Civil Rights Manager is responsible for ensuring, in cooperation with the DBE 
Liaison Officer, the effective implementation of the DBE program within their respective areas.  
They will cooperate fully with the DBE Liaison Officer to assure that the objectives of the DBE 
program are met. 
  
OBJECTIVES 
  
The objectives of this program are as follows:  
  
1.  To ensure nondiscrimination in the award and administration of contracts in the 

Department's highway, transit, and airport financial assistance programs; 
       
2.  To create a level playing field on which DBEs can compete fairly for contracts;  
  
3.  To ensure that CDOT’s DBE program is narrowly tailored in accordance with applicable 

law; 
  
4.  To ensure that only firms that fully meet the DBE Program eligibility standards are 

permitted to participate as DBEs;  
  
5.  To help remove barriers to the participation of DBEs in contracts; 
  
6.  To assist the development of firms that can compete successfully in the marketplace 

outside the DBE program; and  
  
7.  To provide appropriate flexibility in establishing and providing opportunities for DBEs. 
  

12 Consent Agenda: Page 49 of 56



 

 
 

Subject 

DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PROGRAM 
Number 
611.0 

 
IMPLEMENTATION 
  
This policy shall be effective upon approval by the Transportation Commission. 
  
FISCAL NOTE 
  
The fiscal impact of this Policy will depend on the cost of technical support activities 
implemented for DBEs and any training programs to educate CDOT employees about the 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program. 
  
REVIEW DATE 
  
This directive shall be reviewed on or by April 2015. 
  

  Date   
 
  
 

 

04/15/2010 

12 Consent Agenda: Page 50 of 56



Resolution # TC- 

Adoption of Policy Directive 604.0 “Policy on Non-Discrimination” and 
Repeal of Policy Directive 611.0 “Disadvantaged Business Enterprise 
Program”  

WHEREAS, pursuant to § 43-1-106(8)(a), C.R.S., the Colorado 
Transportation Commission is charged with formulating general policy 
with respect to the management, construction, and maintenance of 
public highways and other transportation systems in the state; and  

WHEREAS, The Colorado Department of Transportation (“CDOT”) is 
required to comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act, 42 U.S.C. § 
2000d, and related statutes as a recipient of federal funds from the U.S. 
Department of Transportation; and   

WHEREAS, CDOT is required to comply with Title II of the Americans 
with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. §12101-12213, and related 
statutes as a recipient of federal funds from the U.S. Department of 
Transportation; and   

WHEREAS, CDOT is required to comply with the Civil Rights 
Restoration Act of 1987, Pub L. No. 100-259, 102 Stat. 28, as a 
recipient of federal funds from the U.S. Department of Transportation; 
and   

WHEREAS, CDOT created the Civil Rights and Business Resource 
Center to coordinate with regional civil rights staff to ensure compliance 
with civil rights laws; and 

WHEREAS, revised Policy Directive 604.0 updates and replaces Policy 
Directive 604.0, “Non-Discrimination in Federally Funded Programs Policy” 
adopted on July 1, 2004; and 

WHEREAS, Policy Directive 604.0 includes the policy specifications regarding 
the Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program and thus, replaces the need 
for Policy Directive 611.0, “Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program” 
adopted on April 15, 2010. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Commission herein approves 
updated Policy Directive 604.00 “Policy on Non-Discrimination.” 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Commission repeals Policy Directive 

12 Consent Agenda: Page 51 of 56



611.0 “Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program” as its terms have been 
consolidated into updated Policy Directive 604.0. 

 

 

 

___________________________________________       ____________________________ 

Transportation Commission Secretary  Date 

12 Consent Agenda: Page 52 of 56



 
People          Respect          Integrity          Customer Service          Excellence 

 
 

PROJECT #: F006-1(2) 
LOCATION: Greeley, CO 
PARCEL #: 33-EX 
COUNTY: Weld 
 

STATE OF COLORADO 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
Chief Engineer        
4201 East Arkansas Avenue  
Denver, CO 80222-3400 
(303) 757-9206 
(303) 757-9656 Fax 
 
 
TO:  Transportation Commissioners 
  
FROM: Timothy J. Harris, P.E. 
  Chief Engineer 
 
DATE: December 23, 2013 
 
SUBJECT:    Transportation Commission Agenda for January 16, 2014 
 
 
Requested Action:  
Declaration of Excess Property, Parcel 33-EX, created under Project F006-1(2) 
 
Background:   
Parcel 33-EX was acquired as part of CDOT Project F006-1(2) in 1949, and is located in the southeast 
quadrant of the SH 85 Bypass and SH85 Business interchange on the north side of Greeley.  Parcel 33-
EX contains a total area of 2.136 acres.   
 
CDOT Region 4 has made the determination that the Parcel 33-EX is no longer needed for 
transportation purposes, and they intend to sell the parcel for fair market value in accordance with the  
procedures for disposal as described in Colorado Revised Statute 43-1-210(5).   
 
Revenue generated by the sale of the parcel will be reinvested into future CDOT projects.   
  

 

12 Consent Agenda: Page 53 of 56



12 Consent Agenda: Page 54 of 56



     
       PROJECT #: F006-1(2) 
       PARCEL: 33-EX 
       LOCATION: SH 85 Greeley 
       COUNTY: Weld 
 

PROPOSED RESOLUTION 

WHEREAS, the Colorado Department of Transportation acquired 33-EX in 1949 for SH 85 right of way; 
and 

WHEREAS, Parcel 33-EX contains 2.136 acres and is located in the southeast quadrant of the SH 85 
Bypass and SH 85 Business interchange in northern Greeley, Weld County, Colorado; and 

WHEREAS, CDOT Region 4 has made the determination that Parcel 33-EX is no longer needed for 
transportation purposes; and 

WHEREAS, CDOT Region 4 desires to sell Parcel 33-EX for fair market value in accordance with 
Colorado Revised Statute 43-1-210 (5) ; and 

WHEREAS, the sale of Parcel 33-EX will not affect the design, construction or utility of SH 85; and 

WHEREAS, the Department of Transportation, Region 4, recommends that the property described as 33-
EX of Project F006-1(2) be declared excess property; and 

WHEREAS, the Chief Engineer and the Department of Transportation are authorized pursuant to 
C.R.S. 43-1-106(8)(n), 43-1-110, 43-1-114(3), and 43-1-210(5) to make determinations regarding 
property to be declared excess and not needed for transportation purposes; and 

WHEREAS, the Department of Transportation, has declared through its Chief Engineer, that Parcel 33-
EX is no longer needed for transportation; and 

WHEREAS, the Transportation Commission concurs with the Chief Engineer that Parcel 33-EX is no 
longer needed for transportation purposes. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Department of Transportation be given authority to 
dispose of Parcel 33-EX of Project F006-1(2) containing 2.136 acres more or less  as shown in Exhibit A 
and contained in the official agenda.  

FURTHER, funds from the sale of the property shall be disbursed in accordance with Section 7.2.15 of 
the CDOT Right-of-Way Manual. 

12 Consent Agenda: Page 55 of 56



 

 
 
 
 
 
DATE: January 3, 2014 

 
TO: Transportation Commission of Colorado 

 
FROM: Michael Cheroutes, Director, High Performance Transportation Enterprise 

 
SUBJECT: Compliance Agreement for U.S. 36 Concession Project 
 
 
In connection with the U.S. 36 Concession Project, the High Performance Transportation 

Enterprise (HPTE) is in financial close negotiations with the Concessionaire, Plenary Roads 

Denver, LLC (Concessionaire), and the Concessionaire’s lenders.  In order to reach financial 

close, the Concessionaire anticipates receiving a TIFIA loan from the U.S. Department of 

Transportation (TIFIA Lender).  The TIFIA Lender has requested that the Colorado 

Department of Transportation (CDOT) and HPTE enter into a compliance agreement 

(Compliance Agreement) at financial close, pursuant to which CDOT and HPTE will provide 

certain assurances to, and make certain agreements with, the TIFIA Lender regarding the 

U.S. 36 Concession Project.  In general, the proposed umbrella document simply repeats (in 

favor of the TIFIA Lender) what CDOT/HPTE have already authorized in other agreements.  

As such, our counsel have aggressively commented on the initial draft, questioning the 

need for the document in the first place.  The TIFIA Lender has been slow to respond.  

 

Accordingly, as of the date hereof, the current draft of the Compliance Agreement is not in a 

form that can be submitted to the Transportation Commission for consideration.  We hope 

to make progress in the negotiations of the Compliance Agreement with the TIFIA Lender 

within the next week but if the issue goes away, or failing that an acceptable pared-down 

draft is not received in time for you to review, we will request that the Compliance 

Agreement be removed from the Transportation Commission Agenda. 

 

12 Consent Agenda: Page 56 of 56



 

 

STATE OF COLORADO 
 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
Division of Accounting and Finance 
4201 East Arkansas Avenue 
Denver CO   80222 
(303) 757-9793 
 
 
 
 
DATE:   January 15, 2014 

 

TO:    Transportation Commission 

 

FROM:   Scott Richrath, Chief Financial Officer 

 

SUBJECT:   Eighth Supplement – FY 2014        

 

  

 

This supplement budgets projects for FY ’14 unless otherwise noted in the explanations 

on the following pages. The project requests are consistent with the FY 2012 through FY 

2017 STIP. Funds are available from the Regions’ allocations unless otherwise indicated. 

 

Per Transportation Commission direction last month, Emergency Relief project updates 

will be included in the Budget Supplement. 

 

 

 

   

  



Transportation Commission 

8th Supplement FY 2014 

January 2014 

Page 2 of 9 

 

 

In FY 2013, the Transportation Commission approved $86,000,000 of Surface Treatment 

Program projects for advancement using FY 2014 funding. As a result, the approved FY 

2014 Surface Treatment Program was not fully funded.  

 

The Surface Treatment projects in this Supplement request FY 2015 advance budget. 

Under cash management principles that will become part of future budget policy, staff 

will advance budget FY 2015 Surface Treatment funds as needed. 

 

This report now reflects year of budget and year of expenditure detail. 

 

Budget actions requested: 

 

Region 1 

 

 $11,250,000 – Surface Treatment Program, FASTER Safety, Highway Safety 

Improvement Program – SH 88:  Yosemite to Parker Road – Resurfacing and 

Intersection Improvements (Jordan/Dayton) – This action budgets the construction 

phase of work. The advancement of FY 2015 Surface Treatment funds is requested. 

Construction advertisement is scheduled for February 2014. This project is on the 

Asset Management FY 2014 Surface Treatment list.  (17890/1000190126) 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

Phase Funding Current  Total Revised Expended

of Work Program Budget FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016 Request Budget Budget

ROW FASTER Safety $1,200,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,200,000 $353,811

Total ROW $1,200,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,200,000 $353,811

Design FASTER Safety $950,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $950,000 $702,597

Total Design $950,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $950,000 $702,597

Construction Federal-aid $0 $150,000 $9,000,000 $0 $9,150,000 $9,150,000 $0

FASTER Safety $0 $2,100,000 $0 $0 $2,100,000 $2,100,000 $0

Total Construction $0 $2,250,000 $9,000,000 $0 $11,250,000 $11,250,000 $0

Total Project Budget $2,150,000 $2,250,000 $9,000,000 $0 $11,250,000 $13,400,000 $1,056,408

Total

FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016 Request

$3,000,000 $8,250,000 $0 $11,250,000

SH 88:   Yosemite to Parker Road (MP 16.827 - 21.733)

Budget Components by Phase, Funding Program, Fiscal Year

Eighth Supplement Action

Year of Expenditure

Year of Budget



Transportation Commission 

8th Supplement FY 2014 

January 2014 

Page 3 of 9 

 

 

 $55,000,000 – RAMP and Regional Priority Program – I-70:  Twin Tunnels 

Westbound – Tunnel Widening – Per this month’s Transportation Commission 

workshop on the Westbound Twin Tunnel widening project, this action requests the 

reallocation of $48 million of returned High Performance Tolling Enterprise (HPTE) 

RAMP funds and the advancement of $7 million FY 2015 Regional Priority Program 

funds. This project will execute under an aggressive Construction Manager / General 

Contractor (CMGC) delivery with construction commencing in March 2014.  Project 

completion is anticipated at the end of calendar year 2014.  (19879/10001…) 

 

 
 

 
 

Region 2 

 

 $3,500,000 – Surface Treatment Program – US 24:  Wilkerson Pass - East – 

Resurfacing – This action budgets the construction phase of work. The advancement 

of FY 2015 Surface Treatment funds is requested. Construction advertisement is 

scheduled for February 2014. This project is on the Asset Management FY 2014 

Surface Treatment list.  (19776/1000189925) 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

Phase Funding Current  Total Revised Expended

of Work Program Budget FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016 Request Budget Budget

Construction Federal-aid $500,000 $43,780,800 $6,384,700 $0 $50,165,500 $50,665,500 $0

State HUTF $0 $4,219,200 $615,300 $0 $4,834,500 $4,834,500 $0

Total Construction $500,000 $48,000,000 $7,000,000 $0 $55,000,000 $55,500,000 $0

Total Project Budget $500,000 $48,000,000 $7,000,000 $0 $55,000,000 $55,500,000 $0

Total

FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016 Request

$7,000,000 $48,000,000 $0 $55,000,000

I-70:  Westbound Twin Tunnels Widening

Budget Components by Phase, Funding Program, Fiscal Year

Eighth Supplement Action

Year of Budget

Year of Expenditure

Phase Funding Current  Total Revised Expended

of Work Program Budget FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016 Request Budget Budget

Construction Federal-aid $0 $0 $2,897,650 $0 $2,897,650 $2,897,650 $0

State HUTF $0 $0 $602,350 $0 $602,350 $602,350 $0

Total Construction $0 $0 $3,500,000 $0 $3,500,000 $3,500,000 $0

Total Project Budget $0 $0 $3,500,000 $0 $3,500,000 $3,500,000 $0

Total

FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016 Request

$2,200,000 $1,300,000 $0 $3,500,000

Year of Expenditure

US 24:  Wilkerson Pass - East (MP 253.6 - 263)

Budget Components by Phase, Funding Program, Fiscal Year

Eighth Supplement Action

Year of Budget



Transportation Commission 

8th Supplement FY 2014 

January 2014 

Page 4 of 9 

 

 

 $5,211,329 – Surface Treatment Program – US 50:  Through La Junta – Resurfacing 

– This action budgets the construction phase of work. The advancement of FY 2015 

funds is requested. Construction advertisement is scheduled for February 2014. This 

project is on the Asset Management FY 2014 Surface Treatment list.  (19669/1000189920) 

 

 
 

 
 

 $12,570,000 – Surface Treatment Program – I-25:  Butte Creek - South – Resurfacing 

– This action budgets the construction phase of work. The advancement of FY 2015 

funds is requested. Construction advertisement is scheduled for February 2014. This 

project is on the Asset Management FY 2014 Surface Treatment list.  (19655/1000189919) 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

Phase Funding Current  Total Revised Expended

of Work Program Budget FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016 Request Budget Budget

Construction Federal-aid $0 $0 $4,314,459 $0 $4,314,459 $4,314,459 $0

State HUTF $0 $0 $896,870 $0 $896,870 $896,870 $0

Total Construction $0 $0 $5,211,329 $0 $5,211,329 $5,211,329 $0

Total Project Budget $0 $0 $5,211,329 $0 $5,211,329 $5,211,329 $0

Total

FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016 Request

$4,500,000 $711,329 $0 $5,211,329

Year of Expenditure

Eighth Supplement Action

US 50:  Through La Junta (MP 377.4 - 381.2)

Budget Components by Phase, Funding Program, Fiscal Year

Year of Budget

Phase Funding Current  Total Revised Expended

of Work Program Budget FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016 Request Budget Budget

Construction Federal-aid $432,872 $0 $11,465,097 $0 $11,465,097 $11,897,969 $0

State HUTF $41,715 $0 $1,104,903 $0 $1,104,903 $1,146,618 $0

Total Construction $474,587 $0 $12,570,000 $0 $12,570,000 $13,044,587 $0

Total Project Budget $474,587 $0 $12,570,000 $0 $12,570,000 $13,044,587 $0

Total

FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016 Request

$7,542,000 $5,028,000 $0 $12,570,000

Year of Expenditure

I-25:  Butte Creek - South (MP 49.9 - 59.1)

Budget Components by Phase, Funding Program, Fiscal Year

Eighth Supplement Action

Year of Budget



Transportation Commission 

8th Supplement FY 2014 

January 2014 

Page 5 of 9 

 

 

Region 3 

 

 $2,600,000 – Surface Treatment Program – US 50:  Whitewater - East – Resurfacing 

– This action budgets the construction phase of work. The advancement of FY 2015 

Surface Treatment funds is requested. Construction advertisement is scheduled for 

March 2014. This project is on the Asset Management FY 2014 Surface Treatment 

list.  (19300/1000189748) 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

Phase Funding Current Total Revised Expended

of Work Program Budget FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016 Request Budget To-Date

ROW Federal-aid $7,037 $0 $0 $0 $0 $7,037 $1,606

State HUTF $1,463 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,463 $334

Total ROW $8,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,500 $1,940

Utility Federal-aid $159,793 $0 $0 $0 $0 $159,793 $0

State HUTF $33,217 $0 $0 $0 $0 $33,217 $0

Total Utility $193,010 $0 $0 $0 $0 $193,010 $0

Design Federal-aid $24,837 $0 $0 $0 $0 $24,837 $317

State HUTF $5,163 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,163 $72

Total Design $30,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $30,000 $389

Construction Federal-aid $0 $0 $2,152,540 $0 $2,152,540 $2,152,540 $0

State HUTF $0 $0 $447,460 $0 $447,460 $447,460 $0

Total Construction $0 $0 $2,600,000 $0 $2,600,000 $2,600,000 $0

Total Project Budget $38,500 $0 $2,600,000 $0 $2,600,000 $2,638,500 $2,329

Total

FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016 Request

$1,300,000 $1,300,000 $0 $2,600,000

US 50:  Whitewater - East (MP 42 - 51)

Budget Components by Phase, Funding Program, Fiscal Year

Year of Expenditure

Year of Budget

Eighth Supplement Action



Transportation Commission 

8th Supplement FY 2014 

January 2014 

Page 6 of 9 

 

 

Region 5 

 

 $750,000 – Surface Treatment Program – SH 62:  Placerville to Ridgway – Phase I – 

Resurfacing – This action budgets the construction phase of work. The advancement 

of FY 2015 funds is requested. Construction advertisement is scheduled for March 

2014. This project is on the Asset Management FY 2014 Surface Treatment list. 
(19704/1000189923) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Phase Funding Current  Total Revised Expended

of Work Program Budget FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016 Request Budget Budget

Construction Federal-aid $0 $0 $620,925 $0 $620,925 $620,925 $0

State HUTF $0 $0 $129,075 $0 $129,075 $129,075 $0

Total Construction $0 $0 $750,000 $0 $750,000 $750,000 $0

Total Project Budget $0 $0 $750,000 $0 $750,000 $750,000 $0

Total

FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016 Request

$750,000 $0 $0 $750,000

Year of Expenditure

Year of Budget

SH 62:  Placerville to Ridgway (MP 0 - 10)

Budget Components by Phase, Funding Program, Fiscal Year

Eighth Supplement Action



Transportation Commission 

8th Supplement FY 2014 

January 2014 

Page 7 of 9 

 

 

RAMP 

 
Responsible Acceleration of Maintenance and Partnerships 

 

 

Public – Public Partnership 

Region 3 

 

 $1,850,000 – RAMP – SH 9:  Iron Springs (South of Frisco) – New Alignment and 

Widening with Bike Path Relocation – This action budgets the design phase of work. 

Construction advertisement is scheduled for March 2016.  RAMP comprises 78.74% 

of project budget.  (19930/1000189750) 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Phase Funding Current  Total Revised Expended

of Work Program Budget FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016 Request Budget Budget

Design Federal-aid $0 $343,578 $827,900 $360,136 $1,531,614 $1,531,614 $0

State HUTF $0 $71,422 $172,100 $74,864 $318,386 $318,386 $0

Total Design $0 $415,000 $1,000,000 $435,000 $1,850,000 $1,850,000 $0

Total Project Budget $0 $415,000 $1,000,000 $435,000 $1,850,000 $1,850,000 $0

Total

FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016 Request

$415,000 $1,000,000 $435,000 $1,850,000

Eighth Supplement Action

Budget Components by Phase, Funding Program, Fiscal Year

SH 9:  Iron Springs (South of Frisco) (MP 91.9 - 95.5)

Year of Budget

Year of Expenditure

Scope Schedule Cost Estimate Letter of Commitment

Yes Yes Yes                      Received / Under Review

RAMP Funding Criteria



Transportation Commission 

8th Supplement FY 2014 

January 2014 

Page 8 of 9 

 

 

For Informational Purposes 
 

1) Based on your guidance at the last Transportation Commission meeting, OFMB 

applied PD703 to determine the projects to be included in this Supplement. 

 

 

2) A memo was provided to the Transportation Committee from the Transportation 

Asset Management Committee to request shifting project funds within the 

Tunnels and Rock fall programs.  

 

a. Tunnels:  There were six projects approved for FY14 for tunnels, four of 

which are proceeding as expected.  Of the two remaining projects, both at 

Wolf Creek Tunnel, staff requested the shifting of funds from one project 

to another.  These two projects call for the replacement of the UPS system 

and the replacement of the deicing system with newer and more reliable 

technology.   

 

b. Rock fall:  The locations for the selected Risk Reduction work were the 

Clear Creek Canyon Corridor, the I-70 Mountain Corridor, and an 

individual site on US36 near Estes Park.  The RMP is still being 

developed to incorporate other geological and geotechnical hazards in 

addition to rock fall; however, the rock fall prioritization method has been 

updated and is being used to identify FY14 and FY15 work.  This 

combined with the need to avoid duplicating efforts for planned work on 

the I-70 Mountain Corridor and the effects to US36 from the September 

floods, which have reshaped the rock fall efforts on this corridor, have 

resulted in changes to the Risk Reduction work locations.  Using the 

methods outlined in the RMP, the work locations for Risk Reduction will 

be the Clear Creek Canyon Corridor and individual sites on SH3 in 

Durango, SH145 near Telluride and US550 near Ridgeway. 

 

 

3) The High Performance Tolling Enterprise (HPTE) may request a $19.7 million 

short-term loan from the State Treasurer, prior to expected payment from RTD, to 

keep US 36 Phase II project on schedule.  (10001…) 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Transportation Commission 

8th Supplement FY 2014 

January 2014 

Page 9 of 9 

 

 

4) The budget for the I-25 and I-225 (TREX) project to repair defects along this corridor 

has been augmented with advanced FY 2015 Regional Priority Program funds to fund 

a $75,000 settlement agreement with Storage Master.  (19869/10001…)    

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Phase Funding Current  Total Revised Expended

of Work Program Budget FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016 Request Budget Budget

Design FASTER Safety $500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $500,000 $0

State HUTF $0 $0 $75,000 $0 $75,000 $75,000 $0

Total Design $500,000 $0 $75,000 $0 $75,000 $575,000 $0

Total Project Budget $500,000 $0 $75,000 $0 $75,000 $575,000 $0

Total

FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016 Request

$75,000 $0 $0 $75,000

Year of Expenditure

I-25 and I-225 (TREX)

Budget Components by Phase, Funding Program, Fiscal Year

Eighth Supplement Action

Year of Budget



 

 

 

 

 

 

COLORADO DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

 

 

STATE OF COLORADO 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Eighth 

 Supplement 

 

 

 

 
Fiscal year 2013-2014

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Dated:  January 15, 2014 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

COLORADO DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

 

STATE OF COLORADO 

 

 

 

 

 
RESOLUTION NO. TC –  

 

 

 

 

 
“BE IT RESOLVED, That the Eighth Supplement to the Fiscal Year 2013-2014  

Budget be approved by the Commission” 
 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Region 1

SSP4623 025A/225A I-25 and I-225 (TREX) - Defect Repairs 19869 Arapahoe/Denver/Douglas D 500,000$         75,000$                       

75,000$                       

Region 3

SIN1408 009C SH 9:  Iron Springs (South of Frisco) 19930 Summit D -$                   1,850,000$                   

1,850,000$                   

Region 1

SDR7065/SDR5220 088B SH 88:  Yosemite to Parker Road 17890 Arapahoe R,D,C 2,150,000$      11,250,000$                 

Region 2

SR25216 024A US 24:  Wilkerson Pass - East 19776 Park C -$                   3,500,000$                   

SR25216 050B US 50:  Through La Junta 19669 Otero C -$                   5,211,329$                   

SR25216 025A I-25:  Butte Creek - South 19655 Huerfano C 474,587$         12,570,000$                 

Region 3

SR35217 050A/141A US 50:  Whitewater - East 19300 Mesa R,U,D,C $231,510 2,600,000$                   

Region 5

SR55219 062A SH 62:  Placerville to Ridgway 19704 San Miguel C -$                   750,000$                      

35,881,329$                 

Region 1

070A I-70:  Twin Tunnels Westbound Widening 19879 Clear Creek C -$                   55,000,000$                 

55,000,000$                 

Grand Total 92,806,329$           

Surface Treatment

Tunnels

Reconstruction

Miscellaneous

Project Detail



 

 

 

 
 

Prior

State  TCCRF Cost Estimate Total

Reg Highway Mileposts Project Description County Contribution TCCRF Federal Funds Adjustment Cost Change

4 036B 0 - 21 US 36: Estes Park to Lyons MDB Boulder/Larimer 7,562,223$        (2,226,482)$                  2,226,482$                (200,000)$                     7,362,223$     (200,000)$       

4 034A 63 - 87 US 34: West Loveland to Estes Park MDB Larimer 10,000,182$      4,675,761$                   (4,675,761)$               -$                             10,000,182$   -$                   

1 072A 11 - 29.377 SH 72: Coal Creek Canyon - SH 93 to SH 119 Boulder/Gilpin/Jefferson 9,477,847$        (4,817,387)$                  4,817,387$                -$                             9,477,847$     -$                   

4 Traffic Control 33,271$            (46,013)$                      46,013$                     -$                             33,271$          -$                   

4 119A 61 - 63 SH 119 Del Camino to D-16-CG Grand 1,705,865$        -$                                -$                          35,663$                        1,741,528$     35,663$          

4 257A SH 60 and SH 257 Weld 471,383$          (142,471)$                    142,471$                   -$                             471,383$        -$                   

4 034A  8 - 10 US 34 Bypass 18th Street Weld 1,212,677$        (510,997)$                    510,997$                   -$                             1,212,677$     -$                   

4 034A 112 - 115 US 34 Near 18th Street Weld 1,452,213$        (527,246)$                    527,246$                   -$                             1,452,213$     -$                   

4 119A 26-41 SH 119  Boulder 1,576,134$        -$                                -$                          (240,102)$                     1,336,032$     (240,102)$       

4 036B 20 - 23 US36 South of SH 66 Boulder 668,497$          -$                                -$                          (56,197)$                       612,300$        (56,197)$         

1 072A 5.4 - 5.7 SH 72@78TH,SH 128 near SH93, SH 93, SH 74 Boulder/Jefferson 1,548,368$        (742,527)$                    742,527$                   -$                             1,548,368$     -$                   

4 Altus Traffic 51,642$            (11,834)$                      11,834$                     -$                             51,642$          -$                   

4 American Signs 30,995$            (5,587)$                        5,587$                       -$                             30,995$          -$                   

4 Jalisco 30,992$            (13,379)$                      13,379$                     -$                             30,992$          -$                   

4 Rocky Mountain Signing 15,992$            (11,316)$                      11,316$                     -$                             15,992$          -$                   

4 Traffic Control Masters 30,996$            (1,904)$                        1,904$                       -$                             30,996$          -$                   

4 Warning Lights traffic control 14,995$            (5,902)$                        5,902$                       -$                             14,995$          -$                   

4 Traffic Control Your Way 103,295$          (77,180)$                      77,180$                     -$                             103,295$        -$                   

4 006J/385D405.5-406.6 & 309-310 SH 6 and SH 385 Logan/Philips/Sedgwick 249,282$          -$                                -$                          263,178$                      512,460$        263,178$        

4 036B 20.0 - 21.8 US 36 Boulder -$                     -$                                -$                          775,327$                      775,327$        775,327$        

4 036B 7.5 - 19.0 US 36 CFL Boulder/Larimer -$                     201,313$                      201,313$        201,313$        

36,236,849$      (4,464,464)$                  4,464,464$                779,182$                      37,016,031$   779,182$        

Exchange of Funds to Facilitate Reimbursement

September 11, 2013 Flood Disaster

Flood Project Activity Since Last Report Date

Anticipated Costs and Expenditure Reimbursement

FHWA Reimbursement



 

 

 

Transaction Reference
Date Transaction Description Amount Balance Document

May-13 Final Balance 12S13 $49,301,722
project closure (16984) $380,000 1000176263

rollforward adjustment for FY 2013 (R15MS-010) $187,950 1000176365
write off funds adjustment FY 13 COPS refunding -$1,752,173 1000178381

June-13 Balance 1S14 $48,117,499
July-13 Balance 2S14 $48,117,499

FY 2014 Resource Allocation $25,890,107 1000178359
project surpluses returned to TCCRF (14959 and 16444) $1,477,868 1000178942/944/945/946/947/949

project surpluses returned to TCCRF $187,000 1000179267
project surpluses returned to TCCRF $718,491 1000180531/1000180532

transfer to Region 4 for US 36 Phase II -$3,000,000 1000181817
transfer to Office of Transportation Safety -$900,000 1000182746

transfer to Region 2 for US 24 Flooding - August 2013 -$5,500,000 1000182745
August-13 Balance 3S14 $66,990,965

OPN/OPS unbudgeted prior year funds $7,910,747 1000176367
final repayment of October 2012 loan to DTR $7,885,914 1000183736

FY 2013 carry forward from cost centers $8,746,118 1000183782/183783
bond refunding $8,231,926 1000179817/179819

project surplus returned to TCCRF $3,008 1000183839
FY 2013 Federal redistribution $25,515,737 1000183914
Worksman's Comp (E0176-010) -$6,969,138 1000183966

Tiger Grant $12,790,185 1000183979
allocation of Tiger Grant to regions -$12,790,185 1000183979

FHWA Emergency Relief $5,000,000 1000184146
allocation to SW Emergency Relief project -$5,000,000 1000184281

Xcel invoice -$100,000 1000185027
September-13 Balance 4S14 $118,215,277

FHWA Emergency Relief $25,000,000 1000184618
allocation to SW Emergency Relief project -$25,000,000 1000184618

return 2013 Snow and Ice contingency balance to TCCRF $2,668,831 1000184993
fund roll forward decision items -$8,238,709 1000183782/183783

FY 2014 cost center allocation reconciliation -$3,964,560 1000185350
net revenue adjustment for FY 2013 (after required program distribution adjustments) $3,506,401 1000185373

return of project surplus $52,238 1000185393
US 24 flood repairs/restoration supplemental request to that approved August 2013 -$1,180,000 1000186199/186201

US 50 (Fremont County) flood repairs/restoration/reimburse Maintenance - August 2013 -$1,008,000 1000186202/186203
SH 50B (Pueblo County) flood repairs/restoration/reimburse Maintenance - August 2013 -$25,000 1000186204

transfer to Emergency Flood Response Administration cost center - September 2013 -$1,000,000 1000185115
transfer to SH 72 emergency relief project (19804) - September 2013 -$9,477,847 1000185264

SH 72 @ 78th, SH 128 near SH 93, SH 93 and SH 74 flood repairs - September 2013 -$1,285,060 1000185345
Various flood projects in Region 4 - September 2013 -$46,909,850 1000185394/185821

SH 115 flood repairs/restoration - September 2013 -$44,130 1000185819
I-25 @ Monument Branch culvert flood repairs/restoration - September 2013 -$578,897 1000185280

US 24 request for future flood mitigation measures -$4,600,000 1000186200
radio console upgrades for CTMC and EJMT -$600,000 1000186205

fund TSM&O expand program delivery/services -$2,600,000 1000186206
loan to DTR for contract authority until FTA grants are received by CDOT -$5,305,665 1000186207

October-13 Balance 5S14 $37,625,029
FHWA Emergency Relief reimbursement $3,287,538 1000187385

surplus from project closure (14551) $1,292,731 1000187389
additional allocation to ER administrative cost center -$1,000,000 1000186652

additional allocation to ER projects -$5,399,597 1000187389
November-13 Balance 6S14 $35,805,701

net adjusting entries to ER projects this reporting period -$3,361 1000188244/189154
closure $212 1000188246

transfer to STP-Metro,CMAQ, TAP to keep FY 2013 programs whole -$6,716,637 1000189826/189929
December-13 Balance 7S14 $29,085,915

2013 Local funds for match to FY 2013 transfer above $1,269,366 1000189926/100190125

net adjusting entries to ER projects this reporting period -$779,182 1000189974/
January-14 Projected Balance 8S14 $29,576,099

Transportation Commission Contingency Reserve Fund 
Eighth Supplement FY 2014 Budget



Division of Accounting and Finance 

January 

 FY14 Contingency Balance Reconciliation  

 Page 1 

 December FY14  TC Contingency Balance   $ 29,085,915 

      

     Reimbursements  $   5,563,110       

      

     Emergency Relief     ($  6,342,292) 

      

     Pending January Supplement Items   $                0 

      

     All Other Adjustments    $ 1,269,366             

      

 January FY14 TC Contingency Balance   $29,576,099  



Division of Accounting and Finance 

January 

 FY14 Flood Administration/Finance  

 Page 2 

                                               Expenditure 

 

       Encumbrance 

 

    

Emergency Response 

Projects          $26,870,996         $ 37,852,289      

      

ER100            $  1,022,905          $     385,340 

      

        Total Change                  $  1,058,608         ($ 1,152,466) 

      

             

  Contractor Payments          $25,142,035          $27,208,711 

    



STATE OF COLORADO 
 

 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

 

 

 

 

“Taking Care To Get You There” 

 
DATE: January 16, 2014 

TO:  Transportation Commission 

FROM: Scott Richrath, CFO, Division of Accounting and Finance 

SUBJECT: Financing Options for New Region 4 HQ Building  

 

Purpose 

The intent of this memorandum is to provide additional information to the Commission in 

regards to the approved Region 4 HQ Building (the “Project”); CDOT staff is seeking 

approval from the Commission to use Certificates of Participation (“COPs”) to finance the 

project. As described below, there are various considerations for CDOT to finance the project 

through the use of COPs. 

 

Action Requested 

Determine funding source for the Project.  Staff recommendation is to provide authorization 

for the use of COPs to finance the new Region 4 HQ Building. 

 

Executive Summary 

As further detailed below, the purpose of this memorandum is to explain the pros and cons of 

utilizing COPs to finance the project. The following items will be included to clarify the 

request; a background on the history of CDOT issuing COPs, three alternatives with the 

appropriate details on each option, the key benefits to CDOT financing the project and the 

next steps to complete the financing. 

 

Background 

The Commission previously adopted the proposed resolution at the November 2013 

Commission Meeting, authorizing the project. However, the decision to consider financing 

the project was deferred to a later date, staff is now seeking approval to utilize COPs to 

finance the project.  

 

Previous Success of COP Funded Projects: In 2006, CDOT successfully eliminated the use 

of lease space for all of its office needs.  CDOT was able to purchase buildings as long-term 

investments by using COPs.  As a result of using COPs CDOT currently has equity in over 

120,000 square feet of office space that was previously leased on an annual basis. 

 

Alternatives  

Option #1 – Issue COPs and seek through a Decision Item, an approximately additional 

$2.4 million of annual lease payments for 10 years beginning at financial 

close  

CDOT staff will work with its Financial Advisor, Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Incorporated 

(“Stifel” or “Financial Advisor”) to craft a Request for Proposal (“RFP”) with the intent of 

sending to both investment banks and loan providers to solicit the lowest cost of borrowing. 

14 COP for Relocation of R4 HQ: Page 1 of 13



 

 

This process would be identical to the steps taken in early 2013 for the Taxable Series 2013 

TRANs refunding. 

 

Based on current market rates, the following table highlights the total borrowing cost and 

repayment for a 10 and 15-year amortization. The recommendation of staff would be to use a 

10-year amortization for the financing due to a savings of nearly 80 basis points in True 

Interest Cost. 

 
  10 Year Amortization 15 Year Amortization 
  Par  Proceeds Par  Proceeds 
Dated Date 6/15/2014 6/15/2014 6/15/2014 6/15/2014 
First Coupon 12/15/2014 12/15/2014 12/15/2014 12/15/2014 
Last Maturity 6/15/2024 6/15/2024 6/15/2029 6/15/2029 
True Interest Cost (TIC) 2.564% 2.564% 3.388% 3.389% 
Average Life (years)                    5.721                     5.721                     8.585                     8.585  
Par Amount 20,400,000  19,960,000  20,400,000  20,140,000  
Bond Proceeds 21,018,227  20,564,495  20,829,046  20,563,463  
Total Interest 3,620,000  3,542,550  6,429,163  6,349,013  
Total Debt Service 24,020,000  23,502,550  26,829,163  26,489,013  
Average Annual Debt Service 2,402,000  2,350,255  1,788,611  1,765,934  

 

 

Option #2 – Pay for the New CDOT R4 HQ with Property Management Baseline + RAMP 

Budget 

Paying for the design and construction of the new R4 Headquarters with the FY15 Property 

Management Budget would require the expenditure of the entire budget ($20.8M Baseline + 

RAMP).  $2.7M of the $20.8M budget is set to be used to make annual payments on existing 

COP’s.  CDOT Property Management has a stated goal of reducing the inventory of “F” 

rated vehicle storage facilities by 5% over the course of the next 5 years.  The asset 

management plan that allows for the reduction of “F” rated inventory requires preventative 

maintenance and replacement of existing buildings.  Using the FY 15 Property Management 

Budget for the new R4 Headquarters building would eliminate all controlled and deferred 

maintenance, delay the construction of eight new sand sheds, and put on hold the 

replacement of 4 “F” buildings, two “D” buildings as well as put a stop to completing major 

renovations to two additional “D” buildings.  

 

Option #3 – Use Commission Contingency to pay for the New CDOT R4 HQ 

Entering January 2014, the Transportation Commission Contingency Reserve Fund is 

approximately $25M, awaiting reimbursement of Emergency Relief expenditures but 

knowing that some portion of that reimbursement was targeted for RAMP prior to the flood.  

The estimated total project cost for the new R4 Headquarters project is $20.4M.  The use of 

contingency funds for this project would use 82% of the remaining contingency funds. 

 

Key Benefits 

Issuing COPs to finance the project offers CDOT several key benefits versus the other two 

options: 

 

  

14 COP for Relocation of R4 HQ: Page 2 of 13



 

 

Interest Rates Remain at Historical Lows 

As shown in the following chart, while interest rates have risen since May 2013 when Fed 

Chairman Bernanke first made comments regarding a reduction in the monthly $85M Fed 

Bond Buying Program, interest rates remain at very favorable levels from a historical 

standpoint. The chart shows the 10-year Treasury Rate and the Bond Buyer Revenue Index (a 

municipal bond index) since 2000, while the 10-year Treasury has recently hit 3.00% for the 

first time in two years; it remains well below the 6.55% in January 2000 and solidly below 

the average since 2000 of 3.89%. 

 

 

 
 

 

Favorable Financial Market Conditions 

Certainly the big story in the markets has been the Federal Reserve’s announcement it will 

begin tapering its bond-buying program. The purchases of longer-term Treasuries and 

mortgage-backed securities will be cut to $75 billion per month from $85 billion. While most 

market participants feel the taper was largely priced into the market, the market did react by 

weakening on December 19
th

 before immediately tightening back on December 20
th

. 

Municipal activity and reaction was far more muted than in the Treasury market, where the 

yield curve flattened with shorter bonds cheapening and longer bonds better bid. 

 

The action alleviated some uncertainty, which was weighing on the markets. Consequently, 

two-way trading flow picked up following the announcement. 

 

Lipper reports money flowed out of muni mutual funds for the 30th straight week in the week 

ended December 18. Investors pulled a net $1.71 billion in the week, down from 

approximately $1.9 billion the prior week. The outflows ticked up notably in the past two 

weeks, which is likely attributable to year-end tax-loss selling by investors. 

 

Cash Flow and Administrative Benefits 

By financing the project, whether over 10 or 15 years, CDOT will better be able to match the 

repayment schedule to the depreciation of the asset financed. While the useful life of the 

project will be much longer than 10 or 15 years, shortening the repayment of the financing 

will reduce the overall cost to CDOT and take advantage of the current steep slope of the 

0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

5.00%

6.00%

7.00%

8.00%

Jan-00 Jan-01 Jan-02 Jan-03 Jan-04 Jan-05 Jan-06 Jan-07 Jan-08 Jan-09 Jan-10 Jan-11 Jan-12 Jan-13

Revenue Bond Index

10-Year Treasury Note Yield

14 COP for Relocation of R4 HQ: Page 3 of 13



 

 

yield curve. Also, by financing the project, CDOT will be able to continue funding baseline 

and RAMP Property Management and continue to address new Property Management needs 

as they arise, such as a potential future Region 2 Headquarters relocation. 

 

Next Steps under Staff Recommendation 

Following approval from the Commission to finance the project with COPs, the ensuing steps 

will be taken to complete the financing: 

 

1. Issue the RFP to prospective investment banks and loan providers 

2. Review the responses and select the best financing partner for the financing 

3. Work with Stifel and Bond Counsel to draft the appropriate financing documents 

4. Complete the appropriate title work for the property 

5. Finalize the terms and pricing of the financing  

6. Close the transaction and deliver the funds 

 

All of these steps should be able to be completed within 90 days from the selection of the 

financing partner. 

 

Attachments 

1. January 2014 Transportation Commission Resolution for R4 HQ Relocation 

14 COP for Relocation of R4 HQ: Page 4 of 13



Division of Accounting and Finance 

Financing Options for New Region 4 HQ Building 

Scott Richrath 

January 16, 2014 

 Page 1 

Transportation Commission Workshop  

Financing Options for New Region 4 HQ Building 

14 COP for Relocation of R4 HQ: Page 5 of 13



Division of Accounting and Finance 

• CDOT staff is seeking approval from the Commission to use 

Certificates of Participation (“COPs”) to finance the approved Region 

4 HQ Building (the “Project”).  

• The Commission previously adopted the proposed resolution at the 

November 2013 Commission Meeting, authorizing the project.  

• The decision to consider financing the project was deferred to 

January; staff is now seeking approval to utilize COPs to finance the 

project.  

Background Information & Request of the Commission 

 Page 2 

14 COP for Relocation of R4 HQ: Page 6 of 13



Division of Accounting and Finance 

1. Issue COPs and seek through a Decision Item, an approximately 

additional $2.4 million of annual lease payments for 10 years 

beginning at financial close: 

a) CDOT staff will work with its Financial Advisor to distribute an RFP to solicit 

responses from interested parties to provide the funding at the lowest cost of 

capital (similar process to the Taxable Series 2013 TRANs). 

2. Pay for the New CDOT R4 HQ with Property Management 

Baseline + RAMP Budget 

a) Paying for the design and construction of the new R4 Headquarters with the 

FY15 Property Management Budget would require the expenditure of the entire 

budget ($20.8M Baseline + RAMP).  

3. Use Commission Contingency to pay for the New CDOT R4 HQ 

a) The use of contingency funds for this project would significantly reduce 

remaining contingency funds. 

  

Decision Points – Financing Alternatives 

 Page 3 

14 COP for Relocation of R4 HQ: Page 7 of 13



Division of Accounting and Finance 

Staff’s recommendation to the Commission is to issue COPs to 

finance the project; this strategy offers CDOT several key benefits 

versus the other two options: 

• Interest Rates Remain at Historic Lows 

• While interest rates have risen since May 2013 when Fed Chairman 

Bernanke first made comments regarding a reduction in the monthly $85M 

Fed Bond Buying Program, interest rates remain at very favorable levels 

from a historical standpoint. 

  

Recommendation to the Commission 

 Page 4 

14 COP for Relocation of R4 HQ: Page 8 of 13



Division of Accounting and Finance 

Staff’s recommendation to the Commission is to issue COPs to 

finance the project; this strategy offers CDOT several key benefits 

versus the other two options: 

• Favorable Financial Market Conditions 

• Certainly the big story in the markets has been the Federal Reserve’s 

announcement it will begin tapering its bond-buying program, municipal 

activity and reaction was far more muted than in the Treasury market, where 

the yield curve flattened with shorter bonds cheapening and longer bonds 

better bid. 

• Cash Flow and Administrative Benefits 

• Allow CDOT to better match the financing costs with the depreciation of the 

asset financed 

• Continue funding baseline and RAMP Property Management 

 

  

Recommendation to the Commission 

 Page 5 

14 COP for Relocation of R4 HQ: Page 9 of 13



Division of Accounting and Finance 

Financing Options for New Region 4 HQ Building 

Scott Richrath 

January 16, 2014 

 Page 6 

Transportation Commission Workshop  

Financing Options for New Region 4 HQ Building 

Questions? 

14 COP for Relocation of R4 HQ: Page 10 of 13



 

Transportation Commission of Colorado 
January 16, 2013 

 
Resolution Number TC-XXX 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to C.R.S. 43-1-211, CDOT is authorized to 
purchase land and/or build buildings suitable for offices for housing 

machines, tools, and equipment and pursuant to C.R.S. 43-1-212, CDOT 
may enter into rental or leasehold agreements under which the 
department may acquire title to such buildings with the approval of the 

Governor, the Chief Engineer, the Director of the Office of State Planning 
and Budgeting and a majority of the Transportation Commission; and,  

WHEREAS, a Facility Needs Assessment was completed by CDOT 
Property Management indicated that CDOT Region 4 Headquarters 
Building located in Greeley, CO, currently has facility deficiencies; and   

WHEREAS, the building deficiencies include, but are not limited to, fire 
and other safety hazards, size constraints, inefficient access and site 

circulation; and  

WHEREAS, CDOT Property Management and Region 4 contracted with 
real estate brokerage firm CRBE, Inc. to analyze and identify viable 

alternative relocation sites for the Region 4 Headquarters Building; and 
 
WHEREAS, after a thorough analysis, CDOT and CRBE have identified a 

site located in Greeley, CO, and on the US 34 Business Loop as the 
preferred alternative location to build a new CDOT Region 4 

Headquarters facility; and  
 
WHEREAS, the current baseline budget for the new Region 4 

Headquarters building and sufficient space for the Colorado State Patrol 
to purchase from CDOT as a part of this transaction is $19,866,735, 
which includes LEED certification as required by C.R.S. 24-30-1301(13); 

and 
 

WHEREAS, relocating the Region 4 Headquarters will also require that a 
new vehicle maintenance and regional storeroom supply facility be built; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, CRBE’s and CDOT’s study of this issue has identified the 

best location for this facility to be on land that CDOT already owns in 
Gilcrest, CO, with the cost of erecting this facility included in the dollar 
amount specified in the prior paragraph; and 

 
WHEREAS, in November 2013, the Transportation Commission approved 
the advancement of $2M of FY15 Property Management Capital 

14 COP for Relocation of R4 HQ: Page 11 of 13



 

Construction Budget to fund all pre-construction activities including 
design fees and purchase of the land required to build the new facility; 

and 
 

WHEREAS, CDOT is still evaluating whether to finance the construction 
of the new CDOT Region 4 Headquarters building and the vehicle 
maintenance and storage building by issuing Certificates of Participation 

or to pay for the construction with existing CDOT funds; and 
 
 

WHEREAS, as part of the CDOT Region 4 Headquarters relocation, 
CDOT will be able to market and sell the existing CDOT Region 4 

Headquarters Building located at 1420 2nd Street, Greeley, CO, and also 
market and sell CDOT Region 4 Engineering Residency located in 
Loveland, CO, with any proceeds from such sales to be returned to the 

Transportation Commission for its allocation or, if so permitted by the 
covenants associated with any potential Certificates, to use such 

proceeds to accelerate the repayment of them; and  
 
WHEREAS, CDOT’s Engineering Residency in Evans, CO, was damaged 

beyond repair as a result of the flooding that occurred in September, 
2013, and the building is scheduled to be demolished; and 
 

WHERAS, CDOT is coordinating with State Risk and FEMA to determine 
the total reimbursement CDOT will receive from damage caused to the 

Evans Residency by the flooding that occurred in September, 2013, with 
any such reimbursements to be returned to the Transportation 
Commission for its allocation or, if so permitted by the covenants 

associated with any potential Certificates, to use such proceeds to 
accelerate the repayment of them; and 
 

WHEREAS, CDOT may be able to sell the property in Evans where the 
residency was located after the building is demolished, with any proceeds 

from such sales to be returned to the Transportation Commission for its 
allocation or, if so permitted by the covenants associated with any 
potential Certificates, to use such proceeds to accelerate the repayment 

of them; and  
 

WHEREAS, key Region 4 Staff remain significantly allocated to flood 
restoration projects; and 
 

WHEREAS, design work on the Administrative Headquarters Building 
will not commence until key Region 4 staff can allocate time to design 
decisions; and 

 
 

14 COP for Relocation of R4 HQ: Page 12 of 13



 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Transportation 

Commission hereby approves CDOT’s plan to build a new CDOT Region 4 
Headquarters Building in Greeley, CO, and a vehicle maintenance and 

storage building in Gilcrest, CO and authorizes CDOT to either issue 
sufficient Certificates of Participation, or to use existing CDOT funds not 
to exceed $20.4 million, including the repayment of the $2M budget 

supplement for pre-construction activities described above and including 
the cost of issuance of potential Certificates, to construct these buildings 
including LEED certification and sufficient space for the Colorado State 

Patrol, subject to arrival at a mutually satisfactory interagency 
agreement with the Colorado State Patrol to reimburse CDOT for the 

State Patrol’s pro rata share of the facility. 
 
IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that the Transportation Commission 

authorizes CDOT to market and sell in accordance with 43-1-210(5) the 
existing CDOT Region 4 Headquarters Site and the residencies located in 

Evans, CO, and Loveland, CO, and authorizes that the funds received 
from the sale of these properties be returned to the Transportation 
Commission for it to allocate, or if so permitted by the covenants 

associated with any potential Certificates, to accelerate the pay down of 
the balance of the Certificates of Participation issued for the new Region 
4 Headquarters project.   

 
IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that the primary source for the repayment 

of any potential certificates not repaid from the sale of these properties or 
the payments toward the cost of the facility reimbursed by the Colorado 
State Patrol (to the extent permitted by the covenants of the Certificates) 

shall be repaid through annual allocations made as a part of the annual 
budget process as approved by the Transportation Commission.  
 

 
 

________________________________ 
Herman Stockinger, Secretary 
Transportation Commission of Colorado  

14 COP for Relocation of R4 HQ: Page 13 of 13



STATE OF COLORADO 
 

 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
 
 
 
 

“Taking Care To Get You There” 

 
DATE: January 3, 2014 
 
TO:  Transportation Commission 
 
FROM: Herman Stockinger / Anthony DeVito 
 
SUBJECT: Request to Open Permanent Rules Governing the Use of Tunnels on Colorado 

State Highways, 2 CCR 601-8 and Delegate Authority to an Administrative 
Hearing Officer to Preside over a Rule-Making Hearing. 

 
 
Purpose 
To open the rule-making process regarding CDOT’s Rules Governing the Use of Tunnels on 
Colorado State Highways, 2 CCR 601-8 (“Tunnel Rules”).  The Commission is authorized to 
promulgate this set of rules under § 43-1-106(8)(k), C.R.S., § 42-4-106 (7)(a) and (b), C.R.S., 
§ 42-20-301(3), C.R.S.  
 
Action Requested 
The Commission is requested to approve a resolution opening the Tunnel Rules and delegate 
authority to an administrative hearing officer to conduct a public rule-making hearing. By 
taking this action, the Commission authorizes the Department to move forward on all 
required rule-making steps in compliance with the State Administrative Procedure Act 
(“APA”), § 24-4-103, C.R.S.  
 
Executive Summary  
The Tunnel Rules govern the use of tunnels on state highways.  The rules include the process 
motor carriers must follow regarding the use of the Eisenhower Johnson Memorial Tunnel 
(“EJMT”) when Loveland Pass is closed. They also include reference to those hazardous 
materials which are prohibited from using the EJMT at all times in accordance with federal 
regulations. While the Colorado State Patrol has authority over the transport of hazardous 
materials throughout the state, CDOT is charged with supervision of traffic through tunnels 
located on state highways.  The main goal for the rules is to improve the flow of traffic 
through the EJMT, while at the same time taking safety precautions to segregate the passage 
of hazardous materials through the EJMT from the motoring public, and ensuring that goods 
and services are provided to the communities west of the EJMT in as expeditious manner as 
possible.   
 
Background 
The Commission most recently adopted the Tunnel Rules in 1986, with a subsequent 
adoption making minor changes in 2008.  These minor changes did not include updating the 
rules to conform to federal regulations; therefore, the regulations referenced in the rules, 
which have changed significantly since 1986, are currently obsolete.  Besides conforming the 

15 Permanent Tunnel Rules: Page 1 of 34



 

 

rules to federal regulations regarding the transport of hazardous materials, the proposed rules 
are based on   Colorado State Patrol recommendations and align with the recently updated 
State Patrol rules, 8 CCR 1507-25 “Rules and Regulations Concerning the Permitting, 
Routing & Transportation of Hazardous and Nuclear Materials and the Intrastate 
Transportation of Agricultural Products in the State of Colorado.” Finally, the proposed rules 
are much easier to understand.    
 
CDOT has worked over the past year to revise a draft of the rules and to analyze the rules’ 
impact on industry.  Key stakeholders have given their time to work with CDOT on the rules, 
including the Colorado Motor Carriers Association, the Colorado/Wyoming Petroleum 
Marketers Association, Tim Gablehouse, Esq. of Gablehouse Granberg, LLC, and Captain 
Joshua Downing of the Colorado State Patrol.  CDOT has also sought input from the groups 
and individuals identified as the “representative group” which is a group of key stakeholders 
requested to review the rules prior to the formal commencement of rule-making.   
 
Details   
Following is a list of the primary differences between the current rules and the proposed 
rules:  
   
1.  What hazmat is prohibited from EJMT at all times? 

 Current rules:  
• Loads carrying radioactive materials in any quantity and flammable compressed 

gases in quantities of 1,000 lbs or more gross weight.  Current rule 5.3.2 

Proposed Rules:   
• Most dangerous explosives: mass explosion hazard, projection hazard, 

predominantly fire hazard, detonators, blasting agents (ammonium nitrate-fuel oil 
mixture), dangerous when wet, organic peroxides, inhalation hazard, poisonous 
materials, radioactive HRCQ (highway route controlled quantity).  Proposed rule 
3.03 

2.  What hazmat is permitted to use EJMT when LP is closed? 
 Current rules: 

• Hazmat allowed under certain conditions (e.g. on the hour metering) except loads 
carrying radioactive materials in any quantity and flammable compressed gases in 
quantities of 1,000 lbs or more gross weight.  Current rule 5.3.1 

 Proposed Rules:   
• Extremely insensitive explosives, radioactive materials (except HRCQ), 

flammable gas, non-flammable, non-poisonous gases, flammable liquids, 
flammable solids, combustible materials, oxidizers, poisons (except inhalation 
hazards) infectious substances, corrosive substances, and other regulated 
materials.  Proposed rule 3.04.1 

3.  What hazmat is treated differently in the proposed rules from current rules? 

15 Permanent Tunnel Rules: Page 2 of 34



 

 

• Explosives will be prohibited  
• Flammable gas (propane) will be permitted 
• Radioactive materials (except HRCQ) will be permitted 
• Inhalation hazard poisons, organic peroxides, dangerous when wet will be 

prohibited 

4.  Proposed rules will conform to staging practice of winter 2012-13. 
• When LP is closed, staging required using Officer’s Gulch, Vail Pass rest area and 

Herman’s Gulch.  Proposed rule 3.04.2 – C and D. 
 
5.  Proposed rules do not change peak travel times, but language is clarified at State Patrol’s 
suggestion. Compare current rule 5.3.1.2 to proposed rule 3.04.2: 
 

No hazardous material loads allowed: 
Westbound:  Saturday and Sunday mornings, from 7:01 a.m. to 9:59 a.m. and 
National Holidays when they fall on a Friday from 7:01 a.m. to 9:59 a.m.  
Eastbound: Sunday afternoons, from 2:01 p.m. to 6:59 p.m. and National Holidays 
when they fall on Mondays, from 2:01 p.m. to 6:59 p.m. 

 
6.  Proposed rules will conform parking to practice of winter 2012-13. Parking prohibited 
outside tunnel at peak times when Loveland Pass is closed. (Minimal impact: only 5 trucks 
impacted for less than 2 hours during winter of 2012-13). Proposed rule 3.04.2 D 
 
7.  Current rules allow purged tankers to use tunnel, but are silent on empty hazmat 
transporters.  Proposed rules will permit/prohibit empty transporters depending on the 
placard when Loveland Pass is closed. Compare current rule 10.0 (last paragraph marked 
with asterisk **) with proposed rules which are based on placarded loads. If a tanker is 
purged, it will not be placarded.  If it is empty but not purged, it is required under federal 
regulations to be placarded. 
 
8.  All non-compliant Motor Vehicles, Commercial Vehicles and Persons will be referred to 
law enforcement officials.  
 
Key Benefits  
The Tunnel Rules impact the travelling public generally, and specifically motor carriers.  The 
clarity of the proposed rules will aid CDOT and State Patrol personnel in the management of 
hazardous material loads, and will ultimately aid in the goal of keeping traffic moving 
through the EJMT.  Staging and metering during peak periods when Loveland Pass is closed, 
a practice currently in place, seeks to provide reliable scheduling to motor carriers while 
causing the least possible impact to drivers on I-70. Revising the rules at this point will 
provide a foundation for a future revision, if needed, when the fire suppression system is 
installed in the EJMT. 
 
Next Steps  

15 Permanent Tunnel Rules: Page 3 of 34



 

 

Following the Commission’s opening of the rules, the Department will file the rules with the 
Secretary of State and the Department of Regulatory Agencies (“DORA”), which in turn 
notifies anyone requesting to be notified of rules.  The Department will then notify interested 
parties of the rules and the public rule-making hearing date of March 3, 2014, welcome 
further input, and invite testimony at a rule-making hearing.  At the hearing, the 
administrative hearing officer will consider the written record and any testimony, and make 
findings and a recommendation to the Commission.  The Commission will then be requested 
to adopt the rules at its meeting in April.   
 
 
 

15 Permanent Tunnel Rules: Page 4 of 34



 
 

Current CDOT 
Tunnel Rules 

Adopted 9.30.2008

15 Permanent Tunnel Rules: Page 5 of 34



DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

Transportation Commission 

TRAFFIC REGULATIONS GOVERNING THE USE OF THE TUNNELS ON THE STATE HIGHWAY 
SYSTEM 

2 CCR 601-8 

____________________________________________________________ 

1.0 STATEMENT OF BASIS, SPECIFIC STATUTORY AUTHORITY AND PURPOSE 

On April 18, 1985, the Highway Commission authorized the Executive Director to prepare proposed rules 
updating the Traffic Regulations Governing the Use of the Eisenhower Memorial Tunnels, effective 
January 1, 1981, and to develop any new proposed rules and regulations for all tunnels on the State 
Highway system. Effectve January 30, 1986 Rule 2 CCR 601-8, titled "Traffic Regulations Governing the 
Use of the Tunnels On the State Highway System" [hereinafter "the Rules" ] were adopted and replaced 
"Traffic Regulations Governing the Use of the Eisenhower Memorial Tunnels."  

In 1992 through statutory recodification, the Colorado Highway Department became the Colorado 
Department of Transportation and the Highway Commission became the Transportation Commission. 
The specific authority for the Colorado Department of Transportation to promulgate rules pertaining to the 
operation of motor vehicles through tunnels on the State Highway system and the transportation of 
dangerous articles or hazardous materials through such tunnels, is contained in Section 42-4-106, C.R.S. 

On May 14, 2008 the Transportation Commission authorized the Rules to be updated only for the 
purposes of replacing antiquated language, updating the Table of Tunnels and making other 
administrative or grammatical changes to make the Rules current and relevant. No other changes were 
authorized by the Transportation Commission. A rulemaking was held in July 2008 and the effective date 
of these Rules is September 30, 2008 unless adopted later by the Transportation Commission. 

The purpose of the Rules is to set forth general definitions and definitions of hazardous materials, to set 
forth the general responsibilities of motor vehicle operators using the tunnels, to set forth restrictions on 
the use of tunnels, to regulate the operation of vehicles or devices through the tunnels, to provide for 
application of local ordinance or regulation, Title 49 of the Code of Federal Regulations, and other 
material incorporated by reference in these rules, and to identify the classes of hazardous materials and 
the tunnels subject to regulation under these Rules. 

2.0 DEFINITIONS 

As used in these Rules, unless the context otherwise requires or unless the definition is in conflict with 49 
CFR (in which case 49 CFR shall control), the terms found in these Rules shall have the following 
meanings: 

2.1 Cargo: shall mean materials which are transported as loads of freight over the State Highway 
system. 

2.2 Combustible Liquid: See 49 CFR 173.115(b); shall mean any liquid, not otherwise defined herein, 
with a flash point at or above 100 degrees F (37.8 degrees C) and below 200 degrees F (93.3 
degrees C) except any mixture having one component or more with a flash point at 200 degrees 
F (93.3 degrees C) or higher, that makes up at least 99% of the total volume of the mixture 
subject to certain exceptions under 49 CFR 173.115(b). 

2.3 Commercial Vehicle: Shall mean Commercial Vehicle as defined in 42-4-235, C.R.S. 

15 Permanent Tunnel Rules: Page 6 of 34



2.4 Corrosive Materials: See 49 CFR 173.240; shall mean those solids and liquids that cause visible 
destruction or irreversible alterations in human skin tissue at the site of contact, or in the case of 
leakage from its packaging, a liquid that has a severe corrosion rate on steel. 

2.5 Driver or Operator: Shall mean the person who is in physical control of the vehicle. 

2.6 Explosive: Shall mean any chemical compound, mixture or device, the primary or common 
purpose of which is to function by explosion (i.e. with substantially instantaneous release of gas 
and heat) unless such compound, mixture or device is otherwise classified in these Rules. 
Explosives as further defined in 49 CFR are classified as follows: 

2.6.1 Forbidden Explosives are explosive compounds, mixtures or devices which are forbidden 
from transportation pursuant to DOT Regulations, See 49 CFR 173.51. 

2.6.2 Class A are detonating explosives or otherwise of maximum hazard, See 49 CFR 173.53. 

2.6.3 Class B are explosives which create a flammable hazard, See 49 CFR 173.88. 

2.6.4 Class C are explosives which are of minimum hazard, See 49 CFR 173.100. 

2.6.5 Blasting Agents are materials designated for blasting which have very little probability of 
accidental explosion, See 49 CFR 173.114a. 

2.7 Flammable Compressed Gas: See 49 CFR 173.300; shall mean any material or mixture having in 
the container an absolute pressure exceeding 40 pounds per square inch at 70 degrees F or, 
regardless of the pressure at 70 degrees F, having an absolute pressure exceeding 104 pounds 
per square inch at 130 degrees F; or any liquid flammable material having a vapor pressure 
exceeding 40 pounds per square inch absolute at 100 degrees F as determined by ASTM* Test 
D-323. (*American Society for Testing Materials Method of Test for Vapor Pressure of Petroleum 
Products. D-323). In addition this shall mean any compressed gas which has any one of the 
following characteristics: 

2.7.1 Either a mixture of 13% or less (by volume) with air forms a flammable mixture or the 
flammable range with air is wider than 12% regardless of the lower limit. These limits 
shall be determined at atmospheric temperature and pressure. 

2.7.2 Using the Bureau of Explosives' Flame Protection Apparatus, (see note) the flame 
projects more than 18 inches beyond the ignition source with valve opened fully, or, the 
flame flashes back and burns at the valve with any degree of valve opening. 

2.7.3 Using the Bureau of Explosives' Open Drum Apparatus, (see note) there is any 
significant propagation of flame away from the ignition source. 

2.7.4 Using the Bureau of Explosives' Closed Drum Apparatus, (see note) there is any 
explosion of the vapor-air mixture in the drum. 

NOTE: A description of the Bureau of Explosives' Flame Protection Apparatus, Open 
Drum Apparatus, Closed Drum Apparatus and method of tests may be procured from the 
Bureau of Explosives, Association of American Railroads. 

2.8 Flammable Liquid: See 49 CFR 173.115(a); shall mean any liquid having a flash point below 100 
degrees F (37.8 degrees C), subject to certain exceptions under 49 CFR 173.115(a). 

2.9 Flammable Solid: See 49 CFR 173.150; shall mean any solid material, other than one classified 
as an explosive, which is liable to cause fires through friction, retained heat from manufacturing or 

15 Permanent Tunnel Rules: Page 7 of 34



processing, or which can be ignited readily and which when ignited burns vigorously and 
persistently to create a serious transportation hazard, including spontaneously combustible 
material and water-reactive material which shall be labeled as "Dangerous When Wet" . 

2.10 Gross Weight: shall mean the total weight of the containers and contents. Net weight refers to the 
contents of packages or containers. When two or more articles with the weight restrictions as 
given in these Rules are transported in the same vehicle, the combined weight shall not exceed 
the weight limitations of the maximum-rated article. Where contents (gallons) are known, it shall 
take precedence over gross weight (pounds) in limiting quantity per vehicle. 

2.11 Hazardous Materials: shall mean any substances or materials which have been determined by 
the US DOT or the Colorado Public Utilities Commission, to be capable of posing an 
unreasonable risk to health, safety and property which include but are not limited to: explosives, 
flammable liquids, combustible liquids, flammable solids, oxidizing materials, corrosive materials, 
compressed gasses, poisonous substances, irritating materials, organic peroxides, and 
radioactive materials, except a highway route controlled quantity of radioactive material, or any 
other article classified as dangerous or hazardous. 

2.12 Highway Route Controlled Quantity of Radioactive Material: See 49 CFR 173.403(1); shall mean 
those radioactive materials in quantities for which the US DOT has established preferred 
transportation routes which include the Interstate System, 49 CFR 177.825. 

2.13 Irritating Material: See 49 CFR 173.381; shall mean any liquid or solid substance which upon 
contact with fire or when exposed to air gives off dangerous or intensely irritating fumes and 
which is not otherwise classified as a Class A Poison. 

2.14 Motor Vehicle: Shall mean Motor Vehicle as defined in 42-1-102 (58), C.R.S. as any self-
propelled vehicle which is designed primarily for travel on the public highways and which is 
generally and commonly used to transport persons and property over the public highways, but the 
term does not include motorized bicycles as defined in paragraph (b) of subsection (59) of this 
section, wheelchairs as defined by subsection (113) of this section, or vehicles moved solely by 
human power. "Motor vehicle" includes a neighborhood electric vehicle operated pursuant to 
section 42-4-111 (1) (aa). For the purposes of the offenses described in sections 42-2-128, 42-4-
1301, and 42-4-1401 for farm tractors and off-highway vehicles, as defined in section 33-14.5-101 
(3), C.R.S., operated on streets and highways, "motor vehicle" includes a farm tractor or an off-
highway vehicle which is not otherwise classified as a motor vehicle. 

2.15 Nonflammable Compressed Gas: See 49 CFR 173.300; shall mean any material or mixture 
having in the container an absolute pressure exceeding 40 pounds per square inch at 70 degrees 
F or, regardless of the pressure at 70 degrees F, having an absolute pressure exceeding 104 
pounds per square inch at 130 degrees F; or any liquid flammable material having a vapor 
pressure exceeding 40 pounds per square inch absolute at 100 degrees F, and which is not 
otherwise classified as a flammable compressed gas. 

2.16 Organic Peroxide: See 49 CFR 173.151a; shall mean any organic compound containing the 
bivalent -0-0- structure and which may be considered a derivative of hydrogen peroxide where 
one or more of the hydrogen atoms have been replaced by organic radicals, subject to certain 
exceptions under 49 CFR 173.151a. 

2.17 Oxidizing Material: See 49 CFR 173.151; shall mean any substance such as chlorate, 
permanganate, inorganic peroxide, or a nitrate that yields oxygen readily to stimulate the 
combustion of organic matter. 

2.18 Peace or Police Officer: shall mean every officer authorized to direct or regulate traffic or to make 
arrests for violations of traffic regulations. 

15 Permanent Tunnel Rules: Page 8 of 34



2.19 Permit: shall mean written authority expressing specific use of the highways and tunnels. 

2.20 Person: shall mean every natural person, firm, partnership, association or corporation. 

2.21 Planned Winter Closure: shall mean any scheduled closure of a segment of the State Highway 
system to provide for winter maintenance operations such as avalanche control. 

2.22 Poison A: See 49 CFR 173.326; shall mean poisonous gases or liquids of such a nature that a 
very small amount of the gas, or vapor of the liquid, mixed with air is dangerous to life. 

2.23 Poison B: See 49 CFR 173.343; shall mean any substance, liquid or solid, other than Class A 
poisons or any irritating materials, which are known to be so toxic to man as to afford a hazard to 
health during transportation, or which are presumed to be toxic to man. 

2.24 Radioactive Materials: See 49 CFR 173.403; shall mean any material or combination of materials 
that spontaneously emits ionizing radiation, except highway route controlled quantities of 
radioactive materials. 

2.25 Signal or Signals: shall mean any mechanical or electronic devices used to regulate the flow of 
traffic. 

2.26 Tunnel: shall mean the tunnels or snowsheds on the State Highway system as outlined in 
Appendix A. 

3.0 GENERAL RESPONSIBILITIES OF MOTOR VEHICLE OPERATORS USING THE STATE 
HIGHWAY TUNNELS 

Any person operating a motor vehicle in any tunnel on the State Highway system shall comply with Titles 
40 and 42, C.R.S., and any rules and regulations adopted by another Colorado agency pursuant to those 
provisions. 

4.0 GENERAL RESTRICTIONS ON USE OF THE TUNNELS 

4.1 No vehicle shall travel through any tunnel in violation of these Rules. 

4.2 Motor vehicles transporting hazardous materials loads are subject to the restrictions outlined in 
Section 5.0. 

4.3 Any vehicle or device may be prohibited, pursuant to Section 42-4-106 (4), C.R.S., from using the 
tunnels when traffic, road, or weather conditions are such that the Colorado Department of 
Transportation deems it in the best public interest to further restrict traffic. 

4.4 The following persons, vehicles, devices or other means of conveyance are prohibited from using 
any tunnel on the State Highway system unless a special activity permit has been granted by the 
State: 

4.4.1 Motor driven cycles, motorcycles, and motor scooters, with a motor which produces five 
(5) horsepower or less and bicycles with a motor attached. 

4.4.2 This subsection d. shall not apply to any persons, vehicles or devices owned or controlled 
by or under contract to the State of Colorado, Department of Transportation, while 
engaged in construction, reconstruction, or maintenance of a tunnel. 

5.0 USE OF EISENHOWER/JOHNSON TUNNELS 

15 Permanent Tunnel Rules: Page 9 of 34



5.1 The provisions set forth in section 4.0 apply to this section 5.0. 

5.2 Motor vehicle transporting hazardous materials loads, as designated in Section 10.0 of the Rules, 
are prohibited from operating through the Eisenhower/Johnson Tunnels, unless otherwise 
specified in subsection 5.3. 

5.3 All traffic prohibited from using the Eisenhower/Johnson Tunnels will be required to use the 
existing Loveland Pass surface route, except that: 

5.3.1 At times when the Loveland Pass surface route may be closed due to planned winter 
closure, severe storms, or other blockage, motor vehicles transporting hazardous 
material loads, as designated in Section 10.0 of these Rules, except radioactive materials 
in any quantity and flammable compressed gases in quantities of 1000 pounds or more 
gross weight, may be allowed to use the tunnels under the following conditions: 

5.3.1.1 Such motor vehicles shall pull into the truck-parking area and may proceed 
through the tunnel only after authorization and specific directions are given by 
Tunnel Maintenance Personnel. 

5.3.1.2 Such motor vehicles shall be allowed to transit the tunnels seven (7) days a week 
"On the Hour" except as follows: 

Westbound Saturday and Sunday mornings, 8–9 A.M. 

Eastbound Sunday afternoons, 3, 4, 5, and 6 P.M. 

National Holidays when falling on Friday, 8–9 A.M. 

National Holidays when falling on Monday, 3, 4, 5, and 6 P.M. 

5.3.2 At times when the Loveland Pass surface route may be closed due to planned winter 
closure, severe storms, or other blockage, motor vehicles carrying radioactive material in 
any quantity or flammable compressed gases in quantities of 1000 pounds or more gross 
weight, will not be allowed to use the tunnels. Motor vehicle operators shall contact the 
Colorado State Patrol, Port of Entry or Colorado Department of Transportation for 
information on alternative routes. 

5.4 All motor vehicles transporting hazardous material loads, as designated on Table 2 in Section 
10.0 of these Rules in amounts of more than 500 pounds and less than 1000 pounds gross 
weight, shall stop in the truck-parking areas at the Eisenhower/Johnson Tunnels and declare to 
the Tunnel Maintenance Personnel the type of cargo being transported prior to entering the 
tunnels. 

5.5 Tunnel Maintenance Personnel at the Eisenhower/Johnson Tunnels shall have the authority to 
stop motor vehicles upon reasonable cause that such vehicles are in violation of these Rules and 
shall have the authority to review shipping papers, or their equivalent which set forth the nature of 
the material being transported and the quantity of the material, for the purpose of determining 
whether a regulated hazardous material load is being transported. 

5.6 Tunnel Maintenance Personnel shall have the authority to regulate the manner (e.g. reduced 
speed, convoy) in which access is granted or to prohibit access to the Eisenhower/Johnson 
Tunnels when access would present a hazard to the tunnels or to other persons using the 
tunnels. 

15 Permanent Tunnel Rules: Page 10 of 34



5.7 All vehicles operating under overwidth permits, as provided for in Section 6.0, shall stop in the 
truck-parking areas at the tunnel portals and proceed through the tunnels as directed by the 
Tunnel Maintenance Personnel. 

6.0 OVERWEIGHT/OVERSIZE VEHICLES THROUGH TUNNELS 

Only motor vehicles in compliance with the size and weight limits established, in accordance with 
Sections 42-4-501 through 511, C.R.S., for operation of motor vehicles on the State Highway system, will 
be allowed to operate through tunnels without a permit. Height restrictions for each tunnel are set forth in 
Appendix A. 

7.0 OPERATION OF VEHICLES AND DEVICES IN THE TUNNELS 

7.1 Stopping in the Tunnels: No vehicle shall stop, park, or impede the flow of traffic in the tunnels 
except in the case of emergency or when directed to do so by traffic signals, Peace or Police 
Officers or Tunnel Maintenance Personnel. 

7.2 Emergencies in the Tunnels: For the Eisenhower/Johnson Tunnels, persons having emergencies 
such as flat tires, mechanical breakdowns, accidents or other difficulties necessitating stopping in 
the tunnel, shall remain in their vehicle, unless it is life threatening to do so, and wait for 
assistance from the Tunnel Maintenance Personnel. 

7.3 Use of Vehicle Lights in the Tunnels: All motor vehicles transporting hazardous material loads, as 
designated in Section 10.0 of these Rules, through tunnels on the State Highway system, shall 
operate with their vehicle lights on while in the tunnels unless otherwise posted. 

7.4 Use of Horns or Warning Devices on Motor Vehicles in the Tunnels: No person, at any time shall 
use a horn or other warning device in any tunnel other than to provide a reasonable warning. 
Unreasonably loud or harsh sounds with the horn or other noisemaking devices are strictly 
prohibited in the tunnels. 

7.5 Traffic Regulatory Signs, Signals and Pavement Markings: All persons using the tunnels must at 
all times comply with signs, signals, pavement markings or other traffic control devices erected or 
installed for the purpose of regulating traffic in the tunnels. 

7.5.1 All signs, signals and markings erected or installed in the tunnels shall conform to the 
size, design, and color, specified in the Manual On Uniform Traffic Control Devices For 
Streets And Highways and the Colorado Supplement thereto. In cases of emergency or 
unusual circumstances, peace or patrol officers or Highway Department Personnel may 
direct traffic. 

8.0 APPLICATION OF LOCAL ORDINANCES AND REGULATIONS 

The provisions of these Rules, governing the transportation of hazardous material loads, shall not apply 
to tunnels on the State Highway system within the jurisdiction of a city, city and county, or incorporated 
town where by ordinance, or by regulation adopted pursuant to ordinance, either of which has not been 
disapproved by the Colorado Department of Transportation pursuant to its statutory review under Section 
42-4-511, C.R.S., the entity governs transportation of hazardous material loads through such tunnels or 
otherwise regulates transportation of hazardous material loads on a highway segment which includes a 
tunnel although the tunnel itself has not been regulated. 

9.0 MATERIAL INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE 

9.1 The Colorado Department of Transportation adopts and incorporates by reference those 
provisions of Title 49 CFR parts 100 to 177, cited in these Rules, and the Manual On Uniform 

15 Permanent Tunnel Rules: Page 11 of 34



Traffic Control Devices For Streets And Highways, issued by the Federal Highway Administration, 
U.S. DOT, effective October 2003, and the Colorado supplement thereto, adopted by the 
Colorado Department of Transportation in November 2003. These Rules do not include later 
amendments to, or editions of, the above incorporated material. 

9.2 Certified copies of the complete text of the incorporated material are maintained and are available 
for public inspection during regular business hours at the Colorado Department of Transportation, 
4201 E. Arkansas, Denver, Colorado 80222. For information regarding how the incorporated 
material may be obtained or examined, contact the Chief Engineer, 4201 E. Arkansas, Denver 
Colorado 80222. Certified copies of the material incorporated shall be provided at cost upon 
request. 

10.0 REGULATED HAZARDOUS MATERIALS 

Following are the Tables and classes of materials which, when transported as cargo loads by a motor 
vehicle, are subject to regulation under these Rules as more fully set forth in Section 4.0. These Tables 
conform to the Tables found in 49 CFR 172.504*, except that expressly excluded from any regulation 
under these Rules are highway route controlled quantities of radioactive material. 

TABLE 1 . 

Class A Explosives Class B Explosives 

Forbidden Explosives* Flammable Solid 
(Dangerous When Wet label 

only) 

Poison A . 

Radioactive Material Radioactive Material: 

. Uranium hexaflouride fissile 
(containing more than 1.0% 

U 235) 

. Uranium hexaflouride, low-
specific activity. (containing 

1.0% or less U 235) 

SUCH VEHICLE OR DEVICE CONTAINING ANY QUANTITY OF CARGO BELONGING TO THE 
HAZARDOUS MATERIAL CLASSES IN TABLE 1 SHALL BE SUBJECT TO REGULATION AS MORE 
FULLY SET FORTH IN SECTION 4.0. 

*Forbidden explosives are not subject to DOT placarding requirements, but are expressly prohibited from 
transportation under 49 CFR and therefore are added here as prohibited in any quantities. 

TABLE 2 . 

Class C Explosives Blasting Agents 

Nonflammable Gas Nonflammable Gas (Chlorine) 

Nonflammable Gas 
(oxygen, cryogenic 

liquid) 

Flammable Solids 

15 Permanent Tunnel Rules: Page 12 of 34



Nonflammable Gas 
(Florine) 

. 

Combustible Liquid Poison B 

Corrosive Material Irritating Material 

Flammable Gas Flammable Liquid 

Oxidizer Organic Peroxide 

SUCH VEHICLE OR DEVICE CONTAINING 1000 POUNDS OR MORE GROSS WEIGHT ** OF CARGO 
BELONGING TO THE HAZARDOUS MATERIAL CLASSES IN TABLE 2 SHALL BE SUBJECT TO 
REGULATION AS MORE FULLY SET FORTH IN SECTION 3. 

**If the empty cargo unit has been purged, as provided in 49 CFR 172.328, of any residue of the 
hazardous material, the motor vehicle will not be subject to any restriction relating to transportation of 
hazardous material loads under these Rules. 

APPENDIX A TUNNELS SUBJECT TO THESE RULES 

. TUNNEL NAME 
& LOCATION 

DESCRIPTION HEIGHT 
RESTRICTIONS 

OTHER 
RESTRICTIONS 

1 Interstate 70, MP 
50.38, Beavertail 

Tunnels 

Two bores, 13.75 
miles east of 

Grand Junction in 
DeBeque Canyon 

22’ 7" EB & 21’ 1" 
WB 

No 

2 Interstate 70, MP 
117.83, No 

Name tunnesl 

Two bores .5 miles 
East of SH 82-

Grand Ave., 
Glenwood Springs 

16’ 7" EB & 6’ 8" 
WB 

No 

3 Interstate 70, MP 
125.7, Hanging 
Lake Tunnels 

Two bores, 
Glenwood Canyon, 

8.1 miles east of 
Glenwood Springs 

16’ 6" EB & WB No 

4 Interstate 70, MP 
127.12 Reverse 

Curve 

One bore WB only, 
10.5 miles east of 
Glenwood Springs 

19’ 3" WB No 

5 Interstate 70, MP 
213, 

Eisenhower/ 
Johnson 

Memorial tunnels 

Two bores, under 
the Continental 
Divide, 60 miles 
west of Denver 

13’ 11" EB & WB Yes – See Section 
5 for Restrictions 

on Time/Day/ 
Hours usage. All 
Haz Mat listed in 
Tables 1,2 Apply. 

6 Interstate 70, MP 
242, Twin 
tunnels 

One bore each 
tunnel, 1.8 miles 

east of Idaho 
Springs (2.6 miles 

14’ 6" EB & WB No 

15 Permanent Tunnel Rules: Page 13 of 34



east of junction 
with SH 103) 

7 Interstate 225 
MP 0.02 at Jctn. 
with Interstate-
25 SB MP 200 

One bore, Junction 
I-225 southbound 

only with I-25 
Southbound only 

17’ 4" SB No 

8 US 6 - MP259 to 
270, 

One bore each 
tunnel, Five 

tunnels in Clear 
Creek Canyon 

beginning 4 miles 
west of Golden for 

15 miles 

13’ 6" EB & WB No 

9 US 160 - MP 
168.5 Wolf 
Creek Pass 

One bore, 
Snowshed, 25.56 

miles east of 
Pagosa Springs 

16’ 8" EB & WB No 

10 US160 - MP 
174.8 Wolf 
Creek Pass 

Tunnel 

One bore, 31.15 
miles east of 
Pagosa Spgs 

(located on west 
side of Wolf Creek 

Pass) 

17’ 6" EB & WB No 

11 US 550 - MP 
90.86 

One bore, 1.2 
miles south of 

Ouray in Ouray 
county 

13’ 9" EB & WB No 

12 US 550 – MP 
88.17 Riverside 
Slide Snowshed 

One bore, 
Snowshed, 3.9 
miles south of 
Ouray on Red 
Mountain Pass 

14’ 6" EB & WB No 

13 SH 14 - MP 
107.2 

One bore, 27.48 
miles west of Fort 

Collins in 
Roosevelt National 

Forest 

14’ 5" EB & WB No 

14 SH 119 - MP 
37.6 

One bore, in 
Boulder Canyon, 
4.2 miles west of 

Jct with SH 7 & SH 
93 

14' 9" EB No 

 

15 Permanent Tunnel Rules: Page 14 of 34



 

1 

 

 
 

Proposed  
CDOT  

Tunnel Rules 
 

15 Permanent Tunnel Rules: Page 15 of 34



 

2 

 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

Transportation Commission 

Rules Governing the Use of Tunnels on Colorado State Highways 

2 CCR 601-8 

Statement of Basis and Purpose and Statutory Authority 

The Transportation Commission has revised the Rules Governing the Use of the Tunnels on 
State Highways in order to update state and federal statutory references, clarify and simplify 
language, and provide an easily understandable guide for use of the Tunnels on state highways 
and specifically the Eisenhower-Johnson Memorial Tunnels.  Section 42-4-106(7)(a), C.R.S., 
provides the authority to the Transportation Commission to adopt rules concerning the operation 
of any motor vehicle and commercial vehicle in any Tunnel which is a part of the state highway 
system.  Pursuant to § 42-4-106(7)(b), C.R.S., the Department may prohibit or regulate the 
operation of any motor vehicle and commercial vehicle which transports any article, deemed to 
be dangerous, in any Tunnel which is part of the state  highway system. Further, § 42-20-301(3), 
C.R.S., provides authority to the Transportation Commission to regulate hours of operation of 
the Eisenhower-Johnson Tunnels on Interstate 70.   
 
These rules shall be interpreted consistently with the requirements of Title 49 CFR parts 100 to 
177.  Additionally, these rules should be read together with 8 CCR 1507-25 “Rules and 
Regulations Concerning the Permitting, Routing & Transportation of Hazardous and Nuclear 
Materials and the Intrastate Transportation of Agricultural Products in the State of Colorado.” 
These rules are promulgated by the Department of Public Safety, Chief of the Colorado State 
Patrol pursuant to § 42-20-108 (1) and (2), C.R.S.  These rules also regulate the safe 
transportation of nuclear materials by motor vehicle within the State of Colorado pursuant to  
§§ 42-20-403, 504 and 508, C.R.S., and exempt agricultural products from the rules pursuant to 
§ 42-20-108.5, C.R.S.  
 
The transport of hazardous materials is strictly governed by federal and state regulations and 
CDOT must adhere to these legal requirements.  CDOT’s proposed rules 3.03 and 3.04 are based 
on federal regulations which CDOT has no authority to modify. 

Applicability. These rules apply to all Commercial Vehicles, Motor Vehicles and Persons 
utilizing the Tunnels under the Colorado Department of Transportation’s jurisdiction. 

1.00 Definitions 
 
1.01  “Commercial Vehicle” as set forth in § 42-4-235, C.R.S., shall mean (I) any self-propelled 
or towed vehicle bearing an apportioned plate or having a manufacturer's gross vehicle weight 
rating or gross combination rating of ten thousand one pounds or more, which vehicle is used in 
commerce on the public highways of this state or is designed to transport sixteen or more 

15 Permanent Tunnel Rules: Page 16 of 34



 

3 

 

passengers, including the driver, unless such vehicle is a school bus regulated pursuant to  
section 42-4-1904, C.R.S., or any vehicle that does not have a gross vehicle weight rating of 
twenty-six thousand one or more pounds and that is owned or operated by a school district so 
long as such school district does not receive remuneration for the use of such vehicle, not 
including reimbursement for the use of such vehicle; (II) any motor vehicle designed or equipped 
to transport other motor vehicles from place to place by means of winches, cables, pulleys, or 
other equipment for towing, pulling, or lifting, when such motor vehicle is used in commerce on 
the public highways of this state; and (III) a motor vehicle that is used on the public highways 
and transports materials determined by the secretary of transportation to be hazardous under 49 
U.S.C. Sec. 5103 in such quantities as to require placarding under 49 CFR parts 172 and 173.  

1.02  “Department” or “CDOT” shall mean the Colorado Department of Transportation 
established pursuant to § 43-1-103, C.R.S. 

1.03  "Enforcement Official" shall mean, and is limited to, a peace officer who is an officer of 
the Colorado State Patrol as described in §§ 16-2.5-101 and 114, C.R.S., a certified peace officer 
who is a certified port of entry officer as described in §§ 16-2.5-101 and 115, C.R.S., a peace 
officer who is an investigating official of the transportation section of the public utilities 
commission as described in §§ 16-2.5-101 and 143, C.R.S., or any other peace officer as 
described in section § 16-2.5-101, C.R.S.  [§ 42-20-103 (2), C.R.S.] 

1.04  “Hazardous Materials” (also known as “Hazmat”) shall mean those materials listed in 
Tables 1 and 2 of Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, 172.504 (49 CFR 172.504), excluding 
highway route controlled quantities of radioactive materials as defined in 49 CFR 173.403 (l), 
excluding ores, the products from mining, milling, smelting, and similar processing of ores, and 
the wastes and tailing therefrom, and excluding special fireworks when the aggregate amount of 
flash powder does not exceed fifty pounds. [§ 42-20-103 (3), C.R.S.]  
 
1.05  “Motor vehicle” shall mean any self-propelled vehicle that is designed primarily for travel 
on the public highways and that is generally and commonly used to transport persons and 
property over the public highways or a low-speed electric vehicle; except that the term does not 
include low-power scooters, wheelchairs, or vehicles moved solely by human power.  

1.06  "Person" shall mean an individual, a corporation, a government or governmental 
subdivision or agency, a partnership, an association, or any other legal entity; except that 
separate divisions of the same corporation may, at their request, be treated as separate persons. [§ 
42-20-103 (6), C.R.S.]  
 
1.07  “Staging” shall mean the parking of a Motor Vehicle or Commercial Vehicle at a specific 
location to facilitate its safe passage through the Eisenhower-Johnson Memorial Tunnel 
according to the specific timing requirements of rule 3.04 
 
1.08  “State Highway” shall consist of the federal-aid primary roads, the federal-aid secondary 
roads, and the interstate system, including extensions thereof within urban areas. [§ 43-2-201(1), 
C.R.S.]  

15 Permanent Tunnel Rules: Page 17 of 34



 

4 

 

1.09  “Tunnel” shall mean enclosed roadways with vehicle access that is restricted to portals 
regardless of type of structure or method of construction. Tunnels do not include highway 
bridges, railroad bridges or other bridges over a roadway.  Tunnels are structures that require 
special design considerations that may include lighting, ventilation, fire protection systems, and 
emergency egress capacity based on the owners’ determination.  

2.00  General Requirements for Use of All CDOT Tunnels  

2.01 These Rules apply to all facilities identified below in Rule 4.00. 

2.02 Any person operating a Motor Vehicle or Commercial Vehicle in any Tunnel on the State 
Highway System shall comply with all governing state and federal law and regulations.  Any 
Motor Vehicle, Commercial Vehicle or Person failing to abide by all applicable law and 
regulations will be referred to law enforcement officials. 
 
2.03 CDOT, including Tunnel Personnel, may prohibit any Motor Vehicle or Commercial 
Vehicle or device, pursuant to § 42-4-106 (7), C.R.S., from using a Tunnel when the health or 
safety of the public warrants such action.  
 
2.04 Pedestrians shall not be permitted in Tunnels without the express permission of the 
Department.  
 
2.05 Electrical assisted bicycles, electric personal assistive mobility devices, low-power scooters, 
low-speed electric vehicles, motor driven cycles, motorcycles, or motor scooters, with a motor 
which produces five (5) horsepower or less, and bicycles or other means of conveyance are 
prohibited from using any Tunnel unless a special use permit has been granted by the Colorado 
State Patrol.  [§ 42-1-102, (28.5) (28.7) (48.5)(a), and (48.6), C.R.S.]  
 
2.06 The Department shall be authorized to schedule any closure of a segment of the State 
Highway system or at the request of the Colorado State Patrol in order to provide for the safety 
of the public and including but not limited to maintenance operations, avalanche control, rock 
fall mitigation, and roadway construction.  The CDOT Maintenance Superintendent or his/her 
designee, in consultation with the Regional Transportation Director, may exercise discretion 
related to the use of CDOT tunnels as specified in these rules to provide for the health, safety and 
welfare of the public. 

3.00 Requirements Specific to the Eisenhower-Johnson Memorial Tunnels (EJMT) 

3.01  CDOT Personnel at the EJMT shall have the authority to: 

 A. Direct Motor Vehicles or Commercial Vehicles to staging/parking areas and enlist the 
 assistance of an Enforcement Official to review shipping papers or their equivalent  
 to protect the health, safety and welfare of the public.   

B.  Establish and post restricted access requirements (e.g., speed limit reductions, convoy 
escort operations, vehicle convoys, and Tunnel closures) granting or denying highway 

15 Permanent Tunnel Rules: Page 18 of 34



 

5 

 

and/or EJMT access, when access would present a hazard to the Tunnels or to persons 
using the Tunnels. 

 
3.02 All Commercial Vehicles, Motor Vehicles and Persons transporting placarded quantities of 
hazardous materials are required to use Loveland Pass (US 6) when the Pass is open.  
  
3.03 Commercial Vehicles, Motor Vehicles and Persons are prohibited at all times from 
transporting the following placarded hazardous materials through the EJMT, and may not park in 
the parking lots outside of EJMT.  
 

 

PROHIBITED AT ALL TIMES FROM EJMT 

 

Division 1.1 Placard 

Explosives With a Mass Explosion 
Hazard 

 

Division 1.2 Placard 

Explosives With a Projection Hazard 

 

Division 1.3 Placard 

Explosives With Predominantly a Fire 
Hazard 

 

Division 1.4 Placard 

Explosives With No Significant Blast 
Hazard 

 

 

Division 1.5 Placard 

Very Insensitive Explosives: Blasting 
Agents 

15 Permanent Tunnel Rules: Page 19 of 34



 

6 

 

PROHIBITED AT ALL TIMES FROM EJMT 

 

Division 4.3 Placard 

Dangerous When Wet Materials 

 

Division 5.2 Placard 

Organic Peroxides 

 

Division 2.3 

Inhalation Hazard 

 

Division 6.1 Placard 

Poisonous Materials  

(inhalation hazards only) 

 

The HRCQ placard has the square background behind the 
point on point placard. Compare Class 7 Placard 

Radioactive Materials under Rule 3.04.  

Highway Route-Controlled Quantity 

(HRCQ) 

. 

 
 
3.04 Materials Permitted to Use EJMT when Loveland Pass (US 6) is closed. 
 
3.04.1  Subject to the requirements of these rules and all state and federal laws, Commercial 
Vehicles, Motor Vehicles and Persons may transport the following hazardous materials through 
the EJMT only when Loveland Pass (US 6) is closed.  
 
 

15 Permanent Tunnel Rules: Page 20 of 34

http://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=http://www.thecompliancecenter.com/store/media/catalog/product/cache/1/image/325x/9df78eab33525d08d6e5fb8d27136e95/p/l/pltbus54_hi_1.gif&imgrefurl=http://www.thecompliancecenter.com/store/us/pl-rvbus54.html&usg=__uX3jJ948d_pYHmEHiuACh_-KPIo=&h=325&w=325&sz=7&hl=en&start=1&zoom=1&tbnid=XIjwEf7Ko9vwiM:&tbnh=118&tbnw=118&ei=oQHTUa6bNui_ygGRp4C4Aw&prev=/images?q=hazard+class+2.3+placard&sa=X&hl=en&gbv=2&tbm=isch&itbs=1&sa=X&ved=0CCwQrQMwAA
http://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=http://www.thecompliancecenter.com/store/media/catalog/product/cache/1/image/325x/9df78eab33525d08d6e5fb8d27136e95/p/l/pltbus54_hi_1.gif&imgrefurl=http://www.thecompliancecenter.com/store/us/pl-rvbus54.html&usg=__uX3jJ948d_pYHmEHiuACh_-KPIo=&h=325&w=325&sz=7&hl=en&start=1&zoom=1&tbnid=XIjwEf7Ko9vwiM:&tbnh=118&tbnw=118&ei=oQHTUa6bNui_ygGRp4C4Aw&prev=/images?q=hazard+class+2.3+placard&sa=X&hl=en&gbv=2&tbm=isch&itbs=1&sa=X&ved=0CCwQrQMwAA�


 

7 

 

PERMITTED TO USE EJMT WHEN LOVELAND PASS (US 6) IS CLOSED  

SUBJECT TO RESTRICTION 

 

Division 1.6 Placard 

Extremely Insensitive Detonating 
Substances 

 

 

This is a point-on-point placard as 
distinguished from HRCQ placard which has 
a square background. HRCQ is prohibited at 

all times 

 

Class 7 Placard 

Radioactive Materials  

 

 

Division 2.1 Placard 

Flammable Gases 

 

Division 2.2 Placards 

Non-Flammable, Non Poisonous Gases 

 

Class 3 Placards 

Flammable Liquids 

15 Permanent Tunnel Rules: Page 21 of 34



 

8 

 

PERMITTED TO USE EJMT WHEN LOVELAND PASS (US 6) IS CLOSED  

SUBJECT TO RESTRICTION 

 

Class 3 Placards 

Combustible Liquids 

 

Division 4.1 Placard 

Flammable Solids 

 

Division 4.2 Placard 

Spontaneously Combustible Materials 

 

Division 5.1 Placard 

Oxidizing Substances 

 

Division 6.1 Placards 

Poisonous or Toxic Materials (excludes 
inhalation hazards) 

 

Division 6.2 Label 

Infectious Substances 

15 Permanent Tunnel Rules: Page 22 of 34



 

9 

 

PERMITTED TO USE EJMT WHEN LOVELAND PASS (US 6) IS CLOSED  

SUBJECT TO RESTRICTION 

 

Class 8 Placard 

Corrosive Substances 

 

Class 9 Placard 

Miscellaneous Hazardous Materials 

 

Dangerous Placard 

Dangerous Hazardous Materials 

 

ORM-D Label 

Other Regulated Materials 

 
3.04.2  Restrictions when Loveland Pass (US 6) is Closed.   
 

A.  Off-Peak Period Operations.  Once authorization and specific direction is given by 
CDOT personnel, Motor Vehicles, Commercial Vehicles and Persons transporting 
placarded quantities of hazardous materials under this rule may use the EJMT seven days 
a week on the hour. 

B. Peak Period Operations.  

1.  Peak Periods are those times of increased vehicle traffic counts determined by 
the Department which warrant restrictions on the transporting of placarded 
quantities of permitted hazardous materials.  National Holidays referenced below 
are: New Year’s Day (January 1); Martin Luther King, Jr; Day (3rd Monday of 
January); President’s Day (3rd Monday in February); Memorial Day (last Monday 
in May); Independence Day (July 4); Labor Day (1st Monday in September); 
Columbus Day (2nd Monday in October); Veteran’s Day (November 11); 

15 Permanent Tunnel Rules: Page 23 of 34



 

10 

 

Thanksgiving Day (4th Thursday in November) and Christmas Day (December 
25) 

2.  No vehicles containing placarded quantities of hazardous materials are allowed 
to use EJMT during the following time frames:  

Westbound  

 Saturday and Sunday mornings, from 7:01 a.m. to 9:59 a.m.   

 National Holidays when they fall on a Friday from 7:01 a.m. to 
 9:59 a.m.  

Eastbound  

    Sunday afternoons, from 2:01 p.m. to 6:59 p.m. 

    National Holidays when they fall on Mondays, from 2:01 p.m.  
    to 6:59 p.m. 

C.  During Peak Periods, Motor Vehicles, Commercial Vehicles and Persons intending to 
transport authorized hazardous materials through the EJMT will be required to Stage in 
the designated areas described below.  Such vehicles may not park in the lots at the 
EJMT entrances.  After the Peak Period has expired, staged vehicles will be escorted 
from the staging areas to the EJMT by a CDOT representative.    

D.  The Peak Period Staging areas are:   

 Westbound: the Herman Gulch interchange (Exit 218) 

 Eastbound: the Vail Pass Rest Area (exit 189); or along the ramps of 
 Officers Gulch interchange (exit 198); 

3.05  All Motor Vehicles, Commercial Vehicles and Persons transporting authorized Hazardous 
Materials through the EJMT shall: 

  Travel at speeds no faster than 30 miles per hour; 

  Not pass other vehicles; and  

  Maintain a minimum distance of 800 feet from other vehicles. 

3.06  Hazmat Routes  

3.056.1  The EJMT is not located on a designated hazardous materials route section. The 
designated hazardous materials routes within the State of Colorado may be found at 

15 Permanent Tunnel Rules: Page 24 of 34



 

11 

 

http://dtdapps.coloradodot.info/staticdata/Downloads/StatewideMaps/HazMatMap.pdf. See also 
http://www.coloradodot.info/business/hazmat-routing.  

 
4.00 CDOT Tunnels and Snow Sheds  

 
Structure  

No. 
Tunnel Name 
& Location 

Description Route Mile Post NHS (Y/N) 

H-03-BT Interstate 70, 
MP 50.38, 
Beavertail 
Tunnels 

Bore 13.75 miles east of 
Grand Junction in 
DeBeque Canyon 

070A 50.38 Y 

H-03-BU Interstate 70, 
MP 50.38, 
Beavertail 
Tunnels 

Bore 13.75 miles east of 
Grand Junction in 
DeBeque Canyon 

070A 50.37 Y 

F-07-Q Interstate 70, 
MP 117.83, No 
Name tunnels 

Bores 1.5 miles East of 
SH 82-Grand Ave., 
Glenwood Springs 

070A 117.81 Y 

F-07-R Interstate 70, 
MP 117.83, No 
Name tunnels 

Bores 1.5 miles East of 
SH 82-Grand Ave., 
Glenwood Springs 

070A 117.8 Y 

F-08-AP Interstate 70, 
MP 125.7, 
Hanging Lake 
Tunnels 

Glenwood Canyon, 8.1 
miles east of Glenwood 
Springs 

070A 125.23 Y 

F-08-AQ Interstate 70, 
MP 125.7, 
Hanging Lake 
Tunnels 

Bores, Glenwood 
Canyon, 8.1 miles east of 
Glenwood Springs 

070A 125.24 Y 

F-08-AT Interstate 70, 
MP 127.12 
Reverse Curve 

One bore WB only, 10.5 
miles east of Glenwood 
Springs 

070A 127.09 Y 

F-13-X Interstate 70, 
MP 213, 
Eisenhower/ 
Johnson 
Memorial 
tunnels 

Bores, under the 
Continental Divide, 60 
miles west of Denver 

070A 213.61 Y 

F-13-Y Interstate 70, 
MP 213, 
Eisenhower/ 
Johnson 
Memorial 

Bores, under the 
Continental Divide, 60 
miles west of Denver 

070A 213.61 Y 

15 Permanent Tunnel Rules: Page 25 of 34

http://dtdapps.coloradodot.info/staticdata/Downloads/StatewideMaps/HazMatMap.pdf
http://www.coloradodot.info/business/hazmat-routing


 

12 

 

Structure  
No. 

Tunnel Name 
& Location 

Description Route Mile Post NHS (Y/N) 

tunnels 

F-15-BN Interstate 70, 
MP 242, Twin 
tunnels 

One bore each tunnel, 
within the city limits of 
Idaho Springs (2.6 miles 
east of junction with SH 
103) 

070A 242.11 Y 

F-15-BO Interstate 70, 
MP 242, Twin 
tunnels 

One bore each tunnel, 
within the city limits of 
Idaho Springs (2.6 miles 
east of junction with SH 
103) 

070A 242.11 Y 

F-17-FW Interstate 225 
MP 0.02 at Jctn. 
with Interstate-
25 SB MP 200 

Cut and cover Structure, 
Junction I-225 
southbound only with I-
25 Southbound only 

225A     

F-15-AW US 6 - MP259 
to 270, 

One bore each tunnel, 
Five tunnels in Clear 
Creek Canyon beginning 
4 miles west of Golden 
for 15 miles 

006G 264.76 N 

F-15-AX US 6 - MP259 
to 270, 

One bore each tunnel, 
Five tunnels in Clear 
Creek Canyon beginning 
4 miles west of Golden 
for 15 miles 

006G 265.13 N 

F-15-AY US 6 - MP259 
to 270, 

One bore each tunnel, 
Five tunnels in Clear 
Creek Canyon beginning 
4 miles west of Golden 
for 15 miles 

006G 270.37 N 

F-15-X US 6 - MP259 
to 270, 

One bore each tunnel, 
Five tunnels in Clear 
Creek Canyon beginning 
4 miles west of Golden 
for 15 miles 

006G 258.94 N 

15 Permanent Tunnel Rules: Page 26 of 34



 

13 

 

Structure  
No. 

Tunnel Name 
& Location 

Description Route Mile Post NHS (Y/N) 

F-15-Y US 6 - MP259 
to 270, 

One bore each tunnel, 
Five tunnels in Clear 
Creek Canyon beginning 
4 miles west of Golden 
for 15 miles 

006G 259.46 N 

N-09-F US160 - MP 
174.8 Wolf 
Creek Pass 
Tunnel 

One bore, 31.15 miles 
east of Pagosa Spgs 
(located on west side of 
Wolf Creek Pass) 

160A 174.19 Y 

L-06-P US 550 - MP 
90.86 Bear 
Creek Tunnel 

One bore, 1.2 miles south 
of Ouray in Ouray county 

550B 90.84 Y 

B-15-E SH 14 - MP 
107.2 

One bore, 27.48 miles 
west of Fort Collins in 
Roosevelt National 
Forest 

014B 107.23 N 

D-15-AS SH 119 - MP 
37.6 

One bore, in Boulder 
Canyon, 4.2 miles west 
of Jct with SH 7 & SH 93 

119A 37.69 N 

M-06-AG  US 550 – MP 
88.16 East 
Riverside Snow 
Shed 

Snow Shed 550B 88.16 Y 

O-09-K  US 160 – MP 
168.47 Alberta 
Snow Shed  

Snow Shed 160A 168.47 Y 

5.00 Materials Incorporated by Reference 

A copy of the rules and of all other incorporated materials are available for public inspection 
during regular business hours at the Colorado Department of Transportation, Office of Policy 
and Government Relations, 4201 E Arkansas Avenue, Denver, Colorado 80222.  Incorporated 
materials are also maintained at the State Publications Depository and Distribution Center, 201 
East Colfax Avenue, Denver, CO 80203, and may be examined at any other state publications 
library via inter-library loan.  The following regulations and materials are incorporated by 
reference; such incorporation does not include later amendments or editions of any incorporated 
material:  Title 49 CFR parts 100 to 177; 8 CCR 1507-25 “Rules and Regulations Concerning the 
Permitting, Routing & Transportation of Hazardous and Nuclear Materials and the Intrastate 
Transportation of Agricultural Products in the State of Colorado” dated 4.30.2013. 

 

15 Permanent Tunnel Rules: Page 27 of 34



CDOT Tunnel Rules 

Representative Group (gray text indicates attendance at December 10, 2013 meeting) 

Company / Agency Name Contact Name 

Clear Creek County Commissioners Tim Mauck 

BLM Hazmat Specialist David Jevons 

Bureau of Land Management Larry Bagley 

Clear Creek County Kathleen Krebs 

Clear Creek County Fire Dept. Kelly Babeon 

CMCA Greg Fulton 

CMCA Tracy Sakaguchi 

CMCA Art Ballah 

CO/Wyo. Petroleum Marketers Association (CWPMA) Mark Larson 

CO/Wyo. Petroleum Marketers Association (CWPMA) Grier Bailey 

CO/Wyo. Petroleum Marketers Association (CWPMA) Al Butler 

Colorado Counties, Inc. Eric Bergman 

Colorado Municipal League Mark Radtke 

Colorado State Patrol Capt. Josh Downing 

Gablehouse Granberg, LLC Tim Gablehouse 

I-70 Coalition Margaret Bowes 

Jefferson County Glenn Grove 

Lake Dillon Fire Dept. Fire Chief Dave Parmely 

Lake Dillon Fire Dept. Deputy Fire Chief Jeff Berino 

Loveland Ski Area Rob Goodell  

Rule Making subject matter expert Julia Pine  

Rule Making subject matter expert Jim Higgins  

Ski Country USA Patrick Byrne 

Summit County Commissioners  Dan Gibbs 

 Summit County, Director of Emergency Management Joel Cochran 

U.S. Forest Service Carol Kruse (12.02.13) 

Vail Resorts Brendan McGuire 

 

15 Permanent Tunnel Rules: Page 28 of 34



1 
 

Comparative Chart Analyzing Existing CDOT Tunnel Rules, Current Practice, and Proposed Rule Changes  

Analysis of Potential Impact on Hazmat Vehicles under Proposed Rules.  Potential Rule changes: A portion of vehicles carrying Class 1, 2, 4, 5 and 6 hazardous materials are prohibited from using EJMT when Loveland Pass 

is closed.  Other placarded vehicles will be escorted through the tunnels.  Determination: Less than 150 vehicles per year will be prohibited from EJMT.  This is less than 0.02% of all commercial vehicles using EJMT.  

Approximately 10 vehicles would be delayed given a 24 hour closure of Loveland Pass. Data Sources: 2011 AADT, CDOT / October 2006 Hazmat Flow, Colorado State Patrol / Loveland Pass Closure Information, 1999 – 

2011, CDOT.  Disclaimer:   The circumstances which may lead to the closure of Loveland Pass, such as weather, crashes, and avalanche, are highly unpredictable and vary greatly from year to year.  Commodity movement is 

determined by market demands, operational decisions made by private transportation companies, and other factors.  Due to these variables, this analysis is not a predictor of future occurrences and only an estimate of the 

likely outcome given certain factors. 

Assumptions: 

 Percentage of vehicles by hazmat class is constant from 2006 to 2011 

 In this analysis, half of vehicles placarded Class 1, 2, 4, 5 and 6 are prohibited from entering EJMT at all times.  Available data does not indicate division of commodities below the class level.  Fifty percent was 

determined to be a reasonable assumption based on anecdotal information. 

 Vehicle volume is distributed equally by hour 

 Loveland Pass is closed 350 hours per year 

 

Process and conclusion: The total annual truck volume for Loveland Pass is 81,030. According to the CSP study, 76.6% or 62,069 of these are placarded to carry hazardous materials. Given the distribution of placard class 

types, annually, there are 3,724 vehicles carrying materials which are prohibited from using EJMT when Loveland Pass is closed.  Assuming the vehicles are distributed evenly, there is potential for about 10 prohibited 

vehicles per day. Given total closure time of 350 hours, only 149 trucks could be delayed in passing over the Continental Divide; or less than 0.02% of total truck traffic.  More than ninety-nine percent of the total commercial 

vehicles would be permitted to go through EJMT when the pass is closed, including gasoline, diesel, and other fuel products. 

Comparison to other Similar Tunnels:  A comparison of other state departments of transportations’ approach to regulating hazardous materials through tunnels under their jurisdictions revealed a wide spectrum of 

circumstances and methods.  Almost every tunnel had a characteristic that made it unique from the others.  Each state addressed regulating the tunnels differently. Many tunnels throughout the country, such as those in New 

York, Massachusetts, and Virginia completely prohibit all placarded vehicles carrying hazardous materials.  This complete prohibition is feasible because alternate routes are available without unreasonable burden to hazmat 

carriers. 

Alternative Routing. EJMT has a feasible alternate route of Hwy 6 over Loveland Pass only adding a total of 20 miles round trip.  If Loveland Pass is closed there are multiple alternative routes to EJMT depending on the 

destination.  One alternate route which will return the vehicle to I-70 at Silverthorne adds approximately 168 miles round trip.  A second route which would return the vehicle to I-70 at Edwards adds approximately 74 miles 

round trip (74 miles reflects the additional miles using an alternate route compared to taking I-70).  The most comparable tunnel to EJMT is the Caldecott Tunnels in Oakland, California.  The tunnels consist of three bores of 

more than 3600 feet in length, with each bore carrying 2 lanes of traffic.  The third bore is reversible.  An alternate, yet less preferable route is available.  Due to an accident which killed seven people in 1982, hazardous 

materials are no longer permitted through the tunnel, except by escort between the hours of 3am and 5am.  It should be noted that the Hanging Lake Tunnel has no feasible alternative route.  If prohibition of hazardous 

materials were applied to this tunnel, a carrier hauling hazardous materials would have to add at least 100 miles to a trip in order circumvent using the tunnel.  Considering hours-of-service rules and likely origins and 

destinations, a day trip to deliver hazardous materials would be highly unlikely.  This could potentially add cost and time to carrying hazmat across the state.  

 

  

15 Permanent Tunnel Rules: Page 29 of 34



2 
 

 

Current Rule Current Practice Proposed Rule Impact  

Rule 5.2 Hazmat is prohibited from EJMT unless LP 

closed. 

Current practice. Hazmat load use of EJMT, only 

when LP is closed, may be 

permitted / prohibited based on 

federal regulations and CSP 

recommendations. 

n/a 

Rule 5.3.1 When LP closed, hazmat loads listed in rule 

10.00 may use EJMT. Loads carrying radioactive 

materials in any quantity and flammable compressed gases 

in quantities of 1,000 lbs or more gross weight are 

prohibited from using EJMT.  

 

 

 Any radioactive material 

that is not HRCQ will be 

allowed to use the tunnel 

when LP is closed. 

 Compressed gases in any 

quantity are allowed to use 

tunnel when LP is closed. 

 Practice not standardized at 

present given unclear 

language in rules. 

 Any radioactive material 

that is not HRCQ will be 

allowed to use the tunnel 

when LP is closed. 

 Compressed gases in any 

quantity are allowed to use 

tunnel when LP is closed. 

 

n/a 

 

Note: All references to 1,000 lbs. or more are incorrect according to current federal 

hazardous material regulations. Change conforms proposed rules with federal 

regulations. 

10.00 Regulated hazmat: 

Table 1:  

 

Permitted except for “forbidden 

explosives” 

 

At CSP’s suggestion, proposed 

rules do not divide hazmat 

restrictions in terms of “Table 1 and 

Table 2.” All Table 1 hazmat in 

current rules discussed below. 

Forbidden explosives prohibited.  

No change regarding forbidden explosives. Other hazmat described as Table 1 

compared below.  

 Table 1 references in current rule are out of date and out of compliance with 

federal regulations. 

 “Forbidden explosives” are defined in CFR 173.54 and include explosives 

forbidden from transport. 

Table 1: Class A Explosives. Permitted when LP closed. 

 

 

Permitted to use EJMT when LP 

closed. 

Prohibited  

 

“Class A” explosives are now 

called Division 1.1  

 

 

Minimal impact.  On average, less than 150 placarded vehicles per year will be 

prohibited from using EJMT when Loveland Pass is closed.  Less than one quarter of 

a percent of total trucks would be prohibited from using EJMT. 
Note: “Class A” is a term no longer used in federal Hazmat regulations. Current classification: (refers 

to class name prior to Jan. 1, 1991) 

Division 1.1 ....................... Class A explosives. 

Division 1.2 ....................... Class A or Class B explosives. 

Division 1 3 ....................... Class B explosive. 

Division 1.4 ....................... Class C explosives. 

Division 1.5 ....................... Blasting agents. 

Division 1.6 ....................... No applicable hazard class. 

Table 1: Class B Explosives. Permitted when LP closed. 

 

 

Permitted to use EJMT when LP 

closed. 

 

Prohibited 

 

“Class B is now Division 1.2  

 

Minimal impact. On average, less than 150 placarded vehicles per year will be 

prohibited from using EJMT when Loveland Pass is closed.  Less than one quarter of 

a percent of total trucks would be prohibited from using EJMT. 

Note: “Class B” is a term no longer used in federal Hazmat regulations. 

Table 1: Flammable Solid (Dangerous When Wet label 

only). Permitted when LP closed. 

 

Permitted when LP closed. Prohibited 

Under current federal regulations, 

designated as Hazard Class 4.3 

Minimal impact. On average, less than 150 placarded vehicles per year will be 

prohibited from using EJMT when Loveland Pass is closed.  Less than one quarter of 

a percent of total trucks would be prohibited from using EJMT. 

Table 1: Poison A. Permitted when LP closed.  

 

Permitted when LP closed. Prohibited  

Division 6.1 with Inhalation Hazard 

 

Minimal impact. On average, less than 150 placarded vehicles per year will be 

prohibited from using EJMT when Loveland Pass is closed.  Less than one quarter of 

a percent of total trucks would be prohibited from using EJMT 

Table 1: Radioactive Material.  

 Highway Route Controlled Quantities (HRCQ) 

Prohibited.  HRCQ placards are 

required to remain on hazmat route 

Prohibited  

Hazard Class 7. 

No change. No impact.  

15 Permanent Tunnel Rules: Page 30 of 34



3 
 

Current Rule Current Practice Proposed Rule Impact  

prohibited in rule 10.00.  

 Due to the route control, HRCQ commodities 

should never be requesting use of EJMT. 

so would never be at the EJMT.  

Table 1: Radioactive Material:  

1. Uranium hexafluoride fissle (containing 

more than 1.0% U235) 

2.  Uranium hexafluoride, low-specific activity, 

(containing 1.0% or less U235). Low-specific 

activity usually does not reach the limits to be 

designated HRCQ. 

All radioactive materials prohibited under current rule 

5.3.1/ 5.3.2: both route controlled and not route controlled. 

Permitted when LP is closed.   

 
 Uranium hexafluoride fissle. 

If above 1000TBq then it is 

HRCQ and prohibited.  

 Uranium hexafluoride. Most 

likely not HRCQ so 

permitted when LP closed. 

 

No impact. Radioactive 7 placards permitted when LP is closed, HRCQ not permitted.  

Less restrictive than current rules.  Discussed with CSP.  No adequate comparison 

between old radioactive regulatory references and current regulations.   

 

Note: Categories in current rules no longer exist in federal regulations. 

Table 2: Class C Explosives. Permitted when LP closed. 

 

Permitted when LP is closed. Prohibited  

 

Division 1.4 Explosives  

 

See Footnote 1 below. 

Minimal impact. On average, less than 150 placarded vehicles per year will be 

prohibited from using EJMT when Loveland Pass is closed.  Less than one quarter of 

a percent of total trucks would be prohibited from using EJMT. 

Note: “Class C” in current rules no longer exist in federal regulations.  
Current classification: (Class name prior to Jan. 1, 1991) 
Division 1.1 ....................... Class A explosives. 
Division 1.2 ....................... Class A or Class B explosives. 

Division 1 3 ....................... Class B explosive. 
Division 1.4 ....................... Class C explosives. 

Division 1.5 ....................... Blasting agents. 

Division 1.6 ....................... No applicable hazard class. 
Table 2: Blasting Agents. Permitted when LP closed. 

 

Permitted when LP is closed. Prohibited  

 

“Blasting Agents” are now called 

Division 1.5 explosives.   

 

See Footnote 2 below. 

Minimal impact. On average, less than 150 placarded vehicles per year will be 

prohibited from using EJMT when Loveland Pass is closed.  Less than one quarter of 

a percent of total trucks would be prohibited from using EJMT. 
Division 1.5 
Current classification           Class name prior to Jan. 1, 1991 

Division 1.1 ....................... Class A explosives. 

Division 1.2 ....................... Class A or Class B explosives. 
Division 1 3 ....................... Class B explosive. 

Division 1.4 ....................... Class C explosives. 

Division 1.5 ....................... Blasting agents. 
Division 1.6 ....................... No applicable hazard class. 

Table 2: Nonflammable Gas (chlorine). Permitted when 

LP closed.  

  

Permitted when LP closed. Prohibited  

 

Poison by inhalation Division  2.3 

 

Minimal impact. On average, less than 150 placarded vehicles per year will be 

prohibited from using EJMT when Loveland Pass is closed.  Less than one quarter of 

a percent of total trucks would be prohibited from using EJMT.   Alternative Route: 

Using Mapquest, when LP is closed using Berthoud Pass on to Kremmling and HWY 

9 back to I-70 adds 82.7 (165.4 round trip mi. from Denver) and approximately 1 hr 

54 min. (app. 4 hrs round trip). 

Table 2: Permitted when LP closed. 
 Nonflammable Gas Division 2.2 

 Nonflammable Gas (oxygen, cryogenic liquid) Division 2.2  

 Flammable solids Division 4.1, 4.2 

 Nonflammable Gas (florine) Division 2.2 

 Combustible Liquid Division 3  

 Poison B Division   6.1 (other than material poisonous by 

inhalation) 

 Corrosive Material Division 8 

 Irritating Material Division  6.1 

 Flammable Gas (Note: compressed gas/propane) Division 2.1 

Permitted when LP closed. Permitted when LP is closed. 

 

 

No impact. 

15 Permanent Tunnel Rules: Page 31 of 34



4 
 

Current Rule Current Practice Proposed Rule Impact  
 Flammable Liquid (Note: gasoline, jet fuels, diesel) Division 3    

 Oxidizers Division 5.1 

Table 2: Organic Peroxide. Permitted when LP closed. 

 

Permitted when LP closed. 

 

Prohibited 

 

Division 5.2 Type B liquid or solid, 

Temperature controlled.    

 

Minimal impact. On average, less than 150 placarded vehicles per year will be 

prohibited from using EJMT when Loveland Pass is closed.  Less than one quarter of 

a percent of total trucks would be prohibited from using EJMT.  Note: This 

commodity may explode from heat, contamination or loss of temperature control. 

Table 2: Organic Peroxide. Permitted when LP is closed Permitted when LP closed. 

 

Permitted when LP closed. 

Hazard Class 5.2 other than Type B 

liquid or solid, Temperature 

controlled 

No impact. 

Rule 5.3.1  When LP closed, hazmat identified in current 

Rule 10.00 may use EJMT, but is subject to staging and 

specific hours.  

Specific hours for use of EJMT in current rules: 
 5.3.1.1. Hazmat required to wait in truck-parking area until 

permitted to enter EJMT. 

 5.3.1.2 Hazmat shall transit EJMT 7 days a week on the hour 

except: 

o Westbound Saturday and Sunday mornings, 8-9 

a.m. 

o Eastbound Sunday afternoons, 3, 4, 5, and 6 p.m. 

o National Holidays when falling on Friday, 8–9 a.m. 

o National Holidays when falling on Monday, 3, 4, 5, 

and 6 p.m. 

Follows current restrictions, 

during restricted hours hazmat 

loads are staged at Officer’s 

Gulch, Vail Pass Rest Area 

(eastbound); Herman’s Gulch 

(westbound). 

When LP is closed, staging 

required using Officer’s Gulch, 

Vail Pass rest area and Herman’s 

gulch. Further investigating any 

potential changes to peak hours of 

travel based upon current traffic 

counts. 
 Clarified: Westbound on national 

holidays when they fall on a 

Friday, and 

 Clarified Eastbound on national 

holidays when they fall on a 

Monday. 

No change to current practice. Impact could be relevant to driver hours of service 

restrictions. 

Rule 5.5 Tunnel personnel at EJMT authorized to stop 

vehicle upon reasonable cause that vehicle is in violation 

of Rules and are authorized to review shipping papers. 

Current practice is consistent with 

rules.  

Proposed rules state that CDOT can 

stop a vehicle and contact CSP.  

No change.  Beneficial only; no delay in CDOT and driver reviewing and discussing 

shipping papers.  

Rule 5.6 Tunnel personnel authorized to regulate manner 

(speed, convoy) in which access is granted or to prohibit 

access to EJMT if access would present hazard to tunnels 

or other persons using tunnels. 

Current practice is consistent with 

rules. 

Clarify current rule by requiring 

that all hazmat commercial vehicles 

using EJMT:   (1) Travel at speeds 

no greater than 30 miles per hour 

through the tunnel; (2) Not pass 

while in a Tunnel;  (3) Spacing 

between Motor Vehicle or 

Commercial Carriers and all other 

vehicles must be a minimum of 800 

feet while in Tunnel.  

No impact.  

Rule 5.7 Vehicles operating with over-width permits must 

stop in truck-parking areas at tunnel portals. 

 

 

Current practice is consistent with 

rules. 

Rules won’t reference to over-

size/over-weight loads because 

covered in separate set of CDOT 

rules.  

No impact. 

If an empty cargo unit is purged under 49 CFR 172.328, 

not restricted under current rules. 

Permitted when LP is closed. Empty cargo units will be treated 

the same as any other hazardous 

material transport, based upon 

placarding requirements. 

No impact. 

 

 

15 Permanent Tunnel Rules: Page 32 of 34



5 
 

Footnote 1:   1.4 Explosive. 1.4 Explosive class depends on the compatibility group.  1.4B is a detonator which is the most sensitive explosive that is used commercially. It is used to initiate a larger quantity of explosive 

material. “1.4” means that it is packaged in a manner so that if one detonator were to detonate it would not propagate to the other detonators in the container causing them to detonate. Most detonators contain such a small 

amount of explosives would not be a hazard unless someone was actually holding one in their hand. But if there were a fire in the vehicle then the shipment could mass detonate and depending on the quantity it could cause 

some serious damage to fire personnel or motorists close by. The current regulations say that any 1.4  material weighing less than 1000 pounds is not required to be placarded and could be transported through the tunnel.  1.4S 

is usually a material that is used to initiate the detonator and burns rather than detonates like safety fuse of a fuse lighter. There are some 1.4S materials that could contain a detonator but are sealed so it would not detonate and 

propagate to other 1.4S materials 

Footnote 2:   1.5 Explosive. 1.5 Explosive class is a blasting Agent. The most common is Ammonium Nitrate-Fuel Oil Mixture (ANFO). Ammonium nitrate is an oxidizer which in simple terms,  creates its own oxygen when 

burned.. The fuel oil mixed with it will aid in detonating the material using a detonator. For example, when ammonium nitrate is confined in a semi-trailer and a fire occurs on the truck it would cause a massive explosion if it 

were a large load. The hazard of the 1.5 explosive material during a fire would not be that much more than if a truck carrying a class 5 hazardous material (oxidizer) like ammonium nitrate fertilizer except it would detonate 

quicker with the fuel oil mixed with it. This is what happened at the West Texas fertilizer plant explosion in March.  

Footnote 3:  1.6 explosive. CDOT does not use any 1.6 explosive, so it has no firsthand knowledge of this material except for what is written in the 49 CFR regulations on handling hazardous materials: “a material which 

after undergoing certain prescribed tests, is found to be an extremely insensitive detonating substance.” Based on this information and discussions with CSP, CDOT believes this material should not be included in the 

“prohibited at all times” group in the rules. 

15 Permanent Tunnel Rules: Page 33 of 34



1 
 

Resolution # TC - 

Open Rule-Making Regarding Revisions to the Rules Governing the Use of 
Tunnels on Colorado State Highways, 2 CCR 601-8 and Delegate Authority to 
an Administrative Hearing Officer to Hold a Public Rule-Making Hearing. 
 
WHEREAS, § 43-1-106(8)(k), C.R.S., § 42-4-106 (7)(a) and (b), C.R.S., § 42-20-
301(3), authorize the Transportation Commission of Colorado (the 
“Commission”) to promulgate rules governing the use of tunnels on Colorado 
state highways (“Tunnel Rules”); and  
 
WHEREAS, the Commission adopted the Tunnel Rules in 1986, with a 
subsequent adoption making minor corrections in 2008; and  
 
WHEREAS, the current rules require updating in order to conform to current 
federal regulations and provide clearer guidance to the travelling public; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Governor Hickenlooper’s Executive Order D 2012-002, 
the proposed rules are drafted in clear language to make them accessible to 
CDOT personnel, Colorado State Patrol, motor carriers and the travelling 
public; and 
 
WHEREAS, following the measures taken by the Department to comply with 
the Administrative Procedure Act, the proposed Rules will be submitted to the 
Commission for approval and adoption. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Transportation Commission herein 
opens the rule-making process and delegates authority to an administrative 
hearing officer to preside over a public rule-making hearing on the 
modifications to the Rules.  
 
 
_________________________________  ___________ 
Transportation Commission Secretary Date 
 

15 Permanent Tunnel Rules: Page 34 of 34



STATE OF COLORADO 
 

 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
 
 
 
 

“Taking Care To Get You There” 

 
DATE: January 3, 2014 
 
TO:  Transportation Commission 
 
FROM: Herman Stockinger / Anthony DeVito 
 
SUBJECT: Request to Adopt Temporary Rules Governing the Use of Tunnels on 

Colorado State Highways, 2 CCR 601-8 (the “Tunnel Rules”) 
 
 
Purpose 
The Department requests the Commission to adopt temporary rules so that they are in place 
during the inclement weather that may come during the remaining winter months of 2014 and 
the early spring months.  By separate action item, the Department is requesting the 
Commission to open rule-making on the permanent Tunnel Rules, which, after meeting the 
requirements of the State Administrative Procedure Act, § 24-4-103, C.R.S. (the “APA”), the 
rules will become effective in July 2014.  Adopting the rules on a temporary basis will allow 
them to take effect immediately.   
 
The Tunnel Rules include reference to federal regulations governing the transport of 
hazardous materials.  While the Colorado State Patrol is charged with rule-making and 
oversight of hazardous materials on Colorado highways, statute provides authority to the 
Department to oversee the transport of hazardous materials through the tunnels within 
CDOT’s jurisdiction.   
 
The APA sets forth the process and requirements for all state agency rule-making.  Section 
24-4-103(6)(a),  allows an agency to adopt temporary rules when imperatively necessary “to 
comply with state or federal law or federal regulations or for the preservation of public 
health, safety, or welfare and compliance with the requirements of [the APA] would be 
contrary to the public interest.”  
 
Action Requested 
By resolution, adopt temporary rules under the APA, 24-4-103(6)(a), C.R.S. which will cause 
the rules to be effective immediately, while the Department takes all steps necessary to 
comply with the APA regarding permanent rules. The Commission is given authority to open 
the Tunnel Rules pursuant to § 43-1-106(8)(k), § 42-4-106(7)(a) and (b), C.R.S., and § 42-
20-301(3), C.R.S.  
   
Executive Summary  
The Department requests the adoption of temporary rules so that the state rules conform to 
federal regulations over the winter months, and much greater clarity is provided to the 
travelling public and those who must enforce the rules.  The rule-making procedure under the 

16 Temporary Tunnel Rules: Page 1 of 4



 

 

APA is a seven-month process.  Specifically, rules governing the Eisenhower-Johnson 
Memorial Tunnel (“EJMT”) will directly impact the operations of tunnel personnel and the 
efficient movement of traffic approaching and through the EJMT.  The APA requires 
compliance with all steps of the rule-making process following the adoption of temporary 
rules.  The Department will meet all requirements of the APA with regard to these rules and 
the permanent rules that are opened contemporaneously with this action item.  
 
Background 
(Please see action item concerning the opening of permanent Tunnel Rules for greater detail).  
The Commission most recently adopted the Tunnel Rules in 1986, with a subsequent 
adoption making minor changes in 2008.  These minor changes did not include conforming 
the citations to federal regulations to the current law; therefore, the federal citations, which 
have changed significantly since 1986, are currently obsolete.    
 
Details   
(Please see action item concerning the opening of permanent Tunnel Rules for greater detail).  
 
Key Benefits  
The Tunnel Rules impact the travelling public and specifically motor carriers.  The proposed 
rules legally conform to federal regulations and make the rules easier to understand. 
 
Next Steps  
Temporary rules expire 120 days after adoption.  The Department will take the required steps 
to process the permanent rules prior to the expiration of temporary rules.   
 

16 Temporary Tunnel Rules: Page 2 of 4



 

 

1410 Grant Street, Suite B-103, Denver CO 80203 –  Phone (303) 422-7805 – Fax (303) 422-6913 

Email: cwpma@cwpma.org   Web: www.cwpma.org 

 

 

 
January 7, 2014 

 

Mary Frances Nevans 

Rules, Policies and Procedures Administrator 

Office of Policy and Government Relations 

Colorado Department of Transportation 

4201 E. Arkansas Avenue 

Denver, CO 80222 

 

Re: Temporary Rulemaking 

 

Dear Mary Frances, 

 

This letter is written to demonstrate that the Colorado Wyoming 

Petroleum Marketers Association supports the adoption of temporary 

rules that have been submitted by staff to the Transportation 

Commission to be considered at the January 16, 2014 

meeting. CWPMA believes that it is important that the state have the 

rules in place this winter.   

 

As was discussed in previous stakeholder meetings, CWPMA 

understands that if the Commission does not adopt temporary rules, then 

our members will still have to operate under the old rules this winter 

and spring. Because of the steps required by the Administrative 

Procedure Act, permanent rules will not be effective until June/July. 

The current rules are simply not adequate and the temporary rules need 

to be implemented now. 

 

CWPMA supports the rationale for temporary rules, which will allow 

the new rules to take effect in January. We believe the new rules will 

provide clear guidance to CDOT personnel, Colorado State Patrol, the 

petroleum marketer and other affected industries, as well as and the 

general motoring public, over the winter months when Loveland Pass is 

closed.  This will eliminate much confusion regarding staging locations, 

metering times through the EJMT, and application of the correct federal 

regulations regarding hazardous materials.  

 

CWPMA understands, importantly, that input and changes can still be 

made to the permanent rules once that process has begun. 

 

CWPMA urges the Commission to move forward now on temporary 

rulemaking to the benefit of all concerned. Should you have any 

questions that I may address, please let me know. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 
Mark Larson 

 

 
 
 
Colorado / Wyoming Officers 
Don Policky – President 
Scott Paulson – 1

st
 VP 

Shelly Ellenbecker– 2
nd

 VP 
Eric Balenseifen – Treasurer 
Al Butler– Past President 
 
Colorado Board of Trustees 
Scott Paulson, Denver - Chairman* 
Eric Balenseifen, Denver* 
Al Butler, Glenwood Springs* 
Buzz Calkins, Centennial 
Steve Cure, Eaton 
Kent Frieling, Grand Junction 
Bill Gallagher, Denver* 
Terry Gallagher, Sr., Boulder 
Tom Gray, Ft. Lupton* 
Brian Haldorson, Denver* 
Paul James, Golden 
Randy McFarland, Salida 
Skotty Morris – Monte Vista 
Craig Ochs – Colorado Springs 
Greg Parish, Montrose 
Tina Powell, Fort Lupton 
Bill Scaff, Greeley 
Bill Shea, Thornton 
Andy Smith, Jr., Evergreen 
Rich Spresser, Greenwood Village 
Kirk Swallow, Rifle* 
Meyer Sussman, Englewood* 
Jim Wallace, La Junta 
Greg Wakeman, Arvada 
 
Wyoming Board of Trustees 
Shelly Ellenbecker, Cheyenne* - 
                                      Chairwoman 
Mike Bailey, Riverton* 
Don Policky, Rapid City SD* 
Chris Jackson, Gillette 
Mike Hanser, Greybull 
Bob Johnson, Casper 
Steve Perkins, Rawlins* 
Jay Schneiders, Rock Springs* 
Terry Thomas, Cheyenne 
 
* Designates Board Member  
 
Executive Director 
Mark Larson 

 
 
 

 

16 Temporary Tunnel Rules: Page 3 of 4



1 
 

Resolution # TC - 

Adopt Temporary Rules Governing the Use of Tunnels on Colorado State 
Highways, 2 CCR 601-8 and Direct the Department to Comply with all 
Requirements of the State Administrative Procedure Act. 
 
WHEREAS, § 43-1-106(8)(k) C.R.S., § 42-4-106 (7)(a) and (b), and C.R.S., § 42-
20-301(3), authorize the Transportation Commission of Colorado (the 
“Commission”) to promulgate rules governing the use of tunnels on Colorado 
state highways; and  
 
WHEREAS, the current rules were last updated in 1986, with minor revisions 
in 2008; and  
 
WHEREAS, the current rules require updating in order to conform to current 
federal regulations, eliminate obsolete information and provide clearer 
guidance to the travelling public; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Governor Hickenlooper’s Executive Order D 2012-002, 
the proposed rules are drafted in clear language to make them accessible to 
CDOT personnel, Colorado State Patrol, motor carriers and the travelling 
public; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Commission finds that temporary adoption of the Tunnel Rules 
is imperatively necessary for the health, safety and welfare of the travelling 
public so that the Rules will be immediately in conformance to federal 
regulations; and  
 
WHEREAS, immediate adoption is necessary so that clear guidance is provided 
to CDOT tunnel personnel, the Colorado State Patrol, motor carriers and 
members of the travelling public during the inclement weather in the remaining 
winter and early spring months of 2014; and  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Transportation Commission herein 
adopt temporary rules Governing the Use of Tunnels on Colorado State 
Highways, 2 CCR 601-8 and directs the Department to take all necessary steps 
to comply with the State Administrative Procedure Act.  
 
 
_________________________________  ___________ 
Transportation Commission Secretary Date 
 

16 Temporary Tunnel Rules: Page 4 of 4



STATE OF COLORADO 
 

 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
 
 
 
 

“Taking Care To Get You There” 

 
DATE: January 3, 2014 
 
TO:  Transportation Commission 
 
FROM: Mark Imhoff, Director, Division of Transit & Rail 
 
SUBJECT: Interregional Express Bus Implementation  
 
 
Purpose 
The purpose of this memo is to request approval of the Interregional Express (IX) Bus 
Implementation Plan.  A resolution follows this memo. 
 
Action Requested 
It is requested that the Transportation Commission approve the attached resolution for the 
implementation of the Interregional Express Bus. 
 
Executive Summary  
Implementation of the IX Bus includes the following elements: 

• Interregional Express Bus service generally along I-25 from Fort Collins to Denver 
Union Station, along I-25 from Colorado Springs to Denver Union Station, and along 
I-70 from Glenwood Springs to Denver Union Station.  The Interregional Express 
Bus service plan and implementation plan is fully described in the Interregional 
Express Bus Plan White Paper (December 2013), and can be accessed 
at http://www.coloradodot.info/about/committees/trac/Minutes%20and%20Agendas/ix-plan-
whitepaper. 

• Establish an initial FY 2014 Start-Up Fund of $10.9 Million from the following 
sources: 

o $5.5 Million of unallocated and/or withdrawn FASTER Statewide Transit 
funds. 

o $4.9 Million of unallocated SB 1 funds dedicated to transit. 
o $0.5M from Miscellaneous Sales; proceeds from the sale of the FREX buses 

(a SB 1 grant). 
• Authorize $3.0 Million per year beginning in FY 2015 as an annual allocation of the 

FASTER Statewide Transit funds to be used (along with fare revenues) for the 
operations, maintenance and capital needs associated with the IX program. 

• Authorize FY 2014 expenditures from the Start-Up Fund: 
o Purchase of 13 Over-the-Road Coaches (buses); estimated at $7.8 Million. 
o Design and construct needed Park-and-Ride improvements; estimated at $1.0 

Million. 
o Miscellaneous capital (if needed); $250,000. 

17 IX Bus Plan and Implementation: Page 1 of 10

http://www.coloradodot.info/about/committees/trac/Minutes%20and%20Agendas/ix-plan-whitepaper
http://www.coloradodot.info/about/committees/trac/Minutes%20and%20Agendas/ix-plan-whitepaper


 

 

o Other start-up operating costs (communications plan, branding, compliance 
engineer, miscellaneous); estimated at $280,000. 

o Establish the IX Reserve (contingency) Fund from the remainder of the Start-
Up Fund; estimated at $1.57 Million; under Transportation Commission 
control. 

• Authorize the procurement of a private operator to operate the IX service and 
maintain the bus fleet: 

o Three year contract estimated at $5.85 Million; plus two one-year options. 
o Funded through the FY 2015-17 FASTER Statewide Transit allocation 

(above). 
• Initiate service in FY 2015, as soon as the vehicle fleet is available and the contract 

operator is prepared to begin. 
• Monitor performance and success for three years of operation, and give the 

Transportation Commission the option at that time to continue service, modify service 
or cancel service. 

 
Background 
The CDOT mission statement is “to provide the best multi modal transportation system”; the 
IX adds transit to the modal options in the I-25 and I-70 corridors.  The statutory language 
creating the Division of Transit & Rail and the FASTER Statewide Transit funds gives 
CDOT the authority to develop and fund transit services, including the use of FASTER 
Statewide Transit funds ($10M/year) for operations.  In addition, the FASTER funds flow 
through the Highway Users Trust Fund (HUTF).  The Colorado Attorney General’s Office 
agrees and supports CDOT’s authority to fund and operate transit service, and that the 
FASTER funds for the plan implementation do not violate the HUTF provisions. 
 
Last December (2012), the Commission directed staff to prepare an operating and 
implementation plan for consideration once developed.  DTR has developed the 
Interregional Express Bus Plan with the following guidance and assistance: 

• Transportation Commission November 2013 Interregional Express Bus Workshop. 
• Transit & Intermodal Committee input at their regular March meeting and a special 

April workshop. 
• A Sub-Committee of the Transit & Rail Advisory Committee (TRAC) supplemented 

with transit providers in the I-70 and I-25 corridors; monthly meetings. 
• Consultant expertise through the Intercity and Regional Bus Network Study. 

 
The IX Plan has been presented to the Transportation Commission at Workshops in 
November and December, 2013 and is ready for Action by the Commission in January. 
 
Details   
Under the plan, CDOT would become the operating entity, purchase the buses, and contract 
with a private provider for the annual operation and maintenance. The CDOT buses would 
connect with local transit systems at key intermodal stations thereby linking communities and 
providing good collection and distribution capabilities.  The Interregional Express Bus 
service plan and implementation plan is fully described in the Interregional Express Bus Plan 

17 IX Bus Plan and Implementation: Page 2 of 10



 

 

White Paper (December 2013), and can be accessed 
at http://www.coloradodot.info/about/committees/trac/Minutes%20and%20Agendas/ix-plan-whitepaper. 
 
Key Benefits  
Key benefits of the IX Bus include: 

• Provide modal choice for travelers in the I-25 and I-70 corridors. 
• Establish transit service in the most congested corridors and begin to determine the 

demand for interregional transit services. 
• Reduce congestion, and improve air quality in the corridors. 

 
Next Steps  
Once the attached resolution is approved by the Transportation Commission the following 
steps will begin: 

• Procure the bus fleet. 
• Solicit, select and contract with the private operator. 
• Develop and implement the IX Communications Plan, including branding, public 

outreach and customer service plan. 
• Begin service in FY 2015 when the above steps are complete. 

17 IX Bus Plan and Implementation: Page 3 of 10

http://www.coloradodot.info/about/committees/trac/Minutes%20and%20Agendas/ix-plan-whitepaper


T R A N S P O R T A T I O N  C O M M I S S I O N  M E E T I N G

J A N U A R Y  1 6 ,  2 0 1 4

M a r k  I m h o f f ,  D T R  D i r e c t o r

Interregional Express Bus
Plan

Interregional Express Bus Plan

 Today’s Purpose:
 Request approval of the Interregional Express Bus Plan and 

implementation
 IX Sub-Committee-continued engagement
 Transit & Rail Advisory Committee (TRAC) representatives
 Linked transit agencies/entities

 Stakeholder outreach: October – December
 Final Plan Update

 Inter Mountain TPR
 North Front Range MPO
 Pikes Peak Area COG
 DRCOG
 RTD Board
 Transit and Rail Advisory Committee (TRAC)
 STAC

17 IX Bus Plan and Implementation: Page 4 of 10



Interregional Express Bus Plan

FRISCO

Interregional Express Bus Plan

Action Requested - Funding

 Establish FY 2014 Start-Up Fund ($10.9M)
 Unallocated FASTER Statewide Transit funds ($5.5M)

 Unallocated SB 1 Transit funds ($5.4M)
 Includes FREX bus sale proceeds & escrow ($500K)

 Authorize $3.0M/year for IX O&M and capital needs
 Source - FASTER Statewide Transit 

 Supplemented by fare box revenue

 Establish IX Reserve Fund ($3.0M ceiling)
 Commission controlled

17 IX Bus Plan and Implementation: Page 5 of 10



Interregional Express Bus Plan

Action Requested – FY 2014 Expenditures
 Purchase 13 Over-the-Road Coaches ($7.8M est)
 Contract with a private operator ($5.85M est)
 3 year contract w/ 2 one-year options 
 Funded through FY 2015-17 FASTER Statewide Transit ($3.0M)

 Park-and-Ride improvements ($1.0M est)
 Misc capital ($250K if needed)
 Misc operating costs ($280K est)
 Communications plan/branding
 Compliance engineer

 IX Reserve ($1.57M est)

Interregional Express Bus Plan

Action Requested – Other Elements

 Designate T&I Committee as IX Operations 
Committee

 Opening day – Late 2014/Early 2015
 As soon as fleet is available

 Three year operation assessment
 Monitor performance/success throughout

 At 3 year mark, ability to continue, modify or cancel

17 IX Bus Plan and Implementation: Page 6 of 10



Interregional Express Bus Plan

Questions

???

Interregional Express Bus Plan

Fort Collins to DUS
 5 round trips/wkday
 4 peak commute times
 1 off-peak

 Park-and-Rides/stations
 I-25/Harmony Road PNR

 Park-and-ride expansion 
required

 I-25/US 34 PNR
 Denver Union Station

 Utilize current/future 
managed lanes & direct DUS 
access

 Ridership estimate
 171-257 passengers/day

17 IX Bus Plan and Implementation: Page 7 of 10



Interregional Express Bus Plan

Colorado Springs to DUS
 6 round trips/wkday
 5 peak commute times
 1 off-peak

 Park-and-Rides/stations
 I-25/Tejon Rd PNR
 I-25/Woodman Rd PNR

 Park-and-ride access 
required

 I-25/Monument PNR
 I-25/Broadway Station
 Denver Union Station

 Ridership estimate
 371-556 passengers/day

Interregional Express Bus Plan

Mountain Corridor Plan
 1 round trip/wkday
 7:20AM depart Glenwood 

Springs
 6:00PM depart DUS

 Park-and-Rides/stations
 South Glenwood Station PNR
 I-70/Eagle PNR
 Vail Transit Center PNR (pay 

in winter)
 Frisco Transit Center PNR
 Denver Federal Center
 Denver Union Station

 Ridership estimate
 18-36 Passengers/day

17 IX Bus Plan and Implementation: Page 8 of 10



Resolution #TC- 

Approving Implementation of the Interregional Express Bus  

Approved by the Transportation Commission on: ___________________ 

1-WHEREAS the CDOT mission is to “provide the best multi modal transportation system for 
Colorado”; and 
 
2- WHEREAS, the Colorado Legislature created the Division of Transit & Rail in 2009 (Senate 
Bill 09-094) vesting in CDOT the authority to develop, operate and integrate transit service into 
the statewide transportation system, and to establish and modify fares and schedules for transit 
services provided directly by the state or contracted for by the state; and 
 
3- WHEREAS the FASTER legislation (Senate Bill 09-108, Section 43-4-206) provides ten 
million dollars per year for statewide transit including the maintenance, operation, or 
administration of transit-related projects; and 
 
4- WHEREAS transit service connectivity is lacking due to service gaps exist between local 
transit systems; and 
 
5- WHEREAS the I-25 and I-70 corridors carry high volumes of travelers and experience high 
levels of congestion, and therefore have significant transit demands; and 
 
6- WHEREAS the Transportation Commission directed the development of an interregional 
express bus plan in December, 2012; and 
 
7- WHEREAS the development of an interregional express bus plan included stakeholder 
outreach. 
 
8- WHEREAS, upon approval by the Transportation Commission, CDOT is prepared to begin 
interregional express bus service in FY 2015 after it contracts with an operator and obtains fleet 
vehicles.   
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Transportation Commission hereby approves 
that CDOT shall provide interregional express bus service, through a contract with a private 
operator, and approves that service will be initiated in the following areas:   

o I-25 corridor between Colorado Springs and Denver, and Fort Collins and 
Denver. 

o The I-70 corridor between Glenwood springs and Denver.  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that an initial FY 2014 Start-Up Fund of $10.9 Million shall 
be established from the following sources: 
 

o $5.5 Million of unallocated and/or withdrawn FASTER Statewide Transit funds. 
o $4.9 Million of unallocated SB 1 funds dedicated to transit. 

17 IX Bus Plan and Implementation: Page 9 of 10



o $0.5M from Miscellaneous Sales; proceeds from the sale of the FREX buses (a 
SB 1 grant). 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that $3.0 Million per year be allocated, beginning in FY 2015, 
from the FASTER Statewide Transit funds to be used (along with fare revenues) for the 
operations, maintenance and capital needs associated with the interregional express bus program. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the FY 2014 Start-Up Fund be used to: 

o Purchase of 13 Over-the-Road Coaches (buses); estimated at $7.8 Million. 
o Design and construct needed Park-and-Ride improvements; estimated at $1.0 

Million. 
o Procure miscellaneous capital (if needed); $250,000. 
o Fund other start-up operating costs (communications plan, branding, compliance 

engineer, miscellaneous); estimated at $280,000. 
o Establish the IX Reserve (contingency) Fund from the remainder of the Start-Up 

Fund; estimated at $1.57 Million; under Transportation Commission control. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a private entity to operate the IX service and maintain the 
bus fleet be solicited and procured with the following terms: 

o Three year contract estimated at $5.85 Million; plus two one-year options. 
o Funded through the FY 2015-17 FASTER Statewide Transit allocation (above). 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED to monitor performance and success for three years of 
operation, and give the Transportation Commission the option at that time to continue service, 
modify service or cancel service. 

 
 
 
 

17 IX Bus Plan and Implementation: Page 10 of 10



Colorado Bridge Enterprise 
January 16, 2013 

Meeting Schedule & Agenda 
4201 East Arkansas Avenue 

Denver, Colorado 80222 
 

Douglas E. Aden, Chairman 
Grand Junction, District 7 

 
Shannon Gifford 

Denver, District 1 
Ed Peterson, Vice Chairman 

Lakewood, District 2 
Gary M. Reiff 

Englewood, District 3 
Heather Barry 

Westminster, District 4 
Kathleen Gilliland 

Livermore, District 5 
 
 

Kathy Connell 
Steamboat Springs, District 6 

Sidny Zink 
Durango, District 8 

Les Gruen 
Colorado Springs, District 9 

William Thiebaut 
Pueblo, District 10 
Steven Hofmeister 

Haxtun, District 11 
 

        THE CHAIRMAN MAY ALTER THE ITEM SEQUENCE OR TIMES 
 
The times indicated for each topic on the Commission agenda are an estimate and 
subject to change.  Generally, upon the completion of each agenda item, the 
Commission will immediately move to the next item.  However, the order of agenda 
items is tentative and, when necessary to accommodate the public or the 
Commission's schedules, the order of the agenda items is also subject to change. 
 
Documents are posted at http://www.coloradodot.info/about/transportation-
commission/meeting-agenda.html no less than 24 hours prior to the meeting.  The 
documents are considered to be in draft form and for information only until final 
action is taken by the Commission. 
 
Unless otherwise noted, all meetings are in CDOT HQ Auditorium. 
 
***************************************************** 
BRIDGE ENTERPRISE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  ............................ Tab 18 
 
1:45 p.m. Call to Order and Roll Call 
 
1:45 p.m. Audience Participation 
  Subject Limit: 10 minutes; Time Limit: 3 minutes 
 
  Act on Consent Agenda ...................................... Bridge Enterprise 1 

a) Resolution to Approve Regular Minutes from 
December 19, 2013 (Herman Stockinger) 

 
1:45 p.m.  Discuss and Act on 6th Budget Supplement for FY2014 
  (Scott Richrath) .................................................. Bridge Enterprise 5 
 
1:50 p.m. FASTER Lawsuit Appeal Update 

http://www.coloradodot.info/about/transportation-commission/meeting-agenda.html
http://www.coloradodot.info/about/transportation-commission/meeting-agenda.html


  (Kathy Young) …………………………………..………Bridge Enterprise 8 
 
1:55 p.m. Monthly Progress Report 
  (Scott McDaniel) ................................................. Bridge Enterprise 9 
 
2:00 p.m. Bridge Enterprise 2013 Year in Review 
  (Scott McDaniel) ................................................. Bridge Enterprise 14 
 
2:05 p.m. Adjournment 
  



Bridge Enterprise Board  
Regular Meeting Minutes 

Thursday, December 19, 2013 
 

PRESENT WERE:  Doug Aden, Chairman, District 7 
   Shannon Gifford, District 1 
   Ed Peterson, District 2 
   Gary Reiff, District 3 
   Heather Barry, District 4 

Kathy Gilliland, District 5 
Kathy Connell, District 6 

   Sidny Zink, District 8 
   Les Gruen, District 9 

Bill Thiebaut, District 10 
Steven Hofmeister, District 11  

 
ALSO PRESENT:  Don Hunt, Executive Director 

Scot Cuthbertson, Chief Operating Officer 
Gary Vansuch, Director of Process Improvement 
Debra Perkins-Smith, Director of Division of Transportation 
Tim Harris, Chief Engineer 
Heidi Humphreys, Director of Admin & Human Resources 
Barbara Gold, Audit Director 
Amy Ford, Public Relations Director 
Scott McDaniel, Director of Staff Services 
Soctt Richrath, CFO 
Herman Stockinger, Director of Policy and Government 
Relations 
Mike Cheroutes, Director of HPTE 
Mark Imhoff, Director of Division of Transit and Rail 
Ryan Rice, Director of Operations Division  
Darrell Lingk, Director of Office of Transportation Safety 
Tony DeVito, Region 1 Transportation Director 
Tom Wrona, Region 2 Transportation Director 
Dave Eller, Region 3 Transportation Director  
Johnny Olson, Region 4 Transportation Director 
Myron Hora, Acting Region 4 Transportation Director  
Kerrie Neet, Region 5 Transportation Director  
Kathy Young, Chief Transportation Counsel  
John Cater, FHWA 
Vince Rogalski, Statewide Transportation Advisory 
Committee (STAC) 

  
AND:          Other staff members, organization representatives,  
          the public 
 
Chairman Aden convened the meeting at 11:45 a.m. in the CDOT Headquarters 
building at 4201 E. Arkansas Avenue, Denver, CO. 
 

17 Bridge Enterprise: Page 1 of 32



Audience Participation 
The Chairman noted that no members of the audience had signed up to 
address the Board of Directors. 
 
Act on Consent Agenda 
Chairman Aden stated that the next thing on the Agenda was action on the  
Consent Agenda.  Director Connell moved for approval of the Consent Agenda. 
The motion was seconded by Director Gilliland. Upon vote of the Board, the 
motion passed unanimously. 
 
Resolution #BE-147 
Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes for November, 2013. 
 
BE IT SO RESOLVED THAT, the Minutes for the November 21, 2013, meeting 
of the Bridge Enterprise Board of Directors are hereby approved by the Bridge 
Enterprise Board as published in the Agenda for the December 18 & 19, 2013, 
meeting of the Bridge Enterprise Board of Directors. 
 
Discuss and Act on Resolution to Approve the 5th Budget Supplement for 
FY2014 
 
Scott Richrath stated that there is only one structure this month in Region 3 
for $10 million. This is a rehabilitation rather than a replacement.  
 
Chairman Aden entertained a motion to approve the 5th Budget Supplement. 
Director Peterson moved to approve the resolution, and Commissioner Gilliland 
seconded the motion. Upon vote of the Board, the resolution passed 
unanimously. 
 
Resolution #BE-148 
BE IT SO RESOLVED THAT, the 5th Budget Supplement for FY’2014 is hereby 
approved by the Bridge Enterprise Board. 
 
Bond Program Update 
 
Scott Richrath stated that December 15, 2013, marked the three year 
anniversary for bond issuance. There was a target of 85% of expenditure of the 
$300 million proceeds. Within that target, there was a dollar expenditure and a 
number of structure target. Bridge Enterprise far exceeded the number of 
structure target in the bond program. Over 90 bridges were addressed, and the 
target was less than 70. Bridge Enterprise fell slightly short on the dollar 
expenditure, but legal counsel stated the legal commitment was met. As of 
today, there has been $242 million in bond expenditure, and the target had 
been $255 million. 
 
Ben Stein stated that there are no legal ramifications even though they fell 
short of the dollar expenditure target. There are no notices or automatic 
penalties. The legal issue is that if the target is not met and the IRS audits the 
program, it is necessary to document why the goal was not met. The IRS wants 

17 Bridge Enterprise: Page 2 of 32



to determine if the department borrowed excessively to arbitrage tax-free 
money. Bridge Enterprise has documentation to show why it borrowed the 
original amount, why the plan was to spend the money and what prevented 
that money from being spent. The most significant issue is several bridges that 
we delayed for legitimate reasons, including the US 6 Bridge Complex in 
downtown. These could have been completed 18 months ago, but these were 
held up to package with bridges that will be done on the Commission budget. 
This will create a more efficient and larger project. This project alone accounts 
for a majority of the difference. This program has only been audited once, and 
it came through with flying colors. 
 
Scott Richrath stated that as the three years of bond issuance is wrapped up, 
Bridge Enterprise will begin to take on a different complexion. There is an 
existing ten year plan for the bond issuance program, but this will be parsed to 
specifically look at the next three years. Minor and major rehabilitation will be 
examined, especially under the new asset management program. 
 
Discuss I-70 Viaduct Funding Alternative 
 
Executive Director Hunt stated it is necessary to discuss project funding before 
discussing project procurement. He asked if it would be possible to discuss 
funding in the January meeting. 
 
Scott Richrath stated that it is possible to bring broader information to the 
Board in January than was distributed in December. They will address the 
impact of bonding on the Bridge Enterprise program and the flexibility that 
may be affected. He will present different funding options at that time. He will 
also present that rehabilitation and preventative maintenance options will be 
examined more than has been in the past, rather than automatically replacing 
the structure. 
 
Ben Stein stated that he will have a memo to address the questions that were 
brought up by the Commission in the Wednesday workshop, and that it will be 
disseminated soon, including supporting documents. The public policy is a 
much broader issue that will be addressed as well.  
 
Completion of the 2013 Annual Bridge Enterprise Report as Required by 
FASTER Legislation 
 
Tim Harris stated that there is annual report to the legislature about Bridge 
Enterprise. It is due January 15, 2014, and it will be posted to the website on 
January 14, 2015. It was distributed to the Commission for comment, which 
can be sent to Bridge Enterprise by January 6, 2014.  
 
Monthly Progress Report 
 
Tim Harris stated that the SPI dropped to .90, which is still at the goal level. 
There were some underperforming projects, including a large one that finally 

17 Bridge Enterprise: Page 3 of 32



got into construction. This should mean the number will change in the near 
future. 
 
He stated that the reporting has been one of the large projects of the last 
month. Two bridges in Adams County went into construction. Two bridges were 
completed in Region 1 and Region 3.  
 
Financially, the bond expenditures were up by $21 million in the previous 
month. FASTER eligible bridges were discussed in the JBC in relation to how 
the statewide system is improving. Nineteen bridges have been completed in 
the last six months, most of which were funded with bond dollars. 
 
He presented information on the thirty most deficient bridges. 
 
Chairman Aden congratulated everyone on a successful year. 
 
Adjournment 
Chairman Aden asked if there were any more matters to come before the Bridge 
Enterprise Board and hearing none, Chairman Aden announced the 
adjournment of the meeting at 12:05pm. 
 

17 Bridge Enterprise: Page 4 of 32



Page 1 of 3 

  

        STATE OF COLORADO 
 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
Division of Accounting and Finance 

4201 East Arkansas Avenue 
Denver CO   80222 
(303) 757-9262 
 
 
 
 

DATE:  January 16, 2014 

 

TO:  Bridge Enterprise Board of Directors 

 

FROM:  Scott Richrath, CFO 

 

SUBJECT: Sixth Supplement to the FY 2014 Bridge Enterprise Budget 

 

 

Enclosed is the Sixth Supplement to the FY 2014 Bridge Enterprise Budget.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

17 Bridge Enterprise: Page 5 of 32



Bridge Enterprise  

6th Supplement FY 2014 

January 2013 

Page 2 of 3 

 

 

 

REGION 1 

 

 $600,000 – Establish the design phase budget for this project. This deficient bridge will be 

replaced as part of the I-70 Peak Period Shoulder Lane Project.  (19984) 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Phase Funding Prior  Advanced Fifth Supplement Revised Expended

of Work Program Years FY 2014 (FY ') Total Action Budget To-Date

Design Bond  Interest $0 $0 $0 $0 $600,000 $600,000 $0

Total Design $0 $0 $0 $0 $600,000 $600,000 $0

Total Project Budget $0 $0 $0 $0 $600,000 $600,000 $0

Budget Components by Phase, Funding Program, Fiscal Year

Current Budget

I-70 Business Route over I-70 ML in Clear Creek County

Structure F-14-Y

17 Bridge Enterprise: Page 6 of 32



Bridge Enterprise  

6th Supplement FY 2014 

January 2013 

Page 3 of 3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Resolution No.  
 

 

 

“BE IT RESOLVED, That the Sixth Supplement to the Fiscal Year 2013-2014 

Budget is approved by the Bridge Enterprise Board.” 

 

 

17 Bridge Enterprise: Page 7 of 32



COLORADO BRIDGE ENTERPRISE 

Memorandum 
 

 

 

Colorado Bridge Enterprise 

4201 East Arkansas Avenue 

Denver, Colorado 80222 

 

DATE:  January 3, 2013 

TO:  Bridge Enterprise Board of Directors 

FROM:  Kathy Young, CBE Counsel 

SUBJECT: Update on TABOR Foundation v. CBE lawsuit 

 

The Colorado Bridge Enterprise (CBE) learned in July 2013 that Denver District Court Judge Michael 

Martinez ruled in CBE’s favor on both issues presented by the TABOR Foundation in its challenge of the 

of the CBE. The TABOR Foundation alleged that the bridge safety surcharge fee, which the Legislature 

enacted as part of the FASTER legislation, was a tax, not a fee, requiring a vote of the people and also 

challenged bonds issued by CBE as being in violation of TABOR. 

 

The TABOR Foundation had an appeal as of right and filed a Notice of Appeal on September 6, 2013. At 

present, the record of appeal is complete and the Colorado Court of Appeals has issued a briefing 

schedule. TABOR Foundation’s opening brief is due January 21, 2014 and the Transportation 

Commission/Bridge Enterprise answer brief is due 35 days later (February 25, 2014) with reply brief due 

21 days thereafter. Special Assistant Attorney General Mark Grueskin and the Colorado Attorney 

General’s Office will continue to jointly defend this matter. 

 

To the extent it can, the CBE will seek an expedited ruling.  It is expected that the Court of Appeals will 

hold oral arguments in this matter and a decision is not expected until early 2015. If the Colorado 

Supreme Court accepts an appeal in this matter, then the date for a final resolution in this matter could 

be extended until early 2016. 

 

Special Assistant Attorney General Mark Grueskin has provided and estimate for his services of 

$27,500.00 to defend the appeal of this lawsuit. 

 

 

17 Bridge Enterprise: Page 8 of 32



*Number to be finalized by staff bridge

BRIDGE ENTERPRISE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

JANUARY 2014
MONTHLY PROGRESS 
REPORT

Colorado Bridge Enterprise

1/16/2014

Program Schedule
2

 Program schedule updated for work complete through December 
2013

 December Schedule Performance Index (SPI) = 0.93

 Represents a 0.03 INCREASE from prior month (Nov. SPI = 0.90)

 SH88 (Arapahoe) over Cherry Creek request for re-baseline was approved 
at the November 2013 SCCB meeting; 0.03 increase is a result of this 
adjustment. 

 Over-performing projects

 3 projects with $7.5M in combined Earned Value (EV) greater than 
planned

 Increases overall program SPI by 0.02; NO CHANGE from prior month

 Under-performing projects

 13 Railroad projects with $20.3M in combined lost EV

 Reduces overall program SPI calculation by 0.05; NO CHANGE from 
prior month

 0 Non-Railroad projects with a significant lost EV (Lost SPI ≥ 0 01)

1/16/2014

17 Bridge Enterprise: Page 9 of 32



*Number to be finalized by staff bridge

Program Schedule
3

Program Goal SPI ≥ 
0.90

Program SPI by 
Month

1/16/14

0.94

0.95

0.93

0.92

0.90

0.93

0.87

0.88

0.89

0.90

0.91

0.92

0.93

0.94

0.95

0.96

JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC

Major Achievements (December BOD – January BOD)

4

 Current Program Initiatives
Completed 2013 Annual Report as required by the 

FASTER legislation
Completed 2013 Year in Review presented at 

January 2014 Board meeting
 Initiated work on 3-year Financial Plan with CDOT 

CFO and Office of Major Project Development
Pending I-70 viaduct fund alternative analysis

Working with Attorney General’s office and update 
on FASTER lawsuit appeal 

1/16/2014

17 Bridge Enterprise: Page 10 of 32



*Number to be finalized by staff bridge

Major Achievements (December BOD – January BOD)

5

 Bridges to AD
 Region 1
 F-17-GO: US 40 ML(East Colfax) Eastbound over Tollgate 

Creek (Aurora, CO)

 F-17-GA: US 40 ML(East Colfax) Westbound over Tollgate 
Creek (Aurora, CO)

 Bridges to Construction
 Region 2
 N-17-C: I 25 Business Route over Sull Creek 

(Walsenburg, CO)

1/16/2014

Total Program Financial 
Performance

6

Changes from Previous Month
Projected Expenditures
- Overall increased by $9.8M or 2.2%
- Bond-Only increased by $6.2M or 2.1%

Actual Expenditures
- Overall increased by $7.4M or 2.2%
- Bond-Only increased by $8.7M or 3.9%

Encumbrance Balance
- Overall decreased by -$7.6M or -5.7%
- Bond-Only decreased by -6.1M or -11.9%

Encumbrance balances (bond-only) to decrease as 
expenditures increase; unless new work scope is 
contracted.

$301.6 

$234.1 

$45.3 

$151.7 

$103.2 

$80.1 

$ M

$50 M

$100 M

$150 M

$200 M

$250 M

$300 M

$350 M

$400 M

$450 M

$500 M

Projected Expenditures Actual Expenditures Encumbrance Balance

As of November 30, 2013
Non-Bond Bond-Only

$453.3M

$337.3 M

$125.4 M

17 Bridge Enterprise: Page 11 of 32



*Number to be finalized by staff bridge

Status FASTER Eligible Bridges
7

1/16/14

84

99

99

24

13

14

1

2

3

31

26

24

22

22

22

14

17

17

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160 180

Completed

In Construction

Design Complete

In Design

Remaining

No Action Proposed

Current 179 Eligible Bridges 

July 176 Eligible Bridges - 6 Months ago

December 179 Eligible Bridges - 1 Month ago

Current 179 Eligible Bridges 

July 176 Eligible Bridges - 6 Months ago

December 179 Eligible Bridges - 1 Month ago

36

51

51

24

12

13

1

2

3

30

26

24

1*

1*

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90

Completed

In Construction

Design Complete

In Design

Remaining

No Action Proposed

Current 92 Bridges** 

July 91 Bridges - 6 Months ago

December 92 Bridges - 1 Month ago

Status $300M Bond Bridges
8

1/16/14

* One project was determined in-eligible
** Recognized I-70 Viaduct w/ ROW acquisition

17 Bridge Enterprise: Page 12 of 32



*Number to be finalized by staff bridge

Status of 30 Most Deficient Bridges
9

2013 Poor List Bridges Original 128 Bridges

Worst 30 Status Worst  30 Status

Complete 12 27

In Construction 3 1

Design Complete 1 0

In Design 9 2

Remaining 5a 0

Total Addressed 30 30

a Region Location Current Status

E-17-EW R1 I-70 ML EBND over UP RR Pending I-70 East FEIS

E-17-DF R1 I-70 ML WBND over UP RR Pending I-70 East FEIS

E-17-KR R1 I-270 ML EBND over I-70 ML Pending I-70 East FEIS

C-17-B R4 SH 60 ML over SOUTH PLATTE RIVER Currently Not Programmed

K-17-F R2 SH 96 ML over RUSH CREEK Currently Not Programmed

**No Changes this month

1/16/2014

FASTER Q&A
10

Questions & Answers

1/16/2014

17 Bridge Enterprise: Page 13 of 32



COLORADO BRIDGE ENTERPRISE 

Memorandum 
 

 

 

Colorado Bridge Enterprise 

4201 East Arkansas Avenue 

Denver, Colorado 80222 

 

DATE:  January 3, 2014 

TO: Bridge Enterprise Board of Directors 

FROM: Matt Cirulli, Deputy Program Manager 

SUBJECT: Colorado Bridge Enterprise – 2013 Year in Review Presentation 

 

 

The Acting Chief Engineer (Scott McDaniel) shall present the Colorado Bridge Enterprise “2013 Year in 

Review” intended to highlight and reflect back on significant accomplishments and achievements in 

CY2013. The presentation also includes a summary of CY2014 initiatives and challenges. The following 

categories will be addressed:  

• FASTER Program 

• Bond Program 

• Financial Performance 

• Project/Program Delivery 

• Innovation 

• Achievements & Milestones 

• CY2014 Initiatives 

 

Attached is an outline of the presentation generated using Prezi software. Please note that some 

financial and bridge count numbers are subject to change and/or additional slides may be added prior to 

the January 16, 2014 Board of Directors presentation as year-end data is finalized. 

17 Bridge Enterprise: Page 14 of 32



-1- 17 Bridge Enterprise: Page 15 of 32



-2- 17 Bridge Enterprise: Page 16 of 32



-3- 17 Bridge Enterprise: Page 17 of 32



-4- 17 Bridge Enterprise: Page 18 of 32



-5- 17 Bridge Enterprise: Page 19 of 32



-6- 17 Bridge Enterprise: Page 20 of 32



-7- 17 Bridge Enterprise: Page 21 of 32



-8- 17 Bridge Enterprise: Page 22 of 32



-9- 17 Bridge Enterprise: Page 23 of 32



-10- 17 Bridge Enterprise: Page 24 of 32



-11- 17 Bridge Enterprise: Page 25 of 32



-12- 17 Bridge Enterprise: Page 26 of 32



-13- 17 Bridge Enterprise: Page 27 of 32



-14- 17 Bridge Enterprise: Page 28 of 32



-15- 17 Bridge Enterprise: Page 29 of 32



-16- 17 Bridge Enterprise: Page 30 of 32



-17- 17 Bridge Enterprise: Page 31 of 32



-18- 17 Bridge Enterprise: Page 32 of 32



 MEMORANDUM 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
Chief Engineer’s Office 
4201 E. Arkansas Avenue 
Denver, Colorado  80222 
(303) 757-9204 
(303) 757-9656 - Fax 
 

 

 
Date:  January 3, 2014 
 
To: Colorado Transportation Commission 
 
From:  Scott McDaniel, Acting Chief Engineer 
 
Subject: December 2013 Portfolio Management Workshop 
  Commissioner Reiff Question regarding FY14 Surface Treatment Summary Table 
 
 
At the December 2013 Portfolio Management workshop, Commissioner Reiff asked a question in 
regards to the FY14 Surface Treatment Summary table, and a copy of the table has been attached to 
this memorandum for reference purposes. 
 
Commissioner Reiff asked for a clarification on how projects were initially selected by region and was 
there any correlation in between centerline lane miles and budget allocation.  The following is the 
response to his question: 
 
The projects were developed by the regions using the RSL (Remaining Service Life) model because the 
DL (Drivability Life) model was not available for use at that time.  The FY 14 surface treatment projects 
were designed using the practical design guide and presented to the transportation commissioners 
(TC) in March of 2013. 
 
In addition, Commissioner Reiff requested a map that graphically depicted the project locations, and 
a map is attached to this memorandum. 
 
 

This memorandum will not be a discussion topic at the January 2014 TC meeting as 
the memorandum provides a written response to the Commissioner’s question. 

 

19 Information Only: Page 1 of 3



19 Information Only: Page 2 of 3



1

FY14 Surface Treatment Asset Map

19 Information Only: Page 3 of 3


	00 January Agenda
	THE CHAIRMAN MAY ALTER THE ITEM SEQUENCE OR TIMES

	01 I-70E Viaduct Workshop
	02 Statewide Plan Committee
	02a TC SWP Committee Agenda 2014_0110
	02b Jan 2014 TC Memo_PD14_12.31.2013 (dps3)
	MEMORANDUM
	DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

	02c Policy Directive 14_DecTC_(dps) (2)
	COLORADO DEPARTMENT OF 

	02d CMAQ memo_JanuarySWP(dps)
	02e Comparison of CMAQ Formula Options 12-30-13
	Sheet1

	02f CO_Air_Quality_Areas_TCNov2013
	02g 12-31-2013_SWPC RTP Development and Public Outreach.2 (3)
	MEMORANDUM
	DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

	02h 12-31-2013_Revised Skittles Schedule (1)
	02i survey memo 12.31.13 (2)
	MEMORANDUM
	DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

	02j SLV Survey -Attachment A (1)
	02k Attachment B - Survey Participation Rates (1) (1)
	02l Attachment C - Preliminary High Level Results (3) (2)

	03 FASTER Safety Committee
	03a FASTER_Safety_Memo_JanTC_v5
	STATE OF COLORADO
	DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

	03b January2014_TCWorkshop_FASTERSafetyv5
	03b 03b January2014_TCWorkshop_FASTERSafetyv5.pdf
	FASTER Safety �and Colorado Safety Programs�
	Agenda
	Safety – Save Lives, Reduce Crashes
	Safety – Save Lives, Reduce Crashes
	FASTER Safety Accomplishments – Audit Report
	CDOT Safety Program Snapshot
	Fatal Crashes vs. Vehicle Miles Travelled
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Measuring Safety Example
	Highway Listings by MP
	Total Crashes
	Total Crash Rate
	Injury + Fatal Crashes
	Injury + Fatal Rate
	Level of Service of Safety - Total Crashes
	Level of Service of Safety - �Injury+ Fatal Crashes
	Strategic Highway Safety Plan (SHSP)
	SHSP Example Performance Measures�2007-present
	Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP)
	HSIP Project Types
	Office of Transportation Safety�(Highway Safety Office)
	Office of Transportation Safety�(Highway Safety Office)
	FASTER Safety Legislation
	Historical FASTER Safety Projects
	Slide Number 27
	New FASTER Safety Program
	New Program Goals and Objectives
	Proposed FASTER Safety Program
	New FASTER Safety Asset Management Program 
	New FASTER Safety Mitigation Program
	New FASTER Safety Mitigation Program
	Proposed Project Selection Criteria
	Example�Project Selection Process - I-70 MP 29.50-31.50
	Example�Project Selection Process - I-70 MP 29.50-31.50
	Example�Project Selection Process - I-70 MP 29.50-31.50
	Slide Number 38
	Example�Project Selection Process - I-70 MP 29.50-31.50
	Example�Project Selection Process - I-70 MP 29.50-31.50
	Example�Project Selection Process - I-70 MP 29.50-31.50
	Example�Project Selection Process - I-70 MP 29.50-31.50
	Next Steps
	Questions


	04 Asset Management Committee
	04a Memo%20for%20TC%20AM%20Jan%202014%20-%20RB%20AMP[1]rev
	04b Asset Management Committee AGENDA
	Thursday, January 16, 2014
	4201 East Arkansas Avenue
	William Johnson, Branch Manager
	Transportation Performance Branch
	THE AGENDA MAY BE ALTERED AT THE CHAIR’S DISCRETION

	04c Memo%20for%20TC%20AM%20Jan%202014%20-%20Tunnels%20and%20Rockfall[1]rev
	04d TC%20AM%20Committee-Presentation%202014-1-2[1]rev

	05 T&I Committee
	05a T&I January Agenda 1-16-14
	05b T&I Minutes 11212013 (1)
	05c T&I Memo FASTER 2015 1-3-14
	05d T&I FASTER Redistribution PP 1-16-14 (2)
	05e T&I Memo ICS AGS Status 1-3-13 (1)
	05f T&I AGS ICS Briefing PP 1-16-14 (1)

	06 Program Distribution
	06a ProgramDistributionMemo_JanTC(4_DH).doc
	06b PD Baseline and Scenario 1 (1)

	07 Audit Review Committee
	1 ARC Agenda January 2014_v2
	2 ARC Octorber 17 minutes
	3b Outstanding Audit Recommendations
	3c ARC Audit Plan Update Jan 2014_v6.docx
	3c1 flood v3
	3d Hotline Incident Statistics
	3e CDOT 2014 Audit metrics
	4i ARC Review of PY14 Audit Plan January 2014
	4iii ARC Risk Assessment Questions Jan 2014_v2.docx
	4iv ARC Audit Definitions Jan 2014

	08 Safety Committee
	08a January 2014 Safety Committee Agenda (1)
	Transportation Commission of Colorado
	January 16, 2014 @ 10:30
	4201 East Arkansas Avenue; Auditorium
	Denver, Colorado
	UTHE AGENDA MAY BE ALTERED AT THE CHAIRMAN’S DISCRETION

	08b Safety Commission Memorandum for January2014
	08c Drugged Driving Campaign Update_January 2014
	08d Traffic Safety Campaign Commission Update_January 2014_FINAL
	08e May - Nov30 Comparison
	08f FY14 Qtr 1 Excellence in Safety Table (2)
	Job Act
	Overall
	WC
	Lost Days
	AL
	PD
	Statewide
	4 YR COMP

	08g Rock Fall 2014 - Jan - TC RxFI

	09 RAMP LOC Update
	10 Twin Tunnels Workshop
	10a TC WB Twin Tunnel Widening Memo Jan 7 2014
	10b TCUploadJanuary 2 2014 CDOT-CCC-IdSprgs MOU
	10c Final Jan 16 2014 TC TT WB Bore PresentationUpload

	11 Regular Meeting Agenda
	THE CHAIRMAN MAY ALTER THE ITEM SEQUENCE OR TIMES

	12 Consent Agenda
	12a TC December 2013 Minutes
	12b1 TC Memo for Approval of Policy Directive 600.0
	12b2 600.0 Policy Directive Equal Opportunity and Non-Discrimination Currently in Effect
	POLICY DIRECTIVE CURRENTLY IN EFFECT
	PURPOSE
	POLICY


	12b3 Updated Policy Directive 600.0 EEO and Affirmative Action
	COLORADO DEPARTMENT OF 

	12b4 TC Resolution adopting PO 600.0  Equal Employment Opportunity and Affirmative Action
	12c1 TC Memo for Approval of Policy Directive 603.0
	12c2 0603.0 PO Existing Policy on Sexual Harassment
	COLORADO DEPARTMENT OF 
	Purpose
	Policy
	Responsibilities
	Employee
	Managers/Supervisors
	Appointing Authorities


	12c3 Updated Policy Directive 603.0 PO Policy Prohibiting Sexual Harassment
	COLORADO DEPARTMENT OF 
	I.  Purpose
	IV.   Policy

	12c4 TC Resolution adopting PO 603.0  Policy Prohibiting Sexual Harassment
	12d1 TC Memo for Approval of Policy Directive 604.0 and repeal of 611.0
	12d2 Updated Policy Directive 604.0 Policy on Non-Discrimination
	COLORADO DEPARTMENT OF 
	POLICY ON NON-DISCRIMINATION
	Civil Rights & Business Resource Center, Division of Administrative Services

	12d3 Current Policy 604.0  PO On Non-Discrimination
	COLORADO DEPARTMENT OF 
	NON-DISCRIMINATION IN FEDERALLY FUNDED PROGRAMS POLICY
	CENTER FOR EQUAL OPPORTUNITY
	NON-DISCRIMINATION IN FEDERALLY FUNDED PROGRAMS POLICY
	NON-DISCRIMINATION IN FEDERALLY FUNDED PROGRAMS POLICY

	12d4 611.0 PO Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program REPEAL
	12d5 TC Resolution approval of Policy Directive  604.0 and Repeal of Policy Directive 611.0
	12e1 Chief to TC Letter SH 85 33-EX
	12e2 33-EX ROW Plan (1)
	12e3 Proposed Resolution SH 85 33-EX
	12f 2014-01-02 TC Compliance Agreement Memo (2)

	13 8th Supplement to the FY14 Budget
	13a 8S14 Commission Supplement Commission Mailing FINAL
	13b 8th Supplement Detail_January 2014

	14 COP for the Relocation of R4 HQ
	14a Transportation Commission Memo R4 COPs _January 2014
	14b Transportation Commission Presentation R4 COPs_January 2014
	14c Transportation Commission Resolution R4 COPs_January 2014

	15 Permanent Tunnel Rules
	15a TC Memo on Opening Perm. Tunnel Rules.1
	15b Current CDOT Tunnel Rules Adopted 9.30.2008
	15c Proposed CDOT Tunnel Rules Temporary and Permanent
	15d Rep Group List
	15e Comparison of Current CDOT Tunnel Rules, Current Practice, and Proposed Rules.1.9.14
	15f Resolution to Open Permanent Tunnel Rules and Delegating Authority to Administrative Hearing Officer t
	Resolution # TC -
	Open Rule-Making Regarding Revisions to the Rules Governing the Use of Tunnels on Colorado State Highways, 2 CCR 601-8 and Delegate Authority to an Administrative Hearing Officer to Hold a Public Rule-Making Hearing.


	16 Temporary Tunnel Rules
	16a TC Memorandum re Temporary Adoption of Tunnel Rules, 2 CCR 601-8
	16b CDOT Temporary Rule Support Letter 1-7-2014
	16c Resolution for TC Adopting Temporary Tunnel Rules
	Resolution # TC -
	Adopt Temporary Rules Governing the Use of Tunnels on Colorado State Highways, 2 CCR 601-8 and Direct the Department to Comply with all Requirements of the State Administrative Procedure Act.


	17 IX Bus Plan and Implementation
	17a TC Memo IX Approval 1-3-14
	17b IX PP TC Agenda 1-16-14 (2)
	17c IX Bus Resolution 1-16-14 (2)

	18 Bridge Enterprise
	18b Bridge Enterprise December 2013 Minutes
	Bridge Enterprise Board

	18c January 2014 BE06S14 -
	18d CBE Tabor lawsuit memo010204
	18e CBE Jan 2014 progress report_FINAL
	18f 2013BE_YearInReview_Memo
	18g CBE2013inReview_010214
	ADP8252.tmp
	UTHE CHAIRMAN MAY ALTER THE ITEM SEQUENCE OR TIMES


	19 Information Only
	19a Commissioner question memo
	19b STFY14
	19c FY14 Surface Treatment Asset Map[1]

	ADP118C.tmp
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice




